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*Earnings from operations is not a substitute for consolidaced
net income reported under generally aceepted accounting
principles (GAAP). We present “earnings from operations™
in order to provide a measure that allows investors to
compare our underlying financial performance from one
period to another, exclusive of izems that managcmcht
believes do not reflece the normal course of operations.
See the “Financial Highlights™ table on page 51 fora
reconciliation of earnings from operations with GAAP
censolidated net income.
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A LETTER TO OUR STAKEHOLDERS: ]

Today at PG&E, we are ’rhinlking about the customer experience

more holistically ’rhlon ever, before It encompasses the accessibility,
“affordability and reliability of services that are essential o c|us’romers
everyday lives. The resources to power their businesses. The
infrastructure to su;:|)porr their state and local economies. TW\e health
of their air, water, land and|planet. The quality of life in their
communities. The empowerment 1o act on their individuol values in
their daily energy choices. And the peace of mind knowir?g

we are thinking ahead about how society and business will ensure

a secure energy fu’r‘ure 10, QiO or 50 years from now.

| |
This perspective is guiding us as we keep a sharp focus on
our customers and pursue 2 vision to become the nation’s
leading utility.

The changes in our company over the past two years have been
the result of an unblinking, in-depth appraisal of our operations
and culture through the customer’s eyes. We confronted the
reality that PG&E couldn’t secure its future in the cvolr’ing
ucility industry — never mind lead it — unless we embraced new
ways of thinking and working, |

We have had to become faster and more efficient. More
accountable and reliable. More nimblt‘: and responsive. More
enterprising and innovative. More extroverted and engaged. More
open and honest. And, yes, more fricnld]y and approachable,

Although we're still in the chick of this transformation,
customers can already see the signs of a new PG&E, We hear it
anccdotally, and we see it in our custorlncr sarisfaction ratlings,
which showed marked improvements last year. These and many
other signals assure us that PG&E is on the right track.

For a regulated utility, the ultimate cransformartion is
becoming the kind of company that customers do business with
because they want to — not because they have to. That’s one reason
we are running PG&E today with the mindset of a competitive

venture chat has to win the trust, respect and confidence of its

customers every day.

What’s also become clear to us, though, is that cruly great
relationships with customers have to be built on moré than just
operational excellence and quality service. Theyire built just as
importantly on shared values and priorities. Customers like
to know they're doing business with a company that stands for
things they also believe in,

Leading companies in other lines of work have known
this for a long time. We, too, see it as an essential part of our

leadership vision. '

So it heartened us last year to see customers nodding in
favor as PG&E took a bold stand on global warming, explored
innovative new possibilities for clean energy, ga\"c more of our
time and resources to the community than ever before, beat our
supplier diversity goals, and partnered constructively with ather
leaders in business and government.

With the rorality of our accomplishments inf2006, we are
nearer to being the company we aspire to become.

At the same time, there are no illusions: We are not yet where
we want to be. Not every change worked smoothly last year.
Not every performance metric moved up as far or as fast as we -
intended. And not every customer is gerring the quality service
we are committed to providing,

In this year’s letter, we will bring you current on the state of

our company, sharc thc major steps we're taking to advance our




strategy in 2007, and make it clear why we are entering the

year with quiet confidence that the changes we are pursuing will

put PG&E’s vision of industry leadership firmly in our grasp.

WE ARE FINANCIALLY STRONG.

utility whose finances are healthy and sound is also one
A that is in the best position ta do the right things for its
customets. So, it’s encouraging to report that our numbers for
2006 were cxtraordinary.

Earnings per share came in above our targets for the year.
Total net income was $991 million, or $2.76 per share, as
calculated in accordance with generally accepred accounting
principles (GAAP).

On a non-GAAP carnings from operations basis, which
excludes items that we consider to be non-operaring, earnings per
share for 2006 grew by almost 10 percent compared wich 2005
to $2.57 per share. This exceeded our projected growth rate of
7.5 percent. ("The Financial Highlights table on page 51 explains
the comparison of GAAP total net income and non-GAAP
carnings from operations.)

We expect to continue growing earnings on a trajectory that
is one of the strongest among comparable utilities. Our current
forecast calls for annual earnings growth to average ar least
7.5 percent over the next five years.

PG&E's strategy and outlook continue to resonate with
the market. Last year, investors bid up the value of our shares by
mote than 27 percent, and the stock price ended 2006 just below
the all-time peak it hit in December.

For sharcholders, this growth in stock price, plus four
quarters of steady common dividends, added up to a total
annual rerurn of over 31 percent. Even in a winning year for
energy stocks overall, this performance stood out from the pack:
PG&E’ return beat the S8P 500, the S&P Electrics and the
S&P Multi Utility Index.

WE ARE STRENGTHENING QUR SYSTEM.

L ike many utilities, we are making major capital additions to
our infrastrucrure in order to support growth and improve

existing service. This bencfits the homes and businesses we serve, -

and it provides corresponding opportunities for shareholders

to earn additional returns on a growing asset base.

In 2006, these investments totaled approximately $2.4 billion,
up from $1.9 billion a year carlicr. On average, we expect to
sustain or increase this pace of investment through 2011, starting
in 2007 when our plans call for spending at least $2.8 billion.

This year, we expect to connect anether 75,000 new eleceric
customers and 62,000 new gas customers. We'll expand our
local electric and gas distribution networks accordingly. We'll
also continue upgrading and replacing hardware, like cables and

transformers, to increase reliabilicy. - Rt

- We'te also improving the low of power in our system; by
devoting substantial resources to build and expand electric.
transmission lines. This is the fastest growing part of our business.
‘These projccts are fortifying reliability, creating better access to
new and existing power supplies, accommodating development
in high-growth areas like Sacramento and the Central Valley,
and delivering other benefits. For example, a new transmission
line in San Francisco last year enabled us to shut down an old,
environmentally obsolete power plant, keeping a promise we
made to the customers who live nearby.

Going forward, we’ve proposed constructing a number of
additional gas and electric ransmission arveries to create access to
new supplies of renewable energy and new sources of natural gas.

In addition to ongoing investment in our existing hydro-
electric and nuclear facilities, for the first time in 20 years PG&E
is also back in the business of owning and operating new power
plants. As part of our long-term resource plan for customers,
construction recently began on the first of three state-of-the-art.
facilities. The plants will be on-line between 2009 and 2010 and

will generate enough power for 950,000 homes.

WE ARE BUILDING A CLEANER,
MORE SUSTAINABLE ENERGY FUTURE.

f rejuvenating California’s encrgy supply and infrastructure is

one trend driving our business, another is the imperative to
do it with cleaner, more efficient technologies and smart, sustain-
able resource planning. This is a priority for our customers, our.
state and PG&E.

More than 50 percent of the power we deliver already

comes from resources that produce no global warming emissions.
Combine this with 30 years of experience running the world’s

most successful customer energy efficiency programs, large and




expanding renewable power commitments, one of the urilicy
. . . I .
industry’s largest fleets of clean-fuel v!chlclcs. industry-leading
habitat conservation strategies, award-winning environmeneal

education programs, and other best practices, and it’s easy to
see why PG&E ranks as one of the clc;‘mest utilities in che nation,
if not the world.

We were the only major ljtiliry to stand with Governor
Schwarzenegger last year as he signed California’s historic global
warming law. Our stance reflects our belief that climate c!hangc

poses a real threat to the planet’s future and requires action now.

We've also helped forge an alliznce of leading companices and envi-

"We expect to continue growing

earnings on a trajectory that

is one of the strongest among

‘” '

comparable utilities.

ronmental groups to call for a federal responsc on climate change,
including General Electric, DuPont, Alcoa, Natural Resources

Defense Council, Environmental Defense and others.

We know customers are counting on us to find ever cleaner
solutions to their energy needs. One of the most imporeant ways
we're doing this is by maximizing the benefits of energy efficiency
and new renewable supplies before we make plans to build
new conventional power plants. Efficiency gains are the most
economic and cleanest resource available to meet customers’
growing energy demands.

That's why we’re now in the midst of a three-year campaign
to infusc an additional $1 billion into new energy efﬁcie?cy
programs for residential and business customers in California.

For large customers like Yahoo! and Adobe, we're providing
energy analyses and design assistance for their facilicies, rebates
on energy efficient equipment, incentives to upgrade or change

|
energy management practices, and technical education and ;
training. We're also customizing our programs more than ever
before to suit the unique needs of specific customers. |

Additionally, we're helping shepherd new energy efficient
products and technologies into the marker. Last year, for
example, our team broke new ground working with leaders like

Sun Microsystems, Hewlete-Packard and Intel to set new bench-

1

|

marks for energy efficiency in servers and other IT hardware.
We've created an industry-leading rebate program ro support
these and any other qualifying products to help trim power use
in cncrgy—in‘tcnsivc data centers.

No other utility matches PG&E’s expertiselin energy
efficiency. Qur counsel has even been sought by China, where we
are facilitating information exchanges and technology deploy-
ment to help them cope with their enormous energy needsand. .
the related environmental impacts.

Here at home, as the nation becomes more engaged in

pursuing cnergy efficiency, we see our experience and know-how

as a major leadership advantage for our company, with the
potential to open new opportunities for shareholders.

Already one of the nation’s largest purchasers of renewable
power, PG&E is also aggressively adding new renewable -
resources. Our stable of renewable resources grew by more than
400 megawarts last year — which will be enough energy for more .
than 300,000 customers - as we signed a number of contraces
for new supplics of wind, solar, geothermal and other renewable
power. When pooled with our existing renewables, and
additional contracts expected in 2007 and the years ahead, we
expect to continue making significant progress tloward California’s
renewable energy goals. Qur customers also continue to benefit
from PG&E's vast supplies of hydroelectric polwcr.

We're also giving customers options that enable them to
act on their own environmental values in their energy choices.

PG&E has helped over 13,000 of its customers install solar



energy technology at their homes and businesses — far more than
any other utility in the United States.
Customers will have a new option this year, as PG&E launches
its cutting-edge ClimareSmart program. We'll be the firsc.utilicy
to give customers a choice to offsct the global warming impact
of their energy use by paying a small additional amount, which
PG&E will use to buy ar create carbon offsets. We plan to be the
first participant, with a commitment to offset the emissions
associared with the energy we use in our offices and other facilities.
These highlights only skim the surface of what's happening
at PG&E o help revolutionize the way we produce and use
encrgy. We are exploring opporrunities associated with plug-in

hybrid electric cars, next-generation renewables like large-scale

“More than 50 percent of the
power we deliver already comes
from resources that produce no

global warming emissions.”

solar thermal power stations and wave power off the coast of
our state, rencwable natural gas supplies from cows on California
dairy farms, collaborating with developers to design sustainable
communities... the list goes on.

Time will tell if these ideas are commercially feasible. Either
way, we are confident that by pursuing all the possibilities, we
will help advance progress on clean cncrgy-and that good things

will come to customers and shareholders as a resulr.

WE ARE BECOMING EASIER TO DO BUSINESS WITH.
uch of the feedback we hear from our customers boils

M down to the simple idea thae it should be easier to

do business with PG&E. More cenvenience. Less time and red

tape. Scamless service from one part of the business to another.

Access to clear, understandable information. Consistent

treatment. Better communication.

We agree, and we'te working hard to improve our performance.

A typical illustration: Customers loved the first-of-its-kind

“10/20 winter gas savings program” we created in 2005. But

they rold us that figuring out the details was complicated. This
winter, we took that feedback, enhanced the program and made
it simpler to qualify.

When bills spiked during the summer heat wave last year, we
knew customers needed relief. So we rapidly took the unprec-
edented initiative to refund excess revenues directly to customers,
instead of holding on to them o offsct future revenue needs.

At our call centers, we made it easier to get help from a live
agent when customers need assistance. We also made it easier
for the agenc by simply enabling them to view an exact copy of
the customer’s bill on cheir screen. Common sense changes like
this helped us become more effective at resolving customer issues
the first time they call. Our numbers at the end of 2006 showed
marked improvement over where we began the year.

Another improvement, PG&E recently started offering
customers the option to use their Visa cards to pay their monthly
bills, either for one-time transactions or for automaric payments.

This year, we're now in the process of redesigning customers’
monthly account statements so they are easier to understand
and more informative. Most importantly, we're working directly
with customers to be sure we ge it righe.

Our focus on service is paying off. PG&E’s J.D. Power and
Associates customer satisfaction scores for our electric business
improved significantly last year, beating our rargers. Addition-
ally, we just learned that business customers rated our narural
gas service in a tie for the best in the western region and fourth
among all utilizies in the nation.

These results tell us that we’ve begun to make progress. We'll
continue to focus heavily in this area in 2007.

WE ARE CAPITALIZING ON NEW

TECHNOLOGIES AND PROCESSES.

N o other utility in the country is rethinking its operations
on a scale matching the ambition or sophistication of the

cransformation initiative now underway at PG&E.

In scores of areas across the business, the ways that we plan,
organize and execute work are being simplified, standardized and
consolidated to be more efhicient. Qfhices are being relocated,
redesigned and staffed more strategically. Our people are being
equipped with and trained on powerful new rools and
technologies that function on commeon platforms to facilitate

information sharing.
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We've designed these changes with the goal of a quantum leap
in performance. When they’re complete, we believe the PG&E
model will ser a new standard for excellence. That’s a bold
statement. Bue it reflects our confidence in the path we're now on,

In the end, our customers will see faster turnarounds on
service requests, more consistent service, better reliability and -
quicker responses to outages, and higher qualiry inforn'llation
about their energy usage, among othel' benefits. We'll also be
operating the business more cost-effectively.

Today, this vision remains a ways off. Major cornerstloncs .
of the strategy went into place in 2006 - but the biggest changes

lic ahead, and 2007 will be a pivotal year.

Accomplishments in 2006 included installing the first of ‘
10 million SmarctMerer™ dqviccs that will be connected to homes

and businesses throughout our service area over the next five
years. SmarcMerer™ technology will cn‘ab]c us 1o provide customers
with new time-of-use service options|based on hourly infor-
mation, connect service remotely and'respond more rapidly to
outages, among other capabilicies.
We also opened seven new Resource Management Centers,
centralizing and streamlining work previously done in 70 different
locations. As ene labor union member puc it, “When
you walk in ... you know you're not in yesterday's ofhice anymore.”
Everything from the workstations toworkflows has been .

re-engineered.

We also consolidated our dispatch centers into fewer loca-
tions. And we've begun overhauling critical IT infrastruceure in
our energy distribution and customer service operations

As will always be the case in major transitions, some
missteps are inevitable. We're acknowledging and Ieami]}g from
them as they occur, and we are working through the challenges as
quickly as possible.

This year’s most critical initiative will be the launch of the new
software and tools thar will be the foundation for our new service
model. Importantly, we're applying lessons we learned last year to
shore up gaps in employee training and tighten up our execurion.

As in 2006, this year we also will require some good people
at PG&E o accepr hard sacrifices — retraining, relocarting to keep
a job, or leaving a job that no longer fits with our operations.

['ve talked face-to-face with a number of men and women
affected by these changes. These conversations are never easy.

But they’re deeply important. They rc;nind leaders that change. |

comes with costs, and tl.lmt we have a ducy to make certain

I

ntee
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that, when sacrifices are made, it’s because they are in the best
long-term interest of the company and its customers. 'm confdent
they are;and I'm confident PG&E will make the transition for

these members of our company as smooth as possible.

.y . .
[ T

WE ARE ONLY JUST BEGINNING..

n two years, I've seen our company make some remarkable

strides. 1 believe we have assembled the best team in the s
industry. I believe our strategy is ideally calibrated to caprure the
best opportuniries for growth and value as the industry evolves.
And I believe that — even with as much paositive change as
we've seen — we're only just beginning to glimpse che possibilities
that lie ahead for PG&E.

I'm very much an optimist when it comes to PG&E's future

and the future we're helping to create for our customers. But I'm

. also a hard-nosed realist who knows we can’t take success for

granted.

Qur commitment for 2007 is to push forward relentlessly. You
can count on us to be responsible, patierit and pragmatic as we
drive change throughour the business. But you can also count on
us to be disciplined abour delivering results, because failure isn't
an option.

Ifyou're alrcady a PG&E s.hnreholdcr. we hope you were
excited by our performance in 2006. If you aren"t one yet, we -
hope our results and our vision.will convince you to become one.

In the meantime, our ceam of 20,000-men and women will
be focused on delivering for you and all of our stakehelders

again in 2007.

Sincerely, .

Peter A. Darbee
Chairman of the Board, Chief Execurive Officer and President -
PG&E Corporarion

Chairman of the Board
Pacific Gas and Electric Company
February 22, 2007 .

.
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A COMPANY POWERED BY PEOPLE

- 4

G&E derives its energy from the 20,000 employees who have dedicated their professional

lives to serving our enterprise as well as California’s communities. Our world-class

leadership team is just as determined and dynamic - .a blend that mixes specialized utility

experience and expertise with diverse skills and talents sharpened in other industries. Our .-

leaders are also driven and compete hard to find creative solutions and strategies that will

+ serve customers better today and tomorrow. {They understand that talent and tenacity are

nothing without also embracing values such as integrity, accountability, and a commitment
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PETER A. DARBEE
PG&E Corporation —
Chairman of the Boerd, Chief Executive
Officer, and President

Pacific Gas and Electric Compony -
Chairman of the Board

Since taking the helm at PG&E

- - two years ago, Perer Darbece has set
the company’s sights on becoming
the leading uilicy in the United
Stares. As a veteran of the energy,
telecommunications and invest-
ment banking industries, Peter has
built a record of suceess in both
regulared and non-regulated
markets and in industries that have
undergone substantial changé.
He is applying that experience
today ac PG&E. He is intent on
transforming the company with a
focus on delighting its 15 million
custometrs, energizing its 20,000
employees and rewarding each of
its sharcholders. Peter has been
with the company for seven years.
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LESLIE H, EVERETT

PG&E Corporation - Senior
Vice President, Communications
and Public Affairs '

Leslie Everett is responsible for
governmental relations, corporare
environmental and federal affairs,
federal governmental relations,
corporate communications, civic
partncrship and communicy ini-
tiatives, and corporate governance
and the office of the corporate
secretary. She is also President

of the PG&E Corporation
Foundation for charitable giving.
Leslie has been with the company
for 29 years.

KENT M. HARVEY
PG&E Caorporation -
Senior Vice President and”
Chief Risk and Audit Officer

Kent Harvey oversees the
company’s enterprise-wide risk
management, internal audit,

Bury 'g sowoyy

‘compliance and corporate security

functions. During his career, he
has held a variety of financial
positions. Kent has been with the
¢company for 24 years.

R‘USSEI.L M. JACKSON
PIG&E Corporation - Senior Vice
President, Human Resources

VP?:ific Gas and Electric Company -
Senior Vice President, Human Resources

Russ Jackson is responsible for the
policies governing humla.n resources
and provides strarcgic oversight in
the areas of compensation, benefits,
lablcr relations, staffing and leader-
ship development for both the
hoildillg company and the ucility,
which rogether employ more

th:ll"‘l 20,000 people. Russ has been
with the company for 26 years.
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CHRISTOPHER P. JOHNS
PG&E Corporation - |

Senior Vice President, Chief Financial
Ofiicer, and Treasurer '

Pc;cific Gas ond Electric (-:or-npany.—
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer, end Treasurer -

Chris Johns oversees the financial
activities of the $34 billion
cor.npany including accounting,
treasury, tax, business and
financial planning, and investor
refations. Before joining PG&E
Corporation, he was a partner

ac KPMG Peat Marwick LLP.
Chiris has been with the company
for 10 years.

THOMAS B. KING ™
PG&E Corporation - Senior
Vice President

Pacific Gas and Electric Company -
Chief Executive Officer

Tom King is the CEQ of our
utility business. Tom plays a

key rolc in growing PG&E
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hat ' ll borauon is cruc1al — at all levels of our orga-

nization. And they help bring people together to pursue a common vision. PG&E shines .

brightly, but it’s a corporate constellation, not a collection of stars. The'leaders pictured

here embody growth in all its manifestations -, whether it’s expanding one of our. manager’s
y / : 5 2 g 8

professional horizons, delivering quality-of-life improvements to customers, providing:

economic opportunity to our communities, or enhancing shareholder value. Looking

ahead, this leadership team'will continue to listen and learn wherever and whenever it can,
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In the end, that is the best —and only
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Corpomtion"s business, including
potential strategic growth
opportuniticé. He has more than
20 years of experience in the energy
industry. Tom has been with the

company for nine years.

KYUN PARK
PG&E Corporation - Seniar Vice
President and General Counsel

Hyun Park is responsible for
leading and directing the legal
function for PG&E Corporation
and ies businesses, including ics
principal subsidiary, Pacific Gas
and Electric Company. Prior

to joining PG&E Corporation,
he was Vice President, General
Counsel and Secretary at
Allegheny Energy, Inc,, in
Greensburg, PA. Hyun joined che
company in November 2006,
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R'fAND L. ROSENBERG
PG&E Corporation - .
Sennor Vice President, Corporme

Strmegy and Development

Rand Roscnbcrg is responsible for
dcvclopmg PG&E CtI)rpomuon s
strateglc plan and ovclzrsccmg the
company’s corporatc'dcvc’lop
ment effores in regard ro mergers
and acquisitions. Rand joined

thc company in 2005 S aficr having
spent over a decade in the field of
investment bankjng.,

LlNDA Y.H. CHENG

PG&E Corporuhon - V;ce President,
Corporate Governance ond
Corporote Secretary

Pacific Gas and Electric Cc;mpany -
Vice President, Corporriure Governance’
and Corporate Secretary

Linda Cheng s rcspfonsxblc for
mﬂnaglﬂg (.Ol'porat(: govtrnantc
matters and the corpomtc
secretary functions for ll’G&F

Corporarion and its utility uni,
|

|

|

— way to delight customers.
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Pacific Gas and Electric Company.
She joined the company asan
attorney and became Corporite
Secretary for both companies in
2001. Linda has been with thc

company for 17 years.

STEVEN'L. KLINE

PG&E Corporation =

Vice President, Corporate
Environmental and Federol Affairs

Steve Kline is responsible for
environmental policy activitics

at the company. He also has
oversight of the company's Wash-
ington, D.C. office and serves as
the senior liaison with federal
elected and regulatory officials.
For more than two decades, he has
actively sought public policies chac
encourage energy efficiency and
sound environmental policies and
practices. Steve has been with the
company for 27 years.
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G. ROBERT{POWELL
PG&E Corporation -
Vice President ond Controller

Pacific Gas c:nd Electric Company -
Vice Presidentl and Controller

Bob Powell joined PG&E
Corporat'ioln from Pricewater-
houseCoopers, where he was a
partner in the audit and business
assurance group within the firm’s
National Utility Practice. Prior to
chis he sr:n;cd in the Atlanta office
of Arthur Andersen LLPasa
partner in the energy and commu-
nications practice. Bob joined the
company in October 2005,

vl
KICHARD! 1. ROLLO
PG&E Corporation -
Vice President, Strategic Development
and Business Infegration
Richard Rollo has worked in _-
invcst‘men‘t banking and corporate
dcvclopmleht for more than 20
years, identifying, analyzingand
executing future growth opportu-

i
45




nities. At PG&E Corporation,. '
he focuses on mergers, acquisi- -
tions and business integration
within the evolving regulated
utility industry. Richard joined
the company in March 2006.

GABRIEL B, TOGNERI"®
PGAE Corporation —
Vice President, Investor Relations

Gabe Togneri provides the
investment community, PG&E
sharcholders and investment
analysts with information about -
the Corporaticn, its financial
performance, and future outlook.
He has served in a number of -

positions in energy and finance.
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Gabe has been with the company

for 29 years.

JAMES A, TRAMUTO
PG&E Corporation — Vice President,
Federal Governmental Relations

Jim Tramuto has more than 35 .
years of exp.ericncc working in the
energy indust.ry. and gpvg;nn:uema,l
relations, Prior to joining the
company, Jim was President of
TECO Gas Marketing, President
and CEO of Polaris Pipeline,

and held a number of exccutive,
legal, and governmental affairs
positions at United Gas Pipeline
Company. Jim has been with the
company for 14 years. '

WILLIAM T. MORROW , -
Pacific Gas and Electric Company —
President and Chief Operating Officer

Bill Morrow is responsible for
overall managcmentrofthe_utility's
day-to-day operations. Prior to
joinil;g PG&E, Bill held various
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CEO and President roles including
President of Japan Telecom, CI-O
of Yodafone UK, President of ‘
Vodafone KK, and, most recently,
CEOQ of Vodafone Eumﬁe. He ils
well kno@vn for his ability to lcad
large-scale performnncc lmprovc—
ments :md turnarounds Bill bcban
his carcer ac AT&T {formerly
Pacific Tclcph:o'n;:) in 1980, Bill
joined the company i’ August

THOMAS E. BOTTORFF
Pacific Gas and Electric
Company - Senior Vice President,
Regulotory Relations

Tom Bottorff is responsible for -

ioBsog ‘g oljaydo
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developing, coordinating and
managing policy with state and .
regulatory agencics, including
the California Public Utilities.
Commission (CPUC), the Federal
Energy Regulatory Commission
{FERC) and the Independent
System Operator. He also is

Asayn y voug

responsible for developing and
filing rate proposals with the . -
CPUC and FERC, and overseeing
the company’s gas and clectric
tariffs. Tom has been with the
company for 24 years.

HELEN A, BURT ~

Pacific Gas ond Electric
Company — Senior Vice President
and Chief Customer Cfficer
Helen Burtis responsible for ..

developing and implementing -

customer-centered, enterprise-
wide business strategies to create
customet experiences that will help
define PG&E as a leading utility.
She has more than 25 years of
customer service experience wichin
the utility industry. Helen joined !
the company in February 2006.

JEFFREY D. BUTLER
Pacific Gas and Electric Company -
Senior Vice President, Energy Delivery

Jeff Butler oversees the operation,
maintenance and construction, as
wellas engineering, of the utilicy’s
gas and electric rransmission and

distribution systems. Jeff has been-

with the company for 27 years. .-

o
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JOHN. 5. KEENAN,

Pacific Gas and Electric Company -
Senior Vice President, Generation

and Chief Nuclear Officer |

Jack Keenan is responsible for all
of the company’s power genera-
tion assets, including nuclear,
fossil and hydroelectric. He also
manages che stracegic direction
and financial success of those assets,
as well as that of the company’s
cogeneration and renewable
energy sources. He has more than
three decades of power-genera-
tion expeticnee. Jack joined the -
company one year ago.

OPHELIA B. BASGAL

Pacific Gas and Eledrlc Compuny -
Vice Président, Civic Pcmnershlp

and Community Initiatives K

Ophelia Basgal manages the
company’s charitable contribu-
tions, employee and retiree
volunteerism, and community

engagement programs. She is a

nationally recognized expert on
housing community develop-
ment issues, having served for

27 years as executive director of
the Alameda County Housing
Authority. Ophelia joined the .
company in Seprember 2005.

JAMES R. BECKER _
Pacific Gas and Electric Company -
Vice President, Diable Canyon Power
Plont Operations ond Station Director

Jim Becker leads all operations,
maintenance, licensing and plant
training activities fot the Diablo
Canyon Power Plant., Jim also - -
oversees the periodic refueling of
the plant’s two power generation

UL} 7 pIojung

units. He has held a series of
pusitions of increasing responsi- -
bility within the nuclear-
generation group. Jim has been ;
with the company for 24 years.

BRIAN K. CHERRY
Pacific Goas and Electric Company —
Vice President, Regulatory Relations

Brian Cherry serves as the
company’s primary liaison with
the California Public Utiliries
Commissicn and has more than
20 years of experience in the
California energy regularory
darena. He wotked with Southern
California Gas Company and
Sempra Energy ptior to joining
PG&E. Brian has been with the -
company for six years.

DEANN HAPNER
Pacific Gos and Electric Company -
Vice President, FERC and 15O Relations

Dede Hapner is responsible for
developing, coordinaﬁng and




managing policy and relations
with the Federal Energy Regu-
latory Commission and the
Independent System Operator.
She works with the federal agencies
that regulate high-voltage trans-
mission, interstate pipelines, hydro
facilitics and the western US.
energy markets. Dede has been
with the company for 21 years.

WILLIAM H. HARPER, 11

Pacifi¢ Gas and Electric Company -
Vice President, Strategic Sourcing

and Operations Suppon

Bill Harper oversees the utility’s .
supply chain, sourcing, materials
operations, supplier diversiry,
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transportation services, corporate
real estate, environmental services,
and safety, health and claims. -

He has more than two decades of
experience leading procurement
and sourcing initiatives. Bill joined
the company in August 2006.

SANFORD L. HARTMAN

Pacific Gas and Electric

Company - Vice President ond
Managing Director, Law

Sandy Hartman manages the Law
department serving both Pacific
Gas and Electric Company and its
holding comimny, PG&E Corpo-
ration. He has more than 20 years
of legal cxpcx"icncc in the field of
encrgy. Sandy has been with the
company for 17 years,

ROBERT T. HOWARD

Pacific Gas and Electric
Company - Vice President,

Gos Transmission and Distribution
Bob Howard is responsible for
overseeing the utilicy’s 47,000-

. 3
mile natural gas transmission and
' !

distribution system. He joined
Pac|ﬁc Gas and Eléceric Combany
aftcr spending 14 years with
Gas Transmlssnon Northlwcsc
(GTN), a subsidiary of National .
Energy and Gas Transmissmrll.
fom[ucrly aPG&E Corpomtl(!m
subs:dlary Bob has been with the

utll1ry for two years.

DO NNA JACOBS
Pacific Gas and Electric Compuny -
Vice President, Nuclear Services

Donna Jacobs is responsible for' "
engmcermg, strategic pro;ccts,
|

sccunty ¢mergency plannlng,
and materials procurement at the
!
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Diablo Canyon Power Plant,

as well as geosciences for all
company assets. Prior to joining
the company, Donna was Vice
President and Plant Manager for
(hc Wolf Creck Nuclcér Oper:mng
Corporanon in Burlmgton,
Kansas. Donna has been with thc

company for two ycarfs

ROY M. KUGA |
P'ucific Gas and Electric Company -
\';Lce President, Energy Sulpp|y

Roy Kuga ensures that PG&E
customers’ demands for elec-
ricity and nacural gn.ls are met
through a reliable, competirively
prlced portfolio ofenwrom‘ncn-
tally friendly and fur:l efficient
esources. Roy has been with the

company for 27 years.

|
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PATRICIA M. LAWICK}

Pacific Gas and Electric

Company - Vice President ond

Chief Information Officer

Pat Lawicki has more than 25 years
in the information technology

1field. She is evaluating every aspect

of the company’s I'T business
and is developing the technology
strategy and architecture for the
company’s business cransforma-
tion initiatives. Pat has been with

the company for two years.

NANCY E. MCFADDEN
Pacific Gas and Electric Company -
Vice President, Governmental Relotions

Nancy McFadden has spent nearly

Ansnw -g a0duig
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20 years in law, policy and polivics
and manages the company’s public
policy relationships with elected
officials throughout California.
Previously, she was deputy chief
of staff to Vice President Al Gore,
advisor to Governor Gray Davis,
and practiced law at O'Mclveny
and Myers. Nancy joined the
company in Seprember 2005.

DINYAR B. MISTRY
Pacific Gas and Electric Company -
Vice President, State Regulction

Dinyar Mistry is responsible for
all state-jurisdictional revenue
requirement maceers and all cariff
and rates issues. Since joining the
company, he has held positions
of increasing responsibilicy in the
finance, treasury and accounting
organizations at the utiliy and
PG&E Corporation. Dinyar

has been with the company
for 12 years.

0

STEWART M. RAMSAY

Pacific Gas and Elednc Company —
Vice President, Asset Monagement
ond Electric Transmission

Stewarr Rams;y formulates
strategy for PC;;&:E'S electric
transmission busincss, and over-
sees the planning of performance
improvements to the company’s
gas and electric systems. He has
more than 23 years of experience
in the power sector, working with
utilities throughout the world.
Stewart joincc[l the company ¢
in January 2005.

i

Fa
3
4
z
»
g
5

KIMBERLY R[ WALSH
Pacific Gas and Electric Company -
Vice President,' Communications

Kim Walsh oversees media rela-
tions, internal communications,
customer co]mmunications, and
adverrising, She brings more than
18 years ofe'xpcricncc in high-
level communications roles in
govgrnmcnt} and public relacions. '
Kim has been with the company

for seven years.

FONG WAIN
Pacific Gas c'md Electric Company —
Vice President, Energy Procurement

Fong Wan oversees gas and elec-
tric supply planmng and policies,
marker assessment and quantita-
tive analysis, supply development,
procurement and sectlement. He
joined the ;:ompany as a financial
analyst and has since held posi-
tions of increasing responsibiliry.
Fong has been with the company
for 17 ycir_ls.

1

47







, |
I f
! i L
I ! :
I X —
i i )
- H .

; J i

T

! 1

o PG&E CORPORATION AND
PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY -

- FINANCIAIL STATEMENTS :

p
f
J
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
i

49




.FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TABLE OF CONTENTS

Financial Highlights

Comparison of FiveYear Cumulative
Total Shareholdei Return
Selected Financial Data

Management’s Discussion and Analysts

PG&E Corporation and Pacific Gas
and Electric Company Consolidated
Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Quarterly Consolidated Financial Data

Management’s Report on’
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Reports of Independent Registered Public_ |
Accounting Firm+ ' ™ o

50

53

54

108
118

172




FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
PG&E Corporation

!
|
|
r
!
I

{unaudited, in millions, except share and per share amouats)

1 i
.Number of common shareholders at December 31,

Number of commeon shares outstanding at December 31, ' 374,181,059 368,268,502

Operating Revenues " ; ! ‘ " ' S8 12539 ‘5 11,703
[ - i !
Net Income | o !
Earnings from operauons(” | ‘ | 922 906
lterns impacting comparability® i [' ‘ : ] 69 - (2)
NEGT | | .‘i i o T 13
Reported consolidated net incomlé St - . 91 - 217
Income Per Common Share, diluted | L
Earnings from operations" J . 2.57 234
Items impacting comparability®® i ‘ . . 0.19 -
NEGT : ; o o : O 0.03
t
. Reported consolidated net carnm]gs per common sharc, dlIutcd 2.76 237
Dividends Declared Per Common Sha}'c ‘ ! . 1.32 1.23
Total Assets at December 31, ! Y _ 134,803 34,074
o o ooeir - 98252
i

{1} Earmngs from operations does not meet the guidelines of accounlsng principles generally accepted in the United States of America, or GAAP. It should
not be considered an alternative to net mcome It reflects net income of PG&E Corporation, on a stand-alone basis, and the Utility, but excludes items
impacting comparability, in order to provtde a measure that ailows investors to compare the core underlying financial performance of the business from

one petiod 1o another, exclusive of irems!that management believes do not reflect the normal course of operations,

(2) Items impacting comparability represent items that management does not believe are reflective of normal, core operations.
Ttems impacting comparability. for 2006 include: ' ! ,
+The recovery of approxlma:ely $77 mn[llon ($0.21 per common share) after-tax, of Scheduling Coordmator or 5C, costs incurred From April 1998
through September 2006, based on a ch:ral Energy Regulntory Commission, or FERC, arder;
= An increase of approximately $18 million {(50.05 per common share) after-tax, in the estimated cost of environmental remediation associated with

the Utility’s gas compressor station located near Hmklcy, Cahforma, as a result of changes in the California Regional Water thty Cantrol Board’s
imposed remediation levels;
* The recovery of approximately $28 m1]]10n (80.08 per common shate), after-tax, of previously recorded net interest expense on the Power Exchange
Corporanon, ar PX, lability from Apn] 12, 2004 to February 10, 2005, in the Energy Recovery Bond Balancing Account as a result of complerion.
+ of the verificaticn audit by the CPUC.m the Utiliy's 2005 annuai electric true-up proceeding; and
« Severance costs of approximately $18° mllllon ($0.05 per shares) after -1ax, 1o reflect consolidation of various posmons in connection with the Utility's

continued effort to streamline processes and achieve costs Jnd operating efficiencies through implementation of various initiatives.
|

hems impacting comparability for 2005 include:
* The net effect of incremental interest cosn of approximately §3 rm]hon {§0.01 per share), after-tax, incurred by the Utility through February 10, 2005

related to generator dlspulcd claims i the Utility’s Chapter 11 proceeding, which are not considered recoverable;
+ Annual Earnings Assessment Proceedmg revenues of approxlmately $93 million (80.24 per share), after-tax, as a result of an Qetober 27, 2005 CPUC
decision allowing the Utility o recover shareholder incentives for successful implementation for certain public purposc programs; and
* An additional accrual of $31 million (50 23 per share), aﬁer—tax to reflect both the February 3, 2006 settlement of most of the cimms in the
“Chromium Litigation” pending agamst the Utility and an accrua] for the remaining unresolved claims.
(3) The common shares outstanding include 24,665,500 shases at December 31, 2006, and Deceriber 31, 2005, held by a wholly owned subsidiary of

PG&E Corporation. These shares are accounted forasa reductlon of outstanding shares in the Consolidated Financial Statements.
F
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'COMPARISON OF FIVE-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL SHAREHOLDER. RETURN!

This graph compares the cumulative total retufn- on PG&E Corporation common stock (equal-to dividends plus stock.
price appreciation) during the past five fiscal years with that of the Standard & Poor’s Stock Index and the Dow Jones

¥ .
3.

gt

$250

$150

$100

$50 |

$0 : —
" 12/01 12/02 - 12/03 12/04 . 12/05 12/06
* .+ Year End o

® PG&E Corporation
® Standard & Poor’s 500 Stock index {S&P)
O Dow Jones Utilities Index (DJUI)

(1) Assumes $100 invested on December 31, 2001, in PGXE Corporation common stock, the Standard & Poor’s 500 Stock Index, and the Dow j.ones
Utilities Index,"and assumes quarterly reinvestment of dividends. The total shareholder returns shown are not necessarily indicative of future returns.
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SELECTED FINANC]AL.DATA ' . SRR ICRIN S TN 3. 1 S
i’ Sy TR oy -~
| [
{in millions, except per share amounts) - T N 2006 2005 .. 20040 _l :2003 2002
'PG&E Corporation? . Pk | - : RS e '
For the Year { i '
Operating revenues ' '51'2,5'39 $11,703  $11,080 $10435 $10,505
Operating income ‘ ) “T 2,108 0 1,970 7118 ;2343 3954
Income from continuing operations ‘ 991 904 3,820 . 791 1,723
Earnings per common share from continuing operanons basic 2.78 237 - 916 ; 1.96 4.53
Earnings per common share from continuing operanons dlluted 276 - 234 8§97 ! 192 4.49
Dividends declared per commeon share"’I 1.32 1.23 - ,‘ - —
At Year-End : ’ { - o . i
Book value per common sharet. $2124 $.1994 $2090 § 1016 $ 892
Common stock price per share 11 47.33 3712 3328 1 2777 13.90
Total assets ) ) 34,803 34,074 34,540 30,175 36,081
) Long-term debt (excluding current portion) 6,697 "6,976 7323 1 3314 3,715
Rate reduction bonds (excluding current portion) - 290 580 | 870 1,160
Energy recovery bonds (excludmg currem pomon) g 1,936 2,276 - C - -
Financial debt subject to compromise o - - ! 5,603 5,605
Preferred stock of. submd:ary w:th mandatory redemptron provisions - - 122 | 137 L 137
| | o
Pacific Gas and Electric Company . ' b
"For the Year | i : f C
Operating revenues = ! $12,539 311,704  $11,080 '$10,438  $10,514
Operating income oo ) 2115 1970 7,044 | 2339 3913
Income available for common stock S 971 918 3961 | 901 ‘1,794
-At Year-End [ : . ' L
. Total assets » S e F T $34,371  $33,783  $34302 '$29.066 827,593
Long-term debt (excliding current }')oit;ion)_‘ Ty, - 6,697 6,696 7,043 | 2431 2,739
Rate reduction bonds {excluding current portion) * - - 290 580 870 1,160
Energy recovery bonds (excluding current portion) 1,936 2,276 - | - - -
Financial debt subject to compromise | . o — —_ ; 5603 5,605
"Preferred stock with mandatory redemption provisions = - - 122 137 137
Al

(1) Financial data reflects. the recognition of regulatory assets provided under the December 19, 2003 settfement agreement cmered into among PGA‘c.E '

- Corporation, Pacific Gas and Electric Company and the California Public Utilities Comrmssron to resolve Pacific’

proceeding under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code.

Gas and Electric Company’s ’

(2) Matters relating to discontinued operations are discussed in Management's Discussion and Analysw of l-mancral Condmon and Results of Operations

and in the Notes to the Consolidated Einancial Statements,

{3) The Board of Directors of PG&E Carporation declared a cash dividend of $0.30 per share per quarter for the first three varters of 2005 In the fourth
Pe P q
quarter of 2005, the quarterly cash dividend declared was increased to $0.33 per share See Note 8 of the Notes to the Conscnlld.m:d1 Financial Statements’

for further discussion.

|
{4) Book value per common share includes the effect of participating securities. The dilutive effect of outstanding stock options and réstricted stock are

further disclosed in the Notes to the Consolidatad Financial Statements.

DA o
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" principally through Pacific Gas and Electric Company, or

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

OVERVIEW °

PG&E Corporation, incorporated in California in 1995, is
a company whose primary purpose is to hold interests in
energy-based businesses. The company conducts its business

the Utility, a public utility operating in northern and central

California, The Utility engages primarily in the businesses; of
electricity and natural gas distribution, electricity generation,
procurement and-transmission, and natural gas procurcmelnt
transportation and storage. PG&E Corporation became

the holding company of the Utility and its subsidiaries om
January 1, 1997. Both PG&E Corporation.and the Utility
are headquartered in San Francisco, California. .

The Utility served approximately 5.1 millién electricity
distribution customers and approximately 4.2 million natural
gas distribution customers at December 31, 2006, The Utility
had approximately $34.4 billion in assets at December 31,
2006, and generated revenues of app?oximaiely $12.5 billion
in 2006. S

The Utility is regulated primérily by the California Public
Utilities Commussion, or CPUC, and the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission, or FERC, The Utlllry generates
revenues mainly through the sale and delivery of electricity
and natural gas at rates set by the CPUC and the FERC.
Rates are set to permit the Unlity to recover its authorized
“revenue requirements” from customers, Revenue require-
ments are designed to allow the Utility an opportunity
to recover its reasonable costs of pro'v'iding'utiliw services,”
including a return of, and a fair rate of r'etu_fn 6n, its
investment in utility facilities, or rate base. Changes in
any individual revenue fequirement affect customers’ )
rates and could affect the Utility’s revenues. ‘

"Revenues” below and Notes 3 and 6 of the Notes to the
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Through October 29, 2004, PG&E Corporation also .
owned National Energy & Gas Transmission, Inc., or NEGT,
formerly known as PG&E National Energy Group, Inc,
which engaged in electricity generation and natural gas
transportation in the United States and which 15 accounted
for as discontinued operations 1n PG&E Corporation’s finan-
cial statements, as discussed in Note 7 of the Notes to the-

Consolldated Fmanc1a[ Statements.
. R

[

This is a combmed annual report of. PG&E Corpora-

A

tion and the Utility and includes separate Consolidated
Financial Statements for each of these two entities. PG&E .
Corporation’s Consolidated Financial Statements include ~
the accounts of PG&E Corporatidn, the Utility and other

. wholly owned and controlled subsidiaries. The Utility’s

Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of
the Utility and its wholly owned and controlled subsidiaries.
This combined Management's Discussion and Analysis of *
Financial Condition and Results of Operations, or MD&A,
should be read in conjunction with the Co_n;qlidz‘ité‘d
Financial Statements and Notes to the Consclidated .
Financial Statements included in this annual report.

SUMMARY OF CHANGES IN
EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE

© . AND NET INCOME FOR 2006

PG&E Corporation’s diluted earnings per commaon

sﬁart_e, or EPS, for 2006 was $2.76 per share, compared to. -
$2.37 per share in 2005. The increase in diluted EPS for
2006 1s pnmanly due to the FERC’s approval of recovery

of certain costs the Utility began incurring in 1998 in its
capacity as scheduling coordinator, or 5C, for its existing
whqle'sale electricity transmission customers, increased gas
transmission revenues, fewer litigation settlements, utiliza-
tion of tax benefits associated with prior capital losses, and a
lower nimber of shares outstanding following the November
2005 repurchase of 31,650,300 shares of PG&E Corporation .
common stock. These increases in earnings per share were
partially offset by the credit the Utility began to provide to
customers after the November 2005 issuance of the s_ccond
series of energy recovery bonds, or ERBs. (For a discus-

sion of the ERBs and this credit, see “Electric Operating

Consolidated Financial Statements.)
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For 2006, PG&E Corporation's ne;t income increased

by $74 million, or 8%, to $991 million, compared to . |~z

$917 million in 2005. This increase reflects the recognition
of recovery of SC costs in 2006 that iresulted- in an increase
to net income of approximately $77:million compared-to
2005. Increases in net income associated with gas transmis-
sion revenues, fewer litigation settlements and utilization
of tax benefits associated with prior capital losses were
offset by the carrying cost credit associated with the second
series of ERBs and other factors.

"KEY FACTORS AFFECTING RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION
PG&E Corporation’s and the Utility’s results of operations
and financial condition depend primarily on whether the
Utility is able to operate its business within authorized
revenue requiremenes which, in part, depend on manage-
ment’s ability to accurately forecast; future costs incurred in
providing utility service, timely recover its authorized costs,
and earn its authorized rate of eeturn. Several factors have
had, or are expected to have, a significant impact on PG&E
Corporation’s and the Utility’s results of operations and
financial condition, including:

» The Outcome of Regulatory Proceedings — The amount of
the Utility’s revenues and-the amount of-costs the Utility
is authorized to recover‘from customers are primarily -
determined through regulatory proceedings.. The timing *
of CPUC and FERC decisions,hf'fect when the Utility is - -
able to record the authorized revenues. As described above,
the FERC’s decision in 2006 to allow the Utlity to recover
SC costs had a material effect on PG&E Corporation’s and
the Utility’s results of operations. The outcome of various
other regulatory proceedings, including the Utility’s 2007
General Rate Case, or GRC, also will have a material effect.
In the 2007 GRC, the CPUC will determine the amount
of the Utility’s authorized base_revenues for the period '
2007 through 2010. The Utility has requested the CPUC
tO approve a settlement.agreemeélt reached in the Utility’s
2007 GRC. The proposed revenue requirement provided
in the settlement agreement 'reﬂefcts an increase of
$222 million in the Utility’s electnc distribution revenues,
an increase of $21 million in gas distribution revenues, and

a decrease of $30 million in generation operation revenues
; .

.

. for an.overall increase of $213 million over the authorized
2006;amounts. The settlement agreement also includes .

revenue increases for 2008, 2009 and 2010. The revenue
requirements authorized in the 2007 GRC will be effective
as of January 1, 2007. On February 13, 2007 a proposed
decision and an alternate proposed decision were issued in

" the 2007 GRC. (See further d1scussnon under “Regulatory

Matters below.}

Cuplful Structure — The Utility’s 2006 and 2007 authonzed
capital structure.mcludes a 52% equity component. For
2006 and 2007, the Utility is authorized to earn a rate of
return on equity, or ROE, of 11.35% on its 'electricity and
natural gas distribution and electrlcny generanon rate base.
The CPUC will conduct a new cost of capital proceeding
to set the Utility’s authorized capital structure and rates of
return for 2008. The Utility is required to file its 2008 cost
of capital appllcatlon by May 8, 2007

The Success of the Ulility’s Strategy to Achleve Operuhonol
Excellence and Improved Customer Service — Dunng
2006, the Utility continued to undertake various initiatives’

to implement changes to its business processes and systems

- in an.effort to provide better, faster and more cost-effective

service to its customers. During 2006, the Utility incurred

approximately $137 million, ihcluding approximately

$36 million for emp]oyee severance costs, to implement
these initiatives. The Unllty intends to incur similar costs
of approxnmately $200 million for further 1mp|ementatlon
of these initiatives in 2007. The proposed amounts of the
revenue requirement in'c'reases for 2008, 2009 and 2010
included in the proposed 2007 GRC settlement agreemerit
are expected to be adequate in light of the estimated cost
savings anticipated to be realized from implementation of

"these initiatives. If the actual cost savings are greater than

anticipated, such benefits would accrue to shareholders.
Conversely, if these cost savings are not realized, earnings
available for shareholders would be reduced.
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* The Amount and Timing of Capital Expenditures — In :

2006, the CPUC authorized the Utility to make substantial
capital expenditures in connection with the constructiorjll_
of new generation facilities estimated to become opera-, |
tional beginning in 2009 and 2010, and the installation '
of an advanced metering system. In addition, the Unhty'
has requested regulatory approval for various capital = !
expenditures to fund investments in transmission and -
distribution infrastructuré needed to serve its customers &
(i.e., to extend the life Of existing infrastructure, to replace
existing infrastructure and to add new infrastructure to |
meet already authorized growth). The amount and timing
of the Utility’s capital expenditures will affect the amount
of rate base on which the Utiiity may earn its authorized
ROE. _I‘f the CPUC disallowed the Uﬁlityq from recovering

any portion of its capital expenditures from customers,

- the Utility would be unable to earn a ROE on the dis-

56

allowed amount. (See further discussion under “Capital |
Expenditures” below) i . ]

Changes in Environmerital Liabilities and the Outcome
of Litigation — The Utility’s operations are subject to l
extenswe federal, state and local environmental laws and-
permits. Complying with these environmental laws has in
the past required significant expenditures for environmental
compliance, monitoring and pollution control c:qutpmenr;l
as well as for related fees and permits. During 2006, the. L
Unhty increased its recorded liability for environmental l
remediation by 5374 million. In addition, during 2006, théi
Utility paid approximately $295 million to settle a majority
of claims relating to alleged exposure to chromium at |
the Utility’s natural gas compressor stations. (See discussion
under “Environmental Matters” below and Note 17 of the |
Notes to Consolidated F1nanc1al Statements)

|
|
|
|

* Impact of the Utility’s Chapter 11 Reorganization — The
Utility’s plan of reorganization under Chapter 11 of the
.S, Bankruptey Code became effective on April 12, 2004.
The plan of reorganization incorporated the terms of a set-
tlement. agreement among the CPUC, PG&E Corporation
and the Utility, referred to as the Chapter 11 Settlement
Agreement. During 2005, the Udlity 1ssued two series of
ERBs. The first series was issued to refinance the after-tax
portion of the settlement regulatory asset established under
the Chapter 11 Settlement Agreement. The second series
was issued to pre-fund the Utility's tax hablhry that w1ll be
due as the Utility co[lects the dedlcated rate component
or' DRC, used to secufe repayment of the first Series of
ERBs from its customers. Until these taxes are fully paid,
the Utility provides customers a “carrying cost” credit to
compensate customers for the use of proceeds from the

_second series of ERBs. The equity component of this carry-
tng cost credit of approximately $56 million resulted in 2'
net income decrease in 2006 and is expected to impact fiet
income by approximately $48 million in 2007. The carry-
ing cost credit will decline each year over the term of the
ERBs until the ERBs are fully repaid in 2012. Additionally,

-the Utility recovered net interest costs related to disputed
generator claims for the period between the effective date
of the plan of reorgamization and the frst series of ERBs,
and for certain energy supplier refund litigation costs, -
resulting in an increase of approximately $39 million
to net income in 2006

In addition to the key factors dlscussed above, PG&E
Corporation’s and the Utility’s future results of operation
and financial condition are subject to the risk factors dis-

. cussed in detail in the section entitled “Risk Factors” below.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This combined -annual report and the letter to sharehold-
ers that accompanies it contains forward-looking statements
that are necessarily subject to various risks and uncertainties.
These statements are based on current estimates, expectations
and projections about future events, and assumptions regard-
ing these events and management’s knowledge of facts as
of the date of this report. These forward-looking statements
relate to, among other matters, estimated capital expendi-
tures, estimated Utility rate base, estimated environmental

remediation liabilities, the anticipated outcome of various




regulatory and legal proceedings, future cash flows, and the
level of future equity or debt issuances, and are also identi-

fied by words such as “assume,” “expect,” “intend,” “ptan,”
“project,” “believe,” “estimate,” “predict,” “anttc:pate, “aim,”
“may,” “might,” “should,” “would,” “could,” “goal,” “poten-

tial” and similar expressions. PG&E Corporation and the
Utility are not able to predict all the factors that.may affect
future results. Some of the factors that could cause future
results to differ matenally from those expressed or implied
by the forward-lookmg statements, or from historical results,
include, but are not limited. to:

. .- ey Lot ) !
» the Utility’s ability to timely recover costs through rates;

« the outcome of regulatory proceedings, including rate-
.making proceedings pending at the CPUC and the FERC;

« the adequacy and price of eiectnaty and natural gas sup-
plies, and the ablllty of the’ Utlllty to manage and respond
to the volatility of the electricity and natural gas markéts;

' !

Y .

s the effect of weather, storms, earthquakes, fires, floods,
disease, other. natural disasters, explosions, accidents,
mcchanical breakdowns, acts of térrorism, and other events
or hazards on the Utility’s facilities and operations, its
customers and third parties on Wthh the Utility rehes

« the potential impacts of climate change on the Utility's
electricity and natural gas operations;

t

« changes in custorher demand for. electricity and natural gas
resulting from unanticipated: poﬁulation growth or decline,

" general economic and financial market conditions, changes
in technology, 'ilncluding the devélopment of alternative
energy sources, or other reasons;: :

* operating performance of the Utlllty s Diablo Canyon .
nuclear generating facnhues ot Diablo Canyon; the
occurrence of unplanned outages at Diablo Canyon or
“the temporary or,pcrmanent cessatlon of operations at
Diablo Canyon;

» the ability of the Utlllry to rccogmze benefits from
. its initiatives to improve its busmess processes and.’
customer service; 1

L

« the ability of the Utility to timely complete its planned
capital investment projects;

« the impact of changes in federal or state laws, or their
interpretation, on energy policy and the regulation of
utilities and their holding companies; v '

« the impact of changing wholesale electric or gas market
rules, including the California Independent System
Operator’s, or CAISO, new rules, to, rgstruct{xre the
California wholesale electricity -mar_ket;. )

* how the CPUC ‘administers the ‘conditions imposed
on PG&E Corporation when it became the Utlhty 5
holding company;

« the extent to which PG&E Corporation or the Utility
incurs costs in connection with pending litigation that "~

are not recoverable through rates, from third parties,
or through insurance recoveries; '

« the ability of PG&E Corporation and/or the Utility to -
access capital markets and other sources of credit;

« the impact of environmental-laws and regulations and
the costs of compliance and remediation; and

« the effect of municipalization, direct access, community
choice aggregation, or other forms of bypass.

For more information about the ‘more significant risks
that could affect the outcome of these forward-looking
statements and PG&E Corporation’s’and the Utility’s
future financial condition and results of operations, see
the discussion under the heading “Risk Factors” below.
PG&E Corporation and the Utility do not undertake an
obligation to update forward- looking statements, ‘Whether

in response to new information, future events-or otherwise.




RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The table below details certain items from.the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income for 2006, 2005 and 2004.

Year ended December 38,

{in millions) | 2006 2005 2004
Utility : _ } o .
Electric operating revenues L ‘ $8752 37927 S 7,867
Natural gas oper;_iting revenues ] 3,787 3777 3,213
Total operating revenues | 12,539 11,704 11,080
Cost of electricity "2 922 2,410 2,770
Cost of natural gas o ' 2097 2191 1,724
Operating and maintenance _ ' 3,697 - 3399 - 2,848
Recognition of regulatory assets ) . - .- — {4,900)
Depreciation, amortization and decommissioning - L708 1,734 1,494
Total operating expefléés . 10,424 9,734 3,936
Operating income ' o PR 2,115 1970 7,144
Interest income o ' o . 175 76 50
Interest expense (710) (554) (667}
Other expense;, nett (7 - ©(5)
Income before income taxes 1,573 1492 - 6,522
Income tax provision _ 602 574 2,561
" Income available for common stock ' . . $ 971 3 918 §-3961
PG&E Corperation, Eliminations and Othcr‘z’ -
Operating revenues o ‘ $ -3 a1 3 -
Operating {gain} expenses - : 7 (1) 26
Operating loss . : {7 - (26}
Interest income 13 4 13
" Interest expense ] (28) (29) (130)
Other expense, net® " 8 . {19) {93}
Loss before income taxes N _ {(28), 49 (236)
Income tax benefit* ! (48) (30 (95)
Income (loss) from continuing operatlons 20 (14) (141)
Discontinued operations™ ) _ - 13 634
Net income (loss) ' o o 1 $ 20 5 (1) § 543
Consolidated Total . J . o
Operating.revenues b $12,539 S11,703  $11,080
Operating expenses ;10,431 9,733 3962
Operating income 2,108 ° 1,970 7,118
Interest income 188 80 63
Interest expense ' {(738) {583) 797
Other expenses, net (13) (19) (98)
Income before income taxes 1,545 1,448 6,286
Income tax provision ) 554 544 2,466
Income from continuing operations 991 904 . 3,820
Discontinued operations'® C - 13 684
Net income ’ $§ 991 $ 917 § 4504

(1) Includes preferred stack -dividend requirement as other expense.
(2) PG&E Corporation eliminates all intercompany transactions in consolidation.

(3} Discontinued operations reflect items related to its former subsidiary, NEGT. See Note 7 of the No{es to the Consolidated Financial Statements for

further discussion.
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UTILITY o
The Utility’s rates for electriciry and natural ‘gas utlllty
services are determined based on its Costs of service. The
"CPUC and the FERC determine rthe]amount of “revenue
requirements” that the Utility can collect to recover the
Utility’s operating and capital costs and earn a fair return.
Revenue requirements are primarily’ determmed based on
the Uulrty s forecast of future costs, lmcludmg the costs

of purchasing electricity and natural gas for the Utility’s .

customers. The CPUC also has esta'r%lishcd ratemaking
mechanisms to permit the Utility to timely recover its .
costs. to procure electricity and natural gas for its cus-
tomers in the'energy markets. { )

" The Utility’s revemies for natural gas transmission
services are subject to ﬂuctuauon because most of the
Utility's’ intrastate natural gas transmlsswn capacity has
not been sold under long-term contracts that provide. for
recovery of all fixed costs through't:he collection of fixed
reservation charges. Instead, the Utlity sells most of its
capacity based on the volume of gas the Utility’s customers
actually ship, which exposes the Utility to volumetric risk.
{See further dlscussron in"the Natural Gas Transportanon
and Storage section in “Risk Management Activities”
below.) In addition, “the Utrhty faces some volumetric
risk in collecting its full authorized electric transmission
‘revenue requirement authorized in l.tS Transmission Owner .

rate case, or TO rate'case (see further discussion below).

Thé GRC is the primary proceé'ding..in' which the
CPUC determinies the amount of Tevenue requirements the
. Utrllty can recover for basic busmess and operational costs
refated to-its electricity and naturarl gas distribution and
electricity generation operations. The CPUC generally
conducts a GRC every three years.; The CPUC sets revenue.
requirements for a three-year period based on a forecast of
costs for the first, of-test, year. The CPUC may authorize |
the Utility to receive’ “annual i mcreases (known as attrition .
ad]ustments) for the years between GRCs 1in order to avoid
a reduction in earnings in those years due to, among other -
things, inflation- and increases in mvested caprtal (See the
drscussmn of the proposed settlement of the Ut:l:rys 2007

GRC below under “Regulatory Matters — 2007 General Rate |

Case.” The settlement proposes tat the Utility’s next GRC
- would occur in 2011 instead of 2010) In.addition, the CPUC
generally conducts an annual cosr of capital proceedmg ’
to determine the Utility’s authorlzed capital structure and
the a*ut'horlzed rate of return thag the Utility may earn on

' L

e ———— e e

its electricity and natural gas distribution and electricity
gencration assets. The cost of capital proceedmg establishes
relative weightings of common' equlry, preferred equity, and

debt in the Utility's total authorized capital structure for

a specific year. The CPUC then establishes the authorized
return on each component that the Utility will collect in™
its authonzed rates. The CPUC waived the requirement for
the Utility to file a 2007 cost of capital application and
allowed the Utility to maintain the 2006 authorized cost
of capital and capital structure, including the Utility’s
authorized equity.component of 52% and the authorized
ROE of 1135%. - . -

The FERC sets the Utility’s rates for electric transmis-
sion services. The primary FERC ratemaking proceeding to
determine the amount of revenue requirements the Utility
can recover for its electric transmission costs and ROE is the
TO rate case. A TO rate case is generally held every year and
sets rates for a2 oneyear period. The Utlilty is typically able
to charge new rates, subject to refund, before the outcome of
the FERC ratemaking review process. {See discussion of the”
pending TO rate case below. under."Regllatory- Matters —
FERC Transmission Owner Rate Case.”) kh

Thé Utility’s ratés reflect the sum of individual revenue
requirement components authorized by the CPUC and
the FERC. Changes in any individual revenue requirement

-affect customers’ rates and could affect the Utrhty § revenues.

Pending regulatory proceedmgs that could result in rate

changes and affect the Utility’s revenues dre discussed below
under “Regulatory Matters.” In annual true-up proceedings, .
the Utility requests the CPUC to authorize an-adjustment to

electric and gas rates to (1) reflect over-and, under—collectlons

in the Utility’s major: relectric and gas balancmg accounts,
and (2) 1mplement vartous other electricity and gas revenue
requirernent changes authorized by the CPUC und the
FERC. Generally, rate changes become effective on the first
day of the following year. Balances in all CPUC-authorized
accounts are subject to review, verification audit and adjust- .
ment, if necessary, by the CPUC. |
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The timing of the CPUC and FERC decisions affect ..’
when the Utility is able to record authorized. revenues. To -
minimize rate fluctuations:bétween January .1, 2007 and the
dates that rate changes from'thé 2007 GRC and the most :
recent TO rate case become effecnve, the CPUC authonzed
“the Utlllty to contmue collectmg the same amount of !
electric revenues after January 1, 2007 as before January 1’ y
2007. Differerices between the amount of revenues collected”

. after January 1, 2007:andthe .amount authorized in.the . ::
" 2007 GRC will be tracked.in regulatory accounts. When

* the decision is issued,.the Utility would record revenues '
equal to the amount of the difference between authorized
revenues and collected revenues that had accumulated since
January 1, 2007. Any revenue requirement changes result-

ing from the pending TO rate case will be deemed to have
been cffective as of March 1, 2007 In both’ cases, the Utility -
would refund any over-col[ected amounts, with interest,

O customers.

The Followmg presents the Utility’s operatmg results for
2006, 2005 and 2004, :

T

Eledrlc Operating Revenues

In addition to electricity provided by the Utility’s own
generation facilities and by third parties under power pur-
chase agreements, the Utility relies on electricity provided -
under long-term electricity contracts entered into by the
California Department of Water Resources, or the DWR, to
meet a material portion of the Utility's customers’ demand
or “load.” Revenues collected on behalf of the DWR and
the DWR’s related costs. are not included in the Utility’s
Consohdated Statements of Income reﬂectmg the Utility’s
role as a billing and collection agent for the DWR’s sales
to the Utility’s customers. Changes in the DWR’s revenue
‘requirements do not affect the Utlllty s reveniues.

The followmg table provldes a summary of the Utility's .,
electric operating’ revenues v - e v

(in millions) PO e UL 2006 .- 2005 2004 -
Electri¢ revenues ' $10871 § 9626 3 9,800
DWR pass-through revenue - AZL119) | (1,699)  {1,933)
Total electric operating revenues =~ $ 8,752 §°7927 § 7.867
64,725 61,150 - 62,998

Total electricity sales (in GWH)

]
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< The Utility’s electric operating revenues increased in 2006-
by approximately $825 million, or approximately 10%, com-
pared to 2005 mainly due to the following factors:

» Electricity procurement costs, which are passed through

* to customers, increased by approxrmately $490 million:

(See “Cost of Electncnry be]ow)

L)

+The DRC charge related to the ERBs increased by approx1-

. mately $175 million (see further discussion in Notes 3 and

6 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements).
During 2005, the Utility collected only-the DRC for the
first series of ERBs that were issued on February 10, 2003,
During 2006, the Utility collected the DRC associated with
the first series of ERBs and the DRC related to the second
series of ERBs issued on November 9, 2005. '

*The Utlllty recovered approximately $136 million of costs
1t incurred as a SC, from April 1998 through September
2006, based on a FERC order issued in August of 2006.
SC costs incurred after September 2006 and in the future
are considered probable of recavery.

* The Utlhty recogmzed attrition adjustments to the Utility’s
authotized 2003 base revenue requirements of approx1—
mately $135 million as authorized in the 2003 GRC.

* The Utility recorded approxrmately $12 mllhon in revenue
requlrements to recover a pension contribution attributable
to the Utility’s electric drsmbutron and generatlon opera-
tions, (See “Regulatory Matters ~ Defmed Benefit Pension
Plan Contnbutron” be]ow) '

'Transrmss:on revenues increased by approximately $90 mil-
lion primarily due to an increase in revenues as authorized

in the Utility’s last FERC TO rate case.

* The Utility recognized approximately $65 million due
to the recovery of net interest costs related to dispuited
generator claims for the period between April 12, 2004,
the effective date of the Ut1l|ty s plan of recrganization,
and February 10, 2005, when the first series of ERBs was -
issued, ‘and for certain energy suppller refund litigation
costs, Recovery of these costs in the Energy Recovery
Bond Balancing Account, or ERBBA, was authorized
- by the.CPUC upon their complenon of the verification
audit in the 2005 Annual. Electnc True-Up Proceeding in
Septembcr 2006.

-~
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« The Utility recovered approximately $59 million of net inter-

est costs related to'disputed generator claims incurred after,

. the issuance of the first-series of ERBs Recovery of these-
costs through the ERBBA was authonzed by the CPUC.
"Costs incurred after December 2006 and in the future are
consrdered probable of recovery. (See “Interest Income and
“Interest Expense below for further drscussron)

These were partlally offset by the followmg

°ln 2005, the Utility: recogmzed approxtmately $160 million
due to the resolution of the Utllttys claims for shareholder
" incentives related to énergy efﬁcrency and other publtc pur-
pose programs. No similar amount was recorded in 2006.

CeIn 2005, the Unlnry recogmzed approxtmately $154 mil-
* lion related to revenue requtrements associated with the
settlement regulatory asset provrded under the Chapter 11
Settlement Agreement and the recovery of -costs on the
deferred tax component'of the settlement regulatory asset.

No similar amounts_were recorded in 2006

* The carrying cost credrt mcludmlg both the debt and
eqmty components, "associated with the issuance of the
second series of ERBs, decreased tlilectrlc operating revenues
- by approximately $123 million in 2006 from 2005. The
second series of ERBs was tSSUeClltO pre-fund the Utility’s
tax llablllty that will be due as thc Utility collects the DRC

" related to the first series from 1tslcustomers over the term
of the ERBs. Until these taxes are fully paid, the Utility
provides customers a carrying cost credit, computed at
the Utility’s authorized rate of return on tate base to
compensate them for the use-of. proceeds from the second
series of ERBs. . - .- . l

The Utrlltys electric operanng revenues increased in
2005 by approx1marely $60 mrllldn -or approx1mately 1%,

compared to 2004 mamly due to the following factors S

°The Utrhry began collectmg the DRC charge related to .
RBs in 2005, which together with revenue requirements
assocrated with the ERBBA, 'increased electric operating
revenues by approximately $390 million in 2005 compared
to 2004..(See. Further CllSCUSSIDnl in Notes 3 and 6 of the
Notes to the Consolldated Flnancral Statements.)

« The Utility recognized approxtmately $160 milfion jin 2005
due to the resolution of the Utility’s claims for shareholder
incentives related to energy efﬁcrency and other public
pUrpose programs covermg 1994—2001 No s1m|lar amount
was recorded in 2004,

l
|
j
l

. Matters — FERC Transmission Rate Case” below.)

» Miscellaneous other. electric operating revenues, including
revenues associated with public purpose programs and
advanced metering and demand-fesponse p'rograms',
increased by approxrmately 5140 mllhon

“The Uttlrry recogmzed approx1mately $100 rmllton of
revenues in 2005 relating to the’ Self-Generat:on Incentrve
Program No SImllar amount was recorded in 2004

* The Utility recognrzed attrition adjustmeénts to the Utility’s
authorized 2003 base revenue requirements, which together
with an increase in revenues authorized in the 2004 cost
of capital decision, increased electric operating revenues by
approximately $90 million, -compared to 2004.

» The Utility recognrzed approxrmately $80 m1ll1on in 2005
due to recovery of certain costs mcurred in connection
with electric industry restructuring. No similar amount

L

was recorded in 2004.

» Electric operating revenues included approximately $70 mil-
lion ‘in refunds in revenue requirements to customers in
2004, wrth no s:mrlar amount m 2005. '

These were partially offset by the followmg

. Electrlcrty procurement and -transmission costs, whrch are
passed through to customers, dec_reased. by appro)nmately \
$530 million compared to 2004.

_+ After the issuance of the first sertes of ERBs on February 10,

2005, the Utility was no longer able to collect the revenue
requirement associated with the settlement regulatory asset,
decreasing electric operating revenues by approximately-
$435 million compared to 2004. (See further’ discussion

in Notes 3 and 6 of the Notes' to the Consohdated

Financial Statements.) ot

The Utility expécts that its eleetric'op'erating'revenues
for'the period 2007 through 2010 will increase to the extent

- authorized by the CPUC in the 2007 GRC. (For further'dis--

cussion, see “Regulatory Matters” under,“2007 General Rate
Case” below.} In addition, ‘the Utility expccts to continue

to collect revenue requirements related. to GPUC-approved -
‘capital expenditure projects, mcludmg the new Uttlrtyowned'
generanon pro;ects and advanced mctermg infrastructure. |
(See “Capital Expenditures” below.) The-Utility also expects
electric transmission revenues will increase on March 1,

2007 subject to the FERC’s authorization. (See “Regulatory

oo
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Cost of Eleciricity

The Utlity’s cost of electricity includes electr1c1ty purchase
costs, hedging costs.and the cost of fuel used by its own
generation facilities or supplied to other facilities under

- tolling agreements, but it excludes costs o operate its own
generation facilities, which are included in operating and
‘maintenance expense. Electricity purchase costs and the cost’

of fuel used in Utility-owned generation are passed through :

to customers in rates. (See “Electric. Operating Revenues”
above for further details.)

The Utility is required to dispatch, or schedule, all of the
electncny resources within its portfolio, mcludmg elccm(:lty
provided under the DWR contracts, in the most cost-
effective way. This requirement, in certain cases, requires !
the Utility to schedule more electricity than is necessary to
meet its load and to sell this additional electricity on the’
open market, The Utilit)'r typically schedules excess electricity
when the expected sales proceeds exceed the variable costs
to operate a generanon facnhry or buy electncnty under J
an optional contract. Proceeds from the sale of surplus
“electricity are allocated between the Utility and the’ DWR
based on the perccntage of volume supplied by each ennty
to the Ulity's total 1oad. The Utility’s net proceeds from
the sale of surplus electr1c1ty after deducting the portlon
allocated o the DWR are recorded as a reduction to the

cost of electricity.
!

" The following table prowdes a summary of the Utlllty 5
cost of electricity and the total amount and average cost

of purchased power, excluding both the cost and volume of
electricity provided by the DWR to the Unhtys customers

* (in millions) 2006 2005 2004
Cost of purchased\power $ 3,114 3§ 2,7(}6 $ 2,816
Proceeds from surplus sales o

allocated to the Utility (343) (478) (192)
Fuel used in own generation 151 182 146

" Total cost of electricity

Average cost of purchased power

per GWh
Total purchased power (GWh)

$ 0.079
34,203

$ 0.084
36,913

*$ 0082

v
]
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$2922 §2410 § 2770

34,525 -

“In 2006, the Utility’s cost of electricity increased by
approximately $512 million, or 21%, compared to 2005,

‘mainly due to the fbllowing factors:

« The increase in total purchased power of 2,710 Gigawatt
hours, or GWh, and the increase in the average cost of
purchased power of $0.005 per. GWh in 2006, compared to
2005, resulted in an increase of approximately $408 million
in the cost of purchased power. This was primarily caused
by 4n increase in volume of purchased power due to greater
cus;tomer demand during the july 2006 “heat storm” (see

“discussion below under * Regu[atory Matters — Catastrophlc
Events Memorandum Account’ ") and a decrease 1n the
volume of electricity provided by the DWR to the Uality’s
customers. Additionally, the Utility’s service to customers..
who purchase “bundled” services {e.g., generation, transmis-
sion and distribution) grew, further ingreasing volume.

In 2005, the Utility’s cost of electricity décreased by
approximately $360 million, or 13%, compared to 2004,

mamly due to the fallowing factors
7/

* Increased electricity producnon from the Utility’s hydro-
electric generation facilities due to above average rainfall
"during 2005 increased the procced's from surplus sales
allocated to the Utility by $286 million.

* The volume of total purchased power decreased by
322 GWh in 2005 primarily because increased electricity
from the Utility’s hydroelectric facilities and Diablo -
Canyon reduced the amount of electricity the Utility needed
to purchase. During 2005, Diablo Canyon's refueling out-
age lasted only 41 _days compared to 2004 when the outage
lasted 129.5 days. Also, the average cost of purchased power
decreased by $0.003 per GWh in 2005 from 2004.

The Utlity’s cost of electricity in 2007 wili depend
upon electricity prices, the duTation of the Diablo Canyon -
refueling o-utagc, and changes in aistomer demand which
will directly irhpact the amount-of power the Utility will be
required to purchase. {See the “Risk Management Acnwnes
section of this MD&A)

The Utiliry’s future cost of electricity also may be
affected by potential federal or state legislation or rules -
which may regulate the emissions of greenhouse gases from
the Utility’; electric generating facilities or the generating
facilities from which the Utility procures power. As directed
by recent California legislation, the CPUC has adopted

an intenm greenhouse gas emissions performance standard
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that would apply to electricity procurled or generated by the
Utility. ‘Additionally, California recen'tly enacted a green--
house ‘gas emissions law, Assembly Brll 32; which establishes
a regulatory program and schedule for establishing a cap on
greenhouse gas emissions in the state at 1990 levels effective
by 2020, including a cap on the Utility’s eémissions ofgreen-
house gases. The Utrlrry s existing and forecasted emissions
of greenhouse gases are relatively low compared to average .
emissions by other elecmc utilities and generators in the
country, and the Utrllty 5 mcremental costs of complying _

with greenhouse gas emissions regulatlons being promulgated '
“*by the CPUC and other Callforma agencres are expected to

be fully recovered in rates from the Utrlrry s customers under
the CPUC’s ratemakrng standards applrcable to elecmcrty
procurement ‘costs.* . -

| : .
Natural Gas Operutmg Revenues , .
The Utility sells natural gas and natural 8as transportation

services to its customers. The Utrlrtys transportation system

transports gas throughout California to the Utility’s distribu-

. - . - . ] -
tion system, which in turn, delivers natural gas to end-use
- .t iy - s g . ’ -t
customers. Thé Utility alsodelivers natural gas to off-system
markets, primarily in Southern Cali‘fomia, in competition

with interstate pipelines. |

The Utility’s natural gas customérs consist of two
categories: core and non-core custor'ners. The core customer
class is comprised mainly of resid_ential and smaller com-

mercial natural gas customers. The lnon-core customer class
1s comprised of mdustnal and larger commercial natural gas

- customers. The Utility provrdes natural gas delrvery services

to all core and non-core customers: 'connected to the Utiliey’s
system in'its service terntory Corelcustomers ¢an purchase
natural gas from alternate energy service providers or elect

to have the Utility provide both.delivery service and natural
gas supply. The Utility does not provide procurement service
to non-cote customers. If non—core: customers would like

the Utility to provide them with procurement service they .
must elect to have core service provided. When the Uulity -
provides both supply and del'wery,l the Utility refers-to the -

service as natural gas bundled service. In 2006, core custom- -

ers repiesented over 99% of the Utility’s total customers and
approximately 40% of its total natural gas deliveries, while
non-core customers comprised less than 1% of the Utility’s
total customers and approxlmately 60% of its total natural
gas deliveries. Because the Utility sells most of its capacity K
based on the volume of natural gas the Utility’s customers

actually ship, the Utility is exposed to volumetric risk.

!
|
i

The Utility recovers the cost of gas (subject to the rate-

making mechanism discussed below), acquired.on behalf
of core procurement customers, through its retail gas rates.
The Utility is protected against after-the-fact reasonableness
reviews of these gas procurement costs under an incen-
tive mechanism known as the Core Procurement Incentive
Mechanism, or CPIM. Under the CPIM, the Utility’s pur-
chase’costs for.a twelve-month period aré compared to an
aggregate market-based:benchmark based, on a-werghted

average of published monthly and dally natural gas pnce

indices at the points where the Utility typically purchases
natural gas. The CPIM establishes 2 “tolerance band” around

. the benchmark index price, and all costs within the tolerance

band are fully recovered from core c'irstomers If total natural
gas costs fall below the tolerance band, the Utility’s custom-
ers ‘and. shareholders will share 75% and 25% of the savings
below the tolerance band, respectively. Conversely, if total
natural gas costs rise above the tolerance band, the Utility’s
core customers and shareholders share equally the costs
above the tolerance band. The shareholder award is capped
at the lower of 1.5% of total natural gas commodrry cOsts
or 525 million. While this incentive mechanism remains in
place, changes in the. price of natural gas, consistent with
the market-based benchmark are not expected to materially
impact net income. (See the “Risk Management Activities”

. section of this MD&A)

The CPIM is focused on short-term. procurement of
natural gas. As natural gas prices have become more volatile,

" the Ut1llty has sought CPUC authonty to secure long-term

suppl!es of natural gas and hedge the | pnce risk associated
with these contracts outside of the CPIM. (See the “Risk
Management Activities” section of this MD&A) The Unlity
is at risk to the extent that the.CPUC may disallow pottions
of the hedging costs based on its subseqiient review of the
Utlhty 5 complrance with the filed plan

63




|

The following table provides a summary of the Utility’s
natural gas operating revenues: ' . . .

i

(in millions}) 2006 2005 2004
Bundled natural gas revenues $3.472  $3,539,  $2,943
. Transpottation serviceonly revenues _ 315 238 270
*Total natural gas operating o : :
-FEVETIUES . o 53;751 $3777  $3.213
" Average bundled revenue per |
Mcf of natural gas sold .. $12.89 - $13.05 * $10.51
Total bundled natural gas sales - " - - b
(in millions of Mcf) -, 269 271 . . 280

In 2006, the Utiliry’s. natural gas operating revenues | )
increased by approximately $10 million, or less than 1%,
compared to 2005. The increase in natural gas operating -
revenues was primarily, .due to the following factors: P

* The Utility recorded. approximately $43 million in 3
revenue requirements for a pension contribution attrib- !
utable to the Unlity’s natural gas distribution operations.
(See “Regulatory Matters — Defined Benefit Pénsion Plan
Contribution” below)

o .
» Attrition adjustments to the Utility’s 2003 GRC authorized
revenue requirements, and revenues authorized in the

2006 cost of capital proceeding contributed approxnmatcly
$22 million.

* Miscellaneous natural gas revenues increased by approxi-'
mately $26 million. : "

St . ‘ ' |

* Transportation service-only revenues increased by approxi-

mately $77 million, or 32%, primarily as a result of an
H . . .

. . . |
INCrease 1n rates.

_These were partially, Lé)ffseg by the following:

* The cost of natural g'aé which is passed-through to cus- '
tomers, decreased by approximately $132 million, as Further
dlscussed below under “Cost of Natural Gas.”

. |

“eIn 2005, the Utlhty recogmzed approx1mately $26 million:
due to the resolution of the Utility’s claims for shareholder
incentives related to energy efhiciency and other public pur-

pose programs. No similar amount was fecorded in 2006. :
!

In 2005, the Utility’s natural gas operating revenues
increased by approximately $564 million, or 18%, compared
to 2004. The increase in natural gas operating revenues was

mainly due to.the following factors: -

» Excluding the impact of the 2003 GRC decision, the
2005 cost of capital proceeding, and the Utility’s recovery
of shareholder incentives relating to energy efficiency
and other public purpose programs, bundled natural gas -
operating revenues increased by approximately $580 mil-
lion, or 20%, The_ increase was ateributable to an increase
in the cost of natural gas, which is passed through to
customers, and partiélly offset by a decrease in the volume

" of gas purchased. )

= Attrition adjustments to the Utilitys 2003 GRC authorized
revenue requirements, and revenues authorlzcd in the
2005 cost of capital proceedmg contrlbuted approxxmately
$42 million in 2005 compared to 2004

*The Utility recognized approximately $26 million in 2005
due to the resolution of the Utll:ry s claims for shareholder
incentives related to energy. efﬁmency and other pubhc
purpose programs covering 1994-2001. No similar amount
was recorded in 2004, . ‘

These were partially offset by the following;

» The approval of the 2003 GRC in May 2004 resulted
in the Utility recording approximately $52 million in -
revenues related to 2003 in 2004. No comparable amount
was recorded in 2005. ' '

* Transportation service-only revenues decreased by approxi-
mately $32 million, or 120, prlmanly as a,result of a
decrease in rates. . :

The Utllity expects that its 'natlural‘ gas operating °
revenues for 2007 will increase due to an annual rate
escalation as authorized in the Gas Accord III Settlement,

In addition, the Utility expects that its natural gas

operating revenues for the period 2007 through 2010 will
increase to the extent authorized by the CPUC in the 2007
GRC and as may be authorized by the CPUC in the new Gas
Transmission and 'Storage Rate Case that will set new rates
effective January 15 2008, (See “Regulatory Matters — Gas
Transmission and Storage Rate Case” below} Finally, future
natural gas opcratmg revenues, will: be impacted by changcs .

" in the cost of natural gas.




Cost of Natural Gas . . |
The Utility’s cost of natural gas includes the purchase

'

costs of natural gas and transportation costs on interstate
p1pelmcs but excludes the costs associated with operating
and maintaining the Utility’s mtrastate pipeline, which are .
included in operating and maintenance expense.

-The following table provides a summary of the Utlllry s
~ cost of natural gas:

(in millions) ' 2006 2005 2004
"Cost of natural gas sold . $1,958  $2,051 © §1,591
Cost of natural gas transportation 13 140 133

. Total cost of natural gas $2,097 s2,191 $1,724
Average cost per Mcf of .

‘natural gassold - .+« 1. 8728 -§.757. § 5.68
Total natural gas sold

(in millions of Mcf) 269 271

280

In 2006, the Utility’s total cost of natural gas decreased
by approxrmately $94 million, or 4%, compared to 2005,
primarily due to a decréase’in “the average market price of °
natural gas purchased of approximately $0.29 per thousand
cubic feet, or Mcf, or 4%. ' '

3

In 2005, the Unlity’s total cost of natural gas, increased
by approxim'ately $467 million, or'27%, compared to
2004, primarily due to an increase in-the average market
price of natural gas purchased of approxtmately $1.89 per
Mcf, or 33%, partially offset by a- decrcasc in volume
~ of 9 Mcf, or 3%. ) 3 K

The Utility’s,cost of natural ga“s in 2007 will be primarily
affected by the prevailing costs of natural gas, which are
determined by North American regions that supply the
Utility. As discussed above under “Natural Gas Operating
the CPUC has authonzcd the Utility to execute
hedges on behalf of its core gas customers. The Utll1ty also

Revenues,”

has requested the CPUC to approve a settlement agreement
that provides for a long—term hcdge program, (For further
discussion, see “Risk Management Activities” below.) The
- total cost of gas will also be affected by’ customer demand.

Operating and Maintenance - '
Operating and maintenance expenses consist mainly of thé
Utility’s costs to operate and maintain its electricity and °
natura! gas facilities; customer accéunts and service expenses,’
public purpose program expenses$, and administrative and ¢
general expenses. Generally, these expenses are offset by
corresponding annual revenues authorized by the CPUC

and the FERC in various rate proceedings.

During 2006, the Utility's operating and maintenance
expenses increased by approximately $298 million, or 9%,
compared to 2005, mainly due to the following factors:

“s Pension contributions as a result of the CPUC—approved

t ‘Settlement (see “Regulatory Matters — Defined Benefit
~ Pension Plan Contribution” below) resulted in an addi-
~tional- $176 million in pension expense.*-

. Admmrstratlon EXpenses for lov_v -income customer ‘
“assistance ptograms, the Sclf-Gerleratlon Incentive Program,

» advanced metering infrastructure and other energy incen-
tives increased by approx1mately $125 mrllron

-Compensanon expense mcreased approx1mat_e1y $54 mil--
lion, reflecting increased base salaries and incentives.

» Expenses for outside consulting, contracts and various
programs and initiatives, including strategies to achieve

- operational excellence and improved customer service,
increased by approximately $50 million. '

» Expenses related to the accrual of severance costs as part
of the Utility’s strategles to achieve operanonal excellence
_and improved customer service increased by’ “approximately
$35 million.

+ Franchise fee expense arid property taxes increased by
approximately $21 million. The increase in ‘franchise fee
expense was due to higher revenues and franchise fee rates.
The increase in property taxes was due to electric plant
growth, a tax rate increase and increases in assessed values
in 2006 . . :

The above increases (totaling 5461 mlllron) were partlally
offset by a decrease of $154 million related to an additional
reserve made in 2005 to settle. the ma]onty of claims related
to allcged exposure to chromium at the Utllttys natural gas
compressor stations. No srmllar adjustment was recorded

" in 2006. Of the $461 million of lncreased expenses, approxr-

mately $366 million is recoverable in rates and did not affect

" net income in 2006. The additional re_serve of $154 million
"is not recoverable in rates. . o . '
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During 2005, the Uuhty s operating and mamtenance1

expenses increased by approx1mately $551 rmlllon, or 1909,

compared to 2004, mainly due to the following factors:

. : : V.

« An additional $154 million was reserved to settle the .} .
majority of claims related to alleged exposure to chromium
at the Utility’s natural gas compressor stations. (See “Legal |

_ Matters” in Note 17 of the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for further discussion.)

‘
[ #

|
I
; !
I . . ‘ . v . 1 il
*» Administyagion expenses for low-income custoiner -
assistance programs and community outréach programs ,
incréased by approximately' $110 mil]ion. Lo | :

» Approximately $100 million in SeIFGeneratlon Incentmeii
Program expenses that were deferred.in- prior periods |
because no specific revenue recovery mechanism was in_ |
place were recognized in 2005. (See related revenues !,

in “Electric Operating Revenues”) . .: A

« Expenses for outside consulting, contract and _legal expense -
) o

and various programs and initiatives, including strategies;
to achieve operanonal excellence and 1mproved customcri

service, increased by approxxmate!y $55 mrlllon o |

* Natural gas transportation operations charges increased |
by approximately $60 rrulhon mamly due to rate increases
tor pipeline demarid and’ transportatlon

» The estimated cost of environmentél'remediatio'n related
to the Topock and Hinkley gas compressor stations
increased expenses by approxrmateiy $40 million. {See

“Environmental Matters” in Note 17 of the Notes to the.
Consolidated Fmancml Statements for further discusston.),

H

_ o em e

» Property taxes increased approximately $25 million mainly;

due to higher assessme-nts in 2005. S !

These mcreases were partmlly offset by a decrease of -
approximately $50 million in operatmg and mamtenance

T
o

|
expenses at Diablo Canyon in 2005 compared to 2004 whenl

there was a longer refueling outage. -

Approximately $306 million of the above increases were
recoverable in rates and did not affect net income for 2005.

|
|

|

I

|
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Operating and maintenance expenses are influenced: .
by wage inflation, benefits, property taxes, the timing and -
length of Diablo Canyon refueling outages, environmental
-remediation costs, legal costs and various other adminis- .
trative and general expenses. The Utility’s operating and
maintenance expenses in 2007 are expected to increase as a
result of increased expenses related to various programs and
initiatires, including public purpose programs and strategies
to ac.h_ieve operational excellence and improved ‘customer
service. (See “Overview” section in this MD&A for further

" discussion.} In conneétion with the Utility’s continued effort

to streamline processes to achieve cost and operating effi-
c1enc1€s jobs from numerous locations around California
are being consolidated and a number of positions have
been ellmmated Impacted employees may elect severance
or reassrgnment. As discussed above, the Utility has already

"incurred approximately $35 million in severance costs relat-

ing to the positions that have already been eliminated. The
Utility expects that more positions will be eliminated and
estimates that it may incur up to approximately $33 mil-  *
lion for future severance expenses that would be included
in future operating and maintenance expenses. (See further
discussion in Note 17 of the Notes to the Consohdated

Financial Statements.)
!

Recognition of Regulatory Assets,

The Utility recorded the regulatory assets provided for under
the Chapter 11 Settlement Agreement in the first quarter

of 2004. This resulted in a one-time non-cash, pre-tax gain of
$3.7 billion for the settlement regulatory asset and $1.2 bil-
lion for the Utility retained generation regulatory assets, for
a total after-tax gain of $2.9 billion.

Depreciation, Amortization and Decommissioning
In 2006, the Utility’s depreciation, amortization and
decommissioning expenses decreased by approximately

$26 million, or 1%, compared.to 2005, 'mainly due to the
following factors:

= The Utility recorded approximately $141 million in 2003
for amortization of the settlement regulatory asset. Because
the settlement regulatory asset was refinanced with the
1ssuance of the first series of ERBs on February ld, 2005,
the Utility had no similar amount in 2006.

- In 2005, the Utility recorded depreciation expense of

-approximately $30 million related to recovery of capital
plant costs associated with electric industry restructuring

" costs that a December 2004 settlement agreement’allowed

the Utility to collect through rates in 2005. There was
no similar depreciation expense in 2006.
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» Amortization of the regulatory assét related to rate recovery
bonds, or RRBs, decreased ‘by-appr_'oﬁrirnately $19 million
in 2006, compared to 2005, due to; the declining balance
of the RRBs. ' _ |

. i
These were partially offset by the. following:

» An increase of approximately 35137}I million related to th_e-
amertization of the ERB regulatory asset. During 2005,
the Utility amortized only. the ERB regulatory. asset for
the first series of ERBs.that were 1ssued on February 10,
2005. During 2006, the Utility amortized .the ERB regula-
tory asset for the second series of {ERBs that were issued on

-November 9, 2005 in addition tolthe first series.
: [

» Depreciation expense increased b)'( approximately $35 mil-
lion as a result of plant add1t1ons in 2006.

" In 2005, the Uuhty s deprecnatron amortization and
decommissioning expenses mcreased by approximately
$240 mullion, or 16%, compared to 2004, mainly due to
the following factors: , l

» The Utility recorded additional amortlzanon expense of
approximately $202 million in 2005 as it began to amortize
the ERB regulatory asset.

« In 2004, following the 2003 GR¢ decision in May 2004
that authorized lower deprectation rates, the Utility recorded
an approximately $38 million décrease to depreciation

expense. There was no similar reduction in 2005.
I .

« The Utility recorded dep_reciatio:n expense of approximately
$30 million related to recovery. of capital plant costs associ-
-ated with electric industry restructuring costs the ljecember
2004 settlement agreement allowed the Utility to collect
through rates: There was no- smnlar deprecmtlon expense
in 2004.

These were partrally offset by the following;

* Amortization of the regulatory.asset related to the RRBs -
decreased by approximately 520 million in 2005 compared
to 2004 again reflecting the dechmng balancc of the RRBs.

* Amortization of the settlementI regulatory asset decreased
by approximately $10 million in 2005 reflecting the refi-
nancing of the settlement: reglllla;ory asset-with the ERBs.

|

o
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i |
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The Utility’s depreciation, amortization and decommis-
sioning expenses in 2007 are expected to increasc as a result
of an overall increase in capital expenditures. . '

Al
Interest Income
In 2006, the Utility’s interest income increased by approxi-
mately $99 million, or 130%, compared to 2005, primarily
due to an increase in interest earned on escrow related to
disputed generator claims which are passed through to cus-
tomers (see “Electric Operating Revenues” above for further
discussion), a FERC decision approving recovery of SC costs,
including interest, and an increase in interest rates associated
with certain regulatory balancing accounts. These increases
were partially offset by a decrease in interest earned on
short-term i_nvestmenté as a result of lower short-term

investment balances. t

\ .
In 2005, the Utlity’s interest income increased by approx-

.imately $26 million, or 52%, compared to 2004, primarily

due to 2 higher balance and, rate of return on short-term
inveitments in 2005 compared to 2004.

" The Utility’s interest income in 2007 will be primarily
affected by interest rate levels.

. Interest Expense

In 2006, the Utility’s interest expense mcreased by
approximately $156 million, or 28%, compared to 2005,
primarily due to an increase in interest expense related to
disputed generator claims which are recovered as an offset
to interest income (net interest costs) through the ERBBA
(see “Electric Operating Revenues” above for further discus-
sion), interest.expense assocrated with the ERBs and accrued
interest on higher balances in certain regulatory balancing
accounts combined with an increase in thé interest rates
associated with these accounts. These increases were partially
offsct by lower interest expense on the RRBs dué to their
declining balance.

v
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In 2005, the Utility’s interest expense decreased by

approximately $113 million, or 17%, compared to 2004,. b
primarily due to a decrease'in net interest costs on disputed, .’
generator claims and energy crisis interest expense mcurred o

in 2004 prior to the Utility’s emergence from Chapter 1. E
In addition, the net additional interest expense of approxt‘-

mately $76 million resultmg from the ERB refinancing was :

offset by a decréase’ in interest expense of approxtmately 1
$18 million related to the RRBs and a decrease in 1nterest|
expense of approxtmately 556 million meurred ona lower ,'
amount of outstandmg short—term debt, '

'

The Utility’s interest expense in 2007 and subsequent :
_ perieds will be impacted by changes in mterest rates as the
- Utility’s short-term debt and a portion of it long-term debt
are interest rate-sensitive. In addition, future interest expense
1s expected to increase due to higher expected financing result-
ing from an overall increase in mfrastructure mvestments 1 .

-
Income. Tax Expense : . P
In 2006, the Utility’s income tax expense increased by |
approximately $28 million, or 5%, compared to 2005, pri- "
marily due to the increase in pre-tax income of §79 ‘million,
for 2006. The effective tax rate remamed 38% for both 2006
and 2005. , - - "
"In 2005, the Utility’s tax expense decreased by approxi~ t
mately $2 billion,'or 78%, compared to 2004, mainly due t(:)
a decrease in pre-tax income of approximately $5 billion in
2005. This decrease is prtmanly the result of the recognition
- of regulatory assets associated with the Chapter 11" Settlernent
Agreement in 2004 with no similar amount recognized in |
2005 ‘The effective tax rate, for 2005 decreased from 2004 byl
-1.3. percentage points,to, 38%. This decrease was mainly due !
to increased investment tax credits in 2005, .

|

o : . !
PG&E CORPORATION, |
ELIMINATIONS-AND OTHERS i
i
PG&E Corporation’s fevenues consist mainly of billings to - |
its affiliates for services rendered, all of which are eliminated !
in consolidation. PG&E Corporation’s operating expenses

Operating Revenues and-Expenses

consist mainly of employee compensation and payments
to third patties for goods and services. Generally, PG&E
Corporation’s operating expenses are allocated: to afhliates.
These allocations are made without mark-up and are elimi-
nated in consolidation.

|
|

|
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- There were no material changes to PG&E Corporation’s |
operating income in 2006 compared to 2005. .

PG&E Corporation’s operating expertses in 2005 decreased
by $27 million, or 104%, compared to 2004, primatily due
to an increase in expenses allocated fo afﬁltates

Interest Expense

There were no material changes to PG&E Cotporatidn’s
interest expense in 2006 compared to 2005 PG&E Cor-

poration’s interest  expense is not allocated to its affiliates.

PG&E Corporation’s interest expe\nse in 2005 decreased
$101 million, or 78%, conipared t6 2004, primarily due to - .

. the redemption of PG&E Corporation’s 6%% Senior Secured

Notes due 2008, on Novem_ber'lS,‘ 2004.

Other Expense

There were no material changes to PG&E Corporatton s
other expense in 2006 compared to 2005

PG&E Corporatton s other expense in 2005 decreased
$74 million, or 80%, compared to 2004, primarily due to
a decrease in the pre-tax charge to eamirtgs related to.the
change in market value of non-cumulative dividend par- I‘
ticipation rights included within PG&E Corporation’s
$280 ‘million of 9.50% Convertible Subordinated Notes
due 2010, or Convertible Subordinated Notes.

Income Tox Beneﬁi

PG&E Corporation’s income tax beneﬁt in 2006 increased
approximately $18 million, or 60%, compared to 2005 pri-
marily due to tax benefits refated to capital losses carried
forward 'and used in the PG&E Corporation’s 2005 federal
and statc income tax returns.

PG&E Corporatlon has $229 mllllon of remammg
capltal loss carry forwards, which if not used by December
2009, will expire. These capital losses resulted from PG&E
Corporation's dtsposmon of its ownershtp interest in NEGT
in 2004 (as discussed further beIow)
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Discontinued Operations . ° { .
In 2005, PG&E Corporation receivedl aclditiorral information
from NEGT regarding income to be included in PG&E
Corporation’s 2004, federal income 't:lx return and amounts_
previously includéd in their 2003 federal income tax return
. As a result, PG&E Corporatlon 5 2004 federal income tax
habrhty was reduced by approxrmately $19 million and ther:
2003 federal income tax liability increased by $6 million,
respeetlvely These two. adjustments, netting to $13 million,
were recognized in income from dlscontmued operations '
“in 2005 ‘ :
N B ] .

In 2004, NEGT 3 plan of reorgamzatlon became effecnve
at which time NEGT emerged from Chapter 11 and PG&E
Corporation’s equity ownership in NEGT was cancelled.

As a result, PG&E Corporation recorded a gain on disposal
of NEGT, net-of tax, on its Consolidated Statements of
Income for approximately 8684 mrlllon :

For further dlscusmon on dlscontrnued operations relatmg
to NEGT, see Note 7 of the-Notes to the Consolidated

Financial Statements.- o ’
1 - .

LIQUIDITY AND
FINANCIAL RESOURCES

OVERVIEW . |
The level of PG&E Corporation’s and the Utility’s current

assets and current liabilities is sub|ect to fluctuation as a

_ result_,of seasonal demand for electrlc1ty_ and natural gas,
energy commodity costs, and the timing and’ effect of
regulatory decisions and ﬁnancingé, 'amortg other factors.

PG&E Corporation and .the Utrlrty manage liquidity and
debt levels in order to mect expected operating and financial
needs and maintain access to credit for contingencies. PG&E
“Corporation and thé Utility seek to maintain the Utility’s
52% authonzed common equ:ty ratio.

* At December 31, 2006, PG&E (éorporatron 2nd its
subsidiaries had consolidated cash'and cash equivalents
. of approximately $456 million ancl restricted cash of
approximately $1.4.billion. At December 31, 2006, PG&E
Corporation on a stand alone basis had cash and cash
equivalents of approximately $386 million; the Utility had
cash and cash equivalents of approximately $70 million, and
restricted cash of approximately 5;1.4 billion. Restricted cash
primarily consists of approximately $1.3 billion, including
interest, in cash held in escrow pellnding the resolution
of the remaining disputed Ch:‘aptér 11 claims as well as -

deposits made by customers and other third parties under

1
|

certain agreements. PG&E Corporation and the Utility -

maintain separate bank accounts. PG&E Corporation and
the Utility primarily invest their cash in institutional money
market funds. - : e

The Utility seeks to maintain or strengthen its crecht

-ratmgs to.provide quurdlty through efficient access to
' “financial and trade credit, and to, reduce ﬁnancmg costs.

As of February 16, 2007, the Cerlt ratmgs on various
financing instruments from Moody s Investors Service, or.
Moody's, and Standard & Poor’s Ratmgs Servrce or S&P,
were a8 follows .

v

Moody’s * S&P

Utility T T
Corporate credit rating “Baal ~ BBB
Senior unsecured debt - Baal BBB
Pollution control bonds backed by . ’

bond' insurance Aaa AAA
Pollution control bonds backed by. C

letters of credit - —m CAAJAL
Credit facility : “"'Baal  BBB
Preferred stock « ° o . Baal BB+
Commercial paper program, ) . P-2 A2
PG&E Funding, LLC .
Rate reduction bonds * Aaa AAA
PG&E Energy Recovery Funding, L].C )
‘Energy recovery bonds Asza AAA
PG&E Corporation . " C
Credit facility ' Baa3 -

(1} Moody's has not ass:gned a rating to the Utll:ty s pollunon control .
" bonds backed by’ letters of credit, : +

Moody’s and S&P are nanonally recogmzcd credit ratmg
organizations. These ratings may be subject to revision or
wrthdrawal at any time by the assrgnmg rating orgamzatron

-and each rating should be evaluated independently of any

other rating. A credlt rating is not a recommendanon to buy,
sell or hold securmes ‘ . X

As of December 31, 2006, PG&E Corporétion antj
the Utility had credit facilities totaling*$200 million and
$2 billion, respectively, with remaining borrowing capacity -

. on these credit facilities of $200 million and approxrmately
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$11 b:ll1on, respectlvely As of December 31, 2006, the Ut1l1ty
had $144 million of letters of credit outstanding issued |
uinder its. working capxtal facxhty, $460 million of outstand-
ing borrowings under the commercial paper program; and
$300 million outstanding under its accounts receivable
facility. The Utility is seeking an increase to its bank credit
facilities as its accounts recéivable fac:llty will expire on |

l.
March 5 2007 ‘ . I

|
The Ut!lll‘y plans to maintain approximately $800 mil!
lion of unused borrowing capacity to provide liquidity I
in the event of contingencies such as increases in energy !
procurement costs and collateral requirements. The U_tiliq’r
eliminated the use of cash as a component of its mir_limu._m
liquidity reserve in July 2006 and now relies solely on access-
to the commercial paper market and back-up committed | -
credit lines: - - : | v

1

Durmg 2006, the Utility used cash in excess of amounts
needed for operations, debt service, capital expenditures l
‘and preferred stock requirements to pay quarterly commoiln
stock dividends. i

. T |
The Utility anticipates that it will issue approximately *

$1.35 billion of long-term debt in 2007 primarily to fund '
capital expcndltures

PG&E Corporation and the Unllty did not declare or
pay a dividend durmg ‘the Un]lty s Chapter 11 proceoedmg1
With the Utllltys emergence from Chapter 11 on April 12,

- 2004, the Utlllry resumed the payment of preferred stock ;
dividends. The Utility reinstated the payment of a regular Ve
~ quarterly common stock dividend to PG&E Corporation 0
in January 2005, upon the achievement of the 52% equity.
ratio targeted in the Chapter 11 Settlement Agrecmeﬁt.

|
3
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DIVIDENDS . ' ' i ll
|-

The dividend policies of PG&E Corporation and the
Utility are demgned to meet the fo]lowmg three objectives:

» Comparability: Pay a d:wdend compentlve with the
securities of comparable companies based on payout ratio
(the proportion of earnings paid ¢ out as d1v1dends) and, .
w1th respect to PG&E Corporanon yleld (ie., dividend
d1v1ded by share price);

» Flexibility: Allow sufﬁment cash to pay a dmdend and
"to fund investments while avoiding having to issue new
_equity unless PG&E Corporation’s ot the Utility’s capital
. expenditure requirements are growing rapldly and PG&E -
Corporation or the Utility can issue equity at reasonable

cost and terms; and '

* Sustainability: Avoid reduction or suspension of the
dmdend desplte fluctuations in financial performance

: CXCCpt in extreme and unforeseen cnrcumstances

The target dividend payout ratio range is 50% to 70%
of PG&E Corporation's earnings. Dividends are.expected
to remain in the lower end of PG&E Corporation’s target

payout range in order to ensure that equity funding is
teadily available to support capital investment needs. The
Boards of Directors retain authority to change their com-
mon stock dividend policy and dividend payout ratio at
any time, especially if unexpected events occur that would
change the Boards’ view as to the prudent level of cash
conservation. No dividend is payable unless and until .
declared by the applicable Board of Directofs.

During 2006, the Utility paid cash dividends to holders
of its preferred stock totaling $14 million. In addition,
the Utility paid cash dividends of $494 million on the
Utility’s common stock. Approximately $460 million in
common stock dividends were paid to PG&E Corporatiofi
and the remaining amount was paid to PG&E Holdings,
LLC, a wholly owned subs1d1ary of the Utility that hetd

approximately 7% of the Utility’s common stock as of
February 20, 2007

In 2006, PG&E Corporation paid common stock divi-
dends of $0.33 per share per quarter, a total of $489 million,
including approximately $33 million of common stock

_ dividends paid to Elm Power Corfaor;_ation, a wholly owned

subsidiary of PG&E Corporation that held approximately 7%
of PG&E Corporation’s common stock ‘as of February 20,
2007. On December 20, 2006, the Board of Directors
declared a dividend of $0.33 per share, totaling approxi-
mately $123 million that was payable on january 15, 2007,
to shareholders of record on December 29, 2006.
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On. February 21, 2007, the Board df Directors of the
Utility declared a cash-dividend on vanous series of its
* preferred stock'payable on May 15, 2007 ‘to shareholders
of record on Aprll 30, 2007 :

R T

PG&E Corporation and the Urtility record common stock
"dividends declared to Reinvested Eafnings.

P

UTILITY

Operahng Achvulles T I
The Utility’s cash ﬂows from operatmg actrvrtres prlmar:ly
consist of receipts from' customers less payments of operat-
1ng expenses, other than expenses sulch as deprec1arron,that
do not require the use of cash.

.

The Utility’s cash flows from opérating activities f;or 2006,
2005 and 2004 were as follows:

[ T

A .
1 2004
§ 3,982

| 2006 - 2005
Net'income : $ 985 § 934
‘Adjustments to reconcile net income Co :

to net'cash provided‘by operating
activities: C et
Depreciation, amortization, ’
decommlssromng and allowance
- for equity funds used during
construction ot .
Gain on sale of assets )
Recognition of regulatory assets -
Deferred income taxes and tax ’
credits, net, ,
Other deferred charges and
noncurrent liabilities
Change in' accounts receivable
Change in accrued taxes/income taxes
receivable
" Regulatory balancing accounts, net
Other uses of cash
Payments authorized by the
Bankruptcy Court on amounts
classified as liabilities sub]ect ‘
* to compromise
Other changes in operating assets
and liabilities .

{in millions)

1,697 -

" 1,755 1,494

(1)

(4,906) .

2,580

(287)  (636)

vl (391)
@)

21
(245)

[
?
i
l

1
|
‘ 116
|~ 128
1
!

- 28
329

52
~(590)

(150)
254

CR TR

|
3
o

— 1,_022')

C(a66) 491 - 718

Net cash provided by
¢ operating activities

J

I

{

|
s e
|

$2,577 $2,366

. . . ., .
.. .

e e -

- In 2006, net cash-provided by.operating activities
increased by approximately-$211 million from 2005, In -

" addition to the increase from the increase in net income,

the net cash provided by operating activities increased
prlmanly due to thc Fol]owmg factors:

- The Utlllty paid approx1matcly $900 mrllron in net tax
payments in 2006 compared to approximately $1.4 billion

in 2005,

« Deferred income taxes and tax credlts decreased approxi-
mately $350 mllllOﬂ prim:mly duc to an increased
California franchrse tax deduction, Iower taxable suppher
settlement income received and a dcductron rehted to ‘the

payment of prev1ously accrued lrtrgatlon costs

» Cash settlements with energy supplrers amountcd to
approximately $300 million in 2006 compared to only -

5160 million i in 2005

. Collectrons on balancmg accounts increased by approxi-
mately $75 million in 2006, compared.to 2005, since actual
costs during 2006 were lcss thanthe forecasted costs uscd

[24) set revenue requlremcnts

These increases . were parnally offset by the followmg

'Approxlmately $290 mlllron of pension contributions that
were made during 2006. (See the “Regulatory Matters —
Defined Benefit Pensi_on'Plan Contribution” below.)

« Approximiately $295 millién was pdid in Apnl 2006 to settle
the majority of claims relating to alleged exposure to chro—
m1um at the Ut111ty s natural gas compressor stations.

+ The Uulity had approxrrnately! $1§5 ’m_r_ll.ror) in additional
‘costs primarily -related to powcr and gas procurement th;at
were unpaid at the end of 2005, compared to $60 million
at the end of 2006, primarily due to higher gas prrces
durmg 2005.

51,838
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s mamly due to the following factors

* mately $800 million in 2005, compared to 2004, due to !

In 2005, net cash provided by operating activities :
increased by approximately. $528 million from 2004. Thls

. The Utility received appr0x1mately $160 million in cashi'f

under settlements with. third parties to resolve, claims: + _
relating to the California 2000-2001 energy crisis wrth ‘o
no similar settlements in 2004. v - ‘ !
« The Utility had approximately $100 million in expendrtlures
related to gas procurement and administrative and general
costs that were unpaid at the end of 2005. In 2004, the

Utility did not have similar unpaid expenditures. * f

1
i
t

l

* Collections on balancmg accounts increased by approx-

'an increase in revenue requrrements intended to recover '

2004 undercollecnons :
. . . '
The 2005 increase in net cash provrded by operating !

activities also reflects the followmg

aIlowed credrtor claims on the effective date of the

.i
«In 2004, the Utility paldlapprommately $1 billion of

Utility’s Chapter 1 plan of reorgamzanon Other than
the $1.4 billion in tax payments described below no :
similar amount was paid in 2005. '

*In 2005, the Utility pa:d approxrmately $1.4 billion in
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tax payments compared to approximately $100 million

in 2004, This increase in tax payments was primarily due
to an increase in the taxable amount of payments the !
Utility received in 2005: under settlement agreements with

energy suppliers to resolve claims relating to the California
200_0—2001 energy crisis compared to 2004. In addition,
.2005 rax payments increased due to-a-decrease in deductible
tax depreciation compared to 2004;

* The Utility paid approximately $60 million more in 2005
compared to 2004 for gas invénreiry as a result of increased
gas prices.

l

In October 2008, the CPUC approved the 10/20 Plus \
Winter Gas Savings Program a conservation incentive
that offers residential and commercxal customers up to
a 20% rebate for reducing their gas usage during January
and Pebruary 2007. This initiative is expected 1o lower
the Utility’s cash inflows primarily during March through
April 2007. However, the Utility expects to recover this cash
throughout 2007. The Utility forecasts that this initiative will
result in approximately $61 million in rebates to ‘customers,

Investing Activilies

The Utility’s investing activities consist of construction of
new and replacement facilities necessry to deliver safe and
reliable electricity and natural gas services to'its customers.
Cash flows from' operating activities have been sufficient to’
fund the Utility's capital expenditure requirerrrents during
2006, 2005 and 2004. Year-to-year variances in cash used in
investing activities depend primarily upon the amount and
type of construction activities, which can be influenced by
storms and other.factors.

The Utility’s cash flows from" investing activities for 2006,
2005 and 2004 were as follows:

(in millions}

. 2006 . 2005 2004
Capital expenditures’ $(2,402)  §(1,803) $(1,559)
Net proceeds from sale of assets 17 a9 35
Decrease (increase) in restricted cash 115 434 (1,577)
Other investing activities, net (156) (29) (178)

Net cash used by i mvesung
aClIVltIES

$(2426) $(1359) " $(3,279)

‘Net cash used by investing activities increased by |
approximately $1 billion in 2006 compared to 2005, pri-
marily due 1o an increase of approximately $600 miltlion
in capital expenditures. In addition, the Utility released
moré cash from escrow in 2005 upon settlement of disputed
Chapter 11 generator clalms than in 2006. ‘

s et w t




Net cash used by investing activities-decréased by approxi-
mately $1.9 billion in 2005 compared to 2004 due primarily
to a decrease in restricted cash, In 2004, the Utility’s restricted
cash of $2 billion consisted primarily of funds deposited
and held in escrow to pay disputed Chapter 11 proceeding
claims when resolved. Settlements duing 2005 resulted in,

the release of these funds from escrow.
’ +

The Utility expects to maintain a high rate of infra-
structure and mformatlon technology investment in its
gas and electric system to keep pace w1th economic growth
to enhance the customer experlence, and to mmgate the
impacts of aging eqmpment on system performance. The
Utility expects capital expendltures will total approximately
$2.8 bllllon or greater in 2007. The hlgher level of capital

‘investment is mostly due to the advanced metering infra-

structure installation project, generation facility spending,
replacing and expanding gas.and électric distribution systems
and improving the electric transmission infrastructure. (See
“Capital Expenditures” below.) '

o

Financing Activities :
The Utility’s cash flows from ﬁnancmg activities for 2006

2005 and 2004 were as follows: -

{in millions) 2006 2005 2004
Borrowings under accounts receivable | :

facility and working capitat facilicy = $350 ©$ 260 § 300
-Repayments under accounts receivable -

facility and working capital facility ' (310) (300) -
Net issuance of commercial paper, =~ )

net of discount of $2 million t 458 -
Net proceeds from long-term !
- debt issued l - 451 7,742
Net proceeds from energy recovery : .

. bonds issued - 2,711
Long term debt, matured, redeemed ‘ .

or repurchased C 4 = (1,554) - (8,402)
Rate reduction bonds matured C(290) (290) (290)
Energy recovery bonds matured 1 (316) (140) . -
Preferred stock dividends paid - Yoy e (90)
Common stock dividends paid . -+ - (460)  (445) . -
Preferred stock with mandatory r .

redemption provisions redeemed | - (122) (15)
Preferred stock without mandatory -

redemption provisions redeemed ' - (37 -

- Common stock repurchased - - (1,910) -

Other financing activities ’ 38 65 - =

] f P
ce il
. L ‘

Net cash used by ﬁnancmg .. T .
activities i $(544) $(1,327) $.(755)

In 2006, net cash used by financing activities decreased
by approximately $783 million ¢ompared to 2005 This was
mainly due to the following factors:.

+ The Utility had net issuances of $458 million in commer-
cial paper, net of a $2 million discount, in 2006 with no
similar amount in 2005,

_+In 2005, the Utility repurchased 519 billion in

» common stock from PG&E Corporation: There were
no common stock repurchases n 2006

» The Utility received proceeds of SZ 7 bllhon from the
issuance of ERBs in 2005.

* In May 2005, the Utlity borrowed $451 mlllron from -
the California Infrastructure and Economic Development
Bank, which was funded by the bank’s issuance of
Pollution Contro} Bonds Series A-G, with no similar ‘
borrowing in 2006,

+ Approximately $316 million of ERBs matured in 2006
with only $140 million of maturittes in 2005, '

» The Utility borrowed $350 mlllron from the accounts
receivable facility durmg 2006, compared to $260 mllhon
in 2005.

-« The Utility redeemed $122 million of preferred stock -

with no similar redemption in 2006

*1n 2005, the Utility redeemed $500 mrlllon and defeased
$600 million of Floating Rate First Mortgage Bonds. The
Utility also repaid $454 million under certain reimburse-

ment obligations that the Utility entered into in April 2004,

when its plan of reorganization became effective. There
were no simtlar redemptions and repayments in 2006.
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In 2005, net cash used by ﬁnancmg activities mcreased
“by approx1mately $572 million compared to 2004. Th:s 15

srafl

mainly due to the followmg factors:

]

* Proceeds from long-term debt decreased by appr0x1mately )

$7.3 billion. In 2004, the Utility issued approximately |

+ $7.7 billion, net of issuance costs of $107 million, in! .1' L

long-term debt to fund its plan of reorgamzatlon In 2005
e

.....

n long-term debt was mcurred by the Utlhty related to
- the Poliution Control Bonds Serles A- G.

l
H
« An aggregate of $2.7 b;lllon in ERBs were issued in 2065 '
with no similar issuance in 2004, .
: . i
*» The Utility repaid $300 million in 2005 under its working
cap:tal facthty, with 'no similar repayment in 2004. ]' '

-Approxtmately $140 mllhon of 'ERBs matured n 2005 v

with no similar maturmes n 2004 T 1!

. Long—term debt matured, redeemed or repurchased by the
Utility ‘decreased by approx1mately $6.8 billion in 2005. |In
2004, repayments on long-term debt totaled approx:mately

$8.4 billion, primarily to discharge pre—petmon debt at the

effective date of the plan of reorganization. :

« In 2005, the Utility ref)urd_]ased $1.9 billion in commori
stock from PG&E Corporation and paid $445 million :
in common stock dividends to PG&E Corporanon and !
$31 mllllon to PG&E Holdings, LLC, a Whol]y owned
subsidiary of the Utlllty

«In 2005, the Utility redeemed $159 million of preferred
stock compared to $15 million in 2004.

- (included in Other Financing Activities m. the table abo

e)

|
=
I
|
|
)
» Approximately $100 million in customer deposits |
v
~was received in 2005 with no similar amount in 2004, :
| l

|

|

. C
I i
1

[} |

i
|
i

|
|
!
:
5
!
|
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PG&E CORPORATION

As of December 31, 2006, PG&E Corporation had stand-alone
cash and cash equivalents of approximately $386 million.
PG&E Corporation’s sources of funds are dividends from °
and share repurchases by the Utility, issuance of its common
stock and-external financing. In 2006, the Utility paid-a-
total cash dividend of $460 mullion to PG&E Corporation.
'In 2005, the Utlllty paid a total cash dividend of -$445 mil-
lion to PG&E Corporation : and. repurchased $1 9 billion
of its common stock from PG&E Corporatnon The Utility
did not pay any dividends to, nor repurchase shares from
PG&E Corporation during 2004.

Operuting Activities . ]

PG&E Corporation’s consolidated cash flows from operating
activities consist mainly of billings to the Utility for services
rendered and payments for employee compensation and
goods and services provided by others to PG&E Corporation.
PG&E Corporation also incurs interest costs associated with
its debr. ' '

PG&E Corporation’s consolidated cash flows from.
operatmg activities for 2006, 2005 and:2004 were ‘as follows:

fin millions) T 2006 2005 2004
$ 991 5 917 $4504

Net income .
Gain on disposal of NEGT (net of
income tax benefit of $13 million
in 2005 and income tax expense
of $374 million in 2004; See Note 7
of the Notes to the Consolidated ) . .
Financial Statements for derails) - (13)

(684)
" Net income from continuing '
operations ‘ 291 | 904 3,820
Adjustments to reconcile net income i :
to net cash provided by operating
activities: .
Depreciation, amortization,
decommissioning and allowance
for equity funds used during S
construction® 1,756 1,698 . 1497 -
Loss from retirement of ) ' ’ :
leng-term debt - - 65
" Tax benefit from employee . T
.stock plans . c= 50 ° 41
Gain on sale of assets oy = (19
Recognition of regulatory asset, )
net of tax ) - .= (4,900}
Deferred income taxes and :
tax credits, net | {285) (659) 2,607
Other deferred charges and o :
noncurrent liabilities 151 33 {(519)
Other changes in operating assets
and liabilities . 112 383 (736}
Net cash provided by ‘
operating activities $2,714 %2409 $ 13856




|
|

In 2006, the net cash prov1ded by operating activities.

increased by $305 million ‘compared , to 2005, pr1manly due - .

to an increase in the Utlity’s net cash provrded by operat-
ing activities and tax, refunds [’ECC]VCd by PG&E Corporation
durmg the first and tl‘lerl quarters of 2006, with no 51m1lar
refunds received durmg 2005. I .

In 2005, the net cash provided by operating activities
increased by $553 million comparedlto 2004, primarily

due to an increase in the Utll1ry s nelt cash prov1ded by
: |

operating activities. ! . '
Investing Activities it ‘
PG&E Corporaticn, on a stand- alone basis, did not have any
material investing activities in the ycars eiided December 31,

2006, 2005 and 2004. T Lo

. l .
Financing Activities l -
PG&E Corporation’s cash flows from financing activities
consist mainly of cash generated from debt refinancing and
the issuance of common stock.,  °l '

PG&E Corporatron s cash flows from ﬁnancmg actwmes
for 2006, 2005 and 2004 wete as follows

{in-millions). ’ ll 2006 - 2005 2004

Borrowings under accounts receivable
facility and working capital facility
Repayments under accounts receivable |

{.$350 $.260 § 300

During 2006, PG&E Corporation’s consohdated net -
cash used by ﬁnancmg activities decreased by approx1mately
$726 million, compared to 2005, pnmanly due fo the
following factors, after consideration of the Utlllry s cash

. flows from financing activities:

* PG&E- Corporation paid four quarterly common stock
dividends in 2006 but made only three paymcnts in 2005,

+In 2005, PG&E Corporatlon repurchased approxlmately

$2.2 billion in common stock. Therewas no similar o
share repurchase in 2006, but PG&E Corporation paid '
certain additional payments of approximately $114 mil-

lion to Goldman Sachs & Co., Inc. related to the pr1or :

- year repurchase :

In 2005, PG&E Corporanon s consolidated net cash

" used by financing activities decreaséd by approximately

$354 million, compared to 2004, due to the following
financing activities in addition to Utility financing activities:

+In 2005, PG&E Corporation paid $334 million in common
stock dividends with no similar payment in 2004.

In’ 2005 PG&E Corporatron issued $81 million"more in

A .

common stock than in 2004

«In 2005, PG&E Corporation repurchased $2.2 billion in
common stock while repurchasing only $378 million *

. in common stock in 2004

PG&E Corporation expects its $280 million in Con-
vertible Subordinated Notes will remain outstandmg until

matunry in 2010,

facility and working capital facility : (310) (300) —
Net issuance of commercial paper, l .

net of discount of 32 million l 458 - -
Net proceeds from issuance of i :

long-term debt P - 451 . 7,742
Net proceeds from issuance of energy . -

‘recovery bonds ' : { -~ =
Lonig-term debt matured; redeemed A S )

ot repurchased — . {1,556) . (9,054)"
Rate reduction bonds matured ) l - 290y {(290) (290}
Energy recovery bonds matured i (316) {140) -
Preferred stock with mandatory : ] : . -

redemption provisions redeemed | - (122) (15}
Preferred stock without mandatory” | t ‘

redemption provisions redeemed ! - (37} -
Common stock issued _ T )| ;243 162
Commen stock repurchased . l (114)  (2.188) (378)
Common stock dwrdends paid | (456) (334) -
Other . ; 3 .32, ey

Net cash used by ﬁnancmg l ’

activities l 5(544) $(1,270) $(1,624)
k]
i

aa
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CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENTS

i

The following ‘table provtdes information about the Utlity’s and PG&E Corporatton s contractual obltgatlons and com-
mitments at December 31, 2006. PG&E Corporatton andi the Utility enter into contractual obligations in connection with

business activities. Thése obligations prrmarlly relaté to ﬁnancmg arrangements (such as long-term debt, preferred stock.and

certain forms of regulatory financing), purchases of transportanon capacity, natural gas and electr1c1ty to support customer
demand and the purchase of fuel and transportation to’ support the Utility’s generation activities,

4

Payment due by period

|
1
- . r 1 Less than Maore than
(in millions)’ ! Totai  oneyear.''1=3 years . -3-5 years 5.years
Contractual Commitments: ] i B
Utility . B » |
Purchase obligations: . e T Ll ' . ,
Power purchase agreements™: . i ! - . o )
Qualifying facilities ' . t $16,238  $1,672  $3,331 ° $2,693  $8542
Irmgation district and water agencres . ‘ 325 - 80 70 61 114
Renewable contracts - | 4,356 166 498 637 3,055
Other power purchase agreements 9219 251 421 218 »
* Natural gas supply and transportauon o 1 1,138 954 176, 8 .=
Nuclear fuel - - - ) - 539 135 152 101 151
- Preferred dividends and redemption requirements® | 42 8 17 17 -
Employee benefits: ! ‘ ’ .
. Pension®™ " 1 528 - 176 352 - —
Other commitments™ ! 142 123 - 19 - -
Advanced metering infrastructure . ; 17 17 0 - .- .=
Operating leases _ ) ‘ ] : \ 109 .20 2 23 © 34
Long-term debt®: y " .
. Fixed rate obligations - ' ' o B 11,514 ©297 . 1,188 1,045 ' 8,984
Variable rate obligations o 1,738 0 75 688 935
Other long-term liabilities reflected on the Utlhtys balance sheet under GAAP: C o ’
Rate reduction bonds® . o 302 302 - - -
Energy recovery bonds™," . . . o : ! 2,612 4357 870 891 416
Capital lease obligations® . AN 553 50 100 100 303
PG&E Corporation =~ ' ’, i
Long-term debt®: ) b | . .
Convertible subordinated notes ' .- 37 27 53 292 -
Operating leases . . 1 13 3. 5 5 -
Canadian natural gas pipeline firm transportatlon contracts® 128 2 18. 16 92

(1) This table does pot include, DWR allocated contracts because the D\XI/R is currently legally and financially responsible for these contracts and payments.
(2) Preferred dividend and redemption requirement estimates beyond 5 years do not include nonrecleemable preferred stock dividend payments as these.

continue in perpetu:ty

(3) PG&E Corporation's and the Utility's funding pohcy is to contribute tax deductible amounts, cons:stem wrth apphcable regulatory dec1stons. .
sufficient to meet minimum funding requnrements Contribution esnma1es after 2007 will be dnven by CPUC dectsrons See further-discussion under

“Regulatory Matters,” 1

{4) Includes commitmenis for capital infusion agreements for limited panncrshrp interests in-the aggregate amount of approximately $4 million, -
load-control and self-generation CPUC initiatives in the aggregate amount of approxlmate]y $123 million and contracts for local and !ong—drstance ‘

telecommunications in the aggregate amount of approx1mately $15 million.

(5) Includes interest payments over the terms of the debt. See Note 4 of the Notes to the Consohdated Fmancna] Statements for further drscusston
(6) Includes interest payments over the terms of the bonds. See Note 5 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemenls for further dlscussmn

of RRBs. - I

{7) Includes interest payments over the terms of the bonds. See Note & of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion

of ERBs. = . . -

{8) See Note 17 of the Notes to the Consolidated Fmancral Statements for further discussion of the capital lease obligations.

(9) See Note 17 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion of the PG&E Corporation’s natural gas pipeline firm -

transportanon contracts.

i
!
|
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1
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i
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The Utility’s contractual commitments include power
purchase agreements (including agreements with qualifying.
facility co-generators, or Q:s irrigarion districts and
water agencies and renewable energy|providers), natural
gas supply and transportatron agreements, nuclear fuel
agreements, operating leases and other commitments that
are discussed in Note 17 of the Notes to the Consalidated

Fmancral Statements, - .

The contractual commitments table above excludes poten-
tial commitments a$sociated with the conversion of existing
overhead electric facilities to underground electric facilities..
At December 31, 2006, _the Utility was committed to spend;
ing approxrmately $211 million for these conversions. These
funds’ are conditionally committed dependmg on the timing
of the work, including the schedules of the respective cities,
counties and telephone utilities involved. The Utility expects
to spend approximately $50 million to $60 million each-year
in connection with these projects. qonsistent with past prac-
tice, the Utility expects that these cdpital expenditures will be
included in rate base.as each individual project is completed
and recoverable in rates charged to customers.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

The Utility’s investment in plant and equipment tofaled
approximately $2.4 billion in 2006,:$1.9 billion in 2005, and
$1.6 billion in 2004. The Utility expects capital expenditures
will total approximately $2.8 billion or greater in 2007. The
Utility’s weighted-average rate base in 2006 was $15.9 billion.
Based on the estimated capital expendltures for 2007, the
Utility projects a weighted-average rate base for 2007 of
approximately $17.3 billion! Over the next five years, the
; Utlllry expects, subject to regulatory approval, to replace
aging infrastructure- -and otherwise invest in plant and equip-
ment to accommodate anticipated lelectvricit:y and natural gas
load growth and invest in the projects listed below.

i ot
. Advanced Metering Infrastructure
In July 2006, the: CPUC issued a decrslon approvmg the
Utility’s application to instalt an advanced metering infra-

structure, known as the SmartMeter™ system, for virtually -
.

all of the Utility’s electric and gas pustomers. This infrastruc-

ture enables the Utility to measure' usage of electricity on 2
time-of-use basts and to charge demand-responsive-rates. The
goal of dernahd-responsive rates is|to encourage customiers to
reduce energy consumption during peak demand periods and
to reduce peak period procurement costs. Advanced meters
can record usage in time intervals and be read remotely. The
Utility began installation of the mfrastructure in 2006 and
expects to complete the installation throughout its service
territory by the end of 2011

The CPUC also approved the Utility's proposal to offer
customers a.new voluntary critical peak pricing billing -
optron called “SmartRate” under whrch customers will be
able to take advantage of electncrty prlces that vary by day

. and hour potentially reducing their bills by ‘shifting their

energy use away from critical peak penods By shifting
energy demar_ld away from critical peak periods, the Utility
anticipates that it would need to purchase less power for
critical peak periods. .

The CPUC authorized the Utility,;ro repover the
$1.74 billion estimated SmartMeter™ project cost, including

-an estimated capital cost of $1.4 billion, The $1.74 billion

amount includes $1.68 billion for project costs and approxi-
mately $54.8 million for costs to’ market the SmartMeter™
technology. In addition, the Utility can recover in tates 90%
of up to $100 million in costs that exceed $1.68 billion with-
out a reasonableness review by the CPUC. The remaining
10% will not be recoverable in rates. If additional costs exceed
the $100 million threshold, the Utility may request recovery
of the additional costs, subject to a reasonableness review.

PG&E Corporation and the Utility caninot predict )
whether or to what extent the anticipated benefits and cost
savings of the advanced ‘metering infrastructure project will
be realized. '

Diablo Canyon Steam Generoior

Replacement Project -
In November 2005, the CPUC approved the Utility's

replacement of the steam generators at the two nuclear
operating units at Diablo Canyon, one in 2008 and one
in 2009. The estimated cost of the steam generation
replacement project, or SGRP, is $642 million, of which
%165 million had been spent as of December 31, 2006,
including progress payments on contracts for the eight
steam generators' the Utility has ordered. |

To implement the SGRP, the Utility has obtained two
coastal development permits from the California Coastal
Commission to build temporary structures at-Diablo
Canyon to house the new generators as they are prepared for
installation and for certain offlcading activities. The Utility
also has obtained a conditional use permit from San Luis
Obispo County t_o store the old ge'neréitc):rs on site at Diablo
Canyon. On January 10, 2007, the Coastal Law Enforcement
Action Network filed a lawsuit in the Superior Court for
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the County of San Francisco against both’the Callforma‘ o

Coastal Commission and the Utility alleging that the com-
mission violated the California Coastal Act the California
Environmental Quality Act,"and the San Luis Oblspo 1
Certified Local Coastal Program when it approved the per-
‘mits without requiring the Utility to commit to undertake
certain proposed or otherwise feasible mitigation measures.
The complaint requests that the court (1) find that the :
approval of the permits was:* llegal and lnvalld 2) order

the commission to set aside and vacate its: approval and |

(3) issue a permanent injunction to prohlbrt the Unlity: from

engagmg in any activity authorized by the permits until the

commission complles with the Judgment that the court may

render. The complamt does not seek a temporary restrammg
order against the Utlllry PG&E Corporation and the Utility
believe that the permits were legally and validly approved,

and issued. . ‘ }
. 1

If the Utility’s SGRP is delayed, the Ulity could incur
additional costs to operate and maintain the old steam |
generators until they can be replaced and to delay and

extend project completion dates. If the Utility is not able to ~

complete the SGRP, the Utility would be required to cease
operations at Diablo Canyon and procure power from other
sources when the generators are no longer (:)perable n conf-
formance with operating standards. The Utility would also
have to pay for all work done in connection with the des1gn
and fabrication of the eight steam generators and a pro—ralted
profit up to the time the performance unde_r the contracts' is
completed or the contracts are terminated, . ) :
New Generation Facilities R |
During 2006, the CPUC approved three contracts that
provide for the construction of generation facilities to be l
owned and operated by the Utility: ' i

* Gateway Generating Station — In June 2006, the ii
CPUC authorized the Utility to acquire t}“xe equipment, !
permits, and contracts related to a partially completed .1
530-megawatt, or MW, power plant in Antioch, Cahfornla,
referred 10 as the Gateway Generatmg Station, or Gateway
The Utility complered the acquisition in November 2006
The CPUC authorized the Utility to recover approxrmately
$295 million in capital costs to complete the construc- :
tion of the facility as well as costs for its operation. On |
February 15, 2007, the CPUC approved the Utility’s requést

. _ |

1
1
!
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to recover an additional approximately $75 million neces-
sary to convert the plant from fresh water cooling to dry
cooling in order to reduce the environmental impact of
the facility and as a result of changes to Gateway’s envi-
ronmental permits. The Ulility also has filed a request with
the California Energy Commission, or CEC, 1o amend the
facility’s current permit to authorize the plant to be con-
verted from fresh water cooling to dry cooling. The Utility
expects that the CEC will issue a decision in the second

" quarter of 2007. Subject to obtammg the permit’ amend
ment from the CEC, meeting construction schedules, oper-
anonal performance requirements and other conditions,
the Utrllty estimates that it will complete construction of
the Gateway facility and commence operations in 2009 at
an estimated -cost of approximately $370 million including
cexpenditures related to the conversion to dry cooling.

In November 2006, the CPUC
approved an agreement for the development and con-

* Colusa Power Plant —

striction of a 657-MW power plant to be located in
Colusa County, California. The CPUC adopted an initial
capital cost for the Colusa project that is equal to the

sum of the fixed contract costs plus the Utility’s estimated
owner’s costs and a contingency amount to account for
the risk and uncertainty in the’estimation of owner’s costs.
(Owner’s costs include the Utility's expenses for legal,
engineering and consulting services as well as the costs
for-internal personnel and overhead related to the project.)
The CPUC also authorized the Utility to adjust the initial
capital cost for the Colusa project to reflect any actual
incentive paymenrs made to, or liquidated damages received
from, the contractors through notification to the CPUC
but without a reasonableness review. Subject to obtaining
required permits, meeting construction schedules, opera- *
tional performance requirements and other conditions,
it.15 anticipatcd that the Colusa project will commence
operations in 2010 at an estimated cost of approx1mately
$673 million.

+» Humboldt Bay Power Plant — In November 2006, the

CPUC also approved an agreement for the construction
of a 163-MW power plant to re-pov;er the Utility’s existing
power plant at Humboldt Bay, which is at the end of its
useful life. The CPUC adopted an initial capital cost of
the Humboldt Bay project equal to the sum of the fixed
contract costs plus the Utlity’s estimated owner’s costs,
but limited the continéency amount for ownet’s costs to
5% of the fixed contract cost and estimated owner’s costs.

~ Subject to obtaining required permits, meeting construction
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schedules, operational performance, requirements and other

conditions, it is anticipated that the Humboldt Bay project
will commence operations in 2009 'at an estimated cost of
approximately $239 million.

' The CPUC authorized the Utility to adjust the initial
capital costs for the Colusa and Humboldt Bay projects to
reflect any actual incentive payments made to, or liquidated
damages received from, the contractors through notification
to the CPUC but without a reasonableness review. The
forécasted initial capital cost of the Colusa and Humboldt
Bay projects will be trued-up in the'Ut1hty § next GRC
following the commencement of operatlons of each plant
to reflect-actual initial capital costs. The true-up will reﬂect
50% of any actual cost savings for the Colusa project and
all cost savings, if any, for the Humboldt Bay project.

The Utility is authorized to seck recovery of additional
capital costs 1ncurred in connection with the Colusa and
Humboldt Bay projects that are attrtbutable to operational
enhancements, but the request will _be subject to the CPUC’s
review. Althohéh the Utility ls.perrt:titted to seek recovery
of additional capital costs incurrediin connection with the
Humboldt Bay project subject to a'reasonableness review,
the Utility is not permitted to seek recovery of any other .

{

additional capital costs incurred in connection with the

)

Colusa project.
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OFF-BALANCE SHEET

ARRANGEMENTS * |

For financing and other business plurposes, PG&E Corpo-
- ration and the Utility utilize cettain érrangemcnts»that are
not reflected in their Consohdated Balance Sheets. Such
arrangements do not represent a sngntﬁcant part of cither
PG&E Corporation’s or the Ut111ry s activities or a signifi-
cant ongoing source of-ﬁnancing.f'fl'hese' arrangements enable
PG&E Corporation and the Utility to obtain financing or
execute commercial transactions on more favorable terms. For
further-information related to letter of credit agreements, ‘the
‘credit facilities, and PG&E Corporation’s guarantee related
to certain NEGT indemnity obhglmons see Notes 4 and 17
of the Notes to the Consohdated[FlnanCIal Stitements.
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CREDIT RISK . oo
Credit risk is the risk of loss- that PG&E Corporatton and
the Utility would incur if customers or counterparnes

failed to perform their contractual’ obltgattons The Utility
is exposed to a concentration of credit risk associated with
receivables from the sale of natural gas and electricity to
residential and ‘small commercial customers in northern
and central California. This credit risk-exposure is mitigated

by requiring deposits from new customers and from those

customers whose past payment practices are below standard.
A material loss associated with the regional’ conccntranon
of retait recewables is not considered likely.

Additionally, the Utility has a concentranon of CrEdlt r1sk
associated with its wholesale customers and counterpartles
mamly in the energy industry, mcludmg other California
investor-owned electric utilities, municipal utilities, energy
trading companies, financial. institutions, and oil and natural
gas production compan:es located in the United States and
Canada. This concentratlon “of counterpartles may impact
the Utllll’y s overall exposure to credit risk ‘because counter-
parties may be similarly affected by economic or regulatory’
changes, or other changes-in conditions. If a counterparty
failed to perform on their contractual obligation to'deliver
electricity, then the Utility may find it necessary to prociire
electricity at current market prices, which may be higher

than those prices contained in the contract. Credit losses
attributable to receivables and electrical and gas procure-
ment activities from both retail and wholesale customers and
counterparties are.expected to be recoverable from customers

through rates and are not expected to have a material impact

on earnings.
The Util_ity rnanages credit risk :llssociated' with its whole-
sale customers and counterparties by assigning credit limits
based on evaluations of their financial condition, net worth,
credit rating; and other credit criteria as deemed appropriate.
Credit-limits and credit quality are monitofed periodically
and a detailed credit analysis is performed at least annually. |
Furthér, the Utility relies on master agreements that require
security, referred to as credit collateral, in the form of
cash; letters of credit, corporate g_uarémtees "of acceptable
credit quality, or eligible securities if current net receivables .
and replacement cost exposure exceed contractually
spec1ﬁed ltmtts ‘ ,
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_The schedule below summarizes the Utlhtys net credit risk exposure to its wholesale customers and counterparties, as well
|
- s the Ut:lny s credit risk exposure to 1ts wholesale custO{ncrs or counterpartles with a greater than 10% net credit exposure,

" at December 3, 2006 and December 31, 2005;

[

L ' - )
! 1 .\ . . ' Net
) f . ’ : Number of Exposure to
| Gross Credit Wholesale Wholesale
| Exposure - Customer or -~ Customer or
: . | Before Credit Credit  Net Credit  Counterparties Counterparties
(in millions) . o J ! Collateral  Collateral Esposure® >10% >10%
December 31, 2006 N \ " $255 $ 87 $168 2 $113
December 31, 2005 ' o $447 “ $105 - $342 3 $165

(1) Gross credit exposure equals mark-to-market value on financially settled contracts, notes receivable and net receivables (payables) where netting is

contractually allowed. Gross and net credit exposure amounts reported above do not include ad;ustmcnts for time value or liquidity. The Utility’s gross -

credit exposure includes wholesale activity only.

(2) Net credit exposure is the gross credit exposure mmus credit collateral (cash deposits and letters of credit). For purposes of this table, parental guarantccs

are not mcludcd as-part of the calculation. -

.
. |

CONTINGENCIES R :
. . \

PG&E Corporation and the Utility have significant contin-.

gencies that are discussed in Note 17 of the Notes to the |

Consolidated Financial Statements.

REGULATORY MATTERS:

. The Utility is ‘subject to substantial regulatnon Set forth
below-are matters pending before the CPUC, the FERC; and
the Nuclcar Regulatory Commission, or NRC, the resolution
of which may affect the Utility’s and PG&E Corporation’ sl
results of operatlons or ﬁnanc:al condition. |

i
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2007 General Rote Cose . ' H |1
On Fcbruary 13, 2007, a proposed decision was issued by |
an administrative law judge, or AlJ, presiding over the :
Utility’s 2007 GRC pending at the CPUC. On the same |
day, an alternate proposed decision was issued by the :
assigned CPUC Commissioner in the case. The ALJ’s pro- 4
posed decision recommends modifications to the proposed !
settlement agreement reached.in August 2006 among the
Utility, the CPUC’s Division of Ratepayer Advocates, or
DRA, and, other parties, to resolve the tssues raised by thESE:
parties and all revenue requirement-related issues raised in |
the 2007 GRC. The alternate proposed'decisibn issued by :
the assigned Commissioner recommends that the proposed |1
]
|
|
I
|

settlement agreement be approved. ‘ S

Both the proposed decision and the alternate proposed
decision 'accep't the settlement agreement’s proposal to set the’
Utility’s GRC revenue requirements for a four-year period,
2007-2010. Under this proposal, the Utility’s next GRC
would be effective Janudry 1, 2011. On October 19, 2006, the
CPUC approved the Utility’s request to make the revenue
requirements ultimately adopted by the CPUC effective on
January 1, 2007. & !

-

The settlement agreement proposes that the Utility’s
electric and gas service revenue requirements effective
January 1, 2007 be set at approximately $2.9 billion for *
electric distribution, approximately $1 billion for gas
distribution and $1 billion for electric generation opera-
tions, for a total of approximately $4.9 billion.-The revenue
requirement amounts set’fortl'l in the settlement agreement
reflect an increase of $222 million in the Utility's electric,
distribution revenues, an increase of $20.5 million in
gas distribution revenues, and a dccrease ‘of $29.8 million

in generation operation rcvenucs, “for an overall i increase of -
$212.7 million (or 4.5%), over'the 2006 authorized amotints.
Under the settlement agreement, the Utility’s revenue’
requirements are $181 million less than the amount
requested in.the Utility’s original GRC application. Of )
this amount, approximately $95 million relates to deprecia-
tion expense, approximately $29 million relates to return and
taxes associated with rate base, approxima_tely $21 million.
relates to operating and maintenance expenses and customer
service expenses and approximately $36 million relates to
administrative and general expenses, payrol} taxes and other

miscellaneous expenses. ‘
: : _ .




The settlement agreement also p'roj\:ridcs for annual attri-,
tion adjustments to authonzed revenﬁes of $125 million in
each of 2008, 2009, and 2010 and an faddltlonal adjustment
of $35 million in 2009 for the cost ofa second refueling
outage at Dlablo Canyon The attrition adjustment to
authorized revenues for 2010 would bc $125 million, less
the one-time additional amount of $§5 million from 2009,
- for a net increase of $90 million in 2010. The attrition
- adjustm'eﬁts discussed above incorpo'rate some estimated -
benefits for the Utility’s customers of cost savings attribut-
able to the Utility’s implementation of initiatives to achieve
operating and cost effidiencies in 2008, 2009 and 2010. If.
the actual cost savings exceed the est:ir‘nated benefits, such.
benefits would accrue to shareliolders. Conversely, if these

cost savings are not realized, earnings available for share- -
. | :

holders would be reduced. i
" The ALJ’s proposed decision wodld'modify the revenue
. requirements proposed in the settlen{ent agreement in a num-
ber of aress, including hydroelectnc operations, rate base .and.
the treatment of certain tax issues. ]nstead of the $213 mil-
lion total revenue requirement increase over 2006 authorized
revenues proposed in the settlement agreement, the ALJ's
proposed decision would result in a'total revenue requirement
increase of approximately $170 million over 2006 authorized
revenues (343 million less than the Iamo_unt,proposed in the. .
settlement agreement). Both the AL]’s proposed decision and
the alternate proposed decision wou.l‘lld accept the attrition
adjustments proposed in the settlcr_r?ent agreement.

- The following table sets forth the amount of the changes
to 2006 authorized revenue requirer;nents, by category, that
would result from the revenue requirements recommended
in the proposed decision and in the alternate proposed
decision and the differences befweefn the resulting revenue

. requirement change:

v

i
Proposed !' Alternate -
- Decision ; Proposed

{Recommending i Decision Difference

Modification 0 (Recommending Berween

Settlement ,l Settlement  Recommended
{in millions) Amounts) ! Amounts) Amounts®
Electric distribution $199 5222 5(23)
Gas distribution’ g’ 9 21 (12)
Electric generation . (38) (30} (8)
Total revenue . - ~ )

' requirément 1ncrease

_ (decrease) for 2007: $170 $213 $(43)

' +

1The CPUC rules of procedure genetally require that-a

- proposed decision have been issued at least 30.days before

the CPUC can vote on the decision. The next scheduled ‘
meeting at which the CPUC could issue a final decision | +
in the 2007 GRC will be held on March 15, 2007. '

PG&E Corporation and the Utility are unable to predict
when the CPUC will issue a final decision or whether the
settlement agreement will be approved.

Eledriéiiy Generation Resources

Each California investor-owned electric utility is responsible
to procure .clectricity to meet customer demaqd, plus appli-
cable reserve margins, not satisfied from that utility’s own
generation facilities and existing electricity contracts. Each
utility must submit a long—term procurement pian cover-

ing a 10-year period to the CrucC for approval. Ca]lfornla
legislation allows the California mvcstor—owncd utilities:

to recover their wholesale electricity procuremcnt costs
mcurred in accordance with their CPUC-approved procure-
"ment plans. The Utility’s forecasted costs under power pur-
chase agreements and fuel costs are reviewed annually and
recovered through the Energy Reso-urce. Recovery Account,

or the ERRA, a balancing account designed to track and
allow recovery of the difference between the authornzed
revenu¢ requirement and actual costs incurred under the
Utility’s CPUC-authorized pro‘curement plans. The CPUC
performs periodic compliance reviews of the procurement
activities recorded in the ERRA to ensure that the Utlity's
procurement activities are in compliance with its approved .
proéufement plans. In addition, the CPUC will adjust retail
electricity rates or order refunds, as appropriate, when the \
forecast aggregate over-collections or under-collections exceed
5% of a utility’s prior year electricity procurement revenues
(excluding amounts collected for the DWR contracts) for the
length of a utility’s resource commitment or 10 yéars, which-
ever is longer. The Chapter 11 Settlement Agreement also
provides that the Utility will recover its reasonable costs of
providing utility service, including power. procurement costs.

N .
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The authorized revenue requirements for capital costs, and

|
+ non-fuel operating and maintenance costs.for Utility—owrlled
generation are addressed in the Utility’s GRC. If the CPUC
approves the 2007 GRC.settlement agreement, the Unhry s,

next GRC will not occur .until 2011, n l -

Cost Recovery for New Generation Resources B l
The CPUC decided thar the utilities should be allowed to

recover any above market or stranded costs of new genera—

tion resources from clepartmg customers, as well as from I
their retail or “bundled” electrlcrty customers throh'gl;. the *
imposition of a non-bypasgable_ charge. For a utility-owned
generation facility, the duration of the stranded cost recoVery
period would be 10 years, beginning with commercial opera-
tions, and for a power purchase agreement, the duration i
would be ‘10 years or the term of the contract, whichever i Is
less. At the end of this 10-year perlod the Utility will stlll‘
be able to collect any stranded costs from its current full-
sewrlce customers, but no longer be able to charge departmg
customers for those costs. Contracts for renewable energy
sources, however, are eligible for stranded cost recovery over
the entire’life of the contract. The utilities are'allowed to |
justify a stranded 'cost:recovery period longér than'10 years
on a case-by-case basis. The 1mplementatron of the non-
bypassable charge 1s bemg addréssed in the CPUC’s 2006
long-term procurement plan proceeding drscussed below.
In July 2006, the CPUC.rssued a decision adopting a ],
transitional policy to foster investment in new generation !
and directing the California investor-owned utilities to pro-
ceed expeditiously to.procure new gerleratioh on behalf ofl
all benefiting customers.in an investor-owned utility’s servrce
territory. Under this transitional- policy, for new generation'
purchased from third parties under power purchase agree- l
ments, the utilities may elect to allocate the net capacity |
costs (l.e,, contract prlce less energy revenues) to all “benefit-
ing customers” in the utilities’ service territory, including |
existing direct access customers'{i.e., former.customers who:
choose to buy energy from an alternate service provider 4
other than the regulated utilities) and customers of commu'—
nity choice aggregators (i.e., cities and counties who purchase
and sell electricity for their local residents and businesses), 1
rather than recovering stranded costs only from their bun- l
dled and departing customers,
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If a utility elects to use the net capacity cost allocation
method, the net capacity costs would be allocated for the
term of the contract or 10 years, whichever is less, starting -
on the date the new generation unit comes on line. Under
this allocation mechanism, the right to receive energy under
the contract is auctioned off to maximize the energy revenue
and minimize the net capacity costs that would be subject to
allocation. If no bids are aceepted for the energy rights, the
utility would retain the rights to the energy and would value
it at spot market prices for the purposes of determining the
net capacity costs to be allocated until the next periodic
auction. Specific implementation details for the energy rights
auction are also being addressed in the 2006 longterm. pro-
curement plan proceeding discussed below, and the CPUC
noted that the evolution of a new market-based system may
change the mechanics of this cost allocation method. .

2006 Long-Term Procurement Plan

In December 2006, the Utility submitted its 2006 long-
term procurement plan to the CPUC for approval of its
2007-2016 electric ehergy and electric fuel procurement
plans, A decision is expected by the end of 2007. The plan
forecasts demand for up to an additional 2, 300 MW of new
dispatchable and operationally flexible capacity starting 2011
The Unlity’s proposed long-term plan is designed to provide
reliable service, promote environmentally preferred resources
and manage customer costs, The Utility is proposing cost
recovery and reasonableness review protectlon and requests
approval for:

.
'short, medium and long-term procurement implementation
authority;

* a nuclear fuel supply plan; -
*a gas supply plan and asset plan; and

»an clectric and gas price risk hedging plan.

red il 0
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The Utility anticipates that after CPUC approval of its
procurement plan, the Unlity would be expected to complete
a competitive request for offer from prowders of all poten-
tial-sources of new generation {€.g., conventional or renew--
able resources to be.provided under t‘umkey developments
buyouts, or power purchase agreemenlts) to meet the Utility's
projected need for electricity resources. PG&E Corporation
and the Utility cannot predict whether the CPUC will
approve the Utility’s proposed plan or whether any of the

new generation resources commitments will be Utility-owned

generation projects. T

Resource Adequucy ' .
Ca]:forma investor-owned electric utllmes {and most other
entities that serve electricity customers under the ]urlsdlctlon
of the CPUC) are required to meet certam capacity planning
requ1rements and demonstrate they have met those targets
through annual and monthly compllance filings. There 1s a
general, or system, requirement to achieve an electnc:rylp!an-
ning reserve margin of 15% to 17% above forecasted peak °
electricity usage or “load.” Within’ that general reqmrement

a certain portion must be met withih predefined local areas
(i.e., areas on the system that are transmlssmn constrained).
In December 2006, the CPUC outlmed addltlonal 1ssues to -
be considered in future phases ‘'of the CPUC’s resource ade-
quacy proceeding which establishes planmng requ1rements
Issues in the next phase include the possibility of i mcreas:ng
the elecmcny planning reserve: margm requ1rement and

instituting longer-term requlrements# B !

If the CPUC determines that a L_m]:ty or other load
serving entity has not met its.requi:rement in a particular
year, the CPUC can impose penalti:es in an amount deter-
mined by the CPUC. The penalty for failure to procure
sufficient system resource adequacy:;capacity 15 equal to three
times the cost of securing new resources, which the CPUC
set at $120 per kilowatt-year, or kWyear The penalty for’
failure to meet local resource adequa;:y requirements is equal
to $40 per kW.year. In addition to ipenaltiek, entities that fail
to meet resource adequacy requ1ren’15nts may be assessed the
cost of backstop procurement by the CAISO to-fulfill their
resource adequacy rarget levels. The Utility's proposed 2007-
2016 long-term procurement plan forecasrs that the Utility
will be able to meet future resource ad‘equacy requirements.
Quullifying Fuciliry Power Purchase Agreemenfs'

The CPUC is,considering various pohcy and pricing issues
related to power purchased from Qfs in rulemaking proceed-
ings. During 2006, the Utility and the Independent Energy

|
Producers, or IEP, on behalf of certam QFs, entered into,

and the CPUC approved, a settlement agreement and a

QF contract amendment to resolve these issues for the set-
tling parties. As of December 31, 2006, the CPUC approved
amendments for 122 QFs projects which reduces the Utility’s
energy payments and establishes a new five-year fixed pric-
ing option for QFs_that do not use natural gas as their fuel

.source. ' The [EP settlement agreément also resolves certain

- energy crisis claims by the Utility against a subset of the

settling QFs that are pending in a different CPUC proceed-

* ing. Such claims remain unresolved for those QFs which did

not partrc:pate in the settlement.

+ As described in Note 17 in the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements, the obligations under some of the
amended QF contracts qualify for capital lease accounting.

Renewablie Energy Contracts

California law, as amended in September 2006, by the enact-
ment of Senate Bill 107, established the renewables portfolio
standard, or RPS program. The RPS program.requires each
California retail seller of electricity, except municipal utilities
{other than Community Choice Aggregators), to increase

its purchases of elig‘ible renewable energy (such as biomass,
smail hydro, wind, solar, and geothermal energy) by at least
1% of its retail sales per year so that the amlqtrnt of elec-
tricity purchased from eligible renewable resources equals at
least 20% of its total retail sales by the end of 2010, “Flexible
compliance” rules, under the!RPS program, allow a retail
seller to-satisfy and defer (for up to three yéars) its current

© year RPS requirements by signing contracts with renewable

energy suppliers for future deliveries of renewable power:
These rules also allow the CPUC to exc@se'n‘oncolmpliance
with the RPS targets if a retail seller is able to demonstrate
good cause. Senate Bill 107, which became effective January |,
2007, continues to bermif use of flexible compliance rules
and directs the CPUC to adopt flexible compliance rules -
that will apply to all years, including yeérs' before and after |
a retail seller meets the 20% RPS target. Senate Bill 107 also
excuses retail sellers from the 20% RPS requirement if there
is insufficient transmission capacity to deliver that power

to California end-users. ’

Il
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In October 2006, the CPUC adopted rules for’ repomng
and determining whether the RPS requirements have becn
met. The CPUC’s decision addresses existing flexible comph—
ance rules-applicable to procurement through 2009, allowing
an excused 2009 deficit to befulfilled by the end of 2012: w,
The CPUC also stated that a retail seller that has reachecl= Lt
the 20% RPS target in a given year, but that had not-yet! ¢

fulfilled deferred compliance from prior years, must con- it

tinue to increase its procurement in subsequent. years. untilts

the deferred compliance is satisfied or is otherwise excuseda o

by.the CPUC. The-October:2006 order, which was 1ssued\ :

prior to the effective date of Senate Bill 107, reiterated prlror
. CPUC decisions in stating that-the 20% RPS target must; -

be met with actual eligible energy deliveries in 2010, but
acknowledged that Senate Bill 107 changed flexible compll—
ance requirements and further stated that that the CPUC|
would address the application of flexible compliance rules
to 2010 and beyond in a future decision after the statute’s

effectlve date. : . ) ' .

|
Currently, power from eligible renewable energy resourlces
compnses approxrmately 12% of the Utlhty s retail sales. l
The. Utlltty expects to comply with its 2004, 2005, 2006 |
and 2007 annual RPS targets Although the Utility expects' ‘
it will achieve the 20% target using the flexible comphance

rules by 2010, actual deliveries of renewable power may

not comprise 20% of its bundled retail sales by 2010 due

1
|
}
- to such factors as the time required for the’ constructlon 1
* of néw generation facilities' and/or needed transmission . !

capacity. Failure to satisfy the RPS targets ‘may result in a ]
penalty of five cents per kilowatt hour with an annual pen-
alty capof $25 million. The exact amount of any penalty

. and ‘conditions under which it would be appl:ecl is subject;

to the CPUC’s review of. the circumstances for under—delwelry
With the flexible compliance rules that have been adopted ito
date by the CPUC, the Utility does not expect to incur pen-
alties in the forecast timeframe of 2007 to 2009. The Utility
anticipates, given the clear language of Senate Bill 107 requjr-
ing that flexible compliance rules “shall apply to all years, i

. ‘ [ [l '
¥ ! - . !
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including years before and after™ a retail seller reaches the
20% target, that the CPUC will extend existing flexible com-
pliance rules to 2010 and future years, and on that basis do. -
’no't expect to incur nenalties in 2010. However, an Assembly
Bill has been introduced in the: California Legislature for
consideration in 2007 to increase:the.RPS requirement to *
33% of total retail sales by the end of 2020. The. Utility is
‘unable to predict whether this bill will be passed or. whether
the higher RPS target could be met.’

The CPUC has adopted a procedure to enable the utilities
to recover the cost of electric transmission and distribution
facilities necessary to interconnect renewable energy resources
if those costs cannot be recovered in federaily approved rates.
In 2007, the Utility will continue to pian for and begin_
implementation of varioUs transmission projects to improve

"access to renewable energy resources, among other purposes.

¥

FERC Transmission Rate Case

The Utility's electric transmission revenues and wholesale
and retail transmission rates are subject to authorization by
the FERC. In August 2006, the- Utility filedan application
with the FERC requesting an annual transmission revenue
requirement of approxrmately $719 million, effecnve
October 1, 2006. The proposed rates represent an increase
of approximately $113 million over current authorized
revenue requirements. In September 2006, the FERC issued
an order accepting the Utility’s rate application, suspend- -
ing the requested rate changes for five months to become
effective March 1, 2007, subjett to refund. The FERC ;}lso
ordered the Uulity and-interveners in the case to‘enga:ge in
settlement dtscusstons to bé ‘supervised by‘a settlement ]udge

1

On February 15, 2007, the Utility submltted an offer
of setttement reached by the parties and requested that
the settlement juclge' recommend that the FERC approve
the settlement. The settlement proposes to set the Utility’s ~
transmission retall revenue requirements at $674 m1|l1on
an increase of approxtmately $68 million over current
authorized revenue requirements. If the_FER_C approves
the proposed settlement, the revenue requirement changes
will be deemed to have been' effective as of March 1, 2007,
‘The Unility would refund any over—collectecl amounts,

Wlth mterest tO customers.

PG&E Corporat1on and the Ut1l1ty are unable to predtct
what amount of revenue requrrements the FERC will autho—
rize, when a’final decision wil] be received from the FERC
or the impact that it wrll liavé 'on’their resitlts of operatlons




", rates as of January 1, 2008. ]

Natural Gas Transmission and Storuge Rate Case

The Utility's gas transmission and storage services, rates and
market structure are subject to a}lthorrzatlon by the CPUC.
In December 2004, the CPUC approved the Gas Accord 111,
which set rates, terms and éondition's through December 31,
2007, for transmission services, and through March 31, 2008

i

for storage services. - S
I

The Utility is obllgated o file a new rate case proposmg
" gas transmission and storage rates and terms and conditions
of service, for the period comrnencmg January 1, 2008,

The Utility currently is scheduled- ta submit that filing on
March 15, 2007. In the event. the CPUC daes not issue a’
final decision approving new rates effectwe January 1, 2008,
the Gas Accord Il provides that the rates and terms and
conditions of service in effect as of December 31, 2007, will

remain in effect, with’ an automatic [2% escalation in the

. 4
. y

Under the Gas Accord [11, the c05ts assocrated with the
Uulity’s local’ gas transportation and gas storage asséts that
are used for serv1ce to core customers are recovered through
‘balancing account mechanisms that] adjust for the differ- '
ence between actual usage and forecast usage. In addition,
approximately 65% of the costs associated with the Utility's.
backbone gas transmission systern that is used to serve core
customers are recovered through fixed charges. The remain-
ing 35% of these costs are recoverable through volumetrlc
. charges. Revenues from these charges vary dependmg on .
 the level of throughput volume. _Thle costs that are recover-

able through ‘balancing accounts or fixed reservation charges .

account for approximately.45% of the Utility’s total revenue
requirement for gas transmission and storage. The remain-,
der of the Utility’s gas transmission and storage costs are ’
recovered. from core customers rhrdugh volumetric charges
.and from non-core customers under firm or mterruptrble
transmission or storage contracts. Thc Utlity’s recovery of
this portion of its costs depends on the level of throughput
“volume, gas prices, and the extent to which non-core cus-

tomers contract for firm services. .

Spent Nuctear Fuel Storage Prl':ceedings

Under the Nuclear Waste. Policy, Act of 1982, ‘the Department
of Energy, or the DOE, is rcsponsrble for the transportation’
and permanent storage and disposal of spent nuclear fuel
and high-level radioactive waste. The Utility has contracted
with the DOE to prov1de for the’ drsposal of these materrals
.. from Drablo Canyon Under the contract, if the DOE

+

|
|

Canyon’s spent fuel would be accepted for storage or - -

" ate Diablo Canyon tintil approximately 2010 for Unit 1 and
2011 for Unit 2. After receiving a permit from the NRC in

completes a storage facility by 2010, the earliest that Diablo

disposal is thought to be 2018. Under current-operating
procedures, the Utility believes that the existing spent fuel .
pools (which include newly. constructed temporary storage
racks) have sufficient capacity to enablé the Utility to oper- -/

Mirch 2004, the Utility began building an on-site dry cask -
storage facility to store spent fuel through at least 2024.
The- Utility estimates it could:complete the dry cask storage
project in 2008. The NRC’s March 2004 decision, however, .
was appeal‘ed by various parties, and the U.S. Court of . ~
Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, or Ninth Circuit; issued

" a decision in 2006 that requires the NRC to consider the

environmental consequences of a potential terrorist attack
at Diablo Canyon as part of the’ NRC s supplemental
assessment of the dry cask storage permrt The Utility may
incur significant additional expenditures if the NRC decides
that the Utility must change the design and construction

+ of the dry cask storage facility. If the,Urility is unable to V

complete the dry cask storage facrllry, or if construction 15
delayed beyond 2010, and if the Utlhry 1s otherwise ‘unable

 to increase its on-site storage capacrty,!rt is possible that the .

operatien of Diablo Canyon may have to be curtailed or
halted as early as 2010 with respect to Umt 1, and 2011 with
respect to Unit 2, and until such trme as addrtlonal spent

fuel can be safely stored. .
[ P . ! o7

As a result of the DOE’s failure to develop a permanent
storage facility, the Utility has becn‘requiredlto incur sub-
stantial costs for planning and developing on-site storage -
options for spent nuclear fuel as described above,at Diablo -
Canyon as well as at the retired nuclear. facility at Humboldt

Bay, or Humboldt Bay Unit 3. The Utlity is seeking to. ...

recover these costs from the DOE on the basis that the. -
DOE has breached its.‘contractual. obligation to move used
nuclear fuel from Diablo Canyon and. Humboldt Bay
Unit 3 to a national repository beginning in 1998. Any’
amounts recovered from the DOE will be credited to cus-

* tomers. In October 2006, the U.S. Court of Federal Claims |

issued a decision awarding approximately $42.8 million
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| of the $92 million incurred by the Ul’lllry through 2004.
| The Utility will seck recovery of ‘costs-incurred after 2004 in
+ future lawsuits against the DOE. In January 2007, the Ut:hry
filed a notice of appeal of the U.S. Court of Federal Claiins.
decision in the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Federal Ciréuit
seeking to increase the amount of the award and challénéing
- the court’s finding the Utility would have had to incur |

- some of the costs for the on-site storage facilities even if t|he"

DOE had complied with the contract. If the court’s decision
is not overturned or modified on appeal, it is likely that |
the Utility will be unable to recover all of its future costs {for
on-site storage facilities from the DOE. However, reasonably
incurred costs related to the on-site storage facilities are, in
the case of Diablo Canyon, recoverable through rates and;
in the case of Humboldt Bay Unit 3, recoverable through1
its decommissioning trust fund. ‘|

PG&E Corporatlon and-the Utility are unable to predx!:t
the outcome of this appeal or the amount of any add1t10nal

awards the Utility may receive. ' ~ l
' I

Defined Benefit Pension Plan.Contribution 1
In June 2006 the CPUC approved the Utiliry’s rccovery of

to fund the Utility’s pension plan from 2006 to 2009. t
On a projected basis, these contributions are expected to !,
bring the pension plan trust to fully funded status as of :
January 1, 2010. I

|
In July 2006, the Utility made the 2006 authorized
net pension contribution of $250 million funded by the E
authorized $155 million revenue requirement attributable |
to the Utility’s distribution and generation operations, or !
GRC lines of business. Approximately $20 million of the
$250 million contribution relates to revenue requirements
for gas transmission and storage, electric transmission,
and nuclear decommissioning, which have been or will
be addressed in other CPUC or FERC procéedings. The {
remaining 2006 contribution amount will be capitalized: |
and recovered in future periods. Additional pension contri-
butions of $40 million associated with the 1994 voluntary
retirement incentive, $3 million-for PG&E ‘Corporation
+ participants, and $1 million for interest on the net pen-
sion contributions were also made during the year ended

+
i
|
!
|
|
December 31, 2006. |
|
!
i
|
1
|
!
|
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For 2007, 2008 and 2009, the annual pension-related
revenue requirement attributable to the GRC lines of
business will decrease to approximqtely $98 million. If the
proposed settlement agreement in the Utility’s 2007 GRC k
1s approved, the Utility' would be authorized to fund a -
net pension contribution of $153 million in 2010, with
an associated revenue requirement attributable to the GRC
lines of business of approximately $98 million.

Delayed Billing Investigation

In February 2005, the CPUC issued a rul{ng opening an
investigation into the Utility’s billing and collection prac-
tices_ and credit policies. The investigation was initiated

at the request of The Ut;hty Reform Network, or TURN,
after the CPUC's January 2005 decision that characterized
the definition -of “billing error” in a revised Utility tariff =
to include delayed bills and Unlity-caused estimated bi'11§

as being consistent with “existing CPUC policy, tariffs and -
requirements.” The Utility contended that prior to the
CPUC’s January 2005 decision, “billing error” under the
Utility's former tariffs did not encompass delayed.bills or
Utility<caused estimated bills. The Utility petitioned the
California Court of Appeals to review the CPUC’s decision
denying rehearing of its January 2005 decision. In December
2006, the Court of Appeals summarily rejected the Utiliry’é
petition; the Utility did not appeal that re]ectlon to the

California Supreme Court. . Cor

The CPUC's Consumer Protection and Safety Dmsnon
or CPSD, and TURN have submitted their reports to the -
CPUC concluding that the Utility violated applicable tariffs
related to delayed and estimated bills and recommended
refunds in the current amounts of approximately $54 mil-
tion and $36 million, respectively, plus interest at the three- .
month commercial pape} interest rate. The two refunds are -
not additive. The CPSD also recommended that the Utility -
pay fines of $6.75 million, while TURN recommends fines - ~
in the form of a $1 million contribution to REACH (Relief
for Energy Assistance through Community Help). Both the
CPSD and TURN recommend that refunds and fines be
funded by shareholders.

The Utility responded that its tariff interpretation was
in-good faith, and was repeatedly supported by Commission
staff. It argued that the CPUC should exercise its discretion
not to order refunds, and that any ordered refunds should .
be treated in accordance with adopted ratemaking, under

~which the significant majority of the costs of any refurids

would be reflected in future rates borne by the Utility's
general body of customers. It argued that its behavior does




|
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not warrant fines or penalties. On February 15, 2007, the '
‘CPUC extended the date by which it|must issue a final
decision inthis investigative matter to August 26, 2007.

On February 20 2007, the Al]J premdmg over the proceed :

ing 1ssued a presrdmg officer” decision. Although the dect-
sion found that penalties were not warranted the decision

orders the Utility to refund, at shareholder expense, approxi-

mately $23 million to customers for[ “illegal backbill charges”
relating to estimated and delayed bills that were charged to
customers in excess of the nme limits in the Utility’s’ tanff
. The decrs1on also orders the Utllrty 0 refund reconnection
fees and “pay credits to certain customers whose service ‘was

shutoff for nonpayment of 1llegal backbills”

Under CPUC rules, parties in anl adjudicatory proceeding
may appeal the preésiding officer’s décision within 30 days.
" In addition, any Commissioner ma)lr request review of the
presiding officer’s decision within‘3b days of the date of
issuance. If no appeal or request for' feview is filed within
30 days, the presiding officer’s decision will become the final
CPUC decision. The Utility intends to appeal the pre51d1ng

R 5
officer’s decision. ety

o e . .
PG&E Corporation and the Utility do not expect that the
outcome of this matter will have a matenal adverse effect on

their financial condition or results ‘of operations.

Energy Efficiency Rulemaking l -
In April 2006, the CPUC began a proceedmg to consrder
establishing new energy efficiency pol_1(:|es,and programs,-
including mechanisms that would provide incentives or
impose penalties.on the invest::)r-ov:vned utilities depending ..
on the extent to which the utilities‘I successfully implement
their 2006-2008 energy efficiency 'drograms and meet the
CPUC’s targets for reéducing custorners’ demand for electric-
ity- and' natural gas. Under the Utility’s current proposed.
incentive mechanism, if the Utility achieved 80% to 100%
_ of-the CPUC’s demand reduction Ita.rgets, 80% of the net
present value of enérgy efficiency programs (i.e., the nét ben-
efits) would accrue to customers and 20%.of the net benefits
would accrue to shareholders. If the Utility exceeds 100% of
the CPUC’s, targets, the Utility’s shareholders would receive
30% of the additional net beneﬁts attributable to the por-’
tion of demand reducnon that exceeds 100% of the CPUC’
targets and the Ut1hry 5 customers would receive the remain-

ing 70%. Other part1es have prophsed that the Ut111ry begm

earning incéntives only when the Utlhty reached 85% of

the CPUC’s targets and obtain earnings ranging from only

1
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results of operations.

1% to 3% of the net benefits. All parties have proposed pen-
alties for poor performance in achieving.the CPUC’s targets.
The Utility has proposed. that if it achieves less than 40% of
the CPUCs targets, the Utility would provide customers any .
shortfall between the;re\;'enue‘s received.in rates for energy

‘efficiency and benefits obtained. through the energy efficiency

programs. Other parties have proposed that penalties be

" imposed if the Utility achicves less than 50% to 85% of the

CPUC’s ‘targets.

It is anticioated that the CPUC will issue a final decision
on the adoption of a shareholdet ircentive and penalty '
mechanlsm in the first half of 2007, Dependmg upon the

ratemakmg method adopted by the CPUC, actual share-
holder incentives or penalties may not be realized for several

. -years. In addition to proposed mechanisms for shiareholder )

incentives.or penalties, other issues to'be considered include’
evaluation, measurement and verification of the Utility’s
energy efficiency implementation results, examining energy :
savings arising from water efficiency (through reduced water
pumping or treatment} and planning for energy efficiency
programs to be'implemented in 2009—2011

PG&E Corporatron and the Unllry are unable to predict
what rules and policies the CPUC may ultlmately adopt and
what impact the adopted shareholder incentive and penalty
mechanism may have on their’ ﬁnancnal condition and

Tr

Catastrophic Event Memorandum.Account Applicution
From late December 2005 to early January 2006, winter.:
storms disrupted service to approximately. 1.5 million electric
customers and damaged the Utility’s electric distribution
facilities and generation facilities. In addition, from mid-

to late July 2006, all.parts of the Utility’s service territory -
experienced unusually high. temperatures, contributing -

to a “heat storm” that disrupted service to approximately

1.2 million electric customers and damaged the Utility’s
electric distribution facilities. Total costs to-restore service
and repair. facilities from these events, including work com-
pleted in 2006 ‘and work that is scheduled to be completed
in 2007, are expected to amount to.a total of $62 million.

e
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The CPUC allows utilities to recover t};e reasonable costs’
of responding to catastrophlc events through a catastrophlc
event memorandum account, or CEMA. The CEMA tar:ff
authorizes recovery of costs when a catastrophlc event has
been declared a disaster or state of emergency by compe- |
tent state or federal authorities. The California Governor
proclairied 2 state of emergency to exist due to the damage
caused by the winter'storms, The United States Departmeit *
of Agriculture and several county governments declared 1
a disaster designation ar local emergency for several of -
California’s counties, as a result of the July “heat storm.” |
Among other issues to be dec1ded in a CEMA proceedmg,
the CPUC conducts a review to determine whether the cojts
were prudcnt[y mncurred and incremental to revenue requite-
ments previously authorized by the CPUC. . l

ln Novemnber 2006 the’ Unhty filed its 2006 CEMA
appllcatlon for the winter storms and the July 2006 |
“heat storm” requestmg rate recovery of approximately
$45 million-in 2008 rates for recovery of the CEMA costsi
In December 2006, DRA and TURN filed protests to the | ;
Utility’s 2006 application-indicating their intention to review
] ﬁnal recorded 2006 'data’ and lnvestlgate whether the costs |
included in the Utllll‘yS request are incremental to costs ;
already included in rates. In addition, the a551gned ALj has
raised doubts about thc sufﬁc1cncy of the July heat storm '
disaster deciaratlons to trlgger eligibility for CEMA relief. t
In ]anuary 2007, the Utlllty filed its brief on this issue,

" pGaE Corporauon zmd the Unhty are ufable to predsct
whether the CPUC will approve the CEMA application or[
the amount of any potentlal recovery. 1

-RISK MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

The Utility and PGXE Corporation, mainly through its
ownership of the Utility, are exposed to market risk, which !
is the risk that changes in market conditions will adversely
affect net income,or cash flows. PG&E Corporation and’ |
the Uﬁl_ity face market risk associated with their operations,

|
i
i
i

financing arrangements, the marketplace for electricity, natu |
ral gas, electricity transmission, natural gas transportation \
and storage, other goods and services and other aspects of 1
their business. PG&E Corporation and the Utility categorlze
market risks as price risk and interest rate risk.

|
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As long as the Utility can conclude thar it is probable its-
reasonably incurred wholesale electricity procuremerit costs
are recoverable through the regulatory mechanisms described
above under “‘Regulatory Matters — Electnaty Generation
Resources,” ﬂuctuat:ons in electricity prices will not affect -
earnings but may 1mpact cash flows. The Utility’s natural
gas procurement COsts for its core customers are recoverable '
through the CPIM and other ratemaking mechanisms, as -
described below. The Utility’s natural gas transportation and
storage Costs for core customers are alsa fully recaverable
through a ratemaking mechanism, However, the Utility’s
natural gas transportation and storage costs for ﬁon:core
customers may not be fully recoverable. The Utility is subject
to price and volumetric risk for the portion of intrastate
natural gas transportation and storage capacity that has
not been sold under long-term contracts providing for the
recovery of all fixed costs through the collection of fixed
reservation charges. The Utility sells most of 1ts capacity
based on the volume ‘of gas that the Utility’s customers
actually ship, which exposes the Utility to volumetric risk.
Movement in interest rates can also cause earnings and cash
flow to fuctuate. ‘ ‘

' The Utility-actively manages market risks through
risk management programs designed. to support business
objectives, discourage unauthorized risk-taking, reduce com-
modity cost volatility and manage cash flows. The Utility
uses derivative mstruments only for nion-trading purposes
(i.e, risk mmgatlon) and not for speculatlve purposes. The
Utility’s risk’ management activities include the use of energy

.and financial instruments, such-as forward contracts, futures,

swaps, options, and other instruments and agreements, most
of which are accounted for as derivative instruments. Some
contracts are accounted for as leases.

The Utility estimates fair value of derivative instriments
using the midpoint of quoted bid and asked forward prices,
including quotes from brokers, and electronic exchanges,
supplemented by online price information from news
services. When market data is not available, the Utility
uses models to é§timate fair va!ue. :




PRICE RISK :

Electricity Procurement .

The Utility relies on electricity from'a diverse mix of
resources, including third-party contracts, amounts allocated
under DWR contracts and its own electr1c1ty generation
facilities. When customer demand exceeds the amount of
electricity that can be economically produced from the
Utility’s own generation facilities plus net energy purchase
contracts (including DWR contracts allocated to the Utility’s
customers), the Utility will be in a “short™ position. In order
to satisfy the short position, the Unhry purchases electricity
in the hour- and day-ahead markets or in the forward
markets (the majority of which occurs through contracts
with delivery times ranging up to five or six years forward).
The FERC has adopted a “soft” cap on energy pricés of
$400 per megawatt hour, or MWh, that applies to the spot
market (i.e., real-time, hour-ahead a{ld day-ahead markets).
throughout the Western Electricity Coordinating Council
area. This “soft” cap also applies to; prices for.ancillary
services within the markets administered by the CAISO.

(A “soft” cap allows market participants to submit bids

that exceed the bid cap if adequately justified, but does not
allow such bids to set the market clearing price. A “hard”
cap prohibits bids that exceed the cap, regardless of the
seller s costs.) "

When the Utility’s supply of elecmmty from its own
generation resources plus net energy purchase contracts
exceeds customer demand, the Util‘ity is_in a “long” position.
When the Utility is in a long position, the Utility sells the

excess supply in the hour- and day-ahead markets or in the

forward markets. Price risk is assoctated with the uncertainty

of prices when buying or selling to reduce open positions
(short or long positions). '

The amount of electrlcnty the Unllty needs to meet the

demands of customers that is not satisfied from the Utility’s”

own generation facilities, existing purchase contracts or
DWR contracts allocated to the Utility’s customers, is subject
to change for a number of reasons, including:

« periodic expirations of existing electricity purchase '
contracts, or entering into new purchase contracts;

+ fluctuation in the output of hydroelectric and other
renewable power facilities owned or under contract;

+ changes in the Utility’s customers’ electricity demands

. due to customer and economic growth, weather, imple-
. mentation of new energy efficiency. and demand response
programs, direct access, and community choice aggregation;

« the acquisitiqn, retirement or closure of generation
facilities; and o

» changes in market prices that make it more economical to
purchase power in the market rather than use the Utility's

existing resources.

In addition, a failure to perform by“any of the counter-
parties to electricity purchase contracts or the DWR allocated
contracts would reduce the size of the Utility’s electricity .
supply portfolio. To the extent such a failure resulted in
the Utility being in a short position the Utility. may find
it necessary to procure electricity at then-current market
prices, which may be higher than those prices contained in
the contract. In particular, Calpine Corporation and certain .
of its subsidiaries that have filed Chapter 11 petitions, ‘or .
Calpine, sought to reject certain power purchasc contracts
under which they provide electricity needed by the Utxllty s
customers. A federal district court ruled that it lacks jurisdic-
tion to authorize Calpine to reject the contracts, finding that
the FERC has exclusive jurisdiction. Calpine has appealed
that decision. In the interim, the Utility and Calpine reached
a settlement that replaces the contracts entered into between
Calpine and'the Utility, but a DWR’ allocatéd- contraét that
supplies approximately 11% of the electricity needed by the
Utlity’s customers still remains at issue in Calpine’s appeal.
The Utility has contingency blans to ensure that it has
adequate resources under contraét of available if Calpine
succeeds in terminating the DWR allocated contract.’
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Lengthy, unexpected ‘outages of the Utlhty s generation
facilities or other facilities from which it purchases electr1c1ry
also could ‘cause the Utility to be in a short position. It is-
possible that the operation of Diablo Canyon may have to
be curtailed or halted as earIy as 2010, if suitable storage
Facrlmes are not ava1lable for spent nuclear fuel, which
would cause a srgmﬁcant increase in the Utility’s short pos:—
tion (see Spent Nuclear Fuel Storage Proceedings” above) "
If any of these events were to oceur, the Unhty may fmdht
necessary to procure elecmcnty from thlrd partles at then- .

current market prices. : !

The Urtility. expects to satisfy at ‘Ieast some of the fore-l
casted short position through the CPUC-approved contraéts
it has entered mto in accordance with its CPUC—approved
long-term procurement plan covering 2005 through 2014. l
-As discussed above under “Regulatory Matters — Electricity
Generation Resources,” there are regulatory mechanisms
in ‘place to permit the Utility to recaver costs'incurred |
under these contracts from customers. As long as these cost
recovery mechanisms remain in place, adverse market pnc|e
changes are not expected to 1mpact the Utility’s net income.
The Utility is at risk to ‘the extent that the’ CPUC may in’
the future disallow poftions or the full cosltls of procure- ‘
ment tfansactions. Addmonal]y, market price changes could
1mpact the tlmlng of the Ut:htys cash flows. .

I "o

Nulural Gas Procurement (Electric I’orlfolio)
A portion of the Utlity’s electric portfolio ts exposed to
natural gas price risk. The Utility manages this risk in

|
{
!
|
}

accordance with' its risk management strategies included in

electricity procurement plans approved by the CPUC. The

CPUC has approved the Utility’s eléctric portfolio gas hedg-
ing plan. The expenses assoctated with the hedging plan are
expected to be recovered in-the ERRA. (See the “Electricity,

Generation Resources” section' of this MD&A.) | -
Natural Gas Procurement (Core Customers) |

The Utility generally enters into physical and financial |

natural gas commodity contracts from one to twelve months
in length to fulfill the needs of its retail core customers, |
Changes in temperature cause natural gas demand to vary i
daily, monthly and seasonally. Consequently, srgmﬁcant [
volumes of gas may be purchased in the monthly and, i
to a lesser extent, daily spot market to meet such varying
demand. The Utility’s cost of natural gas purchased for :
its core customers includes the commodity cost, the cost 1
of Canadian and interstate transportation, intrastate gas |
transmission and storage costs. - . l

R -
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* Under the CPIM, the Utility’s purchase costs for a fixed
twelve-month period are compared to an aggregate: market-
based benchmark based on a weighted average of published
monthly and daily‘ natural gas price indices at the points
where the Utility typically purchases natural gas. Costs that
fall within a tolerance band, which is 99% to 102% of the -
benchmark, are considered reasonable and are fully recovered
in customers’ rates, Onehalf of the costs above 1020 of '
the benchmark are recoverable in customers’ rates, and the
Utility’s customers receive, in their rates, three-quarters of
any savings resulting from the Utility’s cost of natural gas -
that is less, than 99% of the benchmark. The shareholder’
award is capped ::rt the lower of 1:5% of total natural gas
commodity costs or 525 million. While this cost recovery

mechanism rematns in place, changes ini the price of natural’

gas are not expected o materially impact net income.

Under the Unlity’s hedging plan for the winters of
20052008, core customers paid the cost of and received any
payouts from these hedges as these transactions are handled
outside of the CPIM. The Utility is at risk to the extent that
the CPUC may disallow portions of the hedging cost based
on its subsequent review of the Utility’s compliance with the
plan filed with the CPUC. o

_ In December 2006, the Utility entered into a settlement
agreement with three maior‘con.sume_r advocate groups
that represent the interest of core chstomers, including ’
the CPUC’s DRA, Aglet Consumer\Alliancee_and TURN.
The settlement is subject to CPUC approval. A decision

by the CPUC is expected in the second quarter of 2007. If -

.approved, the proposed settlement would establish a fong-

term hedge program outside of the CPIM for up to a three-
year rolling horizon, The settlement agreement also provides

~ that the Utility would consult with an advisory group,

consisting of members of the consumer advocate groups,
and would submit its anralial hedging plan to the CPUC
for approval. CPUC pre-approval of the annual implementa-
tion plans 15 intended to assure that the Unlity’s hedging
costs will be recovered from its core pro_curenient customers
as long as the CPUC finds that the Utility implemented its
hedges in accordance with the pre-approved plan. Since the -




settlement agreement proposes that the Utility’s portfolio”
hédging_hctiviiies would be conduct;ed'entirely outside of the
CPIM, the CPIM would be modified so that 80%, instead”
of 75%, of any cost savings below the tolerance band would
~ be'shared with customers and the Utility would retain 20%,
instead of 25%, of any cost savmgsl
. !

Nuclear Fuel | :
The Utility purchases nuclear fuel for Diablo Canyon
through contracts with terms rangmg from two to five
years. These long- term nuclear fuel agrecments are with large,
* well-established international producers in order to diversify
its commitments and provide security of supply. Nuclear
fuel costs are recovered from customers through the ERRA
balancmg account (see © Regulatory Matters — Electricity
Generation Resources” above) and therefore changes in
nuclear fuel prices are not expectecl to materially impact

net income. ‘ ‘
Natural Gas Transportation and Storage
The Utility faces price and volum«itric risk for the portion
of intrastate natural gas transportation and storage capac1ty
that is used to serve non-core customers This risk is miti-
gatéd ta the extent these non-corelcustomers contract for
. transportation and storage scrvicesl; under firm service
agreements that provide for recovéry of fixed costs through'
the collection of fixed reservationicharges. The reservation
charges under such contracts typiéally cover approximately
65% of the Utility’s fixed costs. Price risk and volumetric
risk result from variability in the lprice of and demand for
- natural gas transportation and storagc services, respectively.
Transportatlon and storage servrces are sold at both tariffed

rates and competitive market-baséd rates within a cost-of-

service tariff framework. |

- + ' N "
The Utility uses value-at-risk to measure the shareholder’s
exposute to price and volumetric risks that could impact .

.. N
] I
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of the exposure to extreme price movements and the use of
historical data or market proxies may not adequately capture
portfolio risk.

The ‘Utiliry’s value-at-risk calculated under the method-
ology described above was approximately $26 millien and
$31 million at December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005,
respectively. The Utility’s high, low and average value-at-risk;
during the year ended December 31, 2006 and December 31,
2005 were approxrmately $41 million, $22 million and
$33 million, and $43 million, $31 miilion and $36 mil-

lion, respectively.

Converhble Subordmoted Nates

At December 31, 2006, PG&E Corporation had outstandmg
$280 million of Convertible Subordinated Notes that marture
on June 30, 2010. These Convertible Subordlnated Notes
may be converted (at the option of the holder) at any'time ~
prior to maturity into 18 558,655 shares of common stock of
PG&E Corporation, at a conversron ‘price of approx1matcly

"$15.09 per share. The conversion price is subject to adjust-

ment should a significant change occur in the number of
PG&E Corporation’s outstanding common shares. In addl—
tion, holders of the Convertible Subordmated Notes are
entitled to receive “pass-through diyiden.‘ds” determined by

" multiplying the cash dividend pard by PG&E Corporation

per share of common stock by a number equal to the princi-
pal amount of the Convertible Subordinated Notes divided
by the conversion price. In connection with common stock
dividends paid-to holders of PG&E Corporation common
stock, PG&E Corporation.paid approximately $24 million
of "pass-ilirough dividends” to the holders of Convertible
Subordinated Notes in 2006. The holders have a one-time
right to require PG&E Corporation to repurchase the

" Convertible Subordinated Notes on June 30, 2007, at a

purchase price equal to the principal.amount. plus accrued
and unpaid interest (including liquidated damages and

revenues due to changes in market ‘prices, customer demand | unpaid “pass-through dividends?*if-any). - = -

_ and weather. Value-at-risk measures this exposure over a roll-
ing 1Z-month forward period and assumes that the contract

. positions are held through explration This calculation is
based on'a:99% confidence level' which means that there is
a 1% probability that the impact to revenues on a pre-tax
basis, over the rolling 12-month forward period, will be at
least as large as the reported value—at-nsk Value-at-risk uses
markct data to quantify the Utillty s price exposure. When
market data is not-available, the Utility uses historical data
or market proxies to extrapolatel the required market data..
Value—at-rlsk is a measure of portfolio risk has several limita-.
tions, mcludmg, but not llmltCCl to, inadequate indication

!

i
!
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~ In accordance with- SFAS No: 133, the dividend part:c1—
pation rights component of the Convertible Subordmated

Notes is: considered to be an embedded derivative I mstrument

‘ and, therefore, must be bifurcated from the Convertible |

Subordinated Notes and recorded at fair value in PG&E : w3
Corporation’s Consolidated Financial Statements. Changes 1o
in the fair value are recognized in PG&E Corporation’s .5

Consolidated Statements of]ncome as a non-operatmg t
o

expense or 1nc0me (mcluded in Other income (expense) ]

net) ‘At Decémber 31 2006 and Decembcr 31, 2005, the ‘

total esnmated fair value of the dividend pamctpanon [
i

NPT FRTa

rights component, on a pre-tax basis, was approximately

J—

$79 million and $92 million xrespectwely, of which $23 mll- .

lion and $22 rmlllon respectlvely, was clasmﬁed as a current
" liability (in Current Liabilities — Other) and 356 million ;

and $70 million, respectively, was classified as a noncurrent

liability (iq Noncurrent Ljabilities — Other).

INTEREST RATE RISK
Interest rate risk is the rlsk that changes in interest rates

~ could adversely affect earmngs or cash flows. Specific interest '

rate risks for PG&KE Corporatlon and the Utlllty include the

risk of increasing interest rates on variable rate obligations.}
il . I
Intérest rate risk sensitivity analysis is used to measure |

interest rate risk by computing'estimated changes in cash !
flows as a result of assumed changes in market interest rates.
At December 31, 2006, if interest rates changed by 1% for all
curfent variable rate debt-issued by PG&E Corporation and}
the Utility, the change would affect.net income by less than
$6 million, based on nct variable rate debt and other mterest
rate-sensitive mstruments outstanding,
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CRITICAL
" ACCOUNTING POLICIES ' '

The preparation of Consolidated Finantial Statements in
'accordancé with the accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America involves the use of estimates
and assumptions that affect the recorded amounts of assets
and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses-during the ’

- reporting period. The accounting policies described below

are considered to be critical accounting policies, due, in part,
to their complexity and because their :lapplication is relevant
and material to the financial position and results of opera-
tions of PG&E Corporation and the Utility, and because
these policies require the use of matertal judgments and ,
estimates. Actual results may differ substantially from. these
estimates. These policie§ and their key characteristics are
outlined below.

REGULATORY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

PG&E Corporation and the Utility account for the financial
effects of regulation in accordance with SFAS No..71. SFAS
No. 7llapplie_s to regulated entities whose rates are designed
to recaver the cost of providing service. SFAS No. 71 applies
to all of the Uulity’s operations. . . ‘

v

Under SFAS No. 71, incurred costs that would otherwise’
be charged to expense may be capitalized and recorded as
regulatory assets if it is probable that the incurred costs will
be recovered in future rates. The regulatory assets are amor-
tized over future periods consistent with the inclusion of .
costs in authorized customer rates. If costs that a regulated

_enterprise expects to incur in the future are being recovered
through current 'rates, SFAS No. 71- requires that. the regu- -
lated enterprise record those expected future costs as fegula-
tory liabilities. Regulatory asséts and liabilities-are recorded
when it 15 prﬁ;bable, as defined in SFAS No, 3, “Accounting
for Contingencies,” or SFAS No. 5, that these items will be
recovered or reflected in future rates. Determining probabjl-
ity requires significant judgment on the part of management -
and includes, but is not limited to, consideration of'_'testi-
mony presented in regulatory hearings, CPUC and FERC -

. -ALJ proposed decisions, final regulatory orders and the

strength or status of applications for regulatory re.hearings .

or state court appeals. The Utility also maintains regulatory
balancing accounts, which are comprised of sales and cost -
balancing accounts. These balancing accounts are used to
record the differences between revenues and costs that can - °

" be recovered through rates.




If the Utility determined that it c:ould not apply SFAS .
No. 71 to its operations or, lf under SFAS No. 71, it could

not conclude that it is probable that|revenues or costs wou]d

be recovered or reflected in Riture rates, the revenues or costs_

would be charged t to income in the perlod in which they
were incurred. If it is determined that a regulatory asset 1s
no longer probable of recovery'in rates then SFAS Neo. 71
requires-that it be written off at that time. At December 31,
2006, PG&E Corporatlon and thé Utllll‘y reportcd regulatory

assets (including currenit régulatory, balancing accounts receiv-

able) of appioximately $5.5 billion and regulatory liabilities *
(including current balaficing ‘accounts payable) of approx1—
mately $4.4 bll]lon Lo T '

| o
UNBILLED REVENUES. .| -
The Utility records revenue as electrlmty and natural gas are
delivered. Amounts deliveréd to customers are determined
through the systematic readings of customer meters per-
formed on a monthly basis.-At the cnd of each month,
the electnc and gas usage from the last meter readmg is
estlmated and corresponding unbilled revenueis recorded.
The estimate of unbilled 'réverite’ 1s|determmed by factormg
an estimate of the électricity ‘and natural gas load delivered
with recent historical usage and rate plz{ttcrﬁs. '

. s

. P
In the following month, the esn}mate for unbiiled
revénue is reversed and’ actual revenue is recorded based

. on meter readings: The accuracy of the unbllled revenue

estimate is affected by factors that mclude fluctuations in
energy demands weather and changes in the composition
of customer classcs At Decémber 31, 2006, accrued unbilled
revenues totaled $729 million.” | '

4

1

'ENVIRON|MENTAL REMEDIATION LIABILITIES

Given the complexities of the legal and regulatory environ<
ment regarding environméntal'laws the process of estimat- -,

ing environmental remediation lrabllltlcs is a subjective one .

The Utility records a liability associated with environmental
remediation activities when it is determined that remediation
1 probable as defined in SFAS No. 5, and.the cost can be
estimated in a_reasonable manner- +The liability can be based
on many- factors, mciudmg site mvestlgatlons remediation,
operations, maintenance, momtormg and closure. This lia- !

bility is recorded at the lower range of estimated costs, uniless

e . i,
a more objective estimate can be-achieved. The recorded

liability is re-examined every. quarter. . :

|
!
§.
|
|
|
i

At December 31, 2006, the Utility’s.accrual for-undis-
counted environmental liabilities was approximately
$511- million. The Utility's undiscountéd future costs could
increase to as much as $782 mllhon if other potentraily
responsible pqrtres.are not able to-contribute to the settle-
ment of these costs or the extent of contamination or
necessary remediation is greater than anticipated.

The accrual for undlscounted env1ronmental liabilities -
18 representatwe of future events that are lnkely to occur. In
determining maximum undiscounted future costs, events that
are possible but not likely are mcluqled in the csumgnon.y ,’

ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS . .

" The Utility accounts for its long-lived assets under SFAS'

e

No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations,”
or SFAS No. 143, and Financial Accounting Standards .
Board, or FASB, Interpretation Number 47, “Accounting’
for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations — An
Interpretation of SFAS No. 143, or FIN 47, SFAS No. 143
and FIN 47 require that an asset retlrement ‘obligation be
recorded at fair value in the pEI‘lDd in whlch it is incurred

" if a reasonable estimate of fair value can be made In the

same period, the associated asset fetirement costs are capltal
ized as part of the carrying amount of the related long-lived
asset. Rate-régu]atcd entities may recognize regulatory assets
or liabilities as a result of timing differences between the
recognition of costs as recorded in-accordance \«'ifh SFAS

_No. 143 and FIN 47 and tosts recovered - through the

ratemakmg process. oL
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. . . L |
The fair value of asset retirement obligations are depeln~
dent upon the following components: !

. o
+ Decommissioning costs — The estimated costs for labor,

equipment, material and other disposal costs;’

i
i
_ g |
* Inflation adjustment — The estimated cash flows are |
adjusted for inflation estimates; ll
4 ! . . . . 1 A
» Discount rate — The fair value of the obligation is baseld
ona credlt-adlusted risk free rate that reflects the risk |
- associated Wlth the obllganon and :
i
« Third-party markup adjustiments — Intemal labor costs,
included in the cash flow calculation were adjusted for“.‘ '
costs that a third-party would incur in performing the |

|
tasks necessary to'retire the asset in accordance with |
' ]

SFAS 143.

'C}ﬁnges in these factors could materially affect the . i
obligation recorded to reflect the ultimate cost associated |
with retiring the assets under SFAS No. 143 and FIN 47. ‘
For example, if the inflation adjustment increased 25 basis
points, this would increase the balance for asset retirement
obligations by approximately 9%. Similarly, an increase in|
the discount rate by 25 basis points would decrease asset |
retirement obligations by 3%. At December 31, 2006, the |
Utility’s estimated cost of retiring these assets 1s approxi- |
mately $1.5 billion. '

P ' ) i
ACCOUNTING FOR INCOME TAXES b
PG&E Corporation and the Utility account for income ta:%es
in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for ]ncome
Taxes,” which requires Judgment régarding the potential ta)i
" effects of various transactions and ongoing operations to |
determine obligations owed to tax authorities. Amounts of|
deferred income- tax assets and liabilities, as well as current,
and noncurrent accruals,-involve estimates of the timing |
and probability of recognition of income and deductions. li
Actual income taxes could vary from estimated amounts |
due to the future impacts ofvanous items including changes
in tax laws, PG&E Corporanon s financial condition i i’
future periods, and the final review of filed tax returns by
taxing authorities.
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PENSION AND OTHER

POSTRETIREMENT PLANS '

Certain employees and retirees of PG&E Corporation and.
its subsidiaries participate in qualified and non-qualified
non-ontributory defined benefit pension plans. Certain
retired employees and- their eligible dependents of PG&E
Corporation and its subsidiaries also participate in contribu-
tory.medical plans, and certain retired employees participé_te
in life insurance plans {referred to collectively as “other post-
retirement benefits”). Amounts that PG&E Corporation and
the Utility recognize as costs and obligations to provide pen-
sion benefits under SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting
for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans.”
or SFAS No. 158, SFAS No. 87, “Employers’ Accounting for
. or SFAS No. 87, and other benefits under SFAS - -
No. 106, “Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits
other than Pensions,” or SFAS No. 106, are based on a vari-
ety of factors. These factors include the provisions of the

Pensions

plans, employee demographics and various actuarial calcula-
-tions, assumptions and accounting mechanisms. Because of
the complexity of these calculations, the long-term nature
of these obligations and’ the ‘.ihlpdi'tance of thé assumptions
utilized, PG&E Corporation’s and the Utility’s estimate of
these costs and obligations is a critical accounting estimaté.

Actuarial assumptions used in determining pension
obligations include the discount rate, the average rate of
future compensation increases and the expected return on
plan assets. Actuarial assumptions used in determining other
postretirement benefit obligations include the discount rate,
the expected return on plan assets and the assumed health
care cost trend rate. PG&E Corporation and the Utility
review these assumptions on an annual basis and adjust
them as necessary. While PG&E Corporation and the Utility
believe the assumptions used are appropriate, 51gn1ﬁcant
differences in actual experience, plan changes or significant
changes in assumptions may iaterially affect the recorded
pen_sipn and other postretirement benefit obligations and
future plan e)épenses

In dccordance wnh accounting rules, changes in benefit
oblngatlons associated with these assumptions may not be
recognized as costs on the income statement. Differences
between actuarial assumptions and actual plan results are
deferred in accumulated other comprehensive income and
are amortized into cost only when the accumulated dif-
ferences exceed 10% of the greater of the projected benefit

" obligation or the market-value of the related plan assets. If

necessary, the excess 1s amortized over the average remaining

‘




service period of active employees. A’s such, significant -
port1ons of benefit costs recorded in:any penod may not
reflect the actual level of cash beneﬁ}s provrded to plan”
participants. PG&E Corporation’s and the Utility’s recorded
pension expense totaled $185 millior:l in 2006, $176 million
in 2005 and $182 million .in"2004 iljl accordance withthe
provisions of SFAS No. 87: PG&E Corporation’s and the
Utility’s recorded expense for other postretirement benefits
totaled $49 million in 2006, $55 million in 2005 and

$78 million in 2004 in accordance with the provisions

of SFAS No. 106. . - - ;

As of December 31 2006, PG&El Corporation and the
Ut1llty adopted SFAS No. 158 ‘which requires the funded
status of an entity’s plans to be recognized on the balance
sheet with an offsetting entry to accumulated other compre-
hensive income, resulting in no 1mpact to the-statement of -
income. In accordance with the provtsrons of SFAS No. 158,
PG&E Corporation and the Ut|l1ty| recorded a net pension
benefit liability equal-to the underfunded status.of certain '
pension plans at December 31, 2006 in the amounts of
$70 million and $29 million, respectlvely In addition, PG&E
‘Corporanon and the Utility recorded a net pension benefit
asset equal to the overfunded status of certain pension plans
in the amount of $34 milfion at December 31, 2006. PG&E
Corporation and the Utility recorded a net benefit liability
equal to the underfunded status of the other postretirement
* benefit plans at December 31, 2006 in the amount of ‘
$54 million. Lo : ‘

|

Under SFAS No. 71, regulatory ad)ustments have been
.recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Income and
Consolidated Balance Sheets of the Utility to reflect the
difference between Utility pension' expense or income for -
accounting purposes and Utility pensron expense or income
for ratemakmg, which is based on a funding approach. Since
1993, the CPUC has authorized the Ut1|1ry to recover the
costs associated w1th its other beneﬁts Based on the lesser **
of the SFAS No. 106 expense or the annual tax- deduct1ble
contributions to the appropnate trusts.

PG&E Corporat:on s and the Utrlltys funding polrcy 1

to contribute tax deductible amounts, consistent with appli- *

cable regulatory dec1srons and federal minimum funding
requirements. Based upon, current assumptions and available
information, PG&E Corporatron and the Utllll’y have not
identified any minimum Fundmg requ:rements related to its
pension plans. _ i

In July 2006, the CPUC approved-the Utility’s 2006
Pension Contribution Application to resume rate recovery
for the Utility’s contributions to the qualifiéd defined benefit
pension plan for the years 2006 through 2009, with the goal
of a fully funded status by 2010. PG&E Corporation and
the Utility made t_otal contributions to the qualified defined
benefit pension plan of approximately $295 million in 2006,
of which $20 million related to 2005, and expect to make .-
total contnbutlons of approximately $176 million annually
for the years 2007, 2008 and 2009. PG&E Corporatron
and the Utility made total contributions of approxrmately
$25 million in 2006 related to their other postretirement
benefit plans. Contribution estimates for the. Utility’s
other postretirement benefit plans after 2006 will be driven
by future GRC decisions and in line with the Utlllry $
funding policy. ‘

Pension and other postretirement benefit funds are
held in external trusts. Trust assets, including accumulated
earnings, must be used exclusively for pension and other
postretirement benefit payments. Consistent with the trusts
investment policies, assets are invested in USS. equities,
non-U.S. equities and fixed income securities. Investment |
securities are exposed to various risks, including interest
rate, credit and overall market volatility.'As™a result of these
risks, it is reasoriably possible that the market values of
investment securities could increase or decrease in the
near term. Increases or decreases in market values. could
materially affect the current value of the trusts and, as a .
result, the future level of pensnon and other postretlremem
benefit expense. ‘

. Expected rates of return on plan assets were developed
by detérmining projected stock and bond returns and then,
applying these returns to the target- asset allocations of the -
employee benefit trusts, resulting in a weighted average rate’
of return on plan assets. Fixed income returns were projected
based on real maturity and credit spreads added to a long-

term inflation rate. Equity returns were estimated based on -

25




estimates of dividend yield and real earnings growth added
to a-long-term rate of inflation. For the Utility Retirement
Plan, the assumed return of 8.0% compares to a 10-year | |
actual return of 9.0%. . . - . . !

. . ' . l
The rate used to discount pension and other postretire- *

ment benefit plan liabilities was based on a yield curve devcl
oped from market data of over 500 Aa~grade non-callable *°
bonds at December 31, 2006. This yield curve has dlSCOUI"lt !
rates that vary based on the duration of the obligations. The
estimated future cash flows for the penston and other posit-

retirement obligations were ‘matched to the correspondmg i
. rates onthe yield curve to derive a welghted average l
discount rate. . C \
I
b
]
|

The followmg reflects the sensnmty of pension costs
and prolected benefit obligation to changes in certain
- actuarial assumptions:

|
Increase In

Fro;ected :

Increase Bcncﬁt

Increase  in 2006 IObhgauoln at

. . {decrease} in  Pension - December 31,

{in millions) . Assumption - Cost 2006

Discount rate . (0.5)%  $73 $643
Rate of return on . . . |

‘plan assets (0.5)% . 40- -
Rate of increase in ' o !

compensation 0.5% 30 139

l
The following reflects the sensitivity of other. postrenre-i‘
ment benefit costs and accumulated benefit obligation to. I
. ) . 1
, changes.in certain actuarial assumptions: \
) 4

Increase Increasqip

in 2006 Accumu]aﬁed

Other Benehit

Increase Post-  Obligationjat

. (decrease} in retirement *~ December 31,

(in millions) Assumption  Benefit Cost’ Tt 2006
Health care cost . o :

trend rate* - 0.5% §5 .f $36

Discount rate {0.5)% 5 © 8t

; : - b

w | o
. . |
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ACCOUNTING |
PRONOUNCEMENTS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET ADOPTED

ACCOUNTING FOR

UNCERTAINTY IN INCOME TAXES

In July 2006 the FASB issued FASB [nterpretatmn No. 48,
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Takes,” or FIN 48.
FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income
taxes. The' interpretation prescribes a two-step process in

the recognition and measurémént'sf a tax position taken

or expected to be taken in a tax return The first step is to
determine if it is more likely than not that a tax position
will be sustained upon examination by taxing authorities.

If this threshpld is met, the second step 1s to measure the tax
position on the balance sheet by using the largest amount of
benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely of being realized
upon ultimate settlement. FIN 48 also requires additional
dlsclosures FIN 48 is effective prospectively for fiscal years ,
beginning after December 15, 2006. PG&E Corporanon

and the Utility are currently evaluating the impact-of this
new interpretation.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair .
Value Measurerments,” or SFAS No. 157: SFAS No. 157
deﬁnes fair vilue as the pnce that would be received to sell
an asset or pa:d to transfe_r a liability in an order'ly_trans-.
action between market participants at the measurcmenf date.
SFAS No. 157 also establishes a framework for measuring
fair value and provides for expanded disclosures about fair
value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for. fiscal

years beginning after November 15, 2007 PG&E -Cotporation
and the Utility are’currently evaluating the 1mpact of SFAS -
No. 157

FAIR VALUE OPTION .

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair
Value Option for Financial Assets and Fmancml Liabilittes,”
or SFAS No. 159. SEAS No. 159 establishes a fair value
option under which entities can elect to report certain
financial assets and liabilities at fair value, with changes’in
fair value recogiized in earnings. SFAS No. 159.is effective
for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. PG&E

Corporation'and the Utility are current]y evaluatlng the

lmpact of SFAS No. 159.




TAXATION-MATTERS - :

See Note 11 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial

Statements for discussion on taxation matters.

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

The Uulity may be required to pay for environmental reme-

RS |

diation at sites where it has been, or may be, a potentially
responsible party under the Comprehensi{'é, Environmental
Response Compensation énd Liability Act of 1980, as
amended, and similar state envnronmental laws. These sites
include former manufactured gas plant sites, power plant
sites and sites used by the Utility For the storage, recycling
or disposal of potentially hazardous materials, Under federal
and California laws, the Utility may be responsible for
remediation of hgazaraous substances even if the Utility

did not deposit those substances on the site.

" The cost of environmental remec‘iiatipn is difficult to

estimate. The Utility records an environmental remediation

liability when site assessments indicate remediation is

probable and it can estimate a range of reasonably likely

clean-up costs. The Utlllty rewews its remediation liability
on a quarterly basis for each Site where it may be exposed
to remediation responsibilities. The liability is an estimate
of costs for sité investigations, re_medlatlon, operations and
maintenance, monitoring and site closure using cirrent
technology, enacted laws and regulatlons, experience gained
at similar sites and an assessment of the probable level of
involvement and financial condition of other potentially
responsible parties. Unless there is a better estimate within
this range of possible costs, the Utility records the costs’
at the lower end of this range. The Utility estimates the
upper end of this cost range using;reasonably possible out- -

_comes that are least favorable to the Utility. It is reasonably

possible that a change in these estimates may occur in. -
the near term due to uncertainty concerning the Utility’s
responsibility, the complexity of environmental laws and

regulations and the selection of compliance alternatives.

The Utility had an undiscounted environmental
remediation liability of approximately $511' million
at December 31, 2006 and approximately $469 million at
December 31, 2005. The increase in the undiscounted envi-
ronmental remediation reflects an increase of $74 million
for remediation at the Utility’s gas compressor stations
located near Hinkley, California and Topock, Arizona.
The portion of the increased liabiliity of $39 million for

_remediation at the Hinkley facility is attributable to changes

in the California Regional Water Quality’ Control Board’s
imposed remediation levels. Costs incutred at this facility

‘are not recovérable from customers and, as a result, the after-

tax impact on income was a reduction _of approximately

$23 million for 2006. Ninety percent of the estimated
remediation costs associated with the Utility’s gas compressor
sta_tio_ﬁ located near Topock, Arizona will be recoverable . .
in;rates in accordance with the hazardous waste ratemaking
mechanism which permits the Utility to recover 90% of

_ hazardous waste remediation costs from customers without -

a reasonableness review. . o -
'_1"he $511 'million.accrued at December 31, 2006 includes:

« approximately $238 million for remediation at the Hinkley
and Topock natural gas compressor sites; )

+ approximately $98 million related to the pre-closing
remediation liability associated with divested generation
facilities; and

« approximately $175 million related to remediation’ costs”

for the Utility’s generation facilities and gas gathering '
sites, third-party disposal sités and manufactured gas

plant sites owned by the Unlity or third part-ies (including
those sites that are the subject of remediation orders by
environmental agencies or claims by the current owners
of the former manufactured gas plant sites). '

Of the approximately $511 million environmental
remediation liability, approximately $138 million has been
included in prior rate setting p_roceed'ings. The Utlity expects
that an additional amount of approximately $272 million
will be allowable for inclusion in future rates. The Utility
also recovers its costs from insurance carriers and from other
third parties whenever possible. Any amounts collected in
excess of the Utility’s ultimate obligations may be subject
to refund to customers." -

LI -
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~ The Utility’s' undiscounted futire costs could i increase to’
as much as $782 million if the other potentially responsnble
_ part:es are not ﬁnanc1al|y able to contribute to these costs,
_ -or 1f the extent of tontamination or necessary remedlatmn
‘is greater than anuc:pated The amount of approximately

. $782 mllllon does not include an estimate for any potentlal

' costs of remediation at former manufactured gas plant 51tes
Jin the Utility’s-service territory that were previously owned
‘by the Utility or a predecessor but that are now owned by

“others because the Utility either has not been able to deter; .

mine if a:liability exists.with respect to-these sites or the]T -
Utility has not been able 1o estimate the amount of any |
future potential remediation costs that may be.incurred for

these sites. . . ° N |

In July 2004, the uUs. Env1r0nmental Protectlon Agency,

or EPA, published regulations under Secnon 316(b) of the

. Clean Water Act for coolmg water intake structures. The |
regulatlons affect existing electr:c:ty generation facilities |

" using over 50 million gallons per day, typlcally mcludmg"
some form of © once-through cooling. The' Ut11|ty $ Dlab]o
Canyon power p]ant Is ainong an estimated 539 generatlon
facilities nationwide that are affected by this rulemaking. |
The Utility permanently closed its Hunters Point power
plant in Ma)} 2006, and the Humboldt Bay power plant will
be re-powered without the use of once-through cooling. |
The EPA regulations establish a.set of performance standards
that vary with the type of water body and that are mtcnded
fo reduce impacts to aquatic organisms. Significant capltal
investment may be required to achieve the standards. Thel
regulations allow -'site-sp'eciﬁc compliance déterminations |
if a facility’s cost of compliance is significantly greater than
either the benefits achieved or the compliance costs consicj-

. ered by the EPA and alsoallow the use of envirdnmental

}llitigation or restoration to meet compliance requirementg

In certain cases. Yarious parties challenged the EPA’s regula-

tions and the cases were consolidated in the U.S. Court of:

'Appeals for the Second Circuit, or Second Circuit. -

. |
On January 25, 2007, the Second Circuit issued its deci-

sion on the appeals of the EPA Section 316(b) regulations.1
The Second Circuit remanded significant provisions of the
regulations to the EPA for reconsideration and held that .';\ll

1
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|
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cost benefit test cannot be used to establish performance -
standards or to grant variances from the standards. The

. Second Circuit also ruled that efivironinental restoration
_cannot be used to achieve comphance. The parties may seck

either en banc review by the Second Circuit or review by the
U.S. Supreme Court. Regardless of whether the decision is
subject to furthcr judicial review, the EPA will fikely requ1re

significant time to review and revise the regulations. 1t is

| uncertain how the Second Circuit decision will affect dével-

opment of the state’s proposed implementation policy. The
regulatory uncertainty is likely to continue and the Utility’s.
cost of compliance, while likely to be 51gnlf1cant wﬂl remain
uncertain as well, ’

'LEGAL MATTERS

In t'h_e normal course of business, PG&E Corporation and
the Utility are named as parties in a number of claims

and lawsuits. See Note 17 of the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for further discussion.

FRRRT Y

ADDITIONAL
SECURITY MEASURES

Various federal-regulatory agencies have i1ssued guidance

and the NRC has issued orders regarding additional security
measures to be taken at various facilities, includi‘ng genera-
tion facilities, transmission substations and natural gas
transportation facilities. The guidance and the orders require
additional capital investment and increased operating costs.
However, neither PG&E Corporation ncn:_ the Utility believes
that these costs will have a material tmpact on its respective
consolidated financial position or results of operations,

P




RISK FACTORS

.RISKS RELATED TO PG&E CORPORATlON
PG&E Corporation could be required to contribute capliul '
to the Utility or be denied dlsirlbuh?ns from the Uility to the
extent required by the CPUC’s determination of the Utilitys
financial condition. '
In approving the original formanon of a holdmg company
for the Utility, the CPUC imposed certam conditions,
including an obligation by PG&E Corporatlon s Board of
Directors to gwe “first pnonty to the capital requirements
of the Utility, as dctermmed to be’ necessary and prudent
to meet the Utility’s obligation to serve or to operate
the Utility in a prudent and efﬁcnent manner. The CPUC
later issued decisions in which it adopted an expansive
interpretation of PG&E Corporation’s obligations under
this conditioﬁ, including the requirement that PG&E .
Corporation “infuse the [U]tility with all types of capital
necessary for the [UJtility to fulfill its obligation.to serve.”
The CPUC’s expansive interpretation could require PG&E
Corperation to infuse the Unlity with significant capital
in the future, or be denied distributions from the Utility,
which could materially restrict PG&E Corporatlon 5 ablllty
to meet other obligations,

Adverse resolution of pending litigation could have a”
material adverse effect on PG&E Corporation’s financial
condition and resulls of operuhons A

In 2002, the Cilifornia Attomcy General and the City and
County of San Francisco ﬁled complamts against PG&E
Corporation allegmg that certain conditions imposed by

" the CPUC in approving the holding company formation,
including the so-called “first priori'ty condition,” were vio-
lated-and that these alleged v1olat|ons constituted unfair or
fraudulent business acts or practlces in violation of Section
17200 of the California Business and Professions Code.
They allege that transfers of funds, from the Utility to PG&E
. Corporation during the period 1997 through 2000 (primarily
in the form of dividends and stock repurchases), and from
PG&E Corporation to other affiliites of PG&E Corporation,
violated these holding company condmons They also

altege that PG&E Corporation wrongful]y failed to prov1dc
adequate financial support to the Unlity in 2000 and 2001
during the California energy crisis. The plaintiffs seek resti-

" turion of amounts alleged to havc been wrongly transferred

estimated by plaintiffs to be approximately $5 billion, civil
penalties of $2,500 against each defendant for each violation
of Section 17200, a total penalty of not less than $500 mil-
lion, and costs of suit, among other, remedies.

An adverse outcome, particulérly one' imposing significant
penalties, could haveé a material adverse affect on PG&E
Corporatlon s financial condmon results of” operatlons and
cash ﬂows '

RISKS RELATED TO THE UTILITY

PGAE Corporcmon s ond the Utility’s financial condition
depends upon the.Utility’s ability to recover its costs in

o timely manner from the Ulility’s customers through
regulated rates and otherwise execute its business strategy.
The Utility is a regulated entity subject to CPUC and FERC
]urlsdlctlon in almost all aspects of its busmess mcludmg
the rates, terms and condmons oF its services, procurement
of electricity and natural gas for its customers, issuance of
securities, dtspompops of utllgty assets and facilities and
aspects of the siting and operation of its electricity and
natural gas operatmg assets, Executmg the Utility’s business
strategy depends on perlodlc regulatory approvals related

to these and other matters.

- S
The Utility’s financial condition particulafly depends

on its ability to recover in rates in a.timely manner the costs

of electricity and natural gas purchased for its customers,

as well as an adequate return on the capital invested in.its

utility assets, including the long-term. debt and equity issued

to finance their acquisition. There may be unanticipated .-

.changes in operating expenses or capital expenditures-that

cause material differences between forecasted costs used to
determine rates and actual costs incurred which, 1n turn,.
affect the Utility’s ability to earn’its authorized rate of -
return. The CPUC also has approved various, programs to
support public policy goals through the use of.customer
incentives and- subsidies for energy efficiency programs and




|
i
|

the development and use of renewable and self- gcneratlo

Saté

techinologies. These and other similar incentives and sub-| ...i»

sidies increase the Utility’s overall costs. As rate pressure f,)!,_(
_increases, the risk increases that the CPUC or other state| oy
authornry will disallow recovery of some of the Utility’s costs
based on a determmatlon that the costs were not reasonat;ly'}
incurred or for some other reason, resulting in stranded ...,

investment capital. . . T psil

Further, changes. in laws and regulations or changés * : D’
in the political and regulatory environment may have an :
adverse effect on the Utility's ability to timely recover its1 -
costs and earn its authorized rate of return. During the ‘
2000-2001 energy crisis that followed the implementation;
of California’s electric industry restructuring law, the Utility
could not recover-in rates the high prices it had to pay for .
wholesale electricity, which ultimately caused the Utility
to file a petition for reorganization under Chapter 11 of I
the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. Even though the Chapter 11
Settlement Agreement and current regulatory mechanisms'
contemplate that the' CPUC will give the Utility the ‘
opportunity to recover its reasonable and prudent future i
‘costs-of electricity and natural gas in its rates, there can be
no assurance that the CPUC will find that all of the Utility’s
costs are reasonable and prudent or will not otherwise také
or fail to take actions to the Utility’s detriment.

In addition, there can be no assurance that the :
bankruptcy court or other courts will implement and |
enforce the terms of the Chapter 11 Settlement Agrecment'
and the Utility’s plan of reorganization in a manner that 1
would produce the economic results that PG&E Corporation
and the Utility intend or anticipate. Further, theré can be
no assurance that FERC-authorized tariffs will be adequate!
to cover the related costs. The Utility's failure to recover
any material amount of its costs through its rates in a : _
timely manner, would' have a’'material adverse effect on :
PG&E Corporation’s and the Utility’s financial condition, .
results of operations and cash flows.
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The Wiility faces significant unceriainty in connection with
the :mplementuhon of the CAISO’s Market Redesugn ond
Technology Upgrctde program to reslrudure California’s

" wholesale electricity market. In addition, the Utility must

comply with new reliability standards being promuigoled'
under the Energy Policy Act of 2005,

In tesponse to the market manipulation that occurred dur-
ing the 20002001 energy crists, the CAISO has undertaken
a Market-Redesign 'and Technology Upgrade, or MRTU,
initiative to implement a new day-ahead wholesale electricity
market, and improve electricity grid man'agefnent reliability,
operational efficiencies and related technology infrastructure.
MRTU, scheduled to become efféctive_ in January 2008, will
add significant market complexity and will require major
changes to the Utility’s systems and software interfacing

with the CAISO. Also, as part of the implementation of the
Energy Policy Act of 2005, new mandatory standards are
being developed relating to the operation and maintenance °
of the electric grid. The new standards aré subject to the
FERC’s approval and new enforcement authority. The FERC
can impose significant penalties ($1,000,000 per day per
violatfon) for failure to comply with the reliability standards.
If the Utility incurs significant costs 1o 1mplement MRTU
that are not timely recovered from customers or if the new
market mechanisms created by MRTU fail to react promptly
to price/! market flaws or if the needed systems and software
interfaces do not perform as intended, or if the Utility

fails to comply. with the new electrlc reliability standards,
PG&E Corporation’s and the Utility’s financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows could be materially
adversely affected. ' . ‘ '
The Uflhry may be unuble ta ochleve expecfecl cost
savmgs and efficiencies from ifs customer service
improvement lmila_tlves. '

During 2006 the Utility bégan to implement various initia- '_'
tives to change its business processes and systems so as to
achieve operational excellence and.to proy"ide better, faster
and more cost-effective service to its customers. Many of
these initiatives require substaritial costs to implement with
savings- expected to be realized in ldter years. The proposed

settlement of the Utility’s 2007 GRC contemplates that cus-

tomers would receive the benefit of cost savings attributable
to implementation of these initiatives in 2008, 2009 and
2010. If the. actual cost savings exceed the contemplated
savings, such benefits would accrue to shareholders.
Conversely, if any of these cost savings are not realized,
eatnings available for shareholders would be reduced.




There can be no-assurance that thle Utilityr will be able

to recognrze cost savings through rmplementatlon of these
rnmatrves and its failure to do so could have a material
adverse effect on PG&E Corporarron;s and the Utility's
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.
- PR . S
The Utiliﬁ may fail to reeognize the benef' ts of its advanced
mefering system or the advanced metermg system may fail
to perform as mtended resulting in hlgher costs und/or
reduced cost savings. ) ' i
During 2006 the Utility began 10 1mp1ement its advanced .
metering infrastructure project for resrdentral and small
commercial customers, involving the, installation of approxi-
mately 10 million advanced electricity and gas meters
throughout its service territory, by tljle end of 2011. Advanced
meters will allow customer usage data to be transmitted -
through a communication network to a central collection
point, where the data will be stored and used for blllmg and .
other commercial purposes. The Utrlrry expects to complete
the installation of the network 1nfrastructure and advanced
meters throughout its service territory by the end of 2011

" The CPUC authorized thie Utility t recover $1.74 billion
n estimated'project cost, including an estimated capital cost
‘of $1.4 billion. The $1.74 billion amount includes $1. 68 bil- .

lion for project’costs and approxrmately $54.8 mrllron for
costs related to marketing a new demand responsive rate
based on critical peak pricing. In addltlon ‘the Utility is
‘authorized to recover in rates 90% of up to $100 million

in costs that exceed $1.68 billion without a reasonableness
review, The remammg 10% will not be recoverable in rates.

If additional costs exceed the $100 million threshold, the
Utility may request recovery of the addmonal costs, sub;ecr
to a reasonableness review, The Unlrty estimates that approx1-
mately 90% of the project costs wrlll be recovered through

cost reductl_on benefits. ) . l

If the Uality fails to redognize the expected benefits of - -~
its advanced. metering infrastructure, if the Utility incurs’
additional-costs that.the CPUC doe:s not fAind reasonable,
or if the Utility is unable to integrate the new advanced -
metering system with-its billing and other computer infor-

* mation systems, PG&E Corporation:’s and the Utility’s
ﬁnancral condition, results’ of operatrons and cash ﬂows -

could be matérially adversely affected : . .

the forward markets.

The Utility faces significant uncértainties associated with
the future level of bundled electric load for which it must
procure eleciricity and secure generating capacity and,

under certginicircumstances, may not’ be able 1o recover

LI LR ‘

u!l of its costs! -

customer demand, plus applicable reserve: miargins, not satis-

. fied from the Utility’s own generation facilities‘and existing ¢

electricity contracts. The Utility rehes .on electricity from

a diverse mix of resources, mc]udlng thlrd -party contracts,‘
amounts allocated under DWR contracts and its own elec—
tricity generation facilities. thn customer demand exceeds
the amount of electrlcrty that can be economrcally produced
from the Utility's own generatron facrhtres plus net energy
‘purchase contracts (mcludmg DWR contracts allocated '
to the Utility’s customers) the Ut1hty wrll be ina short ' -
pomron When the Utility’s supply ¢ of elecrncrry from its’
own gcneratron resources plus net energy purchase contracts .
exceeds customer demand the Utrhry is rn a long posrnon.;
When the Utility is in a long posmon the Unhry sells the
excess supply in the hour— and day-ahead markets or in

coavn oy e, e .
The amount of electricity the Utill't} needs to meet the

demands of customers that is not satisfied frém the Unllty s
own generation fatilities, existing purchasé contracts or

DWR contracts allocated to the Utility's customers, could

increase or decrease due to a variety of factors, 1nclud1ng,
without hmrtanon a change in the number of 'the Unhry s

. .Customers, perrodrc expirations of exrstmg electricity pur-

chase contracts, 1nclud1ng DWR contracts, execution of new
energy and capacity purchase contracts fluctuatron in the
output of hydroelectric and other renewable power Facrhtres
owned or under contract by ‘the Unlrty, 1mplementanon of
new energy efﬁcrency and demand response programs, the _
realtocation’of the DWR power purchase contracts among '
California 1nvesror—owned electrrc utllmcs, and the'acqul- -
sition, retirement, or closure ofgeneratron fac1l|tre5 The o
amount of electricity the Utility would need to purchase
would immediately increase if there was an unexpected
outage at Diablo Canyon or any of its other significant

/
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generation faahtles if the Utlllty had to shur down Dlablo
Canyon for any reason, or if any of the counterpames to the
Utility’s electricity purchase contracts or the DWR allocatcd
contracts did not perform due to bankruptcy or for some
other reason. In addition, as the electricity supplier. oflast ‘
resort, the amount of electricity the Utility would need t|0
purchase also would immediately increase if 2 material num-
ber of direct access customers or customers of commumty
choice aggregators decided to return to receiving bund!ed
services from, the Utility. (See discussion of direct access |
and community choice aggregators above under ° Regulatory

Matters — Electricity Generation Resources”) . }
If the Utility’s short position unexpectedly increasés, t;he
Utility would need to purchase electricity in the wholesale
marKet under coritracts priced at the time of execution olr, 1f
made in the spot market, at the then-current market pri.c‘e of
wholesale electricity. The inability of the Utility to purchase
electricity in the wholesale market at prices or on terms the
CPUC finds reasonable or in quantltles sufficient to satlsfy

- the Utility’s short position could have a material adverse,

effect on the financial condition, results of operations or;
cash flows of the Utility and PG&E Corporation. !

|
Alternatively, the Ufility would be'in a long position if
the number of Utility customers declined. For example, a
petition was filed in late December 2006 asking the CPUC
to examine re-establishing the ‘ability of the Utility’s cus- |
tomers to become direct access customers by purchasing
electricity from alternate energy providers by January 1, ,
2008. Separately, the CPUC has adopted rules to imple- +
ment California Assembly Bill 117 that permits Californie:l '
cities and counties to purchase and sell electricity for all 4
their residents who do not affirmatively elect to continue}to
receive electricity from the Utility, once the city or county
has registered as a'community choice aggregator, while th¢|:
Utility continues to provide distribution, metering and
billing services to the community choice aggregators’ cus|
tomers and serves as the electricity provider of last resort 1for
all customers. In addition, the Utility could lose custome$s
because of increased self-generation. The risk of loss of cus-
tomers through self-generation is increasing as the CPUC|has
approved various prograr-ns to provide self-generation incen- .

tives and subsidies to customers to encourage.development

|
[
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and use of renewable and distributed generating technolo-
gies, such as solar technology. The number of the Utili
customers also could decline due to a peneral ecqn:orﬁic'
downturn or if higher energy prices in California due to
stricter greenhouse gas regulatlons or other state regulatlons
cause customers to [eave the Utllll‘y s service territory.

If the Unlity ﬂpcrlences a materlal loss. of customers, ‘
the Utility's existing electricity purchase contracts could
obligate it to purchasé more electricity th:.a'n its remaining
customers require. This would result in a long position
and require the Utility to sell t_h'e excess,. pb‘ss_ib]y at a loss,
In addition, excess electricity generallted_ by the Utility’s
geqerétion facilities may also have to be §ofd, possibly at
a loss, and costs the Utility may have incurred to develop

or acquire new generation resources may become stranded. .

If the CPUC fails to adjust the Utility's rates o reflect - -
the impact of changing loads, PG&E Corporation’s and the
Utility's financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows could be materially adversely affected.

The Ulili'ty relies on access to the capital markets. There can
be no assurance that the Utility will be able to successfully
finance.its planned capital expenditures on favorable terms
or rales. ' ' '
The Utility’s ability to make scheduled principal and interest
payments, refinance debt and fund operations and planned
cap.ital expenditures depends on its operating cash flow and
access to the capital markets. During 2006, the CPUC autho-
tized the Utility to make substantial capital investments in
new long-term generation resources. The Utility also expects
to make capital investments in electric_ transmission to secure
access to renewable generation resources and to accommo-
date system load growth, in natural gas transmiission to
improve reliability and expand capacity and to rép!ace aging
or obsolete infrastructure (e.g., pipelines, storage facilities
and compressor stations) to maintain system reliability, and
in the electric and gas distribution system. In addition, the
Utility expends capital to teplace, refurbish or extend the
life of its existing nuclear, hydroelectric and fossil fac:lmes
The Utility's ability to access the capital markets and the
costs and terms of available financing depend on many .
factors, including changes in the Utility’s credit ratings,
changes in the federal or state regulatory environment
affecting energy companies, increased or natural volatility

in electricity or natural gas prices and general economic

and market conditions.




PG&E Corporation"s and ‘the Utility’s financial condi-
tion and results of operations would be materially adversely
affected if the Utility is unable to obtain financing with
favorable terms and conditions, or at all.

The completion of the UWtilitys copital investment projects is
subject to substantial risks and the !:'ufe at which the Utility
invests capital will directly affect earnings. '
The corpletion of the Utility’s anti$ipated capital investment
projects in existing and new generation facilities, electric and
gas transmission, and electric and gas distribution systems

is subject to many construction and development risks,
including risks related 'to financing, obtaining and comply-
ing with the terms of permits, meeting construction budgets
and schedules, and satisfying operating and environmental
performance standards. The Utlity jalso faces the risk that 1t
may incur costs that it will not be permitted to recover from
customers. In addition, the timing and amount of capital
spending will.directly affect the amount the Utility is able.
to earn on its authorized rate base, Iwhich in turn will affect
the ability of PG&E Corporation and the Unlity to grow its
carnings over time. . e, |

If the Utility is unu‘ble- to |imélyvmeéi the applicable resource
adequacy or renewable energy requirements, the Utility
may be subject to penalliés.

The Utility must achieve an electricity planning reserve
margin of 15% to 17% in excess of:péak capacity electricity
requirements. The CPUC can'impose a penalty if it fails

to acquire sufficient capacity to meet resource adequacy
requirements for a particular year. The penalty for failure

to procure suffictent system resourc;: adequacy capacity

{i.e., resources that are deliverable anywhere in the CAISO-
controlled electricity grid) is equal to three times the cost of
the new capacity the Utility should have secured. The CPUC
has set this penalty at $]g0 per kWiyear. The CPUC also
adopted “local” resource adequacy requirements to set local
capacity requirements in specific regions that may be trans-
mission-constrained. The CPUC.set the penalty for failure
to meet local resource adequacy requirements at $40 per
kW.year. In addition to penalties, entities that fail to meet
resource adequacy requirements may be assessed the cost of |
backstop procurement by the CAISO to fulfill their resource
adequacy target levels.

In addition, the RPS established under state law requires’
the Utility to increase its purchases of renewable energy each
year so that the amount of electricity purchased from eligible
renewable resources equals at least 20% of its total retail sales
by the end of 2010. The CPUC has established penalties of
$50 per MWh, up to $25 million per year, for failure to
comply with the RPS requirements:.

\

'

"The Utility faces the risk of unrecoverable cosis if its

customers obtain distribution and transportation services
from other providers as a result of municipalization,
technological change, or other forms of bypass.

The Utility’s customers could bypass its distribution and
transportation system by obtaining service from other |
sources. Forms of bypass of the Utility's electricity distribu-
tion system include construction of duplicate distribution
facilities to serve specific existing or new customers and
condemnation of the Utility’s distribution facilities by local
governments or municipal districts. The Unlity’s natural
gas transportation facilities could also be at risk of being
bypassed by interstate pipeline companies that construct
facilities in the Utility’s markets or by customers who build
plpclme connections that bypass the Utility's natural gas
transportation and distribution system, or by customers
who use and transport liquefied natural gas, ‘or LNG.

As customers and local public officials continue to
explore their energy options, these bypass risks may be
increasing and may increase further if the Utility’s rates
exceed the cost of other available:alternatives, resulting
in stranded investment capital, foss of customer growth
and additional barriers to cost recovery. As examples, the
Sacramento Mumapal Utlllty Dlstrlcr or SMUD, sought to
proceed with plans to exercise its power of eminent domain
to acquire portions of the Utility’s electric system within
Yolo County which serves approximately 70,000 Utility
customers and the South San Joaqum Irrigation District,
or SSJID, has sought approval from the local agency
formation commission to serve portlons of the Utility’s
electric system within San Joaquin County. Although
SMUD’s plans were ultimately defeated by voters in Yolo
and Sacramento Counties on November 7, 2006 and
SSJID’s plans have been rejected by the Ioca[ agency for-
mation commission, there is no assurance that S5]ID may
not continue to pursue its effons or that others' may not

choose to follow a similar path '

If the number of the Utility’s customers declines due to
municipalization, or other forms of bypass, and the Utility’s
rates are not adjusted in a timely manner 'to allow it to fully
recover its investment'in electricity and natural gas facilities
and electricity procurement costs, PG&E Corporation’s and
the Utility’s financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows could be materially adversely affected.
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Electricity and natural 'gds markets are highly \(oluiilt-a
and regulatory responsiveness to that volatility could
be insufficient. . ) I

" Commodity markets for electricity and natural gas are highly
volatile and subject to substantial price fluctuations. A vari-
ety of factors that are largely outside of the Utility’s cont;rol
may contribute to commodity price volatility, including:

» weather; .

[
i Hh
+supply and demand; . l

» the availability of competitively priced alternative energy -

sources; ) : o

» the level of production of natural gas;
+ the availability of nuclear fuel;

» the availability of LNG supplies; '
« the price of fuels that are used to produce electricity, |

k)

including natural gas, crude oil, coal and nuclear materials;
+

» the transparency, efficiency, integrity and liquidity of
regional energy markets affecting California; -

|
|
.
. ' i
» electricity transmission or natural gas transportation

capacity constraints; ' |

» federal, state and local energy and environmental regu]at:ion

+and legislation; - and |
[

» natural disasters, war, terrorism, and other catastrophic

events. o :

Beginning in July 2006, the fixed price provisions of the
Litility’s power purchase agreements with QFs expired and
QFs became able to pass on their cost of the natural gas |
they purchase as fuel for their generating facilities to the |
Utility, increasing the Utility’s exposure to natural gas price
volatility. The expiration of fixed price provisions in the |

DWR contracts allocated to the Utility at the end of 2009
" will further increase the Utility’s exposure to natural gas
price risk. Although the Utility attempts to execute CPUC-
approved hedging programs to reduce the natural gas price
risk, there can be no assurance that these hedging programs
will be successful or that the costs of the Utility’s hedging
" programs will be fully recoverable. *

Further, if wholesale electricity or natural gas prices
increase significantly, public pressure or other regulatory or
govérnmenta] influences or other factors could constrain
the willingness or ability of the GPUC 6 authorize timely
recovery of the Utility’s costs from customers. If the Unlity
is unable to recover any material amount of its costs in
its rates in a timely manner, PG&E Corporation’s and the
Utility’s financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows would bermat‘erially adve_rﬁely affected.

The Uliliiy’é financial condition and results of operations
could be matericlly adversely affected if it is unable to
successfully monage the risks inherent in operating the
Utility’s facilities.

The Utility owns and operates extensive electricity and natu-

- facilities or equipment failure;

ral gas facilities that are’ interconnected to the U.S. western
electricity grid and numerous interstate and continental
natural gas pipelines. The operation of the Utility’s facilities
and the facilities of third parties on which it relies involves
numerous risks, including:

» operating limitations that may be imposed by environ-
mental laws or regulations, including those relating to
Ay .
greenhouse gases, or other regulatory requirements;

s imposition of operational performance standards by
agencies with regulatory ovérsight of the Utility’s facilities;

+ environmental accidents, including the release of hazardous
or toxic substances into the air or water, urban wildfires
and other events caused by operation of the Utility’s

« fuel supply interruptions;
+ blackouts;

« failure of the Utility’s computer information systems,
including those relating to operations or financial informa-
tion such as customer billing;

« labor disputes, workforce short.agc, availability of qualified
personnel;




+ weather, storms, earthquakes, fires, floods or other natural
disasters, war, pandemic and other catastrophic events;

+ explosions, accidents, dam failure, pcchanical breakdowns,

terrorist activities; and
{

« other events or hazards- . |

that affect demand for electricity or 'natural gas, result in
unplanned outages, reduce ‘generating output, cause damage
to the Utility’s assets or operations or those of third parties

on which it relies, or subjg_c‘t“t‘}}e__Utility to third-party claims -

or liability for dainage or injury.
|

In addition, substantial Uncertainty exisﬁs relating to
the potential impacts of climate change on the Utility's .
electricity and natural gas operationfs as a result of increased
frequency and severity of hot weathcr decreased hydroelectric
generation resulting from reduced runoff from snow pack
and increased sea level along the Northern California coastal
area, Climate change is likely to affect the opérﬁtion of the
Utility’s hydroelectric system and t lead fo more severe
weather events which will increase the need for additional
. generation capacity without commensuratc increases in

average load.

The impact of these events could range from highly
focalized to worldwide, and in certain events could result in
a full or partial disruption of the apility of the Utility or *
one or more entities on which it relies to generate, transimit,
transport or distribute electricity or natural gas or cause

. environmental repercussions. Even the less extreme events
could result in lower revenues or increased expenses, or
both, that may not be fully recovered through rates or other
means in a timely manner or at all. In addition, the Utility’s
insu;ancé may not be sufficient oreffective to provide
recovery under all circumstances or against all hazards or
liabilities to which the Utility is or may become subject. An
uninsured loss could have a material adverse effect on PG&E
Corporatton’s and the Utility’s financial condition, results
of operations and cash flows. Future insurance coverage may
not be available at rates and on termis as favorable as the
rates and terms pf the Utility’s current insurance coverage.

.

"The Utility’s operations are subiec.i to extensive
environmenial laws, and changes in, or liabilities under,
these laws could adversely affect its financial condition
and results of operations. : ’

The Utility’s operations are subject to extensive federal, state
and local environmental laws and permits. Complying with
these environmental laws has in the past requlred significant

expenditures for environmental compliance, monitoring and

pollution control equipment, as well as for related fees and
permits. Moreover, compliance in the future may require
significant expenditures relating to reduction of greenhouse
gases, regulation of water intake or discharge at certain
facilities and mitigation measures associated with electric '
and magnetic fields. New California legislation imposes a
state-wide limit on the emission of greenhouse gases that
must be achieved by 2020 and prohibits load-serving entities,
including investor-owned utilities, from entering into long-

.term financial commitments for generation resources unless

the new genération resources conform to a greenhouse gas
emission performance standard. Congress may also enact
legislation to limit greenhouse gas emissions. Depending on
how the baseline for greenhouse gas emissions level is set,
complying with California regulation and potential federal
legistation may subject the Utility to significant costs. The
Utility has significant liabilities {currently known, unknown,
actual and potential) related to environmental contamination
at Utlity facilities, including natural gas compressor stations
and former manufactured gas plants, as well as ar third-
party owned sites. The Utility’s environmental compliance
and remediation costs could increase, and the timing of its
capital expenditures in the future may accelerate, if standards
become stricter, regulation increases, other potentially fespon-
sible parties cannot or do not contribute to cleanup costs;
conditions change or additional contamination is discovered:

In the event the Utility must pay, materially more than
the amount that it currently has reserved on its Consolidated
Balance Sheets to satisfy its-environmental remediation
obligations and cannot recover those or other costs of
complying with environmental laws in'its rates in a timely
manner or at all, PG&E Corporation’s and the Utility’s
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows

.
i

would be materially adversely affected.
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The operation and decommissioning of the Utility’s nuclear
power plants expase it to potentially significant liabilities'
and capital expenditures that it may not be able to recover .
from.its insurance or other sources, udversely affecting' |ts G
f'nuncml condition, results of operations and cash flows.,
The operation and decommissioning of the Utility’s nucléar: .
power plants expose it to -potentially significant liabilities ;
and capital expendltures including not only the risk of {, .
death, injury and property damage from a nuclear acc1dent 1
but matters arising from the storage, handling and d1sposal
of radioactive. materrals including spent nuclear fuel; stnnj- "‘
gent safety and securrty requirements; public and polrtrcall

.oppesition to nuclear po’wer operattons; and uncertain- h
ties related to'the regulatory, technological and financial |
aspects of decommissioning nuclear plants at the end of |
their licensed, lives. Tlle_ Utility maintains. external insurance
coverage and decommissioning trusts to reduce the Utility’s
financial exposure to these risks. However, the costs or dam—
ages the Utility may incur in connection with the opcratlon
and decommussioning of nuclear power plants could exceeld
the amount of the Utility’s insurance coverage and other |
amounts set astde for these potential liabilities. In addi-

_ tion, as an operator of two operating nuclear reactor umts,
the Utility may be required under federal law to pay up to‘!
$201.2 million of liabilities arising out of each nuclear inci-

. dent cccurring not only at Diablo Canyon but at any other

nuclear power plant in the United States )

!
* The NRC has broad authority. under federal law to :
impose licensing and safety-related requirements upon- . i
owners and opeérators of nuclear power plants. In the event. '
of non-compliance, the NRC has the authority to impose |
fines or to force a shutdown of the nuclear plant or both
_depending upon the NRC's assessment of the severity of the
situation. NRC safety and security requirements have, in thle
past, necessitated substantial capital expenditures at Diablo
Canyon and addittonal significant capital expenditures. could
- ‘be required in the future. If one or both units at, Diablo . | _
Canyon were shut down pursuant to an NRC'order or to |
comply with NRC licensing, safety or security requirempntsI
or due to other safety or operational issues, the Utility’s’ l
operating and maintenance costs would increase, Further,. :
such events may cause the Utility to be in a short position |
and the Utility would need to purchase electricity from more

€Xpensive sources. .
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In addition, the Utility’s nuclear power operations are
subject to the availability of adequate nuclear fuel supplies
on terms that the CPUC will find reasonable. Although the
Utility has eritered several purchase agreements for nuclear -
fuel with terms ranging from two to five years, there is no
assurance the; Utility will be able to enter into similar agree-
ments in the future with terms that the CPUC will find

are reasonable.

Utider the terms of the NRC operating licenses for
Diablo Canyon, there must be - sufficient storagl: cabaciry o
for the radroactlve spent fuel produced by this plant. Under
current operatmg procedures, the Utility believes that the |
‘existing spent fiel pools have sufﬁcrent capacity to enable
the Utility to operate Diablo Canyon until approximately
2010 for Unit 1 and 2011 for Unit 2. After receiving a permit
from the NRC in March 2004, the Utility began building an
on-site dry cask storage facility to store spent-fuel ‘through
at least 2024. The Utilicy estimateé‘ it could complete the

.dry cask storage project by, 2008. Following an appeal of the A_

NRC'’s March 2004 decision to grant the permit, the Nmth
Circuit issued a decision on June 2, 2006 that requrres

the NRC to consider the environmental consequences of

a potential terrorist attack at Diablo Canyon as part of

the NRC’s supplemental assessment of -the dry cask stor-
age permit. On Januaryll6, 2007, the U.S. Supreme Court
denied the Utility’s petition for review of the Ninth Circuit
decision. The Utility may incur significant additional capi-
tal expenditures or experience schedule delays if the NRC
decides that the.Utility must change the design and con-
struction of the dry cask storage facility. The NRC also may
decidé to deny the permit. There can be no assurance that
the Utility can obtain the ﬁn:'rl_necessarjr regulatory approv-
als to expand spent fuel capacity or that other alternatives*’

, will be available or implemented in time to avoid a disrup-

tien in production or shutdown ‘of one’or both units at this
plant. If there is a disruption in production’ or shutdown of
one or both units at this plant, the Utility will need to pur:

_chase electricity from more expensivc sources.

Further, certain aspects of the Utlhty 5 nuclear operations

.are subject to other local zmd regulatory requrrements that

are overseen by, other agencies, such as the California Coastal
Commlssmn and the Central Coast Regional Water Qlahty
Control Board.'Various parties, including local commumty,
environmental, political, ‘or other groups may part|c1pate

or seek to intervene, in regulatory proceedings. In addition,
these groups may seek to challenge certain aspects of the
Utility's nuclear operations through judicial proceedings,

t
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If the CPUC prohibited the Utility from recovering
a matenal amount ‘of its capital expendttures fuel costs,
operatmg and maintenance costs, or addtttonal procurement
costs due to  determination that the COSts were not reason-
ably or prudently incurred, PG&E Corporat:on s and.the
Utllltys financial condition, results OF operations and cash

flows would be_materlally adversely gffected.
e Lo N i '

thur;ges in the political and reguldtory environment

could cause federal and state statutes, CPUC and FERC
regulut:ons, rules and orders to become more stringent and
difficult to comply wnh ond requwed permits, authorizations
and licenses may be more difficult fo obtain, increasing the
Ullllty s expenses or making it more difficult for the Utility
fo execute its business s'irutegy l !

The Utility must comply in good falth with all applicable
statutes, rules, tariffs and orders of the CPUC, the FERC,
the NRC and others relating to the|aspecrs of its e]ectncnty

and natural gas utility operations which fall within the

]urls_dlct_lonal author_lty of such reglltlatory agencies. These
include customer billing, customer service, affiliate trans- _
actions, vegetation management and safety and inspection
practices. There is'a risk ‘that the mterpretanon and applica-
tion of these statutes, rules, tariffs a!md orders may change
over time and that the Utility will be determined to have
not complied with the new interpretation. If so, this 'couid

_expose the Utility to increased costs to comply with the new’

interpretation and to potential lability for customer refunds,
. - .o [
penalties or other amounts. Moreover, such statutes, rules,

_tariffs and orders could become mPre strmgent and dtfﬁcult

to comply with in the future. ;

If it is determmed that thc Utllilty did not comply w1th
applicable statutes rules, tariffs, or orders and the Utility
is ordered to pay a material amounit in customer refunds,
penalttes, or other amounts, PG&E Corporation’s anld the
Utility’s financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows would be materially adverselly affected.

S i

The Utility is also required to éomply with the terms of
various permits, authorizations and licenses. These permits,
authorizations-and licenses may be revoked or modified by
the agericies that granted them if facts develop that differ
sngmﬁcantly from-the facts assumed when they were issued.
In addition; discharge permits and other approvals and
licenses are often granted for a term that is less than the -

expected life-of the assoc1ated facn]tty Licenses and permits
]

- . . .

may require penodtc renewal, whlch rnay result in additional

, requ1rements being. 1mposed by the graniting agency. In con-

nection with a license ‘renewal, the FERC may impose new
license. condmons that could among other things, require
mcreased expendltures or result in reduced e!ectm:lty output

_and/or capacny at the faciliey.

Also, if the Unlity is unable to obtain, renew or comply
u'.'ith'these governmen‘tal permits, authorizations ‘or. licenses,
or if the Udlity is unable to recover any increased costs
of complying with additional license requirements or any
other associated costs in its rates in a timely manner, PG&E .

. Corporation’s and the Utility’s financial condition and

results of operations could be materially adversely affected.
* 1 . s -

The eutcome of pending and future Iitiguti'on and legal

_proceedings, the apphcatlon of and changes in uccountlng

.

standards or guidance, tax Iaws, rates or policies, also may
udversely affect the Utility’s financial condition, results of
operations or cash flows. 1

In the normal course of business, the Unllty is named as a
party in a number of claims and lawsuits. The Utility may
also be the subject.of investigative or enforcement i)roceed-
ings conducted by administrative or regu]atory agencies. In
accordance with applicable accounting standards, the Utility
makes provisions for liabilities when it is both probable

that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the loss
can be reasonably esttmated. If the Utility ir;curs losses in
connection with litigation or other legal, administrative or
regulatory proceedings that materially exceeded the provision
it made for ltabtlttles, PG&E Corporatlon s.and the Utlity’s
financial condmon results of operations and cash flows

' 'would be materially adversely affected.

' In addition, there is a risk that changes in accounting or
tax rules, standards, guidance, policies, or interpretations,

or that changes in management’s. estimates and assutnptions
underlying reported amounts of revenues, expenses, ‘assets

and liabi!itiés, may result in write—offs"impéirments or other
charges that could have a material adverse affect on PG&E .
Corporation’s and the Utility’s financial condition, results

of operations and cash flows,
. v
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CONSOLIDATED: STATEMENTS OF INCOM

PG&E Corporation

Year ended December 31,

(in millions, except per share amounts)

i 2006 2005 . 2004

Operating Revenues ; g . ’

Electric ! $ 8752 57927 -$ 7867

Natural gas' ' 1 _ 3,787 3776 3213

“"Total operating revenues | 9 12539 11,703 11,080

Opcrating Expenses :}‘f . .

Cost of electricity | 2922 2410 - 2,770
. Cost of natural gas !] . _ 2,097 2,191 1,724

Operating and maintenance | : 3,703 3,397, 23871

Recognition of regulatory assets ' : , .= ~ (4,900

Depreciation, amortization, and decommissioning - ' 1,709 1,735 1,497

' Total operating expenses - |. 10431 9733 3962
bpcrating Income © ‘ s .!' ) L 2,108 1970 7,118

Interest income i 188 | 80 .63

Interest expense w . {738) (583} (797)

Other expense, net , - . I . (13) (19) (98)

Income Before Income Taxcs | ' " 1,545 1,448 6,286

Income tax provision ] 1| 554 544 2,466
Income From Continuing Opcratlons - | 991 904 3,820
Discontinued Operations } T ' ‘

3

Gain on disposal of NEGT (net of income tax beneﬁt of $13° m:lhon in 2005 and. )

" income tax expense of$374 million in 2004) ° i - 13 684
Net Income ' | A $ W1 § 917 $ 4504
Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanciing, Basic | 346 372 398
Earnings Pér Common Share frem Continuing Opcra’.tioné;l Bafsic . $ 278~ % 237§ 916
Nét Earnings Per Common Sharc, Basic i : $ 278 § 240 $ 1080
.éarnlngs Per Common Sharc from Contmulng Opcratmns, Dliutcd : $ 276 $ 234 s 8.97
Net Earnings Per Common Share, Diluted $ 276 § 237 $ 1057
Div.idendS'Dchared Per Common Share ' $ 132 § 123 ' Co—

"

See 'accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

B it '
T T AR
PG&E Corporation
Balance at December 31,
(in millions) * 2006 - 2005
ASSETS ' ’ N '
Current Assets _ - o S
Cash and cash equivalents. $§ 45 .8 73
Restricted cash ‘ - ' } 1,4415; 1,546
Accounts réceivable: . S— . : : o
Customers (net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $50 million in 2006 and $77 million in 2005) 2343 - 2422
*  Regulatory balancing®accounts 607- 727
Inventories: * - ' . )
Gas stored underground and fuel oil, 181 231
Materials and supplies 149- 133
Income taxes receivable - 21
Prepaid expenses and other 716 187
Total current assets 5,867 5,980
Property, Plant and Equipment C .
Electric | - : N 24,036 - 22482
o Gas ) 9,115, 8,794
Construction work in progress } I 1,047, © 738
Other -~ . : . . . 16 .- .16
Total propérty, plant and equipment .. ' . 34,214 '32;0'3,'6
Accumulated depreciation . -(12,429) (12,075).
Net property, plant and cquipment 21,785 19,955
Other Noncurrent Assets . R
Regulatory assets 4902 . 5578 -
Nuclear decommissioning funds™ ™ b AT - _ 1,876 1,719
Other red . R . 373- . g4z
Total other noncurrent assets o 7,151 8,139
TOTAL ASSETS $34.803  §34074
; . . T
. i
il' ;) .
See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. \
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|
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS - | e -
PG&E Corporation |

1

l

- Balance at December 31,

{in millions, except share amounts)

_ | 2006 2005
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUlTY i ) '
Currem Liabilities fo b . : Con
Short-term borrowings l ' “$ 759 % 260
Long-term debt, classified as current | 281 c2
'Rate reduction bonds, classified as current ] 290 . 290
Energy recovery bonds, classified as current. . 340 316
Accounts payable: " ) . ' \
“Trade creditors b ‘ . 1,075 .98‘0
. ‘Disputed claims and;customer refunds . 1,709 1,733
- Regulatory balancing accounts \ © 1,030 * 840
Other | 420 - 441
Interest payable f 583 473
Income taxes payable’ 1 102 S
_ Deferred income taxes. | ! 148 181
Other . i . 1,513 1,416
" Total current hablht:cs 1 ' 8,250 6,932
‘Noncurrcm Liabilities || o
Longterm debt . q o 6697 6976
Rate reduction bonds ) i ; - .= 2%
E;lergy recovery 'bonds’ ' | ; 1,936 2,276
Regulatory liabilities | ' i . ] 3,392 3.506
Asset retirement obligations | \ . © ... L466 . 1587 -
Deferred‘income taxes t : ! 2,840 3,ﬁ9Z
Deferred tax credits * + - . . . o 106 112
Other, | ! - 2,053 1,833
Total noncurrent liabilities : ’ . | 18,490 19,672
Commitments and ‘Contingcncics (Notes, 2, 4, 5, 6, 8,9, 13, 15 ;and 17) : ) .
Preferred Stack of Subsidiaries ! : ' 252 252
Preferred Stock | ! | ' Y
Preferred stock, no par va]ue 80,000,000 shares, 5100 par value, 5 000 000 shares, none ISSLlEd - =
Common Sharcholders’ Equity | .
Common stock, no pgar value, authorized 800,000,000 shares, issued 372,803,521 common and '
1,377,538 restricted shares in 2006 and issued 366,868,512 comml?n and 1,399,990 restricted )
shares in 2005 : l ‘5,877 5,827
Common stock held by submdlary, at cost, 24, 665 500 shares ! {718) (718)
- Unearned © compensanqn . " l . - (22}
Reinvested earnings ’ | 2,671 2,139
Accumulated other comprchenswe loss ! % @
" Total common shareholders” equity * ’ 7,811 7.218
" TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY i 1 $34,803 534,074

See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OFf CASH FLOWS
PG&E Carporation

Year ended Decemb.cr 31,

300, S

See accompanying Notes to-the Consolidated Financial Statements.

1

{(in miilions) i . 2006 2005 2004
Cash Flows From Operating Activitics Ty
Net income T§T991 §°917 5 4504
Gain on disposal of NEGT (net of income tax beneﬁt of$13 million in 2005 and income tax expense ° S e e
of $374 million in 2004) . - {13) (684)
Net income from continuing operanons 991 904 3,820
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities: . -
Depreciation, amortization, decommissioning and atfowance for cqulty funds uscd ‘during construction 1,756 1,698 1,497
" Loss from retirement of long-term debt - C = 63
Tax benefit from employee stock plans - * 50 4l
Gain on sale of assets - (1) - (19
Recognition of regulatory assets - —  {4,500)
Deferred income taxes and tax credits, net (285) . (659) 2,607
Other deferred charges and noncurrent liabilities ' 151 33 {519}
Net effect of changes in operating assets and liabilities: . . )
Accounts receivable 130 - . {245) - (85}
Inventories” 32 (60) (12)-
Accounts payable 17~ 257 -0 M
Accrued taxes/income taxes receivable 124 (207) (122)
Regulatory balancing accounts, net 329 254 (590}
Other current assets 273) 29 760
Other current liabilities . (233) 273 - (48)
"Payments authorized by the Bankruptcy Court on amounts classified as Ilabllmcs subject to compromise ™~ L e (1022)
Other . (14), 82 110
Net cash provided by operating activitics 2714 2409 7 1,856
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Capital expenditures ; (2.402)  (1,804) * (1,559)
Net proceeds from sale of assets 17 39 - 35
Decrease (increase) in restricted cash 115 434 (1,216}
Proceeds from nuclear decommissioning trust sales 1,087 . 2918 1,821
Purchases of nuclear decommlssmnmg trust investments (1,244)°  (3,008) - (1.972).
Othier - "5 C@n
Net cash used in investing activities (2427)  (1,398) (2.918)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities | . A
Borrowings under accounts receivable facility and working capital facility 350 260
Repayments under accounts receivable facility and working capital facility a3y - 300y - =
Net issuance of commercial paper, net of discount of $2 million 458 - . -
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt, net of issuanice costs of $3 million in 2005 and $107 million in 2004 At 451 - 7, 742"
Proceeds from issuance of energy recovery bonds, net of issuance costs of $21 millien in 2005 : - .2 =
Long-term debt matured, redeemed or repurchased . L - (1 556) (9 054)
Rate reduction bonds matured (290) . T (290)"
Energy recovery bonds matured _(316) 7 - (140) -
Preferred stock with mandatory redemption provisions redeemed — .0 (i22), -, (15
Preferred stock without mandatory redemption provisions redeemed - 75 -
Common stock tssued : 3L .- 243, 162
Common stock repurchased . (114)™. =(2,188) "z '(378) -
Commeon stock dividends paid " 456) (334 . -,
Other 3 32 - (9
Net cash used in Anancing activities (544 (1,270)  (1,624)
Net change in cish and cash equivalents 257y (259) (2,686)
Cash and cash cquivalents at January 1 713 972 3,658
Cash and cash equivalents at December 31 $'456. $ 713 0§ 972
Supplemental disclosures of cash How information TR T v e
Cash received for: * e . e s N
. Reorganization interest income MR SUNC T SR S 1
Cash paid for: . e e rer s+ D e e N .
Interest (et of amounts capnallzed) . 503 403 646
“Income taxes paid, net Coae 736 1,392 128
Reorganization professional fees and expenses ‘ - - - 6l
Supplemental disclosures of noncash investing and financing activities . '
Common stock dividends declared but not yet paid 3 $ nuz $ 115§ -
Transfer of liabilities and other payables subject to compromise to operating assets and liabilities S - (2877
_ Assumption of capital lease obligation 408 - -
Transfer of Gateway Generating Station asset’ 69 - -

1
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS'’ EQUITY
PG&E Corporat:on

#, '

B

See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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e
' . . , Accumulated Total .
Common Reinvested " Other Common Compre
-t Stock . Earnings Comprehensive ‘Share-  hensive
’ K __ME' - Held by Unearned {Accumulated Income * | holders'  Income
* (in millions, except share amounts) i Shares Amount, Subsidiary. Compensition Deficit) . {Loss) * Equity ' (Loss)
Balance at December. 31, 2003 416,520,282  $6,468 .+, $(650) '$(20) - $(1,458) $(85) $4.215
Net income - T 4,504 T 4504 $4504
Mark-to-market ac_fiustmcnts for hedging e ' -
transactions in accordance with
SFAS No. 133 (net of income tax -, ryai ‘
expense of $2 million) ‘ - - - - - 3 3 3
NEGT losses reclassified to earnings upon ; '
-elimination of equity interest by \
" PG&E Corporation {net of income , ‘
tax expense of $43 mllilon) I . - - - T = - 77 77 77
Other ] R - - - - | | 1
Comprehensive income, " I ) , $4,585
Common stock issued 8,410,058 162 ° - - - - 162
Common stock repurchased (10,783,200 (167} - - {183) - (350)
Common stock held by Subs:d:ary - L~ [ (28) — - — (28)
Common stock warrants exercised 4,003,312 - - - - -
Common restricted stock’ issued 498,910 16 - (16) - - -
Cominon restricted stock cancelled (33,721) m - - ) 1 - - -
Common restricted stock amortization - - — o9 - - 9
Tax benefit from emp]oyee stock plans - 41 e .- - - . 4
Other .- (1) - i - - - - (1)
Balance at December 31, 2004 418,616,141 6,518 (718) '(26) 2,863 S(4)- 8,633 .
Net income : - - - - 917 - 917§ 917 -
‘Minimum penslon Itabilicy ad]ustment . -
(net of income rax benefit of $3 million) : - - - - - (4) (4) RG]
Comprehensive income $ 913
- Common stock issued - . 10,264,535 247 - " - — < 247
Common stock repurchased L (61,139,700) (998) - - {1,190 - (2.188)
Common stock warrants exercised .295,919 - - L= - - -
Common rcstnctcd stock issued 347,710 13 - (13) - - -
Comimon restricted stock cancelled {116,103) ° (4) - "4 - - -
Common- restricted stock amortization  + — - - 13 - - 13
Common stock dividends declared and pald - - - b= {334}, - (334)
Colnmon stock dividends declared but ' ' .
* not yet paid - - - - {115) - - (115}
"Tax benefit from cmployee stock plans = 50 —. - - - 50 .
Other ‘ - 1 - | - (2) - (1)
Balance at December 31 2005 368,268,502 5,827 {718) (22) 2,139 (8). 7.218
Net income .- - — 991 - 991 5§ 991
Comprehensive income = . , $ 9”1
Common stock issued " 5,399,707 110 - - - - 110
ASR settlement of stock repurchased in 2005 - (114} - - - - C(114)
Common stock warrants exercised Y51,890 - — = L — -
Common restricted stock, unearned L
compensation reversed in accordance ! \
with' SFAS No. 123R ‘ - (22) - 22 - - o=
Common restricted stock issued 566,255 21 — = - - 21
Common restricted stock cancelled (105,295) A1) . - o - iy (1) 4
Common restricted stock amortization - 20 - — — = 20
Common stock dividends declared and paid , - - - - (342) - (342)
Commen stock dividends declared but- . . )
not yet paid - - - - (117 v — (117
Tax benefit from employee stock plans - 35 - = - - 35
Adoption of SFAS No. 158 {(net oflncomc : N .
tax benefit of SS mllllon) - - - - —_ - (1) (1) .
Other . . ¢ - 1 I A = 1 .
Balance at December 31, 2006 | ° 374,181,059 $5877  $(N18)  $'— $ 2,671 $(19) $7811




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOM‘E
- Pacific Gas and Electric Company .

-

Year ended December 31, '

(in miflions) _ 2006 2005 2004
Operating Revenues N
Electric . $ 8752 $7927 3 7867
Natural gas 3,787 3,777 3,213
Total operating revenues 12,539 11,704 11,080
Operating Expenses :
Cost of electricity - ! 2922 2410 2,770
Cost of natural gas 2,097 2,191 1,724
Operating and maintenance 3,697 3,399 - 2,848
Recognition of regulatory assets . - - {4,900}
Depreciation, amortization and decommissioning - 1,708 1,734 1,494
“Total operating expénses 10,424 9734 3936
Operating Income 2,115 1,970 7,144
_Interest income L 175 76 "5
Interest expense - (710) {554) {667)
-Other income, net 7 16 16
Income Before Income Taxes 1,587. 1,508 6,543
Income tax provision 602 574 2,561
" . Net Income _ , " 985 934 3982
Preferred stock dividend requirement T4 -16 c21
Income Available for Common Stock - - $ 971 $ 918 § 3961

See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. -
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' CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Pacific Gas and Electric Company

Balance at December 31,

(in millions)

2006 2005

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents:
Restricted cash :
Accounts receivable:

$ 70 3 463
1,415 1,546

Customers {net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $50 million in 2006 and $77 million in 2005) - - 2343 2422

Related parties , : oo B ] ©3

Regulatory balancing accounts 607 . 727
Inventories:

Gas stored underground and fuel oil 181 23

Materials and supplies - 149 133
Income taxes receivable : 20 48
Prepaid expenses and other ' 714 183

Total current assets 5505 - 5756

Property, Plant and Equipmcnt ‘
Electric
Gas

- - . !
Construction work in progress

24,036 22,482
‘ 9,115 8,794
1,047 738

Total property, plant and equipment
Accumulated depreciation

34,198 32014
(12,415) ~ {12,061)

Net property, plant and equipment

21,783 . 19953

Other Noncurrent Assets
Regulatory assets

Nuclear decommissioning funds
Related parties receivable

Other

-

4,902 3,578
L876 1,719
25 23
280 754

Total other noncurrent assets

7,083 8,074

TOTAL ASSETS

- $34,371 533,783

See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS ’
Pacific Gas and Electric Company

Balance at December 31,

(in millions, except share amounts) 2006 2005
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUlTY
Current Liabilities : . .
.Short-term borrowings $-759 5 260
Long-term debt, classified as current 1 2
Rate reduction bonds, classified as current - . 290 290
Energy recovery bonds, classified as current - ' 340 316
Accounts payable:
Trade creditors 1,075 980
Disputed claims and customer refunds 1,709 1,733
Related parties 40 7.,
Regulatory balancing accounts’ 1,030 840
Other 402 423
Interest payable ¢ 570 460
Deferred income taxes - 118 161
Other ' 1,346 1,255
Total current liabilities ‘ 7,680 6,757
Noncurrent Liabilities
Lon.g-term debt 6,697 6,696
Rate reduction bonds - 290
Energy recovery bonds 1,936 2,276
Regulatory liabilittes _ , 3,392 3,506
Asset retirement obligations ‘ 1,466 1,587
Deferred income taxes 2,972 3,218
Deferred tax credits 106 112
Other ' 1,922 1691
Total noncurrent liabilities ' 18,4917 19,376
Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 2, 4, 5, 6, 8, 9, 13, 15 and 17) -
Sharcholders’ Equity
Preferred stock without mandatory redemption provisions: v
.Nonrcdccmablc. 5.00% to 6.00%, outstanding 5,784,825 shares ' 145 145
Redeemable, 4.36% to 5.00%, cutstanding 4,534,958 shares 113 113
Common stock, $5 par value, authorized 800,000,000 shares, issued 279,624,823 shares in 2006 and 2005 1,398 1,398
Common stock held by subsidiary, at cost, 19,481,213 shares - (475) (475}
Additional paid-in capital ' 1,822 1,776
Reinvested earnings 5,213 4,702 -
Accumulated other comprchenswe loss (16) (9
Total sharcholders’ equity '8,200 7,650
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER.S' EQUITY $34,371  $33,783

See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. .

»
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS . S
Pacific Gas and Electric Company

Year ended December 31,

' 1

See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Stitements.

1i6

(in, millions) 2006 2005 2004
Cash Flows From Operating Activities .
Net income . $ 985 S 934 §3,982
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities: ) ) :
Depreciation, amertization, decommissioning and allowance for equlry funds used during construction 1,755 1,697 1,494 -
Gain on sale of assets (11} - -
Recognmon of regulatory assets ] - - (4,900}
" Deferred income taxes and tax credits, net ' M (287) {636) 2,580
* Other deferred charges and noncurrent liabilities ) . . 116 21 (391}
" Net effect of changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable’ 128 -{245) (85)
" Inventories 34 (60) {(12)
Accounts payable ‘ 21 257 . 273
Accrued taxes/income taxes receivable 28 (150) 52
Regulatory balancing accounts, net 329 . 254 {590)
Other current assets (273) 2 55
Other current liabilities -, (235) 7 395
Payments authorized by the Bankruptcy Coun on amounts classified as liabilities subject to compromlse - o= (L,022)
Osher . (13} 19 7
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,577 2366 1838
Cash Flows From Investing Activities '
Capital expenditures ' (2,402)  (1,803)  (1,559)
" Net proceeds from sale of assets , 17 39 35
Decrease {increase) in restricted cash ! 15 434 (1,577)
Proceeds from nuclear decommissioning trust salcs 1,087 2,918 1,321
Purchases of nuclear decommissioning trust investments (12‘,4,4)‘ (3008 (1,972)
Otheér | A 17 a1 @7)
.Net cash used in investing activities (2,426) (1359~ (3,279)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities S '
Borrowings under accounts receivable facility and working Caplta] facility 350 260 -300
Repayments under accounts receivable facility and working capital facility : ' (310) (300) -
Net issuance of commercial paper, net of discount of $2 million . : ) - 458 - -
Proceeds from issuance of [ong-term debt, net of issuance costs of 53 million in 2005 and $107 million in 2004 - 451 7,742
Proceeds from issuance of energy recovery bonds, net of issuance costs of 521 million in 2005 - 2,711 -
Longterm debt matured, redeemed or. repurchased -+ ) - {1,554)  (8,402)
Rate reduction bonds matured . . {290) (290) - (2%0)
Energy recovery bonds matured . , (316) (140} -
Preferred stock dividends paid - {14 (16} (90)
Common stock dividends paid (460) (445) —
Preferred stock with mandatory redemption provisions redeemed . o= - 122) (15}
Preferred stock without mandatory redemption provisions redeemed ' - (37 -
Common stock repurchased - . : - - {1,910) - -
Other . 38 °. .. 65 -
Net cash used in financing activities (544 (1,327) - (759)
Net charge in cash and cash equivalents (393) (320} . (2,196)
Cash and cash equivalents at January 1 ’ . ' 463 | 783 2,979
Cash and cash cquivalents at December 31 $ 0 % 463 . 5 783
Supplemental disclosures of cash How information : ‘
Cash received far; - ’ -
- Reorganization interest income . ) S T T T {1
Cash paid for: : ‘ '
Interest (net of amounts capltallzed) : 476 ', 390 512
Income taxes paid, net . 897 1,397 109
Reorganization professional.fees and expenses - - 61
Supplemental disclosures of noncash investing and financing activities
Transfer of liahilities and ‘other payables subject to compromise to operating assets arid liabilities ' $ - 5 - 32377
Equity.contribution for settlement of plan of reorganization, or POR, payable - - {129)
Assumption of capital lease-obligation * . 408 - -
Transfer of Gateway Generating Station asset |, 69 - -




See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF‘SHA_REHOLDERS" EQUITY
Pacific. Gas and Electric Company. . '
_ Preferred Stock L Accumulated o
T .- © Without Common * Other Total Compre
’ ) Mandatory Additional Stock 7 Comprehensive Share- hensive
‘ Redemption  Common Paid-in Held by  Reinvested Income  holders’ Income
{in millions) Provisions Stock Capital' * Subsidiary Earnings - {Loss} + . Equity (Loss)
Balance at December 31, 2003 $294  $1,606 $1,964 $(475)  $1,706 - $-(6) $5,089 .
Net income - - - - o - 3,982 (- 3982 $3,982
Mark-to-market adjustments ‘ ‘
for hedging transactions in i
accordance \:vi:h SFAS No. 133
(net of income tax expense _ . , _ .
of $2 million) - ) R — - — - ) 3 ‘ 3 3
Comprehensive income ' ' $3,985
Equity contribution for settlement ’
. of POR payable (net of income , . )
taxes of $52 million} | - - 77 - - - 77
Preferred stock-dividend - . - - - - {21) . - (21)
Balance at DFccmber 31, 2004 294 1,606 2,041 (47.'5) 5,667 3y 9130 o
Net income ° . : - - - , - 934 .= 94 % 934
Minimum pension liability :
adjustment (net of income = .
tax benefit of $4 million) - - — - - - . (8) (6) (6)
' ¢ . ‘ . _
- Comprehensive income . . $ 928
. Common stock repurchased -~ - (208) (266) - " {1,436} - {1,910)
Common stock dividend’ . — - — - (445) = (445)
Preferred stack redéemed (36) . - 1 -, 2) R (37)
" Preferred stock dividend - - - - (16) - (16)
Balance at December 31, 2005 258" 1,398 1,776 @75) . 4702 . 9) 7,650
Net income . ) — - - - © 985 - 985 § 985
Minimum pension liability ' . '
- adjustment (net of income
tax expense of-$2 million) - - - - - 3 3 3
Comprehensive income $ 988
Tax benefit from employee '
stock plans ’ ' - - T 46 — - 3 - 46
Common stock dividend - T — - — - (460) - —  (460)
Preferred stock dividend . L - - - - ) - . (14
Adoption of SFAS No. 158 : .
(net of income tax benefit - ' .o
of $7 million) o - - - - - o) (10) -
. Balance at December 31, 2006 7 §258 $1,398 ° $1,822 - $(475) $5,213 $(16) $8,200
N \ :
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

.

NOTE 1: ORGANIZATION
AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

PG&E Corporation isa holding company‘whose. prifﬂary
purpose is to hold interests in energy-based businesses.
PG&E Corporation conducts its business principally through
Pacific Gas and Electric Company, or the Utlity, a public
utility operating in northern and central California. The
Utility engages in the businesses of electricity and natural gas
distribution, electricity generation, procurement and trans-
.mission, and natural gas procuremient, transportation and
storage, The Utility is primarily regulated by the California
Public Utilities Commission, or CPUC, and the Federal
Energy Regulatory Commission, or FERC.

As discussed further in Note 15, on April 12, 2004, the
Utility’s plan of reorganization under.the provisions of -
‘Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code, or Chapter 11,
became effective, and the Utility emerged from Chapter 11.
The U.S. Bankruptcy Court for the Northern District of
California, or Bankruptcy Court, which oversaw the Utility’s
Chapter 11 proceeding, retains jurisdiction, among other

things, to resolve the remaining disputed Chapter 11 claims.

This is a combined annual report of PG&E Corporation
and the Utifiry. Therefore, the Notes to the Consclidated
Financial Statements apply to both PG&E Corporation and
the Utility. PG&E Corporation’s Consolidated Financial .
Statements include the accounts of PG&E Corporation, the
Utility, and other wholly owned and controiled subsidiaries.
The Utility’s Consolidated Financial Statements include its
accounts and those of its wholly owned and controlled sub-
sidiaries and variable interest entities for which it is subject
to a majority of the risk of loss or ga}n. All intercompany
transactions have been climinated from the Consolidated
Financial Statements. ‘ t-

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, or GAAF, requires management to make’
estimates and assumptions. These estimates and assumptions
affect the reported amounts of révenues,_expenses, assets and
liabilities and the disclosure of contingencies and include,
but are not limited to, estimates and assumptidns used in
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determining the Utility’s regulatory asset and liability bal-.
ances based on probability assessments of régulatory recovery,
revenues earned but not vet billed (including delayed bill- _
ings), disputed claims, asset retirement obligations, allowance
for doubtful accounts recetvable, provisions for losses that
aré deemed ;J:r_obable from environmental remediation
liabilities, pension liabilities, severance costs, mark-to-
market accouhting under Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards, or SFAS, No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended, or SFAS
No, 133, income tax related liabilities, litigation, the fair
value of finaricial instruments, and the Utility’s assessment
of impatrment of long-lived assets and certain identifiable
intangibles to be held and used whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of its
assets might not be _recovér:ible. As these estimates and
assumptions involve judgments involving a wide range of
factors, including future regulatory decisions and economic
conditions that are difficult to predict, actual results could”
differ from these estimates. PG&E Corporation’s and _
the Utility’s Consolidated Financial Statements reflect all -
adjustments that management believes are necessary for

the fair presentation of their financial position and results
of operations for the periods presented. ‘

NOTE 2: SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT | :
ACCOUNTING POLICIES )

The accounting policies used by PG&E Corporation and
the Utility include those necessary for rate-regulated enter-
prises, which reflect the ratemaking policies of the CPUC
and the FERC,

]

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Invested cash and other short-term investments with
original maturities of three months or less are considered
cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are stated at cost, which -
approximates fair value. PG&E Corporation and the

Utility primarily invest their cash in money market funds

" and in short-term obligations of the U.S. government and

1ts agencies.

PG&E Corporation had four account balances with
institutional money market funds that were each greater
thard 10% of PG&E Corporation’s and the Utility’s total .
cash and cash equivalents balance at December 31, 2006,




RESTRICTED CASH

Restricted cash includes Utility amounts held in escrow
pending the resolution of remaining disputed Chapter 11
claims and collateral required by the California Independent
System Operator, or CAISO, the State of California and
other counterparties. The Utility also 'provi-des deposits to
counterparties in the normal course of operations and under
. certain third- party agreements.- .

+

ALLOWANCE FOR o
DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
PG&E Corporanon and the Utility recognize an allow-
ance for doubtful accounts to record accounts receivable.at
estimated net realizable value. The allowance is determined
" based upon a yar_iet‘y‘of‘f?ctors, including historical write-off
experience,.délinquerrcy rates, current ecoflomic conditions
and assessment of customer collectibility. If circumstances
require changes in t_he_Utility’s assumptions, allowance
estimates are adjusted accordingly. The customer accounts
receivable write-offs are recovered in. rates, but .limit_ed to
amounts approved by the CPUC, with any excéss being
borne by shareholders. In.2006, there was no significant
impact to the sharcholders. :

INVENTORIES -

Inventories are valued at average cost and include materials,
supplles and gas stored underground. Materials and supplies

are charged to inventory when purchased and then cxpensed

or capitalized to plant, as appropriate, when instatled.
Materials reserves are made for obsolete wnventory. Gas
stored underground is charged to inventory at current costs
when purchased and then expensed at average costs when
distributed to customers. , -

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT '~

Property, plant and equipment are reported at thelr original
cost, Original cost includes: -

» Labor and materials;
« Construction overhead; and

+ Allowance for funds used :during construction, or'AFUDC.

AFUDC

AFUDC 1s the estimated cost. of debt and equrty used

to finance regulated plant addicions that can be recorded

as part of the cost of construction projects. AFUDC is
recoverable from customers through rates over the life of
the related property once the property is placed in service. .
The Utility recorded AFUDC of approximatély $47 million
and $20 million related to equity and debt, reslsectively, .
during 2006, $37 million and $14 million related to’equity
and debt, respectively, during 2005, and $20 million and

- $12 million related to equity and debt, respectively, during
2004. PG&E Corporation on a stand-alone basis did not
have any capitalized interest or AFUDC in 2006, 2005

and 2004. - . e ' o

The Utility’s composne deprecmtlon rate was 3:09% in 2006

cost of assets and a component for estimated future removal

Deprecmtlon

3.28% in 2005 and 3.42%- in 2004..

PR

Gross Plant

. t . As of Estimated
{(in millions) December 31, 2006 Useful Lives
Electricity generating facilities _$ 2,068 15 to 44 years
Electricity distribution facilities 15,305 16 to 38 years
Electricity transmission 4,397 | 40 to 70 years
Natural gas distribution facilities * 5,028 - 23 to 54 years
Natural gas transportation 3,016 25 to 45 years
Natural gas storage"l . 48 25 1o 48 years
Other ’ 3,289 5 to 40 years

$33,151 S

Total

The useful lives of the Utility’s property, plant and
eqﬁipment are authorized by the CPUC and the FERC -
and depreciation expense is included within'the recover-
able costs of service included in rates charged to customers.”
Depreciation experlse includes a component for the original

and remediation costs, net of any salvage value at retirement.
The Utility has a separate rate it collects from customers for

the accrual of its recorded obllganon for nuclear decommis-
sioning that is mcluded n deprectatlon amortization and
decommissioning expense in the accompanying Consolidated

Statements of lncome

PG&E Corporation and the Utility charge the ongmal .
cost. of retired plant less salvage value to accumulated depre-
ciation upon retirement of plant in service in accordance
with SFAS No. 71 “Accounting for the Effects of Certain
Types of Regulation” as amended, or SFAS No. 7. PG&E
Corporation and the Utility expense repair and maintenance

costs as incurred.

Nuclear Fuel

Property, plant and equipment also includes nuclear fuel
inventories. Stored nuclear fuel mventory is stated at B
weighted average ‘cost, Nuclear fuel'in the reactor is expensed

- as used based on the amount of energy output.
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Capitalized Software Costs - . )
PG&E Corporation and the Utility account for internal soft-

ware in’accordance with-Statement of Position, “Accounting ,
for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or. Obtained-
for Internal Use,” or SOP 98-1: .

B ]
e T

. Under SOP 981, PG&E Corporation and the Utlhry
capltahze costs incurred during the apphcatlon development
stage of internal use software pro;ects to property, plant and
" equipment. Capitalized software cobts totaled $237 mlIIIOI'l

at December 31, 2006 and $201 million at December 31,
2005, net- of accumulated amortization of approximately - .
$197 million at December 31, 2006 and $168 million at
‘December 31, 2005.-PG&E Corporation anII the Utility
expense capltallzed software costs ratably over the expected
lives of the software ranging from 3 to 15 years com-

mencmg upon operatlonai use.

'REGULATION AND STATEMENT :
. OF FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS NO. 71 °

PG&E Corporation and the Utlhry account for the financial
effects of regulation in accordance with SFAS No. 71. SFAS
No. 71 applies to regulated entities whose rates are deﬂgned
to recover the costs of provrdmg service. SFAS No. 71

applies to all of the Ut]lltys operations.

“Under SFAS No. 71; incurred costs that wouid otherwise
_be charged to expense may be capitalized and recorded as
regulatory assets if it is probable that the incurred costs w1ll
be recovered 1 in rates in the future. The regulatory assets
are amortized over future periods consistent with the inclu-
. sion of costs in authorized customer rates. If costs that a
regulated enterprise expects to incur in the future are being
recovered through rates, SFAS No. 71 fequires that the
regulated enterprise record thoseexpected future costs as
regulatory liabilities. In addition, amounts rhat' are probable
of being credited or refunded to customers in the future
. must be recorded as regulatory'liabilitif:S'

To the extent that portlons of the Utility’s operations
cease to be subject to SFAS No. 71 Or recovery is no longer
probable as a result of changes in regulation or other rea-
sons, the related regulatory assets and liabilities are written -
“off. No such write-offs tepk place i1 2006, 2005 and 2004.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Other 1ntang1ble assets consrst of hydroelcctnc facility
licenses and other agreements with lives ranging from 19
to 40 years. The gross carrymg amount of the hydroeleetnc

faclhty licenses and other agreements was approxnmately
.$73 million at December 31 2006 and December 31,
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2005. The accumulated amortization was approximately -

I$28 million at December 31, 2006 and $25 million ‘at

December 31 2005

The UtlIll’yS amortrzatlon expense related to mtanglble
assets was approxlmately $3 million' in 2006, $3 million-

'

: m 2005 and $4 mlll1on n 2004 The estimated annual

amortlzatlonlexpense based on the December 31, 2006,
intangible asset balance for the Unlity’s lntangrble assets’
for 2007 through 2011 is approximately $3 million each
year. Intangib;le assets are recorded to Other Noncurrent
Assets on tlhe1 Consolidated Balance Sheets,

INVESTMENTS IN AFFILIATES
The Utility has investments in unconsolidated affiliates,

- which are malnly limited partnerships engaged in the pur-
. chase of low-i 1ncome residential real estate property, The'

equity method of accounting'is applied to the Utility’s
investment in’ these parrnershlps Under the equity method,
the Utility’s share of equity, 1ncome or losses of these
partnerships i, reflected as other operatmg income of
expense in its Consolidated Statements of Income. As of
December 31, _2006 the Utility’s recorded i lrlves_tment mn
these entities totaled approximately $4 million. As a limited
partner, the Utility’s exposure to potentlal loss 1s 11m1ted to -
its investment in each partnershlp ‘

CONSOLIDATION OF
VARIABLE 'INTEREST ENTITIES
The Financial® Accountmg Standards Board, or FASB

; Interpretatlon No. 46 (revised December 2003)

or FIN 46R,
prOVICIES that'an entity is a variable interest entlty, or VIE

“Consolldatlon of Variable I[nterest Ent]tles

if it does nat have sufficient equity investment at’ rrsk

“or if the holders of the entity’s equity instruments fack the

essential characteristics of a controlling financial interest.
FIN 46R requires that the holder subject to a majority of -
the risk of loss from a VIE’s activities must consolidate the
VIE. However; if no holder has a majority of the risk of foss,
then a holder entitled to receive a majority of the entity’s
residual returns would consolidate the entity. In accordance:
with FIN 46RI the Utility consolidated the assets, lrabilities
and non-controlhng interests of a low-income housing part;,
nership that was determined to be a VIE under FIN 46R.

* The impact of the VIE was ‘immaterial to the Consolidated.

Financial Statements and operations of PG&E-Corporation

- and the Utshty




The nature of power purchase agreements is such that the
Utility could have a significant variable interest in a power '
purchase agreement counterparty if that entity is a VIE
owning one or more plants that sell substantially all of
. their output to the Utility, and the contract price for power
is correlated with the plant’s variable costs of production.

As of December 31, 2006, the Utility did not Kave any power
purchase agreements meeting these crlterla

s

IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED -ASSETS

The carrying values of long-lived assets are evaluated in
accordance with the prévisioﬁs of SFAS No. 144, “Accounting
for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets,” or SFAS No. 144
In accordance with SFAS No. 144, PG&E Corporation and .
the Utility evaluate the carrying amounts of iong lived assets
for impairment whenever events occur or circumstances
change that may affect the recoverability or the estimated *
life of long-lived assets. '

ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS
PG&E Corporation and the Utility account for asset
retirement obligations in-accordance with SFAS No. 143,
“Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations,” or SFAS
No: 143, and FASB Interpretation No. 47, “Accounting for
Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations — an Interpreta-
tion of FASB Statement No. 143" or FIN 47. SFAS No. 143
requires that an asset retirement obligation be recorded at
fair value in the pcriod in whlch it is incurred if a reason- .
able estimate of falr value can be made. In the same period,-
the associated .asset retirement costs are capitallzed as part i
_of the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset. In
each subsequent period, the lability is accreted to its pres-
ent value; and the capitalized cost is depreciated over the
useful life of the longlived asset. Rate-regulated entities may
recognize regulatory assets or liabilities as a result of timing
differences between the recognition of costs as recorded in-
accordance with SFAS No. 143 and costs recovered thrOug}l
. the ratemaking process. FIN 47 clarifies that if a legal
obligation to perform an asset retirement obligation exists
but performance 1s conditional upon a future event, and
the obligation can be reasonably estimated, then a liability
should be recogmzed in accordance with SFAS No. 143.

The Utility has also |dentlﬁed its nuclear generation and
certam fossil fuel generation facilities as havmg asset retire-
ment obllganons under SFAS No. 143. In accordance with
FIN 47, the Utility recognized asset retirement obhgatlons
related to ashestos contamination in buildings, potential
- site restoration at certain hydroelectric facilities, fiiel .
storage tanks and contractual obligations to restore leased
property to pre-lease condition. Additionally, the Utility

-

" hydroelectric facilities until operation-of+a facility therefore

recognized asset retirement obligations related to the

California Gas Transmission pipeline, Gas Distribution,
Electric Distribution and Electric Transmission system _assets.‘

A reconciliation of the changes in thc 'ARO liability is
as follows: .

{in millions)’

ARO liability at December 31, 2004 ) $1,301
Recognition of FIN 47 obl:ganon 203
_Accretion expense * 85
Liabilities settled (2)
ARO Hlability at December 31, 2005 1,587
Revision in estimated cash flows (204)
Accretion expense -, ' T 98
Liabilities settled (15)
ARQ liability at December 31, 2006 $1,466 °

The Utility has identified additional asset retirement
obligations for which a reasonable estimate of fair value
could not be made. The Uulity has not recognized a liability
related to these additional obhgatlons which include: obliga-
tions to restore land to its pre-use condmon under the terms
of certain land rights agreements, removal ‘and proper dis-

posal of lead-based- pajnt contained in some, PG&E facilivies,

removal of certain commumcat1on5 equipment f from leased -
p_ropcrty and ‘retirement activities associated with substation
and certain hydroelectric facilities. The Utility was not able
to reasonably estimate the asset retirement obligation asso-
ciated with these assets because the settlement date of the
obligation was indeterminate and information sufficient to
reasonably estimate the settlement date or range of settlement
dates does not exist, Land rights, communication equip-
ment leases and substation. facilities will be maintained for
the foreseeable future, and the Utility cannot reasonably
estimate the settlement date or range of éettlement datés for

.the obligations associated with these assets. The Utility does

not have information available that specifies,which facilities
contain lead-based paint and therefore cannot reasonably
estimate the settlement date(s) associated with the obliga-
tion. The Utility will maintain and continue to operate-its

becomes uneconomic. The opératioh"(')f the majority of the
Utility's hydroelectric facilities is currently and for the fore-
seeable future econormc, and thé sert]ement date cannot be
determined at this time. '

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair value of a financial mstrumcnt represents the

amount at which the instrument could be exchanged-in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced sale or liquidation. Thé fair valie may be significantly |
different than the carrying amount of financial instruments
that are recorded at historical amounts. '

-

121




_ PG&E Corporation and the Utility use the following

Energy Recovery Funding, LLC’s energy recovery Eonds,
or ERBs, and PG&E Corporation’s 9.50% Convertible

methods and assumptions in estimating fair value for
financial instruments: ' Subordinated Notes, were based on quoted market prices
obtained from the Bloomberg financial mformanon system

*The fair values of cash and cash equi ];:'t,et'td h
1T Vv UESO €asn an as qmva nts, restrictec cas at December 31 2006

and deposits, net accounts receivable, price risk manage- ‘ o
"ment assets and liabilities, short-term borrowings, accounts The carrying amount and fair value of PG&E Corpora-
payable, customer depos1ts and the Utility's variable rate tion's and the Utility’s ﬁnanc:lal mstruments are as follows
pollution control- bond loan agreements approximate their ~ (the table below excludes financial instruments with fair
carrying values as of December 31, 2006 and 2005; and values that approximate their carrying values, as these

instruments are presented at their carrying value in the

* The fair val f the Utility’s fixed rate serii t . :
e fair values of the Utility’s fixed rate senior notes Consolidated Balance Sheets):

and fixed rate pollutioﬂ control bond loan agreements,
PG&E Funding, LLC’s rate reduction bonds, PG&E

y . ) . At December 3],

1 , 3y 2006 2005
. Carrying . Fair Carrymg, Fair
(in miliions) . ! Amount _ Value Amoufit  * Value
Debt {Note 4): ‘ ) . ! R ' } o o :
. PG&E Corporation” Co e ' . : $ 280 '$ 937 % 280 § 783
Utility ! . ‘ 5,629 --. 5,616 5,628 5,720 -
Rate reduction bonds (Note 5) - ] 290 292 580 591
Encrgy recovery bonds (Notc 6) 2276 2239 - 2592 2,558

GAINS AND LOSSES ON DEBT EXTINGUISHMENTS .

Gains and losses on debt extinguishments assoctated with regulated operations that are subject to the provisions of SFAS
No. 71 are deferred and amortized over the remaining original amortization period of the debt reacquired, consistent wnh_
recovery of costs through regulated rates. Gains and losses on debt extinguishrrients associated.with unregulated operations
are fully recogniied at the time such debt is. reacquired and are reported as a component of interest expense.”

ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) )
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) reports a measure for accumulated changes in equlty of an enterpnse that -
result from transactions and other economic events, other than transactions with shareholders. The following table sets forth

RO

the changes in each componem of accumulated other comprehenswe ihcome (loss):

s Hedging Foreign  : Minimum Accumulated
Transactions in Currency Pension .. Other
: . Accordance with  Translation Liability Adoption of, Comprehensive
(in millions) ) SFAS No. 133 Adjustment  Adjustment  SFAS No.-158  Other Income (Loss)
Balance at December 31, 2003 5 $- 54 $ - 55— ‘$(85) -
Period change in: L . . e C
Mark-to-market adjustments for hedgmg transactions . o o . ’ .
in accordance with SFAS No, 133 . . . 3 — - = = 3
NEGT losses reclassifted to earnings upon ellmmauon . b . ’ ’
of equity interest by PG&E Corporation 77 - R = - 77
Other o - - - - 1 .o
Balance at December 31, 2004 , n - 4 - 1 (@
Period change in: . ’
Minimumn pension llablllry adjustment ) - - (%) - - 4
Other . 1 - - - (D -
Balance at December 31, 2005 . - - - (8) - - (8)
Period change in: T " ; ) v e :
Adoption of SFAS No. 158 . - . - 8 (19) - (11)
Balance at December 31, 2006 - ‘ P . $- $— (19)  $-~ $(19)
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Accumulated.other comprehensive income (loss) included

ios;és related to discontinued operations recognized in con-
necnon w1th PG&E Corporatlon s cancellation of its equlry
interest in National Energy & Gas Transmission, Inc or
NEGT, of approximately $77 million at December 31, 2004,
Excluding the activity related to NEGT, there was no mate-
rial difference between PG&E Corporation’s and the Utility's
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss} for the
pertods presented above I

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Electnury revenues, which are compnsed of fevenue from
generation, transmission and distribution services, are billed
to the Utility’s customers at the CPUC-approved ‘bundled”
electricity rate. The “bundled” electricity rate also includes
the rate component set by the FERC for electric transmis-
sion services. ‘Natural gas revenues, which are compnsed

of transmission and distribution services, are also billed at
CPUC—approved rates, The Utility’s revenues are recognized

as electricity and natural’gas are.delivered, and include

amounts for services rendered but not yet billed at the
end of each year. :

As further discussed in Note 17, in January 2001, the

California Department of Water Resources, or DWR, began

purchasmg electricity to meet the portion of demand of
the California investorowned electric utilities that was not
being satisfied from their own generation facilities and exist-
ing e!ectricityj contracts. Under California law, the DWR is
deemed to sell the electricity directly to the Utility's retail
customers, not to the Utility. The Utility acts as a pass-
through entity for electricity purchased by the DWR on
behalf of its customers. Although charges for clectncnty pro-
vided: by the DWR are included in the amounts the Utility
bills its customers, the Utility deducts the amounts passed-
through to the DWR from its electricity revenues, The pass-
through amounts are based on the quantities of electricity
provided by the DWR that are consumed by customers at
the CPUC—approved remittance rate, These pass-through
amounts are excluded from the Utility’s electricity revenues
in its Consolidated Statements of Income.

assumed to have been purchased, is included in weighted

" tized over the life of the related property. Other tax credits,

EARNINGS PER SHARE

PG&E Corporation applies the treasury stock method of
reflecting the dilutive effect of outstanding stock- based com:
pensation in the calculation ‘of diluted earnings per common
share, or EPS, in accordance with SFAS No. 128, “Earnings
Per Share,” or SFAS No. 128. Under SFAS No. 128, PG&E
Corporation is required to assume that shares underlying
stock options, other stock-based compensation and warrants
are issued and that the proceeds received by PG&E Corpo-
ration from the exercise of these options and warrants are
assumed to be used to purchase common shares at the aver-
age market price during the reported period. The incremental
shares, the difference between the number of shares assumed
to have been issued upon exercise and the number of shares

average common shares outstanding for the purpose of
calculating diluted EPS.

INCOME TAXES

PG&E Corporation and the Utility use the liability method
of accounting for income taxes. Income tax expense {benefir)
includes current and deferred income taxes resulting from
operations during the year. Investment tax credits are amor- -

mainly synthetic fuel tax credits, are recognized in income -

as earned.

PG&E Corporation files a consolidated U.S. federal

income tax return that includes domestic subsidiaries in

which its’ownership is 80% or more. In addition, PG&E
Corporation files combined state income tax returns
where applicable. PG&E Cofporatig}h and the Utility -
are parties to a tax-sharing arrangement under which the
Utility determines its income tax prov1s1on (benefit} on

a stand-alone basis.
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Prior to July 8, 2003, the date that PG&E Corporation’s -

former subsidiary, NEGT, filed a Chapter 11 petition,
PG&E Corporation applied the liability method to recog:
nize federal income tax benefits related to the losses of
NEGT and its subsidiaries for financial statement pur-
poses. After July 7, 2003, PG&E Corporation applied the
cost method of accounting with respect to the losses of
NEGT and its subsidiaries and has not recognized addi-

" tional income tax benefits in its financial statements. PG&E
Corporation was required to continue to include NEGT
and its subsidiaries in its consolidated income tax returns .
covering all ‘periods through October 29, 2004, the effective
date of NEGT’s plan of reorganization and the cancellation
of PG&E Corporation’s équity ownership in NEGT. See
Note 11 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial State- .~
ments for further discussion.

ACCOUNTING FOR DERIVATIVES -

AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES S

The Unlity engages in price risk management activities to
manage its exposure to fluctuations in commodity prices and
interest ;at;:s mnits non-trading portfolio. Price risk manage-
ment activities involve entering into contracts to procure
electricity, natural gas, nuclear fuel and firm. transmission
rights for electricity. ‘

The Utility uses a variety of derivative instruments, such
as physical forwards and options, exchange traded futures
and options, commodity swaps, firm transmission rights
for el-ec'tricity and other contracts, Derivative instruments
are recarded on PG&E Corporation’s and the Utility’s
Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value. Chidnges in the
fair value of derivative instruments are recorded in earnings,
or.to the extent they are recoverable through :regu]ated rates,
are deferred and recorded in regulatory accounts. Derivative
instruments - may be designated as cash flow hedges when
they are entered into to hedge \{ariablc price risk associated
with the purchase of commodities. For cash flow hedges,
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fair value changes are deferred in accumulated other com-
prehensive' income and recognized in earnings as the hedged
transactions occur, unless they are recovered in rates, in
which case, they are recorded in a regulatory balancing.
account., Derivative instruments are presented in other cur-
rerit and noncurrent assets or other. current and noncurrent

liabilities unless they meet certain exemptions.

In order for a derivative instrument to be designated
as a cash flow hedge, the relationship between the deriva-
tive instrument and the hedged item or transaction must
be highly effective. The effectiveness test is performed at
the inception of the hedge and each reportinig period
thereafter, throughout the period that the hedge is desig-
nated as such. Unrealized gains and losses related to the
effective and ineffective portions of the change in the fair
value of the derivative instrument, to the extent they
are recoverable through rates, are deferred and recorded

in regulatory accounts,

Cash' flow hedge accounting 15 discontinued prospectively .
if'it is determined that the derivative instrument no longer
qualifies as an effective hedge, or when the forecasted
transaction i1s no longer probable of occurring. 1f cash: flow
hedge accounting is discontinued, the dérivativg instrument

- continues to be reflected at fair value, with any subsequent

changes in fiir, value recognized immediately in earnings.
Gains and losses previously recorded in accumulated other
comprehensive.income {loss) will remain there until the
hedged item is recognized in earnings, unless the foreéastec!
transaction is probable of not occurring, in which case
the gains and losses from the derivative instrument will be’
immediately recognized in earnings. A hedged item 1s recog-
nized in earnings when it matures or-is exercised, Any gains
and losses that would have been recognized in earnings or

deferred in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss),

to the extent they are recoverable through rates, are deferred
and recorded in reguiatory accounts.

Net realized and unrealized gains or losses on deriva-
tive instruments are included in various items on PG&E
Corporation’s and the Utility’s Consolidated Statements of

"Income, including ‘cost of electricity and cost of natural gas.
Cash inflows and outflows associated with the settlement of

price tisk management activities are recognized in operat-
ing cash flows on PG&E Corporation’s and the Utility’s
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, ’




The fair value of contracts is estimated using the mid-
point of quoted bid and ask forward prices, including quotés
from counterparties,; brokers, electronic exchanges and pub-
lished indices, supplemented by online price information
from news services. When market data is-not available,
propriegary' models are used to estimate fair value.

The Utility has derivative instruments for the physical
delivery of commodities transacted in the normal course of
business as well as non-financial assets that are not exchange-
traded. These derivative instruments are eligible for the’

normal purchase and sales and non-exchange traded contract

exceptions under SEAS No. 133, and are not reflected on the
balance sheet at fair value. They are.recorded and recognized
in income using accrual accounting. Therefore, expenses are

recognized as incurred.

The Utility has certain commodlty contracts for the

- purchase of nuclear fuel and core gas transportanon and
storage contracts-that are not derivative instrurents

and are not reflected on the balance sheet at fair value
Expenses are recognized as incurred. | oL '

See Note 12 of the Notes to the Consohdated Fmancnal

Statements

ADOPTION OF NEW"
ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Variable Inferest Entities S

In April 2006, the FASB issued Staff Position No. F!N 46R-6,
" “Determining the Vanablllty to Be Considered in App[ymg
FASB Interpretation No. 46R " or FSP FIN 46R-6. FSP

FIN 46R-6 speCIEes how a company should determine vari-
ability in. applymg the accounting standard for consolidation
of variable interest entities. The pronouncement states that
vanablllty shall be’ ‘determined based on an analysis of the

design of the entity, including the nature of the risks in the .

entity, the purpose for which the entity-was created and '

- the variability that the entity is designed to create and pass
along to its interest holders. PG&E Corporation and the
Utility adopted FSP FIN 46R-6 on July 1, 2006. The adop-
tion of FSP FIN 46R-6 did not have a material impact on

the Consolidated Financial Statements of PG&E Corporation

or the Utility for 2006.

Share- Based Payment

On January 1, 2006, PG&E Corporation and the Utlllty
adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 123R, “Share-Based
Payment,” or SFAS No. 123R, using the modified prospective
application method which requires that compensation cost
be recognized for all share-based payment awards, including .

-unvested stock options, based on the grant-date fair value.

SFAS No. 123R requires that an estimate of future forfeitures
be made and that compensation cost be recognized only -
for share-based payment awards that are expected to vest.
Prior to janﬁary 1, 2006, PG&E Corporation and the Utility
accounted for share-based payment awards, such as stock
options, reqtficted stock and other share-based incentive

~ awards, under the recognition and measurement provisions

of Accounting Principles Board, or 'APB; Opinion No. 25,
“Accountmg for Stock Issued to Employees,” or Opinion 25,
as permitted: by 'SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation,” or SFAS No. 123. Under the provisions of -
Oplmon 25, PG&E Corporatlon and the Uulity did not
recognize. compensatlon cost for'stock options for periods
prior to January 1, 2006, because the exercise prices of all
stock options were equal to the market value of the under-
lying common stock on the date of grant of the options.

For 2006, PG&E. Corporation’s and the Utility’s operating
income, income before income taxes-, net income, and basic
and diluted EPS were lower under SFAS No. 123R than if
they had ‘continued to account'for'share-basgd payments .
under Obinion 25. The following table shows the reduction
in these items as a result of the ad;)ption of SFAS No. 123R:-

.

PG&E Corporation, Unility

“ Year ended Year ended

December 31, December 31,

{in millions except per share amounts) 2006 2006

Operating [ncome $ (18) ‘5(13)

Income Before Incorine Taxes (18) . . (13)

Net Income. {11) (8}

* Earnings Per Common Share, Bastc . $(0.04) | ‘

Earnings Per Common Share, Diluted * $(0.04)

The impact on net income for 2006 is primarily attrib-

uted to the prospective application of accounting for share-

based payment awards with terms that accelerate vesting on
retirement and expense recognition of previously unvested
stock options. '
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Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, PG&E Corpo-
ration and the Utility expensed share-based awards over
the stated vesting period regardless of ternis that accelerate
vesting upon retirement. Subsequent to the adoption of SFAS
No. 123R, PG&E Corpdrati_on and the Utility recognize
compensation expense for all awards over the shorter of the
stated vesting period or the requisite service period. If awards
granted prior to adopting SFAS No. 123R were expensed
over the requisite service period instead of the stated vesting,
period, there would have been an immaterial impact on the ‘
Consolidated Financial Statements.of PG&E Corporatlon
and the Uality for 2006.

Prior to.the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, PG&E
Corporation and the Unl:ty presented all tax benefits from
share-based payment dwards as operating cash flows in the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. SFAS No. 123R
requires that cash flows from the tax benefits resulting
from tax deductions in excess of the compensation cost
recognized for éhose_awards (excess tax benefits) be classified
as financing cash flows.. PG&E Corporation’s and the
Utility’s excess tax benefit of $35 million and $46 million,
respectively, would have been classified as an operating
cash inflow if PG&E Corporation and the Utility had not
adopted SFAS No. 123R (see Note 14 for furthcr discussion
of share-based compensatlon)

The tables below show the effect on PG&E Corporation’s
net income and EPS if PG&E Corporation and the Utility
had elected to account for stock-based compensation using
the fair-value method under SFAS No. 123 based on the

_valuation assumptions disclosed in Note 14, for the years
ended December 31,:2005 and 2004;

Year ended December 31, -

(in millions, excépt per share amounts) 2005 2004
Net earnings: C .
As reported "$917  $4,504
Deduct; Incremental stock-based employee

compensation expense determined under |

the fair value based method for all awards -

net of related tax effects (12} {14)
Pro forma $905 " $4,490

- Basic earnings per share: . .

As reported 3240 $10.80
Pro forma 237 1077
Diluted earnings per share:
As reported N 237 10.57
Pro forma’ 233 10.59
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If compensation expense had been recognized using the
fair value based method under SFAS No. 123, the Utility’s
pro forma consolidated earnings would have been as follows:

Year ended December 31,

{in millions} 2005 2004
Net earnings:
As reported | $918  $3,961
Deduct: Incremental stock-based employee )

compensation expense determined-under

the fair value based method for all awards, )

net of related tax effects ' ’ {7 “(8)
Pro forma 911 $£3,953

Accounting Changes and Error Corrections

On January 1, 2006, PG&E Corporation and the Utility
adopted SFASi No. 1534, “Accounting Changes and Error
Corrections,” or SFAS No. 154. SFAS No. 154 replaces

APB Opinion‘ No. 20, “Accounting Changes,” and SFAS

No. 3, “Reporting Accounting Changes in Interim Financial
Statements.” SEAS No. 154 requires retrospective application
to prior periods’ financial statements of changes in account-
ing principle iJnless it is imlﬁracticab[c. SFAS No. 154 applies
to all'voluntary changes in ac;:ounting principle. Tt also
applies to changes required by a new accounting pronounce-
ment unless the new pronouncement includes contrary
explicit transition provisions. The adoption of SFAS No. *
154 did not have an impact on the Consolidated Financial
Statements of PG&E Corporation or the Utility for 2006.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING '

FOR CERTAIN DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS
Derivatives Implementation Group, or DIG, Issue No. B38,
“Embedded Derivatives: Evaluation of Net Settlement with
Respect to the Settlement of a Debt Instrument through
Exercise of an Embedded Put Option or Call Option,” or

DIG B38, and DIG Issue No. B39 “Embedded Derivatives:

Application of Paragraph 13(b) to Call Options That Are
Exercisable Only by the Debtor,” or DIG B39, address the




circumstances in which a put or call option embedded in a
debt instrument would be'bifurcated from the debt instru-
ment and accounted for separately. DIG B38 and DIG B39 -
were effective beginning in the first quarter of 2006. The
adoption of DIG B38 and DIG B39 did not have a material
impact on the Consolidated Financial Statements of PG&E
Corporation or the Utility for 2006. .
Accounting for Defined Benef’ 1
Pensions and Other Postretiremient Plons .
On December 31, 2006, PG&E Corporation and ‘the Utility
adopted SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined
Beneﬁt Pension and Other Postretirement Plans, an amend-
ment ‘of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R),”
SFAS No. 158. SFAS No. 158 requires the funded status of an
entity’s plans-to be recognized on the balance sheet, elimi-

t

nates the additional minimum lability, and'enhances related
disclosure requirements. The funded status of a plan, as
measured under SFAS No. 153, is the difference between the .
“fair value of plan assets and' the' projected benehit obligation
‘ for a pension plan and the accumulated postretirement ben-
efit obligation for other postretirement benefit plans. SFAS
No. 158 also requires an entity to measure the funded status
of a plan as of the date of its year-end balance sheet; PG&E
Corporation and ‘the Utility use a December 31 measurement
date and therefore no adjustments are needed to comply -
with this requirement of SFAS No. 158. SFAS No. 158 does .
not change the method of recording.éxpense on the statement
of income; therefore, the effects of adopting SFAS No. 158

did not have an lmpact on earnmgs or on cash flows..

Upon adoption of SFAS No. 158, PG&E Corporation
and the Utility recorded a net benefit liability equal to the
underfunded status of cértain pension and other postretire-
ment benefit plans at December 31, 2006 in the amounts
_of $124 million and $83 million, respectively. In addition, -

" PG&E Corporation and the-Utility recorded a net pension
benefit asset equal to the overfunded status of certain pen-
sion plans in the amount of $34 million at December 31,
2006. On December 31, 2006, the nnrecognized prior ser-
vice costs, unrecognized gains and losses, and unrecognized
net transition obligations were recognized as éomoonents
of accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax
(see Note 14 for further discussion). At December 31, 2006,

" PG&E Corporation’s and the Utility’s accumulated other

comprehensive income included losses of approximately
$19 million and $16 million, respectively, related to pensions’

and other postretirement benefits.

Rate-regulated entities may recognize regulatory assets -

or liabilities as a result of timing differerices between the
recogmtnon of costs as recorded in accordance with SFAS. -
No. 87 and costs recovered through the ratemakmg pro-
cess. As a result of the adoption of SFAS No. 158, the
Utility reduced the existing pension regulatory liability by
approximately $574 million related to the defined benefit
pension plan for amounts that would otherwise be charged
to ‘acc_umuiated other comprehensive income under SFAS
No. 158. At December 31, 2006 the Utility has a net regula- .
tory liability of apprdximately $23 million' The Utility has
not 'recorded a regulatory asset for the SFAS No. 158 charge

 related to the other postret:rement plans as a result of its
* funding approach and rate recovery method. The expenses

associated w1th thesc plans are accounted for under SFAS
No. 106, and rate recovery is based on the lesser of the -
SFAS No." 106 expense. or the annual tax-deducnble
contributions to the appropriate trusts.

ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET AD’O‘PTE‘D S

Accounting for Uncertainty in |ncome Taxes

In ]uly 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretatlon No 48,
“Accounting for Uncertamty in, Income Taxes,” or FIN 48.
FIN 48 clariftes the accounting for uncertamry in income
taxes. FIN 48 prescnbes a two-step process in the recognition
and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be
taken in a tax return. The first step is to determine if it is
more likely than not that a tax position will be sustained
upon examination by taxing authorities. If this threshold is*
met, the second step is to measute the tax-position on the

. balance sheet by using the largest -amount of behefit that

is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimate
settlement. FIN 48 also requires additional disclosures.

FIN 48 is'effective prospectively for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2006. PG&E Corporation and the Utility
are 'currentl’y evaluating the impact of FIN 48. '
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Fair Value Measurements
In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No -157, Fa1r

or SFAS No.. 157. SFAS Ne. 157
defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell

Value Measurements,”

an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly trans-
action between market participants at the measurement date.
SFAS No. 157 also establishes a framework for. measuring
fair value and provides for expanded disclosures about fair
value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years
begiﬁning after November 15, 2007. PG&E Corporation
and the Utility are currently evaluatmg the impact of

SFAS No, 157.

Fair Value Option

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Falr
Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities,”
or SFAS No. 159. SFAS No. 159 establishes a fair value
option under which entities can elect to report certain
financial assets and liabilities at fair value, with changes in
fair value recognized in earhings. SFAS No. 159 is effective’
for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. PG&E *
Corporation and the Utility are currently. evaluating the ,
impact of SFAS No, 159.- |

NOTE 3: REGULATORY
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND
BALANCING ACCOUNTS
REGULATORY ASSETS - | '
As discussed in Note 2; PG&E Corporationiand the Utility -
account for the financial effects of regulétion in accordance

with SFAS No. 71. Long-term regulatory assets are comprised
of the following: o

- .
‘Balance at December 31,

" (in millions) 2006 2005
Energy recovery bond regulatory asset $2,170 52,509
Utility retained generation regulatoty assets’ 1,018 1,099
Regulatory assets for deferred income tax 599 536
Environmental compliance costs 303 310

- Unamortized loss, net of gam, i .

on reacquired debt : 295 m
Regulatory -assets associated with plan ’

of reorganization - 147 163
Post-transition period contract

termination costs 120 131
Scheduling coordinator costs B U 3 -
Rate reduction bond regulatory asset ‘ - 456
Other 139 53

Total regulatory assets $4,902 %5578
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The ERB represents reﬁn;alicing of the settlement _
regulatory asset established under the December 19, 2003
settlement agreemens among PG&E Corporation, the Utility
and the CPUC to resolve the Utility’s Chapter 11 proceed-
ing, or the Chapter 11 Settlement Agreement. During 2006,
the Utility recorded amortization of the ERB regulatory asset
of approximately'$339 million and expects to fully recover
this asset by the end of 2012. :

Asa resul‘t of the Chapter lll-Settleenent Agreement,
the Utility recognized a one-time non-cash gain of $1.2 bil-
lion, pre-tax (30.7 billion, after-tax), for the Utility retained
generation regulatory assets in the first quarter of 2004,
The individual components of these regulatory assets will
be amortized over their respective lives, with a weighted
average life of approximately 16 years. During 20086, the
Utlhty recorded amortlzat:on of the Utility’s retained
generation regulatory assets of approx1mately $81 million.

"The rcgulatory assets for deferred income tax represent
deferred income tax benefits passed through to customers
and are offset by deferred ificome tax liabilities. Tax benefits
to customers have been passeci' through as the CPUC requires -
utilities under its jurisdiction to follow the “flow through”
method of passing certain tax benefits to customers. The
“flow through” method ignores the effect of deferred taxes
on rates, Basefl on current regulatory ratemaki}lg and income
tax laws, the Utility expects to recover deferred income tax -
related to regulatory assets over periods rangmg from 1 to

40 years.
! ‘
Env:mnmental compliance costs represent the pomon

of estimated énvironmental remedlanon liabilities that the
Utility expects to recover in future rates as remed:atlon COSts
are incurred. The Utility expects to recover these costs over
periods ranging from 1 to 30 years. -

Unamortized loss, net of gain, on reacquired debt repre-
sents costs related to debt reacquired or redeemed prior to -

. matunty with associated discount and debt issuance costs.

These costs are expected to be recovered over the remaining
onglnal amortization penod of the reacquired debt over the
next 1 to 21 years. . '




Regulatory assets associated with the planof réorga-

. nization include costs. incurred in ﬁnancmg the Utility’s

exit from Chapter 11 and costs:to oversee the environ-
mental enhancement of the’ Pacrﬁc Forest and Watershed .
Stewardship. Council, an entity that was ‘established pursuant
to the Utility’s plan of reorganization. The Utility expects to
recover these costs over periods rangrng from 5 to 30 years.

Post- transrtron period contract termination costs represent
amounts that the Utility‘incurred in terminating a 30-year ‘
power purchase agreement. This regulatory asset will bes”
amortized and collected in-rates on.a straight-line basis untrl
the end of September 2014, the power purchase agreement .

original termination date

The regulatory asset related to scheduhng coordrnator
or SC, costs represents costs that the Utility 1ncurred begiri-
nrng in 1998 in 1ts capactry as a schedulmg coordmator for
its existing wholesale transmission customers. The Utthty
expects to fully recover the SC‘Costs by 2009.

Rate reduction bond, or RRB regulatory agséts represent
electric industry restructurrng costs that the Utility expects
to collect-over the term of the RRBs Durrng the year ended
December 31, 2006, the Unhty recorded amortization of the
RRB regulatory asset of approxrmately $266 mitlion. The
remammg balance 15 mcluded in current regulatory assets
as the RRBs : are scheduled to mature December 26, 2007.
The Utility expects to. fully recover the RRB regulatory
asset by the end of 2007.

_Finally, as of December 31, 2006 “Other,” is prlmarrly
related to price risk management contracts entered into by

" the Utility to procure electrtcrty and natural gas to reduce

commodity price risks, which are accounted for as deriva-
tives under SFAS No. 133. The costs and proceeds of these

~ derivative instruments are recovered or refunded in regu-

lated rates charged to custorners At December 31, 2005, the
balance of “Other” consisted prlmartly of asset retirement
obligation costs (see further:discussion below) and vegetation
management costs. .- o, . ..

CLa

In general the Utrlrty does not carn a feturn on regula-
tory assets where the related costs do not accrue 1ntere5t ’
Accordingly, the Utrllty earns a return only on the Uttlrty
retained: generatton regulatory assets, unarnortlzed loss, net
of gain on reacquired debt and regulatory asséts assocrated
with the plan of reorganization.

A

-

_Current Regulatory Assets L . &

As of December 31, 2006, the Utlity had.current regulatory
assets of approximately $434 million; consisting:primarily
of the current portion of the RRB regulatory asset and price
risk management contracts. These’ amounts are included:in-
Prepaid Expenses, and Other on the- Consolidated Balance - -
Sheets. At December 31 2005, the amount of current regula-

3 i

tory assets was. tmmatertal R

C ol s i v
REGULATORY LIABILITIES ' .
Long-term regulatory lrabtlrtres are comprlsed of the .
following: A L . : '

' ‘_E;alance at December 31,

{in millions) ~ o 2006 © 2005
Cost of remaval obligation . '252,340 $2.141
Asset retirement costs o _ 608 538 .
Public purpose programs . - 2l 169 1534 -
Price risk management . : R : 37 .213
Employee benefit plans. . T 23195
Rate reductron bond regulatory |1ab1lrty = 157
. Other- ‘ S RS 15 2108
.« Towl regulatory liabilitics o $3,302 ' $3,506

ra—

Cost of removal répresents revenues collected for asset
removal costs that the Uttlrty expects to incur in the future.
Asset retirement costs represent tlmmg differences between-
the recognition of asset retirement obllganons and the

- amounts recogmzed for ratemaktng ‘purposes in accordance
with GAAP' under SFAS No 143 and FIN 47, as applled to
rate-regulated entities. Public purpose programs represent
revenues designated for public purpose program costs- that
are expected to be incurred-in the FutuiérPrice risk man-
agement represents contracts entered iinto by the Utility-to
. procure eléctricity and natural gas that are accounted for as™”
derivative 1nstruments under SFAS No. 133. Additionally,
the Utility hedges natural gas in the electric and natural gas
portfolios on behalf of its. customers to reduce commodit'y
price risk. The costs and proceeds of these derivatives are .
recovered in regulated rates charged to customers Employee
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" benefit plan exoqnées represent the.cumulative differences”
between expenses ‘recognized for financial accounting pur-
poses and expenses ‘recognized for ratemaking purposes.
These balances will be charged agallnst expense to the extent
that future financial accounting expenses exceed amounts
-tecoverable for regulatory purposes. Rate redurction bonds,
or RRBs, represent the'deferral of over<ollected revenue
‘associated with the RRBs that the Utility expects to return
'to customers in the future. Finally, as of December 31,

2006; “Other” regulatory liabilities are prlmanly related to .\
" hazardous substance i insurance recoveries and the Gateway
Generating Station, or Gateway, which was i’acq'uired'as. part
of a settlement with Mirant Corporation. The liability )
related to.Gateway will be, arﬂort:zed over 30 years begin- ",
"ning March 2009. - . oo ey

Current Regulafory Llub|hf|es 2t

As of December 3, 2006 the Utllrry had chrrent regula-
rory llal)lll'[lCS of approx1mately $309 million, con51st1ng
primarily of ClECtI’lC transmission l:vheelmg revenue refunds
and the RRB regulatory l1ablllty These amounts are included
in Othei Current Liabilities on the’ Consolidated Balance
Sheets. The Utitity had current regulatory llabrlmes of | .
$157 million, primarily compr:sed of -price rrsk management
act1v1tres, at December 31, 2005 » :

REGULATORY BALANCING ACCOUNTS

"The Utrllty s regulatory balancmg accounts are used as a
mechamsm for the Utlllty torecover amounts incurred for

- +

certain costs pnmarlly commodlty costs. Sales balancing
accounts accumulate differences between revenues and the
Utility’s authorized revenue requilrem}ents Cost balancing
accoufits accumulate drfferences between ingurred costs and
authorized revenue requrre:ments The Ut1l|ty also obtained

i
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CPUC approval for balancing account treatment of vari-
ances betwéen forecasted and actual commeodity costs a‘ndk -
volumes. This approval results in eliminating the earnings
impact from ‘any throughput and revenue variances from
adopted forecast levels. Undeicollections that are probable
of recovery through regulated rates are recorded as regulatory
balancing account assets. Overcollections that are probable
of being vcredlited to.customers are recorded as regulatory

balancing account liabilities.

. The Utility’s current regulatory balancing accounts accu-
mulate balances until they are refunded to or received from
the Utility’s c:usromers through authorized rate adjustments
within the n.e.xt 12 months. Regulatory balancing accounts
that the Uttlity does not expect to collect or refiind in the’
next 12, months are included in noncurrent regulatory assets
and liabilities. The CPUC does not allow the Utility to
offset regulatory balancmg account assets against balancing

“account liabilities,

Regulatory Balancing Account Assets

Balance at December 31,

-‘.." . - . . 2006

{in millions) 2005
Electricity reveriue and cost balancing accounts $501 5568
Natura] gas-revenue and cost balancing accounts 106 *159

“Total ' $607 * $727

Regulatory Bl:slahcing Account Liabilities

Balance at December 3,

(in millions} |

_ 2006 2005

Electricaty revenue and cost balanclng'accounts" § 951 - $827

Matural gas revenue and cost balancing. accounts 79 13
Total ' $1,030  $840

i

During 2006, the under-collection in the Utility’s elec-
tricity revenue:and cost balancing account assets decreased
from 2005 mamly due to ‘regulatory decisions allowing the
Utility to- recover certain costs through customer rates, These
amounts did not have authorized rate components in 2005,
thus resulting in an undér—éollection The increase.in the
over-collected position of the Utility’s electricity'revehue
and cost balancmg account liabilities. between 2005 and 2006
was attrrbutablgs to Jower procurement costs as compared to

forecasted procurement costs.

3
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During 2006, the undercollection in the Utility’s natural
gas revenue and cost balancing account assets decreased and
the over<collection in balancing account liabilities increased
from 2005 due mainly to decreasing gas costs as compared
to the approved revenue- requirements.

NOTE 4: DEBT

LONG-TERM DEBT _
The following table summarizes PG&E Corporation’s and
the Utility's long-term debt:

v

December 31,

{in millions} 2006 2005
PG&E Corporation - '

Convertible subordinated notes, ,

" 9.50%, due 2010 $ 280 35 280

Less: current pordon (280) -

Long-term debt, net of current portion : - 280
Utility '

Senior notes/first mortgage bonds™: ‘
3.60% to 6.05% bonds, due 2009-2034 5,100 5,100
Unamortized discount, net of premium (16) {17)
Total senior notes/first mortgage bonds 5,084 " 5,083

Pollution control bond loan agreements,
variable rates’?, due 2026 614 614

Pollution control bond loan agreement, .
5.35%;, due 2016. 200 200

Pollution control bond loan agreements,

3.50%, due 2023%, 345 345

Pollution control bond loan agreements,
variable rates®, due 2016-2026 . 454 454

Other . 1 2

Less: current portion (1) " (2)
Long-term debt, net of current portion 6,697 6,69
Total consolidated long-term debt, -

net of current portion $6,697 36,976

(1) When originally issued, these debt instruments were denominated as -
first mortgage bonds and were secured by a lien, subject to permitted
exceptions, on substantially all of the Utility’s real property and certain
tarigible personal property related to its facilities. The indenture under
which the first mortgage bonds were issued provided for release of the
lien in certain circumstances subject to certain conditions. The release
occurred in April 2005 and the remaining bonds were redesignated as
Senior notes.

(2) At December 31, 2006, mtcrest rates on these loans ranged from 3.80%
to 3.92%.

(3} These bonds are supported by $620 million of letters of credit which -
expire on April 22, 2010. Although the stated maturity date is 2026, the -
bonds will remain outstanding only if the Utility extends or replaces
the letters of credit. '

(4) These bonds are subject to a mandatory tender for purchase on June 1,
2007 and the interest rates for these bonds are set until that date.

(5) At December 31, 20086, mlcrest rates on these loans ranged from 3.25%
to 3.70%. .

PG&E CORPORATION

Convertible Subordinated Notes

At December 31, 2006, PG&E Corporation had outstanding ’
.$280 million of 9.5% Convertible Subordinated Notes that
are scheduled to mature on June 30, 2010, or Convertible
Subordinated Notes. These Convertible Subordinated Notes
may be converted (at the option of the holder) at any time

prior to maturity into 18,558,635 shares of common stock
of PG&E Corporation, at a conversion price of approxi-
mately $15.09 per share. The conversion price is subject to
adjustment should a significant change occur in the number
of PG&E Corporation’s shares of comimon stock outstand-
ing. In addition, holders of the Corivertible Subordinated
Notes are entitled to receive “pass-through dividends” deter-
mined by multiplying the cash dividend paid by PG&E
Corporation per share of common stock by a number equal
to the principal amount of the Convertible Subardinated
Notes divided by the conversion price. In connection

with common stock dividends paid to holders of PG&E
Corporation common stock in 2006, PG&E Corporation
paid approximately $24 million of “pass-through dividends”
to the holders ‘of Convertible Subordinated Notes. The hold-
ers have a one-time right to require PG&E Corporation to -
repurchase the Convertible Subordinated Notes on June 30,
2007, at a purchase price equal to the principal amount
plus accrued and unpaid interest (including liquidated
damages and unpaid “pass-through. dwldends, if any).

.
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Accordingly, PG&E Corporation hasclassified the .
Convertible Subordinated Notes in Current Liabilities — .
Long-term debt, in the accompanying Consolidated Balance’
Sheet as of December 31, 2006. )

. .
In accordance with SFAS No. 133, the dlividend particl-

pationfrights component of the Convertible Subordinated
Notes is considered to be an_embedded derivative instrument
and, therefore, must be bifurcated from the Convertible
Subordinated' Notes and recorded at fair value'in PG&E
Corporation’s Consolidated Financiil Statements. Changes
in the fair value are recognized in PG&E Corporation’s |
Consolidated Statements of Income as a non-opetating
expense or income (included in Other income (expense),
net). At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the total estimated fair
value of the dividend participation rights compon.em, on

a pre-tax basis, was approximately $79 million and $92 mil-
lion, respectively, of which $23 million and-$22 millioﬁ, ' _
respectively, was classified as a current liability (in Current
Liabilities — Other) and $56' million and $70 million,
respectively, was classified as a noncurrent liability

. (in Noncurrent Liabilities — Other). '

UTILITY

Senior Notes ) . I ' .

The Senior Notes are unsecured general obligation ranking
equal with the Utility’s other senior unsecured debt. Under
the indenture of the Senior Notes, the Utility has agreed that
it will not incur secured debt (except for (1) debt secured

by specified liens, and (2) secured debt in an amount not
exceeding 10% of the Utility’s net tangible assets, as defined
in the indenture) unless the Utility provided that the Senior
Notes will be equally and ratably secured with the new
secured debt. '

At December 31, 2006, there were SSI bxlhon of Senior

Notes outstanding. ’
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Pollution Conirol Bonds

The California Pollution Control Financing Authority

and the California Infrastructure and Economic Develop-
ment Bank, or CIEDB, issued various series of tax-exempt
pollution control bonds for the benefit of the Utility. At
December 31, 2006, pollution control bonds in the aggregate
principal amount of $1.6 billion were cutstanding. Under
the pollution control l_)ond loan agreements, the Utility 1s
obligated to pay on the due dates-an amount equal to the
principal, premium, if any, and interest on these bonds *
to the trustees for these bonds

All of the pollution control bonds financed or reﬁnanced
pollution control facilities at the Utility’s Geysers geo-.
thermal power plant, or the Geysers Project, or at the Unlity’s
Diablo Canyon nuclear power plant, or Diablo Canyon.

In 1999, the Utility sold the Geysers Project, to Geysers
Power Company LLC, a subsidiary of Calpine Corporation.
The Geysers Project purchase and sale agreements state that
Geysers, Power Company LLC will use the facilities solely

as pollution control facilities within the meaning ‘of Section
103(b)(4)(F) of the Internal Revenue Code and associated
regulations, or the Code. On February 3, 2006, Geysers
Power Company LLC filed for reorganization -under
Chapter I1. The Utility believes that the Geysers Project

will continue to meet the use requirements of the Code..




In order to enhance the credit ratings of these pollution control bonds, the Utility has obtained credit support from

banks and insurance companies such that, in the event that the Utility does not pay debt servicing costs, the banks or
insurance companies will pay the debt servicing costs. The following table summarizes these credit supports:

(in millions)

Udliy . - ' ' : : . At December 31, 2006
Faciliy® 7 : Series Termination Date Commitment
Pollution control bond bank reimbursement agreements : 96 C,E,F97B Apnrl 2010 - ‘ $ 620 -
Pollution contro! bond — bond insurance reimbursement agreements 96A December 20169 - 200
Pollution control bond — bond insurance reimbursement agreements 2004 A-D December 2023 345
Pollution control bond — bond insurance reimbursement agreements 2005 A-G o 2016-20260 454
Total credit support’ ' N _ ' L s1619

(1) Offbalance sheet commitments.
(2) Principal and debt service |nsured by the bond insurance company.

On April 20, 2005, the Utlity repald $454 million under pollution control bond loan agreements that the Utility had
entered into in April 2004, The repayment of these reimbursement agreements was made through $454 million of borrow-
ings under the Utility’s working capital facility (see further discussion of the working capital facility below). Subsequentiy, on
May 24, 2005, the Utility entered.into seven loan agreements with the CIEDB to issue seven series of tax-exempt pollution
control bonds, or PC Bonds Series A-G, totalmg $454 million, These seriés are in auction modes where interest rates are set
among investors who submit bids to buy, sell, or hold securities at desired rates. Four series of the bonds (Series A-D} have
auctions every 35 days and three series (Series E- G) have auctions every seven days. Maturities on the bonds range ‘from 2016
to 2026. The Utility repaid borrowmgs under the workmg capltal facnhty usmg the proceeds from the tax-exempt PC Bonds .
Series A-G y - i :

In Apnl and Novembcr 2005, the Utility: .amended the four bank reimbursement agreements totaling $620 million, and
relating to letters of credit issued to provide the credit support for the PC Bonds referred to above, to reduce pricing and
generally conforming the covenants and events of default to those in the Utility’s working capital facility (descnbed below)
as well as extend their terms to Apnl 22, 2010.

Repuymeni Schedule
At Dccembcr 31, 2006, PGXE Corporation’s and the Utility’s combmed aggregate prmcnpal repayment amounts of long-term
debt are reflected in the table below: . K

(in ‘millions, except interest rates) - o 2007 © 2008 2009 2010 . 2011+ Thereafter, ‘Total ~

Long-term debt:
PG&E Corporation

Average fixed interest rate . 9.50% - - © = - . - 9.50%
Fixed rate obligations § 280 s - .5 - s — s - $ .- § 280
Utility. . - ) , , .
Average fixed interest rate - - 3.60% - 4.20% 5.55%  5.22%
Fixed rate obligations =~ § - § - $ 600 $ — $500  $4;529 $5,629
Variable interest rate as of December 31, 2006 - - — . 3.88% _ '3.59% 3.76%
Variable rate obligations § - $ - $ — S6140 $ — S 454 $1,068
Other 7 £ 1 $ - § - 5§ - - $ - $ 1
Less: current portion T (281) - = . - - - (281)
Total consolidated long-term debt ' $ - $ - $ 600 7 $514 $ 500 $4,983 $6,697

' (1) The %614 million pollution control bonds, due in 2026, are backed by letters of credit which expire on April 22, 2010. The bonds will be subject to a

mandatory redemption unless the letters of credit are extended or replaced. Accordingly, the bonds have been classified for repayment purposes in 2000.
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CREDIT FACILITIES AND SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS : .
The following table summartzes PG&E Corporatron s and the Utility’s short-term berrowings and outstandmg credrt facrlmes

at December 31, 2006

{in millions) _ ! . !

~

. 'At Decémber 31, 2006

R . . Letters Commercral “

. " ] Termination Facility of Credit Cash Paper s
Authorizéd Borrower  ~ " Facility ) Date Limit  Outstanding  Borrowings Backup  Availability
PG&E Corporation  Senior credit facility - . " ‘December 2009.  $ 2000 § — 8- 5 — § 200
Utility. Accounts receivable ﬁnancmg ‘March 2007 650 o= 1300 N - 350
Utility 7 Workmg capltal facility Apri] 2010 . 1,3500) 144 = 460- - 746
Total credic facilities , $2,200 T §144 $300 $460 “$1,296

{1) Includes $50 million sublimit for letters of credit’ and $100 million subllmn for swmglme loans, . which are made available on a.same-day ba51s and .

repayable in full within 30 days. ' e

{2) Includes a $950 million sublimit for letters of credit and $100 million sublimit for swmglme loans, whlch are made avariable on a same-day basrs and

repayab]e in full within 30 days.

PG&E'CORPORATIO.N - I

Senior Credit Facility . I
PG&E Corporation has.a $200 million revolvmg senior .

- unsecuted credit facility, or senior credit facrhty, with a
syndicate of lenders that, as amended, extends to Decem-
ber’ 10, 2009, Borrowings under the senior credlt fac1hty and
letters of credis may be used for working caprtal and other
corporate purposes. PG&E Corporation can, at any time,
repay amounts, outstanding in whole or in part. At PG&E-
Corporatlon s request and at the sole discretion of each
lender, the senior credit facrhty may be extended for add:-
tlonal periods. PG&E Corporation-has the rlght to increase,
in one or more requests given no more than once a year, the
aggregate facility by up to $100 million provided certain con-
ditions are met. At December 31 2006, PG&E Corporatron

‘had not undertaken any borrowrngs or 1ssued any letters of

credit under the semor credit fac1llty X S

The fees and interest rates PG&E Corporation pays
under the senior credit facility.vary depending on the *
Utility’s unsecured debt ratings issued by Standard & Poor’s’
Ratmgs Service, or S&P, and Moody’s Investors Service, or
Moody's. Interest is payable quarterly in arrears, or earlier
for loans with shorter interest periods. In addition, a
facility fee based on the aggregate facility and a-utilization

. fee based on' the average daily amount outstanding under
the. senior credit facility are payable quarterly in arrears by
PG&E Corporation. ) : '

mA e E . =

134.

In addition, PG&E Corporation pays a fee for each letter
of credit outstanding under the senior credit facility and a
fronting fee.to the issier of a letter of credit. Interest, front-
ing fees, normal lender costs of issuing and negotiating letter

of credit arrangements are payable quarterly in arrears..
B - . . N 4

The senior credit facility includes usual and customary
covenants for credit facilities of this type, including
covenants limiting liens, mergers, sales of all or substantially
all of PG&E Corporauon s assets and other fundamental -
changes. In general, the covenants, representations and events
6f default mirror those in the Utility’s working capital facil-
ity, discussed below. In addition, the senior credit facility
also requires that PG&E Corporatign mamtam a ratio of
total consolidated debt to total consolidated capitalization
of at tost 65% and that PG&E Corporation own, directly
or 1nd1rectly, at least 80% of the common stock and at least
70% of the voting securities of the Utility, -




UTILITY

Accounts Receivable Flnancmg
On March 5, 2004, the Utility entered into certain agree-

ments providing for the continuous sale of a portion of the
Utility’s accounts receivable to PG&E Accounts Receivable
Company, LLC, or PG&E ARG, a limited liability company
wholly owned by the Utility. In turn, PG&E ARC sells inter-
ests in its accounts receivable to commercial paper conduits
or banks. PG&E ARC may obtain up to $650 million of
financing under such agreements, The borrowings under
this facility bear interest at commercial paper rates and a
fixed margin based on-the Utility’s credit ratings. Interest

on the facility is payable monthly. At December 31, 2006,

" the average interest rate on borrowings on the accounts
receivable facility was 5.36%. The maximum amount avail- .
able for borrowing under this facility changes based upon
the amount of ellglble recewables concentration of eligible
receivables and other factors. The accounts receivable facnllty
will terminate on March 5, 2007, The Utility is secking an
increase to its bank credit fac111t1es in light of the impend-
ing expiration of the accounts receivable facility. There were
$300 million of borrowings outstanding under the accounts
recewvable facility at December 31, 2006 and $260 million
of borrowmgs outstanding at December 31, 2005.

Although PG&E ARC is a wholly owned consohdated
subsndlary of the Utility, PG&E ARC is legally separate
from the Utility. The assets of PG&E ARC (including the
accounts reccivable) are not available to creditors of the
Utility or PG&E Corporation, and the accounts receivable
are not legally assets of the Utility or PG&E Corporation.
For the purposes of financial, reporting, the credit facility
1s accounted for as a secured financing.

The accounts receivable facility includes a covenant from
the Utility requiring it to maintain, as of the end of each
fiscal quarter ending after the effective date of the Utility’s
plan of redrganization, a debt to capitalization ratio of at
most 65%.

Working Capital Facility

The Utility has a $1.35 billion credit facility, or the work-
ing capital facility. Loans under the working capital facility
are used primarily to cover operating expenses and seasonal

fluctuations in cash flows and were used for bridge financing

in connection with the repayment of the pollution control
bond loan agreements discussed above. Letters of credit
under the working capital facility are used primarily to
provide credit enhancements to counterparties for natural

gas and energy procurement transactions.

Subject to obtaining any required regulatory approvals:

: and commitments from existing or new lenders and satisfac-

tion of other specified conditions, the Utlity may increase,
in one or more requests given not more frequently than once
a calendar year, the aggregate lenders’ commitments under
the working capital facility by up to $500 million or, in

the event that-the Utility’s $650 million accounts receivable
facility terminates or expires, by up t6 $850 million, in the
aggregate for all such increases.

The working capital facnhty expires on April 8, 2010.

At the Urtility’s request and at the sole discretion of ‘each

lender, the facility may be extended for additional periods.

" The Utility has the right to réplacéia’r}'y lender who does not

agree to an extension,

The fees and interest rates the Utility pays under .
the working capital facility vary depending on the Utility’s
unsecured debt rating by S&P and ‘Moody’s. The Unlity
is also required to pay a facility fee based- on the total

- amount of working capital facility (regardless of the usage) -

and a utilization fee based on the average daily amount
outstanding under the working capital facility. Interest is
payable quarterly in arrears, or earlier for loans with shorter

interest periods.

The working capital faciAlity.includes usual and custom-
ary covenants for credit facilities of thlS type, including _
covenants lmutmg liens to those permltted under the Senior
Notes’ indenture, mergers, sales of all or sul?stantlal_ly all of
the Utility’s assets and other fundamental changes. In addi-
tion, the working capital facility also requires that the Unlity
maintain a debt to capltallzauon ratlo of at most 65% as
of the end of each fiscal quarter.

At December 31, 2006, there were nb loans outstand-
ing and approximately $144 mllhon of letters of credit
outstandmg under the $1.35 billion workmg capital
facility. Addmonally, the working capnal facility supports
the $460 mllllon of outstanding commercml paper

dlscussed below. L
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Commercml Paper Program

On January 10, 2006, the Utility entered into various agree-
ments to establish the terms and procedures for the issuance
of up to $1 billien of unsecured commercial paper by the
Utility for general corporate purposes. The commercial paper
is not registered under the Securities Act of 1933 or appli-
cable state securities laws and may not be offered or sold

in the United States absent registration under the Securities
Act of 1933 or applicable state exemption from registration ,
requirements. The commercial paper may have maturities up
to 365 days and ranks equally with the Utility’s unsubordi-
nated and unsecured indebtedness. At December 31, 2006,
the Utility had $460 million, including amortization of a
$2 million discount, of commercial paper outstandmg at

an average yield of approx1mately 5.44%. Commercial paper
notes are sold at an interest rate dictated by thc,market at
the time of issuance.

NOTE 5: RATE

REDUCTION BONDS

In December 1997, PG&E Funding, LLC, a limited liability
corporation wholly owned by and consolidated by the
Utility, issued $2.9 billion of RRBs. The proceeds of the .
RRBs were used by PG&E Funding, LLC to purchase from
the Utility the right, known as “transition property,” to be
paid a specified amount from a non-bypassable charge levied
on residential and small commercial customers (Fixed Transi-
tion Amount, or FTA, charges). FTA charges are authorized
by the CPUC under state legislation and will be paid by
residential and small commercial customers until the RRBs
are fully retired. Under the terms of a transition property
servicing agreement, FTA charges are collected by the Utility
and remitted to PG&E Funding, LLC for the payment of the
bond principal, interest and miscellaneous expenses associ-
ated with the bonds.

The total amount of RRB principal outstanding was
$290 million at December 31, 2006 and $580 million at
December 31, 2005. The scheduled quarterly principal
payments on the RRBs for 2007 total $290 million at a

. 6.48% interest rate. The RRBs are scheduled to mature on
December 26, 2007.
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While PG&E Funding, LLC is a wholly owned consoli-,
dated subsidiary of the Utility, it is legally separate from the
Utility. The assets of PG&E Funding, LLC are not available
to creditors of the Utility or PG&E Corporation, and the
transition property is not legally an asset of the Utility or
PG&E Corporation, The RRBs are secured sclely by the
transition property and there is no recourse to the Unlity
or PG&E Corporation.

NOTE 6: ENERGY
RECOVERY BONDS

In furtherance of the Chapter 11 Settlement Agre.ernent,
PG&E Energy Recovery Funding, LLC, or PERFE, a wholly
owned consolidated subsidiary of the Utility, issued two sepa-
rate series of ERBs in the aggregate amount of $2.7 billion
in 2005 supported by a dedicated rate component, 6r DRC.
The proceeds of the ERBs were used by PERF to purchase
from the Utility the right, known as “recovery property,” to
be paid a specified amount from a DRC. DRC charges are
authorized by the CPUC under state legislation and will be
paid by the Utility’s electricity customers until the ERBs are
fully retired. Under the terms of a reovery property servic-
ing agreement, DRC charges are collected by the Utlity and
remitted to PERF for payment of the bond principal, inter-
est and miscellaneous expenses associated with the bonds.

The first series of ERBs issued on February 10, 2005
included five classes aggregating approximately $1.9 billion
principal amount with scheduled maturities ranging from
September 25, 2006 to December 25, 2012, Interest rates on
the five classes range from 3.32% for the earliest maturing
class, which matured on September 25, 2006, to 4.47% for
the latest maturing class. The proceeds of the first series of
ERBs were paid by PERF to the Utility and were used by
the Utility to refinance the remaining unamortized after-tax
balance of the settlement régulatory asset. The second series

'of ERBs, issued on November 9, 2005, 1ncluded three classes

aggregating approx1matcly $844 million pr1nc1pa1 amount,
with scheduled maturities ranging from June 25, 2009 to
December 25, 2012 Interest rates on the three classes range
from 4.85% for the earliest maturing class to 5.12% for
the latest maturing class. The proceeds of the second series
of ERBs were paid by PERF to the Utility to pre-fund the
Utility’s tax liability that will be due as the Utility collects
the DRC related to the first series of ERBs.




The total amount of ERB principal outstanding was $2:3 billion at December 31, 2006 and $2.6 billion at December 31,
2005. The scheduled repayments for ERBs are reflected iri the table below: '

(in millions) - 2007 2()08 2009 - 2010 2011 Thereafter Total
Utility . ' , ' o

Average fixed interest rate . 4,19% 4.19% 436%  “449% . 4.61% 4.64% 4.43%
Energy recovery bonds S : $340 $354 $ 369 $ 386 $403 $2,276

While PERF is a wholly owned consolidated subsidiary
of the Utility; PERF is' legally separate from the Utility. The
.assets of PERF. (includ‘ing the recovery property) are not -
available to creditors of the Uulity or PG&E Corporatlon‘
and the recovery property is not legally an asset of the
Utility or PG&E Corporatxon

NOTE.7: DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS |
NEGT, formerly known as PG&E National Energy Group,
Iric., was incorporated on December 18, 1998, as a wholly
owned subsidiary of PG&E Corporation. NEGT filed a vol-
untary petition for relief under Chapter 11 on july 8, 2003,
and as a result, PG&E Corporation no longer CODSOlldath
NEGT and its subsidiaries in its Consolidated Financial
Statements. Consolidation is generally requmzd under GAAP
for entities owning more thart 50% of the outstanding
- voting stock of an investee, unless control is not held by
the majority owner. Legal reo'rganization and bankruptcy
can preclude consolidation'in instances where control
rests with an entity other than the 'majority owner. Because
PG&E Corporation’s representatives on the NEGT Board
of Directors resigned on July 7, 2003, and were replaced = *
" with'Board members who were not affiliated with PG&E
Corporation, PG&E Corporation no lbngef retained
significant influence over the ongoing operations of I
NEGT at the filing of the petition. ‘

Accordingly, PG&E Co'rporétion's net negative invest-
ment in NEGT of approximately $1.2 billion.was reflected -
as a single amount, under the cost method, within the
December 31, 2003 Consolidated Balance Sheet of PG&E
Corporation. This negative investment represents the losses
of NEGT recogmzed by PG&E Corporation in excess of its
investment in and advances to NEGT

C $424

PG&E Cofporation’s_equiry ownership in NEGT was
cancelled on Qctober 29, 2004, the date when NEGT’s plan
of re'organizatio‘n became effective. At that date, PFG&E .
Corporation reversed its negative investment in NEGT and
also reversed net deferred income tax assets of app-roxlimately
$428 million and a charge of approximately $120 million
(877 million, after tax} in accumulated other comprehenéive
loss, related to NEGT. The resulting net gain has been offset
by the $30 million payment made by PG&E Corporation
to NEGT pursuant to the-parties’ settlement of certain tax-
related litigation and other adjustments to NEGT-related
liabilities. A summary of the effect on the year énded '
December 31, 2004 carnings from discontinued operations
is as follows: -

(in millions}

Negative investment in NEGT $1,208
Accumulated other comprehensiveloss (120)
Cash paid pursuant to settlement of tax related litigation (30)
Tax effect . (374)
- $ 684

Gain on disposal of NEGT, net.of tax

During the third quarter of 2005, PG&E Corporation
received additional information from NEGT regarding
income to be included in PG&E Corporation’s 2004 fed-
eral income tax return. This information was incorporated .

"in the 2004 tax return, which was filed with the Internal

Revenue Service, or IRS, in.September 2005. As a result, the

2004 federal income tax Liability was reduced by approxi-

mately $19 million. In addition, NEGT provided additional
information with respect to amounts previously included in
PG&E Corporation’s 2003 federal income tax return. This

" change resulted in PG&E Corporation’s 2003 federal income

tax liability increasing by approximately $6 million. These
two adjustments; netting to $13 million, were recognized in
income from discontinued operations in 2005. '
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At December 31, 2005, PG&E Corporation’s Co_nsolidated ‘

Balance Sheet included approximately $89 million of cur-

rent income taxes payable and’ approximately $27 million of .
other net liabilities related to NEGT. At December 31, 20086, «

PG&E Corporation’s Consolidated Balance Sheet included -
approximately $89 million of current income taxes payable, -
and approximately; $26 million ‘of other net liabilities related
to NEGT. Until PG&E Corporatlon reaches final settlement
of these obligations, it w:ll continue to disclose ﬂuctuatlons
in these estlmated hablht[es in diséontinued operations.
PG&E’ Corporatlon ceased mcludmg NEGT and its sub-
s1d13nes in its consohdated incbme tax returns begmnmg
October 29, 2004

NOTE 8: COMMON STOCK

PG&E CORPORATION

PG&E Corporatlon has authorized 800 mllhon shares of
no-par common st_(gck_'c.)f which 374,181,059 sha{es were issued
and outstanding at December 31, 2006 and 368,268,502

were issued and outstanding at December 31, 2005. A wholiy ‘

owned subsidiary of PG&E Corporation, Elm Power Corpo-
ration, holds 24,665,500 of the ou{s'tanding shares. )

OF the 374,181,059 shares issued and outgtandir{g at
December 31, 2006, 1,377,538 shares have been granted as
restricted stock as share-based compens*mon awarded under
the PG&E Corporatlon Long-Term Incentive Plan, or 2006
LTIP (sée Note 14 for further discussion).

|

In 2002, PG&E Corporation issued warrants to putrchase
5,066,931 shares of its common stock at an exercise price
of 30.01 per share. During 2006, 51,890 shares of PG&E
Corporation commaon stock were 1ssued.upon exercise of
the warrants. As of December 31, 2006, all warrants issued

had been exercised.
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Stock Repurchases, .
During 2004, 1,863,600 shares of PG&E . Corporatlon

-.common stock were repurchased for an aggregate purchase

price of appfoximately $60 million. Of this amount,
850,000 shares were purchased at a cost of approximately
$28 million and are held by Elm ‘Power Corporation.

On December 15, 2004, PG&E Corporation entered
into an acceleratéd share repurchase agreement, or ASR,
with Goldman Sachs & Co,, Inc;, or GS&Co., under which
PG&E Corporanon repurchased 9, 769 600 shares of its out-
standing coinmon stock for an aggregate purchase price of
approximately $332 million, including a $14 million price
adjustment paid on February 22, 2005. This adjustment was
based on the daily volume weigl}lted average market price, or
VWAP, of PG&E Corporation common stock over the term
of the arrangemen't. ) . ‘

In 2005, PG&E Corporation repurchaséd a total of
61,139,700 shares of its outstandmg common stock through
two ASRs with GS&Co. for 1’ Taggregate purchase pnce
of $2.2 b1!l1on, including price 2djustments based on the
VWAP and other amounts. In' 2006, 'PG&E Corporation
paid GS&Co. $114 million in additional payments (net of
amounts payable by G8&Co. to PG&E Corporation) to
satisfy obhganons under the’ last of these ASRs entered into’
in November 2005. PG&E Corporanon s payments reduced
common shareholders’ equ1ty PG&E Corporation has
no remaining obl_lgatlon ‘under the November 2005 ASR.

To reflect the potential dilution that existed while the -

obligationsrelated to the ASRs were outstanding, PG&E

Corporation treated apprommately I' million addmonal
shares of PG&E'Corporation common stock as outstandmg
for purposes of calculating diluted EPS for' 2006 (see

Note 10 below).

CUTILITY

The Unllty 1s, authorlzed to issue 800 million shares of its
$5 par value common stock of whlch 279,624,823 shares
were issued and outstandmg as of December 31 2006 and
2005, PG&E Holdmgs, LLC, a wholly owned sub51d1ary

of the Utility, holds 19,481.213 of the outstandmg sha(es.

-

'PG&E-Corporation and PG&E Holdings, LLC hold all of

the Utility's outstanding common stock.




The Utility may pay common stock dividends and e~

repurchase its common stock, provided cumulative preferred
dividends on its preferred stock are paid. As further dis-
cussed in Note 9, on the effective date of the Utility’s plan
‘of reorganization, the Utility paid cumulative preferred
dividends and preferred sinking fund payments related

to 2004, 2003 and 2002.

. DIVIDENDS

. PG&E Corporation and the Utility did not declare or
pay a dividend during the Utility’s Chapter 11 proceeding
as the Utility was prohibited from paying any common
ot preferred stock dividends without Bankruptcy Court
approval and certain covenants in the indenture related
to senior secured notes of PG&E Corporation during that
period restricted the circumstances in which such a dividend
could be declared or paid. With the Utility’s emergence.
from Chapter 11 on April 12, 2004, the Utility resumed the
payment of preferred stock dividends. The Utility reinstated
the i)ayment of a regular quarterly common stock dividend
to PG&E Corporation in January 2005, upon the achieve-
ment of the 52% equity ratio targeted in the Chapter 11
Settlement Agreement. '

During 2005, the Utility paid cash dividends of
$476 million on the Utility’s common stock. Approxi-
mately $445 million in dividends was paid to PG&E
" Corporation and the remainder was paid to PG&E Holdings,
LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Utility. On_April 15,
July 15 and October 15, 2005, PG&E Corporation paid a
quarterly common stock dividend of $0.30 per share, total-
ing approximately $356 million, including approximately
$22 million of common stock dividends paid to Elm
Power Corporation, a wholly dwn;:d subsidiary of ‘
PG&E Corporaticn. ' ) )

During 2006, the Utility paid cash dividends of
$494. million on the Utility’s common stock. Approxi-
mately $460 million in common stock dividends were paid
to PG&E Corporation and the remaining amount was
paid to PG&EiHoidings, LLC. PG&E Holdings, LLC held
approximately 7% of the Utility’s common stock as of
. February 20, 2007.

On January 16, April 15, July 15 and October 15, 2006,
PG&E Corporation paid common stock dividends of $0.33
per share, totaling approximately $489 million, including
approximately $33 miltion of common stock dividends paid
to Elm Power Corporation, a wholly owned subsidiary of_
PG&E Corpora_tiori that held approximately 7% of PG&E
Corporation’s common stock as of February 20, 2007.

On December 20, 2066, the Board‘of Directors of PG&E
Corporation declared a dividend of $0.33 pershare, totaling
approximately $123 million that was payable to shareholders
of record on December 29, 2006 on January 15, 2007. PG&E
Corporation and the Utility record common stock dividends

declared to Reinvested Earnings.
;

NOTE 9: PREFERRED STOCK

PG&E Corporation has authorized 85 million shares’

of preferred stock, which may be issued as redeemable or -
nonredeemable preferred stock. No preferred stock of PG&E
Corporation has been issued.

UTILITY . :
The Utility has authorized 75 million shares of $25 par value
preferred stock and 10 million shares of $100 par value pre-
ferred stock. The Utility specifies that 5,784,825 shares of the
$25 par value preferred stock authorized are designated as
nonredeemable prefcrred stock without mandatory redemp-
tion provisions. The remainder of the 75 million shares of
$25 par value preferred stock and the 10 million shares of
$100 par value preferred stock may be issued as redeemable
or nonredeemable preferred stock.
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At December 31,2006 and 2005, the Utility had issued
and outstanding 5,784,825 shares of nonredeemable $25 par
value preferred stock without mandatory ::edempti'on provi-
sions. Holdérs of the Utility's 5.0%, 5.5% and 6.0% series. of
nonredeemable $25 par value preferred-stock have rights to
annual dividends ranging from $1.25 to $1.50 per share. -

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Utility had issued
and-outstanding 4,534,958 shares of redeemnable $25 par
value preferred stock without mandatory redemption provi-

_stons. The Uttility’s redeemable $25 par value preferred stock

is subject to redemption at the Utility’s opfion, in-whole .
or in part, if the Utility pays the specified redemption price

plus accumulated and unpaid dividends through the redemp-

tion date. At December 31, 2006, annual dividends ranged
from $1.09 to $1.25 per share and redemption prices ranged
from $25.75 t0'$27.25 per share. oL .

)

The last of the Utlity’s redeemable $25 par value pre-
ferred stock with mandatory redemption prbvisions was
redéemed on May 31, 2005. Currently, the Utility does not
have any shares of the $100 par value preferred stock with or

without mandatory redemption provisions outstanding.

Dividends on all Utility preferred stock are cumulative.
All shares of preferred stock have voting rights and an equal
preference in dividend and liquidation rights. Because it
could not pay dividends during its Chapter, 11 proceedmg, .
the Utility paid approx1mate!y $82 million i dividends on
Utility preferred st_ock_and preferred sinking fund payments
on the effective date of the Utility’s plan of re'orga.niza—_ '
tion. Throughout the remainder of 2004, the Utility paid
dividends of approximately $19 million. During the year

_ erided December 31, 2005, the Utility paid approximately

$16 million of dividends on preferred stock without manda--
tory redemption provisions and approximately $5 million
of dividends on preferred stock with mandatory redemp-
tion provisions, During the year ended December 31, 2006,
the Utility paid approximately $14 million of dividends on
preferred stock without mandatory redemption provisions.
On February 21, 2007, the Board of Directors of the Utlllry
'declared a cash dividend-on various series of'i 1ts preferred
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stdck,-payable on May 5, 2007, to sharehc;lders of record +
on April 30, 2007. Upon liquidation or dissolution of the
Utility, holders of preferred stock would be entitled to the
par value of such shares plus all accumulated and unpaxd
dividends, as spec:ﬁed for the class and series.

On June 15, 2005, the Utility’s Board of Directors autho-
rized the redemption of all of the outstandmg shares of the
Unlity's 7.04% Redeemable First Preferred Stock totaling
approximately $36 ‘llmlllon aggregate par value plus approxi-
mately 31 million related to a $0.70 per share redemption .
premium. This issue was fully redeemed on August 31, 2005.
In addition to the $25 per share redemptio.n.price, holders
of the 7.04% Redeemable First Preferred Stock received an
amount equal to all accumulated and unpald dividends
through ‘August 31, 2005 on such shares totalmg approx1— _
mately $211,000.,

o

NOTE 10: EARNINGS PER SHARE
EPS is calculated, utilizing the “two-class” method, by divid-
ing the sum of distributed earnings to common shareholders

-and undistributed earnings allocated to common sharehold-
“ers by the weighted average number of common shares

outstanding during the period. 1n applying the “two-class”
method, undistributed earnings are allocated to both com- »
mon shares and participating securities. Holders of PG&E l
Corporation’s Convertible Subordinated Notes are entitled
to receive (non-cumulative) dividend payments prior to
exercising the conversion optian. As a result of this feature,
the Convertlble Subordinated Notes meet the criteria of a.
part1c1patmg security. All PG&E Corporatlon s participating
securities participate ‘on a 1:1 basis in dividends with com: )

- mon shareholders.

o, T




The following is a reconciliation of PG&E Corporation’s net income and weighted average common shares outstanding

for calculating basic and diluted net income per share:

Ycar-ended December 3,

{1) Includes approximately 1 million, 2 million and 222,000 shares of PG&E Corporation common stock treated as cutstanding in connection with

accelerated share repurchases for the year ended December 31, 2006, December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004, respectively. The remaining shares of

approximately 2 million at December 31, 2006, 4 million at December 31, 2005 and 6.8 million at December 31, 2004, relate to share-based compensmon

“ and are deemed to be outstanding under SFAS No. 128 for the purpose of calculating EPS. See section of Note 2 entitled "Earnings Per Share™
(2} *Distributed earnings, basic” differs from actual per share amounts paid as dividends as the EPS computation under GAAP requires the use of the

weighted average, rather than the actual number of shares outstanding. *
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(in millions, except per share amounts) | 2006 2005 2004
Net Income . $991 §$917 $4,504
Less: distributed earnings to common.shareholders 460 449 - —
Undistributed earnings - 531 468 4,504
Less: undistributed earnings from discontinued operanons - 13 684
Undistributed earnings from continuing operations $531 5455 $3,820
Common shareholders carnings .
Basic

- Diistributed earnings to common shareholders * $460 $449 - 5 -
Undistributed earnmgs allocated to common shareholders — continuing operations 503 -433 3,646
Undistributed earnings allocated t© common shareholders — discontinued operations - 12 653
Total common sharcholders earnings, basic $963 $894 54,299
Diluted . . .
Distributed earnings t6 common shareholders ’ 5460 3449 § -
Undistributed cammgs allocated to commen shareholders — continuing operations 504 433 3,650
Undistributed earnings allocated to commeon shareholders — discontinued operations - 12 653
Total common sharcholders cammgs, diluted $964  §894  $4,303
Weighted average common shares outstandmg, basic ' 346 172 398
9.50% Convertible Subordinated Notes N 19 19 19
Weighted .average common shares outstanding and participating securities, basc 365 391 417
Weighted average common shares outstanding, bns:c ;346 . 372 398
Employee share-based compensation and nccelerated 'share repurchases“’ 3 6 7
PG&E Corporation warrants ", ! - - 2
Weighted average common shares outstanding, diluted 349 378 - 407
9.50% Convertible Subordinated Notes _ 19 19 19
Weighted average common shares outstanding and participating s_ecﬁrities, diluted 368 397 426
Net earnings per common share, basic —
Distributed earnings, basic® . $133 5121 § .-
Undistributed earnings — continuing operations, basic 145, "1.16 2.16
Undistributed earnings — discontinued operations, basic = 003 1.64
Total ' $2.78  $2.40 - 51080
Net earnings per common share, diluted .

" Distributed earnings, diluted -$1.32 §1.19 § -
Undistributed earnings — continuing operations, diluted 144, 115 8.97 .

. Undistribited earnings ~ discontinued operations, diluted- - 003 1.60
Total’ 8276 5237 $10.57




PG&E Corporation stock options te purchase 28,500 and 7,046,710 shares were excluded from the computation of diluted

- EPS for 2005 and 2004, respectively, because the exercise prices of these options were greater than the avérage market price

of PG&E Corporation common stock during these years. All PG&E Corporation stock options were included in the compu-
tation of diluted EPS for 2006 bécguse the exercise price of these stock options was lower than the average market price of

PG&E Corporation common stock during the year.

PG&E Corporation reflects the preferred dividends of subsidiaries as other expense for computation of both basic and

diluted EPS.

NOTE 11: INCOME TAXES .

The significant components of income tax (benefit) expense for continuing operations were:

PG&E Caorporation Uniliy
Year ended December 31,
(in millions) 2006 ' 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004
Current; ‘ .
Federal -8$743 %1027 S 121 3771 S1048 3 73
State 201 189 91 210 196 85
Deferred: : )
Federal (286)  (574) 1877 (276)  (372) 2,000
State ©@8) (89 384 (97)  (89) 410
Tax credits, net {6) %) -7 6y % e
Income tax expense $554 § 544 52466 $602 § 574  $2.561
The following describes net deferred income tax liabilities:
PG&E Corporation Utility -
Year ended December 31,
(in millions) 2006 . 2005 2006 2005
Deferred income tax assets:
Customer advances for construction $ 806 5 607 $ 806 § 607
Reserve for damages 165 276 165 - 276
Environmental reserve 177 188 177 188
Compensation 131 S0 95 66
Other 206 382 166 300
Total deferred income tax assets $1,485 $1,543 $1,409 $1.437
Deferred income tax liabilities: -
Regulatory balancing accounts $1,305  $1,719 $1,305  $1,719
Property related basis differences ,2,778 2,694 2,778 2694
Income tax regulatory asset 243 2187 243 2i8
Unamortized'loss on reacquired debt 120 - 128 120 28
Other . 27 57 53 57
" Total deferred income tax liabilities $4,473  $4816 $4,499 " $4.816
Total net déferred income tax liabilities $2,988 $3273 $3,090 53,379
Classification of net deferred income tax liabilities: -
Included in current liabilities $ 148 $ 181 $ 118 % 161
Included in noncurrent liabilities 2,840 3,092 2972y 3218
Total net deferred i_l_'lcomc tax liabilities $3,379
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The differences between income taxes and amounts calculated by applying the federal legal rate to income before income

tax expense for continuing operations were:

)

L1

PG&E Corporation Utility

Year ended' December 31, -

v

2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004
Federal statutory income tax rate o Lo 35.0% 35.0%  35.0% '35.0%  35.0% -35.0%_
Increase (decrease) in income tax rate resulting from: L
State income tax (net of federal benefit) 4.3 45 46 - 4.6 47 4.7
- Effect of regulatory treatment of depreciation differences . 06 0.9 (0.5) 0.6 0.9 (0.4)
Tax credits, net ’ {0.6) (1.0) (0.2) {(0.6) (L0} (0.2)
Other, net " (3.4) (1.8) 03 {1.6) (1.6) 0.2
Effective tax rate 35.9% 37.6% 39.2%, 38.0% 38.0% 39.3%

The IRS has cofnplctcd its audit of PG&E Corporation’s,
1997 and 1998 consolidated federal income tax returns _;gnd‘

has ‘assessed additional federal income taxes of approximately

$87 million (including interest). PG&E Corporation filed
protests contesting certain adjustments made by the IRS
in that audit. In April 2006, PG&E Corporation and’
the IRS Appeals Office tentatively resolved the contested
adjustments. However, another claim for refund, which
PG&E Corporation filed with the IRS in December 2000,
was transferred to the IRS Appeals Office in late 2006,
and incorporated as part of the IRS's audit of PG&E

" Corporation’s 1997 and 1998 consolidated federal income
tax returns. This transfer will delay the final resolution of
this audit. PG&E Corporation has not accrued a tax benefit’
regarding this claim. -

The IRS is currently auditing PG&E Corporation;’s 2001
and 2002 consolidated federal income tax returns. The IRS
is proposing to disallow a number of deductions claimed
in PG&E Corporation’s 2001' and 2002 tax returns. The
largést of these deductions is‘a deduction for abandoned )
or worthless assets owned by NEGT. In addition, the IRS is
proposing to disallow $104 million of synthetic fuel credits
claimed in PG&E Corporati_on’s 2001 and 2002-tax returns.
If the IRS includes all of its proposed disaliowances in
its final Revenue Agent Report, the alleged tax deficiency
would approximate $452 million. Of this alleged deficiency,
approximately $104 million relates to the synthetic fuel

credits and approximately $316, million is of a timing nature,

which would be refunded to PG&E Corporation in the
future. PG&E Corporation believes that it properly reported
these transactions in its tax returns and will contest any
IRS assessment. The IRS has extended its examination of

PG&E Corporation’s 2001 and 2002 tax returns to late 2007. 4

The IRS is also currently auditing PG&E Corporation’s
2003 and 2004 consglidated federal income tax returns.

As of December 31, 2006, PG&E Corporation had
accrued approximately $138 million for potential non-Utility
tax obligations and interest related to outstanding audits,
including the $89 million related to the proposed disallow-
ance of deduction for abandoned or worthless assets owned
by NEGT discussed above, and $49 million to cover poten-
tial tax obligations related to non-NEGT issues. The Utlity
had accrued approximately $52 million as-of December 31,
2006, to cover potential tax obligations for ol_utstanding/
audits. There havé been no changes in the reserve balance
since December 31, 2005. '

After considering the above accruals, PG&E Corporation
and the Utility do not expect the final resolution of the out-
standing audits to have a material impact on their financial

condition or results of operations.
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PG&E Corporation recorded tax-benefits of $19 million
from capital losses carried forward and used in its 2005 fed-.
eral and California income tax returns. PG&E Corporation
has $229 million ‘of remaining capital loss'carry forwards
from the disposition of its NEGT,OWllersH_ip interest in
2004, which, if not.used by December 2009, will expire.

NOTE12: DERIVATIVES
AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

The Utility enters into contracts to procure elecmmty,
natural gas, nuclear fuel and firm electqaty transmission
‘rights. Except for contracts that meet the definition of nor-

- r PR R . I} . e
mal purchases and sales, all derivdtive instruments inchiding .

instruments designatlf;d'as cash flow hedges of natural gas
in the natural gas portfolios, are recorded at fair value and
presented as price risk management assets and liabilities on
the balance sheet..On PG&E Corporation s and the Utility’s
Consohdated Balance Shcets, price ; r1sk management activi-
ties appear as summanzed ‘below: - .

- 14

Dcccml:icr 3], Décember 31,

(in millions) : . L2006 2005
Current Assets — Prepaid expenses ;- .
and other .. “$ 16 $140
Other Noncurrent Assets — Other $37 $212
Current Liabilities = Other $192 $ 2
Noncurrent Llabllll’lﬁs Othcr '$ 50 $ -

Since these contracts ate used within the regulatory frame-
work, regulatory accounts are recorded to offset the costs anid
proceeds of these “derivatives recognized in éarnings and syb-
sequently recovered in regulated rates chargIeSi 10 customers. '

For cash flow hedges, the Utility recorded $8 million
as Noncurrent Liabilities — Regulatory liabilities, $3 mil-
lion as current regulatory liabilities (included in Current
Liabilities — '
assets (included in Current. Assets — Prepaid expenses and
~ other) at December 31, 2006, compated to $59 million as

Other), and $25 million as current regulatory

Noncurrent Liabilities — Regulatory liabilities, $2 million as

" current regulatory liabilities (included in Clérrent Liabilities

— Other), and less than $1 million as Other Noncurrent
Assets — Regulatory assets at December 31, 2005,

NOTE 13: NUCLEAR

DECOMMISSIONING

The Utility’s nuclear power facilities consist of two units at .
Diablo Canyon and the retired facility at Humboldt.-Bay -

Unit 3, or Humboldt Bay Unit 3. Nuclear decommlssxomng

requires the safe removal of nuclear facilities from service

and the reduction of residual radloacm’lty to a level that per-
mits termination of'the Nuclear Regulatory Commission, or
NRC, license and release of the property for unrestricted use.
For ratemaking puri)oses the eventual decommission'ing of.
Diablo Canyon_Unit 1 is scheduled to begin in 2024 and to
be completed in 2044. Decommlssmnmg ‘of Diablo Canyon
Unit 2 is scheduled to begin in 2025 and to be completed

in 2041, and decommissioning of Humboldt Bay Unit 3 is
scheduled to begin in 2009 and fo be completed in 2015.

As presented in the Utility’s Nuclear Decommissioning
Costs Triennial Proceeding, the estimated nuclear decom-
missioning cost for the Diablo Canyon Units 1 and 2 and
Humboldt Bay Unit 3 is approximately $2.11 billion in 2006
dollars (or approximately $5.42 billion in future dollars). -
These estimates are based on the 2006 decommissioning cost
studies, prepared in accordance with CPUC requirements. The
Utility’s revenue requirements for nuclear decommissioning .
costs are recovered from customers through a non—bypaésable
charge that,will continue until thosé costs are fully recovered.
The decommissionirig cost estimates are based on the plant
location and cost characteristics for the Utility’s nuclear = .
power plarits. Actual dccorﬁmissioning costs may vary from
these estimates as a result of changes in .assumptions such as
decominissioning dates, regulatory reguirements, technology,
and costs of labor, materials and equipmént,
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The estimated nuclear decommissioning cost described

above is used for.regulatory purposes. Decommissioning
costs recovered in rates are placed in nuclear decommis-
sioning trusts. However, under GAAP requirements, the
decommissioning cost estimate 15 calculated using a differ-

" ent method. In accordance with SFAS No. 143, the Utility
adjusts its nuclear decommissioning obligation to reflect the
fair value of decommissioning its nuclear power facilities.
The Utlity records the Utility’s total nuclear decommis-
sioning obligation as an asset retirement obligation on the
Utlity’s Consolidated Balance Sheet. Decommissioning '

- costs are recorded as a component of depreciation expense,

with a corresponding credit to the asset retirement costs.

regulatory liability. The total nuclear decommissioning - -
obligation accrued in accordance with GAAP was iipproxij
mately $1.2 billion at December 31, 2006 and $1.3 billion

at December 31, 2005. The primary difference between

the Utility’s estimated nuclear decommissioning obligation

as recorded in accordance with GAAP and the estimate

prepared in accordance with the CPUC requirements is that

GAAP .incorporates various potential settlement dates for the

obligation and includes an estimated amount for third-party

labor costs into the fair value calculation.

The Udlity has three decommussioning trusts for its

Diablo Canyon and Humboldt Bay Unit 3 nuclear facilities. -

The Utility has elected that two of these trusts be treated
under the Internal Revenue Code as qualified trusts. If cer-
tain conditions are met, the Utility is allowed a deduction
for the payments made to the qualified trusts. The qualified
trusts are subject to a lower tax rate on income and capital
gains, thereby increasing the trusts’ after-tax returns. Among’
other requirements, to maintain the qualified trust status
the IRS must approve the amount to be contributed to the
qualified trusts for any taxable year. The remaining non-
qualified trust is exclusively for decommissioning Humboldt
Bay Unit 3. The Utlity cannot deduct amounts contributed
to the non-qualified trust until such decommissioning costs

are actually incurred.

deferred taxes on unrealized gains.

The funds 1n the decommissioning trusts, along with
accumulated earnings, will be used exclusively for decom-
missioning and dismantling the Utility’s nuclear facilities.
The trusts maintain substantially all of their investments in '
debt and equity securities. The CPUC has authorized the
quali'ﬁed trust to invest a maximum of 50%-of its funds in
publicly-traded equity securities, of which up to 20% may be
invested in pub!iciy-tradesi non-U.S. equity securities. For the
non-qualified trust, no more than 60% may be invested in -
publicly-iraded equities, of which up to 20% may be invested
in publicly-traded non-U.S. equity securities. The a]lt_ljcation
of the trust.funds is monitored monthly. To the extent that
market movements cause the asset allocation’to move. out-
side these ranges, the mvestments are rebalanced toward the
target allocation. |

The Utility estimates after-tax annual earnings, including
realized gains and losses, in the qualified trusts to be 5.9%
and in the non-ualified trusts to be 4.8%. Trust earnings
are included in the nuclear decommissioning trust assets and
corresponding SFAS No. 143 regulatory liability. There is no
impact on the Utility’s earnings. Annual returns decrease
in later years as higher portions. of the trusts are dedicated
to fixed income investments leaaing up to and during the
entire course of decommissioning activities. . '

All earnings on the assets held in the trusts, net of
authorized disbursements from the trusts and invest-
mient management and administrative fees, are reinvested.
Amounts may not be released from the decommissioning
trusts until authorized by the CPUC. At December 31,

.2006 the Utility had accumulated nuclear decommissioning

trust funds with an estimated fair value of approximately
$1.9 billion, based on quoted market prices and net of
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In general, investmeént securities are exposed to various
risks, such as interest rate, credit and market volatility risks,
Due to the level of risk-associated with certain investment

securities, it is reasonably possible that changes in the market

- values of investment securities could occur in the near term,
and such changes could. materially affect the trusts’ fair value.

The Utlity records unrealized gains and losses on invest-
ments held in the trusts in other cémprehensive income

in accordance with.SFAS No. 115, “Accountirig for Certain -, -

Investments in Debt and; Equity Securities.” Realized gains
and losses-are recognized as additions or reductions to trust

_asset balances .The Utility, however, accounts for its nuclear

dccommlSSlOl‘llﬂg obhgatlons in accordance with SFAS
No. 71; therefore, both reahzed and unréalized gains . -
and losses are ultimately recorded as regulatory assets .
or liabilities..

In 2006, total unrealized losses on the investments .
held in the trusts were $2 million. FASB Staff Position
Nos. 115-1 and 124-1, “The Meaning of OtherThan-Temporary
" Impairment and Its Appl:catlon to Certain Investments”

state that an investment is impaired if the fair value of the
investment is less than its cost and if the impairment is .
concluded to be otherthan-temporary, an impairment loss

is recognized. Since the day-to-day investing activities of

the trusts are managed by external investment managers, the
Utility is unable to conclude that the. $2 mllhon impairment
is not other-than-temporary. As a result, an impairment

loss was recognized and the Utility recorded a $2' million

reduction to the nuclear decommissioning trusts assets and,

regulatory liability. .

The following table pn;vides a summary of the fair value,
based on quoted market prices, of the investments held in
the Utlity’s nuclear decommiissioning trusts:

~ Total . Total . .

. ' Unrealized  Unrealized  Estimated
(in millions) ) _ Maturity Date ' Gains Losses  Fair Value
Year ended December 31, 2006 . . _ ‘ ’
US. government and agency issues ' 2007-2036 - - § 34 r-$() S 814
Mumc:pal bonds and other 2007-2049 7 (D 258
Equity securities PoEs : ‘ . 644 - 991
Total : ' . o " 4685 $(2) - $2,063
Year ended December 3t 2005 A P ‘ ‘
U.S. government and agency issues” ) ' * 2006-2035 b a2 $(2) $ 763
Municipal bonds and other N LR 2006-2036 | 10 0 192
Equity securities ' CL 534 - 871
Total | $586 $(3) 51,826
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The cost of debt and equity securities sold i1s determined
by specific identification. The following table provides a
summary of the activity for the debt and equity securities:

Year ended December 31, -

{in millions)” 2006 . 2005 2004
Proceeds received from sales : '
of securities - * $1,087

$2,918 ~ §1,821

Gross realized gains on. sales of - :
securities held as available-for- salc 55 .5, .28
" Gross realized losses on sales of - ) -
securities held as availab.]e-fo‘r-gal-er {29y -~ (149) ’ (22)
SPENT NUCLEAR FUEL
STORAGE PROCEEDINGS -
Under the Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982, the Department
of Energy, or the DOE, is responsible for the transportahon
and permanent storage and disposal of spent nuclear fuel
and high-level radioactive waste. The Utility has contracted
_ with the DOE to provide for the d-i‘sposal of these materials
from Diablo Canyon. Under the contract, if the DOE
completes a storage facility by 2010, the earliest that Diablo
Canyon’s spent fuel would be accepted for storage or
disposal is thought to be 2018. Under current operating
-procedures, the Utility believes that the existing spent fuel
pools (which include newly constructed temporary storage!
racks) have sufficient capacity to_enable the Utility to oper-
ate Diablo Canyon unti] approximately 2010 for Unit 1 and
2011 for Unit 2, After receiving a permit from the NRC in
March 2004, the Utility began building an onssite dry cask
storage facility to stofe spent fuel through at least 2024.
The 'Utility estimates it could complete the dry cask storage
project in 2008. The NRC's March 2004 decision, how-
ever, was appealed by various parties, and the U.S. Court
of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit issued a decision in 2006
that requires the NRC to consider the environmental con-
sequences of a potential terrorist attack at Diablo Canyon
as part of the NRC’s supplemental assessment of the dry
cask storage permit, The Utility may incur significant addi-
tional expenditures if the NRC decides that the Utility must
change the design and construction of the dry cask storage
facility. If the Utility is unable to complete the dry cask
storage facility, or if construction is delayed béyond 2010,
" and if the Uulity 1s otherwise unable to increase its onsite
storage capacity, it is possible that the operation of Diablo

. Canyon may have to be curtailed or halted as early as 2010

with respect to Unit 1 and 2011 with respect to Unit 2 and
until*such time as additional spent-fuel can be safely stored.

" As a result of the DOE’s failure'to develop a p;zrmanent

- storage facility, the Utility has been réqliirgéd to incur sub-

stantial costs for planning and developing onsite storage
options for spent nuclear fuel as described above at Diablo
Canyon as well as at Humboldt Bay Unit 3. The Utility 1s
seeking to recover these costs from the DOE on the basis
that the DOE has breached its contractual obligation to
move used nuclear fuel from Diablo Canyon and Humboldt
Bay Unit.3 to a national repository beginning in 1998. Any
amounts recovered from the DOE will be credited to cus-
tomers. In October 2006, the U.S. Court of Federal Claims
issued a decision awarding.approximateiy $42.8 million of .
the $92 million incurred by the Utility through 2004, The
Utility will seek recovery of costs incurred after 2004 in
future lawsuits against the DOE. In January 2007, the Utility

“filed a notice of appeal of the U.S. Court of Federal Claims’

decision in the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit

_seeking to increase the amount of the award and challeng-

ing the court’s finding the Utility would have had to incur
some of the costs for the on-site storage facilities even if the,
DOE had complied with the contract, If the court’s decision
is not overturned or modified on :lppeal it is likely that the

_Utility will be unable to recover all of i its future costs for

on-site storage facilities from the DOE. However, reasonably N
incurred costs related to the on-site storage facilities are, in
the case of Diablo Canyon, recoverable through rates and,

in the case of Humboldt Bay Unit 3 recoverable through its

"

decommissioning trust fund.

PG&E Corporation and the Utility are unable to predict
the*outcome of this appeal or thc amount of any additional

awards the Utility may receive.
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NOTE 14 EMPLOYEE
- COMPENSATION PLANS

PG&E Corporation and its subsidiaries provrde non-
contributory defined benefit pensron plans for certain
employees and retirees, reférred to collecnvely as pension
 benefits. PG&E Corporanon and the Utility have élected’
that certain of the trusts underlymg these plans be tredted: -
under the Internal Revenue Code aslqualtﬁed trusts. If
certain conditions are met, PG&E Corporation and the
- Utility can deduct payments‘made to the qualified trusts,
subject to certain 'Internal“-Reve'nue( Code limitations. PG&E
Corporation'andits subsidiaries also prbvlde contributory
defined benefif medical plans for certain retired employees
_and their elrglble dependents and non-contrlbutory defined
benefit life insurance plans for certain retired employees
‘(referred to collecnvely as other bénefits). The Followmg
schedules aggregate all’ PG&E Corporatlon s and the Utility's
‘plans and are presented based on the sponsor of €ach plan.
PG&E Corporation and its subsidiaries use a December 31
measurement date for all of their plans. " ‘
On, Decemiber 31 2006 PG&E Corporanon and the ..
Utility adopted SFAS No. 158, SFAS No. 158 fequires
the funded status of an entity’s plans to be recognized
,on the balance sheet, eliminates the addltlonal minimum
. liability and enhances related dlsclosure requlrements The
- funded status of a plan, as measured under SFAS No. 158,
s the difference between the fair value of plan assets and

the, prolected benefit obltgatton for a pension plan and the .
_ accumulated postretlrement beneﬁt obligation for other post-

retirement benefit plans SFAS No. 158 does not change the
method of recordrng expense on the’ statement of income;

therefore, the- effects of’ adoptmg SFAS No 158 did not have

an inipact’on earnmgs or on cash ﬂows

[P
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Under SFAS No. 71, regulatory adjustments are recol'ded

#:...in the Consolidated Statements of Income and Consolidated - '

Balance Sheets of the Utility to reflect the difference between
, Utlity pension expense or income for accountlng purposes .
and Utility penston expense or income for ratemakmg,

which is based on 2 funding approach. For 2006, only the
portion of the pension coritribution allocated to the £aS « '

" transmission and ‘storage business is not recoverable in rates.

For 2006; the reduction in net income as a result of the.
Utility not being able to recover this portlon 1N rates was -
apprommately $5 million, net of tax. A regulatory ad]ust—
ment is also recorded for the amounts, that would 0therw1se ,
be charged to accumulated other cornprehenswe income -
under SFAS No. 158 for the pension benefits. Since 1993,
the CPUC has authorized the Utility to recover the costs' ™
associated with its other benefits based on the lesser of the -
'SFAS No 106 expense or the annual tax deductrble .contri:
butions to the appropriate trusts. This recovery mechanism.
does not allow the Utility to record a regulatory adjustment
for the SFAS No. 158 charge to accumulated other compre—

hensive income related to other beneﬁts




BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS. - R
The foilowing tables reconcile changes in aggregate projected benefit obligations for pension beneﬁts and changes in the -

benefit obl:gatlon of other beneﬁts during 2006 and 2005 - . ! ' : L
. ' H
Pension Benefits ! o . .
R ’ . . o C . PG&ElCOrporation Utility
(in millions) : s . - 2006 2005 2006 2005.
Projected bencht obligation at January 1 <t : * ©$9249  $8557. $9,211. $8,551
Service cost for benefits earned ~ e . o ' ' 236 214 233 217
Interest cost » ts e . ) . o . 511 - 500- 509 - 498
_ Plan amendments =~ . - ; - Lo (D 3 - (3)
Actuarial loss/(gain) o ’ L ) {592) . 3310 (594) - 326
Benefits and expenses pald - . o (341) (348) (339) (347)
Othert- . L S R R (X))
I_’ro]ccted bcneﬁt-'obli'gzitinn “at'Dec’ember k] I * St ' < $9,064 ' $9,249 - $9,023 $9,211
" Accumulated benefit obligation : . ' $8,178 8276 88,145 38,246
(1) In 2005, a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan was split into two plans The Utility remained sponscr of the first plan and PG&E Corporation
. became the sponsor of the second plan.’ . . . R
Other Benefits .. .-
P o o : ' PG&E Corporation_ Utility
- (in millions) ) o . . 2006 2005 2006 2005
Benefit obllganon at January. 1 . ) . N - $1,339  $1,399 51_,339 -$1,399
Service cost for benefits earned ) ) : - . . -28. ... 30, 28 - 30
Interest cost " B . - - " T 74 74 74 74
Actuarial gain | . e . : (105) (103) (105) (103}
Participants paid benefits . ' : 31 30 31 30
" Plan amendments ' ) _ il . - 31 -
Gross benefits paid : : ‘ S92 (L, (92) (1)
Federal subsidy on benefits paid ' o : ) I B 4 =

Benefit obligation at December 31 : $1,310  $1,335 $1310 $1,339

During 2006, PG&E‘Corporation‘and the Utility began including the effects of the federal subsid)'( under the Medicare
Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 in measuring the benefit obligation and the net period
"benefit cost for the contributory defined benefit medical plans The net subsidy that will be received by PG&E Corporation
and the Unhty is used to lower participant premium contributions. The result is’a plan amendmcnt ingreasing the beneﬁt
obligation by approx1mately $31 million and an offsetting actuarial gain of approximately $31 million during 2006,
resulting in a zero net effect to the. benefit obligation. The federal subsidy had an immaterial effect on the net periodic
benefit cost in 2006. :
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CHANGE IN PLAN ASSETS _ )
To determine the fair value of the plan assets, PG&E Corporation and the Utlity use publicly quoted market vallies and
independent pricing services depending on the nature of the assets, as reported by the trustee.

The following tables reconcile aggregate changes in plan assets during 2006 and 2005:

Pension Benefits

) PG&E Corporation Utility
{in millions) 2006 2005 2006 2005
Fair value of plan assets at January 1 58,049 37,614 $8,049 37614
Actdal return on plan assets - - -1,050 758 1,050 758
Company contributions - 300 . 25 298 24

Benefits and expenses paird

(371)  (348)

(369) . (347)

Fair'value of plan asscts at December 31

$9,028 38,049

-$9,028 38,049

Oiher Benefits

PG&E Corporation

" Utliy
fin millions) 2006 2005 2006 2005
- Fair value of plan assets at January 1 $1,146  $1,069 S$1,146 51,069
Actual return on plan assets 154 - - 86 154 ; 86
Company contributions - 25 59 25 59
Plan participant contribution 3 30 - .31 .30
Benefits and expenses paid (100) (98).- (100) (98) ~

Fair value of plan assets at December 31

$1.256 - §1,146 .

$1,256  $1,146

-
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FUNDED STATUS .
The following schedule reconciles the plans’ aggregate funded status to the prepaid-or accrued benefit cost on a plan sponsor

basis. The funded status is the difference between the fair value, of. plan assets and ‘projected benefit obligations. . .~ . .~ « -

. Pension Benefits

ther Beneﬁis .

.

T

A

i
PG&E Corporation . -

i

Utility

December 31,

- December 31,

(in mllhons)‘ ot _' v

. 2006 - 200 2006 2005
Fair value-of plan assets at December 31 £9,028 $8049 $ 9,028. $.8,049 -
Projected beneﬁt obhgatlon at December 31 -+ - - T(9,084)  (9,249)  (9,023) - (9.211)
Funded: status plan assets less than projected beneﬁt obligation (36 (1 200) -. 5 (1,162)
Unrecognized prior service cost’, 268 321, 275 327
- Unrecognized net loss 318 1, 34 306 1302
Unrecognized net. transition obhganon . . N UL U WU S
Less: transfer to accumulated other comprehenswc income®” . (587) = (582) . -
Prepaid/{accrued) benefit cost 3 (36) $ i36_ $ 5 § 487
Noncurrent asset I . $§ 3 § -~ § M § -
Current liability L ' ’ 6 - 3 -

_ Noncurrent liability ' L{65). .. - . (@28 . -
Prepaid beneft cost * ~ ° R ~ 7491 -
Accrued benefit liability -~ . . . - .55 = {24)
Additional -minimum llablhry - - (671). - ‘— . .(668)
Intangible asset - 332 - 332 .
Excess additional minimum liability® - 339 wo= v 336
Prepaid/(accricd) benefit cost $ (36) $ 436 § 53 467

(1) Of this amount, approximately $325 million has been recorded as a reduction to a pension regulatory liability in accordance with the provisions of - .
SEAS No. 71 and the remainder is recorded to other comprehensive income, net of the rélated income tax benefit, for 2005.
{2) Under SFAS No. 158 this amount is recorded to accumulated other comprehensive income, net of the related income tax benefit, for 2006,

Utility

PG&E Corporation
X ‘December 31, December 31,

. (in.millions) ¢ 2006 2005 2006- 2005
Fair value of plan assets at December 31 $125° $1,146 $1,256 $1,146
Benefit obligation at December 31 7 (L,310)  (1,339) (1,310) {1,339)
Funded status plan assets less than benefit obligation (58) ~ (193) (54)  (193)
Unrecognized prior service cost 114 132 114 ° 132
Unrecognized net gain 250y  "(129) (250) (129
Unrecognized net transition obligation 154 179 154~ 179
Less: transfer to accumulated other cohprehensive income® (18 - : (18) -
Accrued benefit cost S (54 (1) $ (59 s (1)
Noncurrent liability $ (58§ — § (3§ -
Accrued benefit liability - (11 . - {1y
Accrued benefit cost § (54 s (1) $ (59 § (11)

(1.) Under SFAS No. 158 this amount is recorded to accumulated other comprehensive income, net of the related income tax benefit, for 2006, '
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OTHER INFORMATION o S S s
The aggregate projected benefit obligation, accumulated benefit obligation and fair value of planasset for plans in which

the fair value of plan assets is less than the accumulated beneht obhgatlon and the projected benefit obligation as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005 were as follows:

ot

Pension Benefits Other Benefits

{in millions) - . - 2006 2005 2006 2005
PG&E Corporation: _ . . .
Projected benefit obligation o _ $(70) $(9,249) $(1,310) $(1,339)
Accumulated benefit obligation ’ : (62) (8,276) - -
Fair value of plan assets . ‘ - 8,049 .1,256 1,146
Utility: _ “ : . LT
Projected benefit obligation . ' $(29) $(9,211) $(1, 310) 1, 339)
Accumulated benefit obligation ' ) - {(28) (8246) . - -

' '

Fair- value of 1:'>lan assets . . e 8,049 1,256 1,146

COMPONENTS OF'NET PERIODIC BENEFIT COST
Net periodic benefit cost as reflected in PG&E Corporation’s Consolidated Statements of Income for 2006, 2005 and 2004

is as follows ) . ' -

Pension Benefiis

) . December 31,
(in millions) . : . 2006 2005 2004

Seérvice cost for benefits earned : I ‘ . $23 - 3214 3194
Intérest cost ' . Tl o . 511 500 482
Expected return on plan assets o i (640)  {623) = (563}
Amortized prior service cost o Co o 56 56 . 63
Amortization of unrecognized loss E . ' . . 22 29 )
Net periodic benefit cost $185 $176 $182
Other Benefits - - .
2 L

. ‘ i .  December 31,
{in millions) . : 2006 2005 2004
Service cost for benefits earned ' ’ 2 ‘ $28 530 §$132
Interest cost’ 74 74 - 84
Expected return on plan assets” " ) T ot - (90) (85) (7¢)
Amortized prior service cost . 14 11 12
Amortization of unrecognized loss (gain) : o . C ) n -
Amortization of transition obligation : ! o 26 26 26

‘Net periodic benefit cost -+ . ' $49 $55 §78

-There was no material difference between’ the Utility’s and PG&E Corporation’s consolidated net periodic benefit costs.
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COMPONENTS OF ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

On December 31, 2006, upon adoption of SFAS No. 158, PG&E Corporation and the Utility recorded unrecogmzed prior
service costs, unrecognized gains and losses, and unrecognized net transition obligations as components of accumulated other
comprehensive income, net of tax. In subsequent years PG&E Corporation and the Utility will recognize these amounts as’

components of net periodic benefit cost in accordance with SFAS No. 87 and 106.

"Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income consist of:

PG&E Corporation Utility

{(in millions) -

2006 2005 2006 2005

Pension Benefits: '
Unrecognized prior service cost
Unrecognized net loss -

Unrecognized net transition. obligation

$268 $— $275 _ $-—

.38 - 306 -
L - 1 -
(574 - (579 -

Less: transfer to regulatory account™

Total

$ 13 $- $ 8 $-

if

Other Benefits: -

Unrecognized prior service cost

Unrecognized net gain

. Unrecognized net transition obligation

‘$114 S— $14  S-—
[(250) - (250) -
54.  — 154 -

Total

$18° $- $ 18 S-—

{1) The Unhty recorded approximately $574 million as a reduction to the existing penston regulatory llabllll‘y in accordance with the provisions of SFAS

No. 71.

The estlmated amounts that will be amortized into net periodic benefit cost in 2007 are as follows: -

(in millions)

PG&E COrporanon " Utility

Pension benefits:

- - 549 ' $ 50

Unrecognized prior service cost

Unrecognized net loss I

Unrecognized net transition obligation I
. Toul ' -$51  §51
Other benefits: , §

Unrecognized prior service cost $14  §S14

Unrecognized net gain (12) (12)

Unrecognized net transition obhganon 26 26
*, Total $28 $28
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INCREMENTAL EFFECT OF APPLYING SFAS NGO, 158

Thefollowing table-showsthe 1ncremental effect of applymg SFAS No. 158 on individual line;i items in the Décember- 31

2006, balance sheet

g B

L

T o

'.'—

Y

LR Lot

VALUATION ASSUMPTIONS

'a " STty i ey o < . 0 PEEERY
- b . PGXE Corporation Unlity
’ ) . . ‘ " Effect of  As Reported at e Effect of  As Reported at
SRR B i ' Befo'rg Y. "-'Adopting December 31, .'i < . ,*: Before Adopting December 31,
" {in millions) o e ] " v+ Application  SFAS No. 158 * 2006 . Application  SFAS No. 158 . ., 2006
" Other Noncurrent Assets 1+ . L S . ’ . . Co .
+ Other PR e $.330 0% 34 $ 373 $ . 246 $3 % 280
Total other noncurrent assets 7117 34 7,151 7,049 T34 T - 7,083
TOTAL ASSETS - ¢ 77 TT83a769 $ 3., - . $34303 §34337° . ., § 34 - $34371
Current Liabilities it 1 , e . ' o, b :. )
Accounts payable : S ‘ . _"J_'é‘_‘ s .
Other - T TE e R g 454 S (34 $ a0 - 5 4% CS(Ga) | § a0z
_Deferred.mcome taxes™ "L s s : 134 - 14 7 - 148, R (1 SR (2 o 118
Total current ]iéBili;ics ' .- 8,270 {20) 8250 '7,‘?00’" ‘ Co@oyt -_7',6_3'0
Non_curreﬁt Liabilities P : - _ L . . .‘ T B R
Regulatory liabiliries =¥ ‘ 3966, - {574y - 3,392 3966 0 (574 Y 3392
Deferred income taxes- - = » i & 2,862 o (22)- 72840 s 2,993, 0 21 2,972
Other, | 30 p e et 1392 661 . 2088 ¢ L2389 1922
Total noncurrent liabilities 18,425 65 18,490.. - . 18,427 o e6d v 18,491
Accumulated other comprehensive income (8) (11) (19) (6} (10) (16)
Total sharcholders’ equity AP ER F. VA ey 7.8117 g210 oy 8,200
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND o ; T | .
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY '$34,76 $ 34 $34,803 534,337 3 34 $34,371

The following actuanal assump‘uons were used in determining the projected benefit obligations and the net penodn: cost. .

Wﬂghted average year-end assumptions wcre used in, determmmg the plans pro;ected benefit obllgatlons,_whlle prior

yearend assumptions are used to compute net beneﬁt cost. .

{

Pension Benefits

© Other Benefis

. December 31," T

December 31,

S T ' © 2006 2005 2004 "7 2006 . 2005 2004.
Discoiint rate : 590% 5.60% 5.80% . 5.50-6.00% 5.20-5.65%  5.80%
Average rate of future compensation increases; , .5.00% , 5.00% 5.00% .. - . = = —
Expccted return on plan assets . - - I . .
Pension benefits ' - '8.00% ° 800% 8100 1T U - -
Other benefits: , A A T
Defined benefit — medical plan bargaining - .- - 8.20% 8.40%  8.50%
Defined benefit — medical plan non- bargammg ' - - - 7.30% 7.60%  7.60%
" Defined benefit —life insurance plan ' - - - 8.20% 8.40%  8.50%
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The assumcd-hcalth‘care cost trend rate for 2006 is
approximately 9%, decreasing gradually to an ultimate
trend rate in 2011 and beyond of approximately 5%. A one-
percentage point change in assumed health care cost trend .
rate .would have the following effects: ‘

One-Percentage

(in millions) Point Increase  Point Decrease

Effect on ‘postretirement
benefit obligation L $71
Effect on service and interest cost 8

| $(58)
©)

Expected rates of return 0'1']. 'pla'ﬁ_ assets were developed
by determining projected stock and bond returns and then
applying these returns to the targét asset allocations of the
employee benefit trusts, resulting in a wéighted average rate
of return on plan assets. Fixed income returns were projc;cted
based on real maturity and credit spreads added to a long-
‘term inflation rate. Equity returns were estimated based on
estimates of dividend yield and real earnings growth added
to a long-term rate of inflation. For the Utility Retirement
Plan, the assumed return of 8.0% compares to a 10-year

¥

\actual return of 9.0%. The rate used-to discount pension

- and other post-retirement benefit plan liabilities was based

on a yield curve developed from market data‘of over 500

_ Aa-grade non-allable bonds at December 31, 2006. This yield

curve has discount rates that vary based on the duration

- of the obligations. The estimated future cash flows for the
One-Percentage

pension and- other benefit obligations were matched to the

corresponding rates on the yield curve to derive a weighted

average discount rate..

The difference between actual and expected return on
plan assets is included in net amortization and- deferral,
and is considered in the determination of future net benefit

" income (cost). The actual return on plan assets was above the

expected return in 2006, 2005 and 2004,

ASSET ALLOCATIONS

The asset.allocation of PG&E Corporation’s and the Utility’s
pension and other benefit.plans at December 31, 2006 and
2005, and target 2007 allocation, were as follows:

" Pension Benefits Other Benefits

2007 2006, 2005 12007 2006 2005

Equity securities : < .
U.S. equity 37.5% 38% 41% . 49% 49% 51%
Non-U.S. equity 17.5%  18%  24% 1800  20% 20%
Global equity T 5% 5% 0% 4% 4% 0%
Fixed income securities ' a0%  39% 35%  29%  27% 29%
Total ‘100%  100%  100% 100% 100%  100%

. *

Equity securities include a small amount (less than 0.1% of total plan assets) of PG&E Corporation common stock.

The maturity of fixed income securities at December 31, 2006 ranged from zero to 60 years and the average duration of
the bond portfolio was approximately 4.6 years. The maturity of fixed income securities at December 31, 2005 ranged from
zero to 55 years and the average duration of the bond portfolio was approximately 4.1 years,

PG&E Corporatmn s and the Utll1ry s investment strategy for all plans is to maintain actual asset weightings within
0.5%=5.5% of target asset allocations varying by asset class. A rebalancing review is triggered whenever thc actual weighting
exceeds the range of acceptable weighting.

'
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A benchmark portfolio for each asset class is set based

on market capitalization and valuations of equities and

the durations and credit quality ‘of fixed income securities.
Investment managers for each asset class are retained to
periodically adjust, or actively manage, the combined port-.
folie againsé the benchmark. Active management covers
approximately 80% of the U.S. equity, 55% of the non-U.S: -
_equity and virtuatly 100% of the fixed income and global
security portfolios. | -

CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Employer Confributions S '
PG&E Corporation and the Utility’ contributed approxn-
mately $300 million to the pension bencﬁts including
$295 million to the qualified defined beneﬁt pension plan,
of-which $20 million related to 2005, and approximately
$25 million to the other benefits in 2006. These contribu-
tions are consistent with PG&E Corporation’s and the
Ut:htys fundmg policy, which is to contnbute amounts '
that are tax deductible, consistent WIth apphcable regula-

- tory decisions and federal minimum funding requirements.
None of these pension or other benefits were subject to
a miniﬁiumlfunding requirement in 2006, The Utility’s
pension benefits met all;-the funding requirements under
the Empltgyee' Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as

- amended. PG&E Corporation and the Utility expec} to
make total contributions of approximately $176 million
during 2007 to the qualified defined benefit pens:on plan.
Contribution estimates for the Utl]lty $ other benefit plans
after 2006 will be driven by fature GRC decisions and in
line with the Utility's funding policy. .

-

Benefits Payments "

The estimated benefits expected to be paid in €ach of the
next five fiscal years and in aggregate for the ﬁve fiscal- years
thereaﬁer, are as follows: , . S

PG&E
{in millions) Corporation  Utility
Pentsion R
2007 - § 392 5 390
2008 - 417 415
2009 441, 439
2010 _ . o . 465 462
2011 ‘ =511 508
2012-2016 . 2771 2,757
Other benefits “
2007 - ) $ 30 % 80
2008 84 84
2009 . . .86 86
2010 . ‘ : " 89 - 89
2011 ) )| 9]
2012-2016 T 484

- 484
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DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION PLAN

PG&E Corporation.and its subsidiaries also sponsor -
defined contribution.beénefit plans.-These plans are qualified
under applicable sections of the Internal Revenue Code. -
These pla‘ns provide for tax-deferred salary deductions and
after-tax employee contributions as well as employer con-
tributions. Employees demgnate the funds.in which their
contributions and any employer contributions are invested.
Employer contributions include matching of up to 5% of
an employee’s base compensation and/or basic contributions
of up to 5% of an employec’s lJ)a\se_compensanon Matching
employer contributions are automatically invested in PG&E
Corporation common stock. Employees may reallocate ,
matching employer contributions and accurnulated earn-
ings thereon to-another investment fund or funds available:
to the plan at any time after they have.been credited to the
employee’s account. Employer contribution expense reflected
in PG&E Corporation’s Consolldated Statements of [ncome
amounted to: | LRI :

PG&E

(in millions) _ Corporation  Uulity
Year ended December 31, .

2006 T ‘ ) . $45 $43
2005 : D © 43 42

- 20040 ' 40 . 39

(1}, Tncludes NEGT-related amounts within PG&E Corporation.

LONG-TERM INCENTIVE. PLAN

_On January 1, 2006, the PG&E Corporation 2006 LTIP

became effective, The 2006 LTIP permits the award of vari-

ous forms of incentive awards, including stock options,

. stock appreciation fights, restricted stock awards, restricted.

stock units, performance shares, performance units, deferred,
compensation awards; and other stock-based awards to
eligible employees of PG&E Corporation and its sub51d1aries._
Non-employee directors of PG&E Corporatlon are also
eligible to receive restnctcd stock and e1thcr stock OpthﬂS

ot restricted stock units under the formula grant provisions
of the 2006 LTIP. A maximum of 12 million shares of

PG&E Corporation cbmmon.stock {subject to adjustment

for changes in capital structure, stock dividends, or other




similar events) have been reserved for issuance under the
2006 -LTIProf which 11,421,085 shares were available for
award at December 31, 2006. The 2006 LTIP was amended
.on February 15, 2006 to address the vesting of outstand-
ing awards in connection with'a change in control of

PG&E Corporation.

The 2006 LTIP replaced the PG&E Corporation Long-
Term Incentive Prograin, which expired on December 31,
2005. Awards made under the PG&E Corporation Long—
Term Incentive Program before December 31, 2005 and °
still outstanding continue to be governed by the terms
and conditions of the PG&E Corporation LongTerm .
Incentive Program ‘

PG&E Corporation and the Utility use an estimated
annual forfeiture rate of 2%, based on historic forfeiture
rates, for purposes of determining compensation expense for
share-based incentive awards. The’following -table provides a
su-mmary of total compensation expense for PG&E Corpo-
ration {(consolidated) and the Utlity (stand-alon'e) for share-
based incentive awards for the year ended December 31, 2006:

PG&E
{(in millions) ' Corporation  Utility
Stock Options . $12 $8
Restricted Stock . 20 14
- Performance Shares S ‘ . 33 24
Total Compensation Expense {pre-tax) . 565 $46
Total Compensation Expense (after-tax) $39 $27

As discussed in Note 2, “New and Significant Accounting
Policies — Share-Based Paymerit,” effective January 1, 2006,
PG&E Corporation édobted the fair value recognition provi-
sions for share-based payment using the modified prospective

appllcatlon method provrded by SFAS No. 123R.

Stock Options - ' -
Other than the grént'-.of options to purchase 12,457 shiares
of PG&E Corporation ‘common stock to non-employee
directors of PG&E 'Corporation' in accordance with the
formula and nondrs‘:cretionary provisions of the 2006 LTIP,

no other stock options were granted during 2006. The exer- -

cise price of stock options granted under the 2006 LTIP and
all other outstanding stock options is equal to the market
price of PG&E Corporation’s common stock on the date of
grant. Stock options generally have a 10-year term and vést
over four years of continuous service, subject to acceletated

vesting in Certain circumstances.

The fair value of each stock option on the date of grant

is estimated using the Black-Scholes valuation method. The
weighted average grant date fair value of options granted
using the Black-Scholes valuation method was $6.98, $10.08
and $8.70 per share in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
The significant assumptions used for shares granted in 2006,
2005 and 2004 were:

2004

2006 2005
Expected stock price ,
volatility . 22.1% 40.6% 45.0%
Expected annual dividend £l
" payment $132.. . S51.20 $1.20
Risk-free interest rate 4.46% 3.74% 3.66%
Expected life 5.6 y:ars 5.9 years 6.5 years

Expected volatrlltles are based on hrstoncal volatlllty
of PG&E Corporation’s common stock. The exptcted life of
stock or)tions is derived from historical data that estimates .
stock option exercise and erﬁp]oyee departure behavior. The
risk-free interest rate for periods within the contractual term
of the stock option is based on the U.S. Treasury rates in

effect at the date of grant.

The following table summarizes total intrinsic value
{fair market value of PG&E Corporation’s stock less stock
option strike price) of options é)icr;'ised for PG&E Corpo-
ration (consolidated) and the Utility (stand-alone) in 2006, *
2005 and 2004: ’

‘PG&E

(in millions) Corporation  Unility
2006:

Intrinsic value of options exercised $97 551
2005: '
Intrinsic value of options exercised $125 $57
2004:

Intrinsic value of options exercised $83 M

The tax benefit from stock options exercised totaled
$31 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, of which’
approxtmately 544 million was recorded by the Utility.

157




' Ii'

The followmg table summanzes stock option activity for PG&E Corporation and the Utility for 2006:

.

Weighted
* Average °
Remaining

Weighted Average ! Contractual -, " Aggregate

Options  + . Shares Exercise Price Term " Intrinsic Value -
Qutstanding at ]anuary 1 - . ’ 11,899,059 $23.26 .
Granted® _— o o o - 12,457 37.47
Exercised L ' o (5,369,818) 2205 -
Forfeited or expired  * - 4 - (142,728) 25.50 - -
Outstanding at December 31~ u ‘ 6,398,970 2352 55  $148,248,308

. Expected to vest at December' 31 e 2,226,843 '25.29 69 % 46,872,341
Exercisable at December 31 4,115,402 17.50 _ 3.8  $101,375,967

{1) No stock options were'awarded to.é}'np](‘)yees in 2b06; however, certain non-employee directors of PG&E Corporation were awarded stock options. -,

The following table s‘u.mmarizets‘stoc'k 'o;)tion activity for the .Utility for. 2006:

Weighted .

. : Average o
f . 'Remaining "=

s .. Weighted Average  Contractual Aggregate
Optlons Shares - Exercise Price Term  Intrinsic Value
Outstanding at January 0 ¢ 7344455 $23.15
Granted T : P -
Exercised - . N CE  {2,836,769) 221
Forfeited or expired : (105,180} 25.48 .
Outstanding 2t December 31 ﬁ ; 4,402,506 2366 58 $104,083,574
Expected to vest at December 31 : 1,571,779 2528 69§ 33113132
Exercisable at December 31 7 . 2,799,712, 17.99 . 41 $ 70,970,442
(1) Includes net employee transfers between PG&E Corporatlon and the Utility during 2006. s

As of December 31, 2006, there was approximately
“$16 million of total unrecogmzed compensation cost related
0 outstandmg stock options, of which $11 ‘million was .
‘allocated to the Utility, That cost is expected to be recog-
nized over a weighted ‘average period of 2.4 Jyears for PG&E -
Corporatlon and the Utility. .

Restricted Stock

During 2006, PG&E Corporanon awarded 559, 855 sharcs
of PG&E Corporanon restncted common stock to cl1g1ble
pamapants of PG&E Corporatlon and its subsidiaries,
of which 387, 735 shares were awarded to the Utllltys
‘ehglble part1c1pants ' -

The restrlcted shares are held in an escrow account. The
shares become available to. the employees asithe restrictions
lapse. For the restricted stock awarded in 2003, the festric-
tions on. 80% of the shares-lapse automaticé'lly over a ]:;eriod

.

158

of four years at the rate of 20% per year. RCStrlCthﬂS on the
remaining 20% of the shares will lapse at.a rate of 5% per
year if PG&E Corporation’s annual total shareholder return,
or TSR, is in the top quartlle of its comparator group as ’
measured at the end of the 1mmedlatcly precedmg year. "

For restricted stock awarded in 2004 and 2005, there are

no performance criteria and the restnctlons will lapse ratably

_over four years. For restricted stack’ awardcd in 2006, the

restrictions on .60% of the shares will lapse automatlcally
over a period of three years at the rate of 20% per year. If
PG&E Corporation’s annual TSR is in the top quartile of
its comparator group, as measured for the three immediately
preceding calendar years, thé restrictions on the remaining
40% of the shares’ will lapse on the ﬁrst business day. of
2009. If PG&E Corporauon 5 TSR is not in the top quartile
for such period, then the restrictions on the remaining 40%
of the shares will lapse on the first busmgss day of 2011
Compensation expense related to the portion of the 2006 3
restricted stock award that is subject to conditions based on
TSR is recognized over the shorter of the requisite service
period and three years.




The tax benefit from restricted stock which vested during - .
2006 totaled $4 million for 2006, of which approximately |
$2 million was recorded by the Utility.

The following table summarizes restricted stock activity

for PG&E Corporation and the Utility for 2006:

‘ T . Number of Weighted
' Shares of Average

Restriceed  Grant-Date

Stock Fair Value

Nonvested at January 1

Granted : o 559,855 37.47
Vested - . . (493,874) 2097
Fodfeited . _ o (88433) - 1941

Nonvested at December 31 1,377,538 $29.24

The following table summarizes restricted stock activity

1,399,990 §2231..,

Qutstanding performance shares are classified as a liabil-
ity on the Consolidated Financial Statements of PG&E '
Corporation and the Utility because the performance shares
can only be settled in cash upon satisfaction of the perfor-
mance criteria. The liability related to the performance shares
is marked to market at the end of each reporting period '
to reflect the market price of PG&E Corporation common
stock and the payout percentage at the end of the reporting’
period. Accordingly, compensation expense récognized for
performance shares will fluctuate with PG&E Corporation’s
common stock price and its performance relative to its
peer group. ‘ h . '

The following table summarizes performance share

- activity for PG&E Corporation and the Utility for 2006:

Performance Shares and Performance Units

During 2006, PG&E Ct')rporétion awarded 559,855 perfor-
mance'shares to eligible participants of PG&E Corporation
and its subsidiaries, of which*387,735 shares were awarded
to the Utility’s eligible ;‘)articipants Performance shares are
hypothetical shares of PG&E Corporation common stock
that vest at the end of a three-year period and are settled

in cash. Upon vesting, the amount of cash that rec1p1ents
are entitled to receive is based on the average closing price
of PG&E Corporation stock for the last 30 calendar days
of the year preceding the vcstmg date and a payout per-
centage, rangmg from 0% to 200%, as measured by PG&E \
Corporation’s TSR relative to its comparator group for the |
applicable three-year penod :

. Number of
for the Utility for 2006: _ Performance Shares
Number of \'Vcighted Nonvested at January 1 ) . 803,975
Shares of Average Granted | . oy - 559,855
- Restricted’  Grant-Date  Vested . {469,023)
) Stock.  Fair Value  Forfeited . {62,201)
Nonvested at January | i 958,997 . $22.48 Nonvested at December 31 . 832,606
Granted ' 387,735 37.47 .
Vested L 339,362 21.08 . . ’
Fzsr fiued ’ o ((74,642; 5074 Tl?e following t.allale summarizes p‘e{f‘q_r‘mance shares
Nonvested at December 31 ’ ' 932,728 $29.36 activity for the Utility for 200.6: o o )
o Nuinber of
As of December 31, 2006, there was approximately . : . e e P”f"rma”-c_e Shares
. $17 million of total unrecognized compensation cost relat- gonvezted at January 1 - SR 565:022
. : . e : rante ' ) 387,7
mg Fo restricted st(?yk, c%f' which $12 ml‘ll‘lon related to the Vested . (19.119)
Utility. PG&E Corporation and the Utility expect to recog- Forfeited - (51,105)
nize this cost over a weighted average period of 1.3 years.

Nonvcstcd at December 31 : -+ . 583,597

PG&E Corporation-

Supplemental Retirement Savings Plan
The supplemental retirement savings plan provides supple-
mental retirement alternatives to eligible officers and key
employees of PG&E.Corporation and. its subs1d1ar1es by
allowing participants to defer portions of their compensa-
tion, including salaries and amounts awarded under various
incentive awards and to receive supplemental employer-
provided retirement benefits. Under the employee-elected
deferral component of the plan, eligible employees. may. defer
all or part of their incentive awards arid 5% to 50% of thetr
salary. Under the supplemental employer-provided retirement
benefits component of the plan, eligible employees may-
receive full credit for employer matching and basic contti-
butions, under the respective defined contribution plan, in
excess of limitations set by the Internal Revenue Code. A
separate non-qualified account is maintained for each eligible
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remaining disputed clairs.
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employee to track deferred amounts. The account’s value is ..

adjusted in atcordarice with the performance of the invest
ment options selected by the employee. Each employee’s
account is adjusted on a quarterly basis, and the change in
value is recorded as additional compensation’expense or
income in'the Consolidated Financial Statements. Total
compensation expense recognized by PG&E Corporation
and the Utility in connection with the plan amounted to:

e

PG&E
(in' millions) - Corporation  Utility
2006: R . f $4 %2
2005 ) , ‘ 3 1

2004: o S 3 1

Ty

NOTE 15: THE UTILITY’S
EMERGENCE FROM CHAPTER 11

~ As a'result of the California energy crisis, the Utility ﬁlefd

a voluntary petition for relief under the provisions of -
Chapter 11.on April 6, 2001. The Utility retamed control
of its assets and was authorized to operate its businéss as 4
"debtor-in- -possession durmg its Chapter 11 proceeding. PG&E
Corporation and the subsidiaries of the Utility, including
PG&E Funding, LLC, which issued rate reduction bonds,

. and ‘PG&'.E_ Holdings, LLC, which holds stock of the Uslity,
weré not included in the Utility’s Chapter 11 proceeding.

The Utility cmerged flom Chapter 11 ‘when its plén of
reorgamzanon became effective on April 12, 2004, or the
‘Effective Date. The plan of reorganization mcorporated the '
- terms of the Chapter 11 Settlement Agreement. Although the
Utiliry’s operations are no longer subject to the oversight
of the bankruptey court, the bankruptcy court retains juris- -
diction to hear and: determine disputes arising in connection
with the interpretation, implementation or ehforcement of
(1) the Chapter 11 Settlement Agreement (2) the plan of
reorganization and (3} the bankruptcy court’ s December 22,
2003 order conﬁrmmg the plan of reorgamzanon In addi- -

tion, the bankruptey court retains jurisdiction to resclve

At December‘31, 2004, the Utility had accrued approxi-
mately $2.1 billion for remaining disputed claims. Since
December 31, 2004, the Utility has made payments to credi-,
tors of approximately $29 million in settlement of disputed
claims and, as a result of settlements reached with creditors,
has reduced the disputed claims balance by approxlmately A
$404 million. The Utility held $1.2 billion in escrow for
the payment of the remaining disputed claims as of Decem-
ber 31, 2006. Upon resolution of these claims and under
the terms of the Chapter 11 Settlement Agreement, any et
refunds, claim offsets or ‘other'credits that the Utlhry recetves
from energy suppliers will be returned to customers. Wlth
the approval of the bankruptcy court, the Utility has thh—

" drawn certain amounts from the ‘escrow in’ connection with

settlements with certain CA]SO and Power Exchange, or PX,
sellers. As of December 31, 2006, the amount of the accrual
was apprommately 51.2 billion for remaining net dispured -
c:la1ms consisting of approx1mately $1.7 billion of accounts
payable—dxsputed claims pnmanly payable to the CAISO
and the PX, offset by an accounts receivable from the

(CAISO and the PX of approximately $0.5 billion.

NOTE 16:.RELATED.
PARTY AGREEMENTS
AND TRANSACTIONS

In accordance with various agreements the Utility and other '
subsidiaries provide and receive various services to and from
their parent, PG&E Corporation, and among themselves.

The Utility and PG&E Corporation exchange administrative

“dnd professional services in support,of gperations. Services
_ prov1ded directly to PG&E Corporation by the Utlity are

priced at the higher of fully loaded cost (i, direct costs
and allocations of overhead costs) or fair market value,
depending on the nature of the services. Services provided
directly to the Utility by PG&E Corporation are priced at .
the lower of fully loaded cost or fair market value, depend-
ing on the nature of the services. PG&E Corporatlon also
allocates certain other, corporate administrative and general

©Costs, at cost, to the Utility and other subsidiaries using

ETR “e
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agreed upon allocatlon factors, 1nclud1ng the number of employees operating expenses excluding fuel purchases total assets

and other cost allocation methodologies. The Utllrty 5 srgmﬁcant related party transactions and related" recelvable (payable)

balances were as follows:

Receivable
{Payable) Balance
Qutstanding at

o Year ended
: PR _ Year ended December 31, 4 December 31,
- (in millions) _ - CLY 2006 2005 - -2004 2006 " 2005
Utility revenues from: - ’
Administrative services provided to PG&E Corporanon $ 5. .8 5 58 | %2 $ 2
Utility employee benefit assets due from PG&E Corporation - - - 25 23
Interest from- PG&E Corporanon on employee benefit assets 1 - - - -
Utility expenses from: . -t :
Administrative services recerved from PG&E Corporatlon ! 5108 $in $81 " $(40) $(37)
Utility employee benefit payments due to PG&E Corporation 3 ‘— ;- - -
Interest’ accrued on pre—petmon liabilities-due to PG&E Corporation - - 2 - -
Natural gas transportatron services recelved from GTNW !

-

L ‘-I
G . .

NOTE 17: COMMITMENTS

v

: AND CONTINGENCIES

PG&E Corporatlon and the Utility have substantial ﬁnancral
commltments in connectlon with agreements entered 1nto to

“support the Unlity’s operanng activities. PG&E Corporatlon

has no ongoing financial commrtments relating to NEGT’s
current operating activities. PG&E Corporanon and the
Utility also have srgmﬁcant contingencies arrsmg from their
operations, including ‘contingencies related to’ guarantees
power purchases made during the 2000-2001 energy cr:srs, .
regulatory proceedrngs nuclear operat:ons employee "

. matters, envrronmental eomphance and remedlatlon

and legal matters. ~ . -

COMMITMENTS ! .

PG&E CORPORATION
, PG&E Corporatlon agreed to accept the assrgnment of

certain Canadian natural gas pipeline firm transportation
contracts effectrve November 1, 2007, through October. 31,
2023 the remammg térm of the contracts’ duration. The
fitm quannry under the contracts is approxrmately 50 mil-

dion cubrc feet per day and PG&E Corporatlon his estimated

“annual reservation charges will range between approxrmately

$8 million and $12 million. During the térm of the con-.

tracts, the applicable” reservation charges will equal the fulI
tariff rates set by regulatory authorities in'Canada and the*
United-States, as applicable. PG&E Corporation is unable
to predict the utilization of these contracts, which will -
depend on market prices, customer demand and approval

_of cost recoyery by the CPUC among other factors.

PG&E Corporation also has operatlng lease obhgatlons
related to office space Contracts have explratlon terms that
range from November 2008 to February 2012. PG&E’s com-
m:tment under these contracts 1s approxrmately $13 m:Ihon

UTILITY

'Third-Party Power Purehase Agreemenls

Qualifying Facility Power Purchase Agreements — Under
the Public Utility Regulatory Policies Act of 1978, or -
PURPA, electric utilities were required ‘to purchase energy
and capacity from independent power nroducers that are
qualifying co-generation facilities, or QFs. "To implement

the purchase requirements of PURTA, the CPuC rcqu1red

- California investor-owned electric utilities to enter into long-.
term power purchase agreements with QFs and approved the
applicable terms, condrnons, prices and eligibility requ1re—
ments. These agreements requlre the Utility to-pay for energy
and capacity. Energy payments are based on the QF’S actual
electncal output and CPUC—approved energy prices, while -
eapac1ty payments are based - on the (lF s total avallable :
capaerty and contractual capac1ry commitment: Capac:ty
payments may beé adjusted if the QF fails to meet or exceeds
performance requlrements specified in the ‘applicable power
purchase agreement.
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The Energy Policy Act of 2005 significantly amended ©. ,

the purchase requirements of PURPA. As amended,
Section 210{m) of PURPA authorizes the FERC to waive

* the obligation of an electric utility under Section 210 of
PURPA to purchase the electricity offered to it by a QF
(under a new.contract or obligation) if the FERC finds that

the QF has nondiscriminatory access to one of three defined.

categories of competitive wholesale electrlc1ty markets. The
statute permits such waivers as to a partlcular QForon | .
a “service territory-wide basis.” The Utility plans to wait
until after the new day-ahead market structure provided
for in the CAISO’s Market Redesign e\ma‘Technology ,
Update, or- MRTU, initiative to restructure the California ‘
electricity market becormes effective to assess whether it will
file a request with the FERC to terminate its obhgatlons
under PURPA to enter into new QF purchase obligations.

As of December 31, 2006, the Utility had agreements with
268 QFs for approximately 4,150 megawatts,"or MW, that.
are in operation. Agreements for approximately 3,800.MW
expire at various dates between- 2007 ‘ar_fd 2028. QF power
purchase agreements for approximately 350 MW have no
specific expiration dates and will terminate only when the
owner of the QF exercises its termination option. The
Utility also has power pu}cﬁase agreements with approxi-

" mately 68 inoperative QFs. The total of approximately
4,150 MW consists of approximately 2;550 MW from cogen-
eration projects, 600 MW from wind projects and 1,000 MW
from projects with other fuel sources, including biomass,
waste-to-energy, geothermal, solar‘and hydroelectric.

1 o '
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QF power, purchiase agreements accourited for approxi'-
mately 20% of the Utlity’s 2006 electricity sources, 22%  +
of the Utlllty 5 2005 clectricity sources and’ approx1mately

. 23% of the Utility's 2004 electricity sources. No single QF
-accounted for more than 5% of the Utility’s 2006, 2005 or

2004 electricity sources. S .

There are proceedings pending at the CPUC that may
impact the amount of payments to QFs, the number of .
QFs holding power purchase agreements with the Utility, as
well as the outcome of the Utility’s request for refunds for
overpayments. from June 2000 through March 2001 that. wefe
made to QFs_ pursuant to CPUC orders at approved rates.

The CPUC will address whether ceftain paymeéits for short-

term power deliveries requlred by the power p‘urchase agree-
ments comply with the pricing requirements of PURPA. The
CPUC is also consid‘ering.whether to require the California
investor-owned electric utilities to enter into new power
purchase agreements with existing'QFs that have expiring + |
power purchase agreements and with newly—constructed QFs.
and if 50, specify the appropnate level of compensation -
for power purchased under such new agreements. PG&E
Corporation and the Utility are unable to predict the
outcome of these proceedings.

The CPU_C‘ is considering various policy and pricing
issues related to power purchased from QFs in several rule-
making proceedings. It is exp_ected that a proposed décision .
addressing those issues will be issued ‘soon. In April 2008,
the Utility and the Independent Ehergy Producers, or 1EP,.
on behalf of cer(aiﬁ QFs, entered 1nto a settlement agree-

ment to resolve ‘these issues irrespective of how the CPUC

ultimately resolves these issucs, These issues, however, remain
unresolved for the QFs that did not accept the terms of the -
settlement agreement. In July 2006, the CPUC approved -

the TEP, settlement agreement and the QF amendments
which implement the agreement with the settling QFs. As .
of December 31, 2006, 122 QFs were subject to such amend- .
ments.of their existing contracts with, the Utility which ’
reduce the Utility’s energy payments and establish a new
five-year fixed pricing option for QFs that do not use natural
gas as their fuel source. The IEP settlement agfeement also
resolves certain energy crisis claims among the Utility and |
the settling QFs that are pending in another CPUC proceed-
ing. When a.final decision addressing these issues is issued
by the CPUC, the Utility will re-evaluate the accounting
treatment for QF contracts that are affected by the decision.
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As a result of the amendments, several of the QF con-
tracts became subject to lease accounting under SFAS No, 13,
or SFAS No. 13, due to the nature
of the fixed capacity payments, SFAS No. 13 requires the

“Accounting for Leases,”

Utility to recognize capital lease obligations and assets equal

to the present value of the ﬁxed capacity payments under the -

QF agreements that are treated as capital leases. Accordingly,
the Utility’s Consolidated Balance Sheet has included i n
Current Liabilities — Other and Noncurrent Liabilities —
Other of approximately | $27 miliion and $372 million,
respectively, as of December 31, 2006, representmg the
present value of the fixed capacity payments ' due under
these contracts. The correspondmg assets -of $399 million,
including amortrzatron of $9 mrlhon are.included in plant,
property and equipment on the Utility’s Consolidated
Balance Sheet at December 31 2006.

In accordance with the settlement between the Utility
and Mirant Corporation and certain of its substdiaries; or
Mirant, related to claims outstanding in Mirant’s Chapter 11
proceeding, the Utility entered into contracts with several of
Mirant’s units in the Utility's service territory. In July 2006,
the Utility and Mirant entered into two new contracts, which
both supplementccj and- partially superseded the contracts
from the settlement, resulting in further savings for the
Utility’s customers. The new contracts, one for 2007 and one
for a multi-year period beginning in January 2008, give the
Utility the right to dispatch power from 1,985 MW of units
owned by Mirant subsidiaries to meet local reliability and
peak period energy needs, In August 2006, the Utility filed
an advice letter seeking CPUC approval for the multi-year

contract and expects possible action during the first quarter

“of 2007.

Irrigation Districts and Water Agencies — The Utility has
contracts with-various irrigation districts and water agencies |
“to purchase hydroelectric power. Under these contracts, the
Utlility must make specified semi-annual minimum payments
based on the irrigation districts’. and water agencies’ debt -
service requirements, whether or not any hydroelectric

power is supplied, and variable payments for operation and
maintenance costs incurred by the suppliers. These contracts
expire on various dates from.2007 to 2031. The Utility’s

" irrigation district and water.agency contracts accounted for
approximately 6% of the Unlity’s 2006 electrtcrty sources -
and approximately 5% of the Utility’s 2005 and 2004
electricity sources. ' oo '

Renewable Energy Contracts — California law requires
that each California retail seller. of electricity, except for

municipal utilities, increase its purchases of renewable energy
(such as biomass, wind, solar and geothermal energy) by at
least 1% of its retail sales per year, so that the amount of
electricity purchased.from renewable resources equals at least

~ 20% of its total retail sales by the end of 2010. During 2006,

the Utility entered into several new renewable power pur--

chase contracts that will help the Utility meet its goals. :

Long-Term Power Purchase Agreements — After-competitve

-solicitations, bilateral negottatlons and request for offers or

proposals were conducted the Utrhty entered into several
agreements with third-party power prov1ders durmg 2006
to meet the Utility’s mtermedlate and long-term generanon
resource needs Under these agreements the Utility. will .
purchase power from facilities as late as 2010. Thesetcom-
bined agreements cover an aggregite of 7,129 MW of .
contractual capacity that expire between December 31,

2010 and*August 31, 2029, Payments are not required under
these agreements-until the-underlying generation facilities

are oper'ationa[

‘Annual Receipts and Pnyments - The payments made under

QFs, irrigation district and water agency, renewable energy
and other power purchase agreements during 2004 through
2006 were as follows:

T3

(in millions) 2006 2005 2004 -
Qualifying facility energy payments ©$661 3663 $701
Qualifying facility capacity payments 366 372 382

Irrigation district'and water agency

payments ) 64 54 61
Renewable energy and capacity payments 429 405 406
Other power purchase agreement payments 670 774 834

Because the Utility acts as only an agent for the DWR the
amounts described above do not include payments related to
DWR power purchases. .
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At December 31, 2006, the undiscounted future expected, power purchase agreement: payments were as follows:

N
Irnigation District &

Qualifying Facility + Water Agency Renewable - Other
Ct Cperations & . Debe : ,

_{in millions) Energy |, Capacity  Maintenance  Service  Eneigy  Capacity  Energy © Capacity
2007 $ 1,195 § 477, $54  $26 § 148 $18  $50 $201
2008 1,276 468 34 4 205 21, 41 169
2009 1,159 a8 T R -, 254 18 40 171
2010 . 995 391 3 294 14 11 158
2011 . : 930 - - 377 30 - 315 14 5 44
_Thereafter o 5941 72,601 .14~ 2979 76 1 18
Total 811,496 $4.742 $295 $30 $161 $761

$4,195 $158

The following. table shows the future fixed capacity pay-
ments due under the QF contracts that arc treated as capital
‘leases. These amounts are also included in the table above.
The fixed capacity payments are discounted to the present

value shown in the table below using the Unhty s incremen-

tal borrowing rate at the inception of the leases." The amount
of this discount is shown in the table below as the amount
representing interest. )

(in millions)

2007 § 50
2008 : . . 50
2009 ) L : 50
2010 ° ’ ' 50
12011 50
Thereafter 303
Total fixed capacity payments 553
Less: Amount representing interest . 154
Present value of fixed capacity payments - $399 -

Interest and amortization expense associated with the lease
obligation is included in the cost of electricity on PG&E
Corporation’s and the Utility’s Colnsolidated_Statements of
Income. In accordance with SFAS No. 71, the timing of the
Utility’s recognition of the lease expense will conform to the
ratemaking treatment for the Utility’s recovery of the cost of
. electricity. The QF contracts that are treated as capital lf:ases
expire between April 2014 and September 2021,

Capacaty payments are based on the QF’s total available
capacity and contractual capacity commitment. Capacity~
payments may be adjusted if.the QF fails to meet of exceeds
performance requirements specified in the applicable power
purchase agreement.

. 164

. . . \ . s
Natural Gas Supply and Tru‘r'fsi:orla_iion Commitments
The Utility purchases natural gas directly from producers and
marketers in both Canada and the United States to serve its
core customers, Thie contract lengths and natural gas sources
of the Utility’s portfollo of natural gas procurement con-
tracts have ﬂuctuated generally based on market conditions.

- At Decembcr 31 2006, the Ut1]1ty s und1scounted obliga- -
tions for natural gas purchases and ‘gas transportation séfvices
were as follows:

(in millions)

2007 § 954
2008 - _ : . 151
2009 T 25
2010 : : g 3
2011 : . . ‘ -
Thereafter - : h : i R—

Total ’ $1,138

Payments for.natural gas purchases and gas transportation
services amounted to approximately $2.2 billion in 2006,
$2.5 biilion in 2005 and $1.8 billion in 2004.,

Nucleur Fuel Agreemenls ;

The Utility has entéred into several purchase agreements for '
nuclear fuel, These agreements havé tertns ranging from twé
to five years dnd are intended to ensure long-term fuel sup-
'p[y A total of five new contracts were executed in 2006 for
deliveries in 2006 to 2010. Oné existing serv1ces contract was
extended for five additional years. In most,cases, the Unhity's
nuclear fuel contracts are requlrements-based The Utlllty
relies on established mternatlonal producers of nuclear fiel
in order to diversify its sources and provide security of
supply. Pricing terms also are diversified, ranging. from fixed
prices to market- based prices 1o base: prlces that are escalated
usmg pubhshed indices. .




Other Commitments and Operating Leases
The Utility has other commitments relating to operating
leases, capital infusion agreements, equipment replacements,

At December 31, 2006, the undiscounted obligations

under nuclear fuel agreements were as follows:

(in millions) ' . :
2007 - - $135 the self-generation incentive program exchange agreements,
2008 ) . g¢ energy efficiency programs and telecommunication contracts,
2009 L . o 66 At December 31, 2006, the future minimum payments related
2010 . . 64" 15 other commitments were as follows:
011 37
Thereafter : 151 fin millions) :
Total = . S §539 2007 o ' : $160
) j ‘ . 2008 . - . 33
L Py : 2009 - 18
- -Payments for nuclear fuel amounted to approximately 2010 . . : 12
$106 millicn in 2006, $6§ million in 2005 and $119 million 544 : 11
in 2004. o ' l Thereafter ) . 34
Total 5268

Reliability Must Run Agreements
The CAISO has entered into reliability must run, or RMR'_ , Payments for other commitments amounted to approxi-

agrecrqen'ts With. ifari(_)us_ power plant owners, including mately $100 million in 2006, $146 million in 2005 and
the Utility, that require designated units in certain power $111 million in 2004' o ' _

plants, known as RMR units, to remain available to gener- _
" ate electricity upon the CAISO's demand when needed for Underground Electric Facilities

local transmission system reltability. As a participating trans-i At December 31, 2006, the Urlity was committed to spend-
ing approximately $211. million for the conversion of existing

mission owner under the Transmission Control Agreement,
overhead electric facilities to underground electric facilities.

the Utility is responsible for the CAISO’s costs. paid under
RMR agreements to power plant owners within or adjacent
to the Utility's service territory. RMR agreements are estab-

" lished or extended on an annual basis. During 2006, the
CPUC adopted rules to implément state law requirements
for California investor-owned utilities to meet resource
adequacy requirements, including rules to address local trans-
mission system reliability tssues. As the utilities fulfill their
responsibility to meet these requirements, the number of
RMR agreements with the CAISO and the associated costs
will decline. ‘At December 31, 2006, the Utility estimated .
that it could be obligated to pay the CAISO approximately}
$75 million for costs to be incurred under these RMR agree-
ments du;ing 2007. The Utility recovers these costs from .

customers.

In October 2006, the Utility, the California Electricity
"Oversight Board, and certain other owners of RMR plants,
entered into a settlement agreement to resolve complaints
that these RMR plant owners charged excessive rates. The
settlement agreement has been‘_é}.)provéd by the CPUC, the
FERC, and the bankruptcy court adjudicating the Chapter 11
proceedings of some of the RMR plant owners. The Utility -
expécts that it will receive refunds of approximately $61 mil-
lion for amounts paid under RMR contracts in 2006 in
the first quarter of 2007. Any refunds would be credited
to the Utility’s electricity customers. _ - ‘

timing of the work, including the schedules of the respective
cities, counties and telephone utilities involved. The Utility -
* expects to spend approximately $50_million to $60 million
each vear in connection with these projects. Consistent with-
past practice, the Utility expects that these capital expendi- .
tures will be included in rate base as each individual project
is completed and recoverable in rates charged to customers.

These funds are conditionally committed depending on the -




CONTINGENCIES. .

PG&E CORPORATION

PG&E Corporation retains a guarantee related to certain
NEGT indemnity obligations that were issued to the pur-
chaser of an NEGT subsidiary company. PG&E Corpo- -
ration’s sole remaining exposure relates'to any potential .
environmental obligations that were known to NEGT at
the time of the sale but not disclosed to the purchaser and
is limited to $150 million. PG&E Corporation has never

v

received any claims nor does it consider it probable any

claims wiil be made under the guarantee. Accordingly, PG&E’

Corporation has made no provision for this guarantee at
December 31, 2006,
UTILITY

PX Block-Forward Conirocts
In February 2001, during the energy crists, the Callforma

Governor seized all of the Utility’s contracts for the forward

delivery of power in the PX California market, otherwise
for the benefit of the
state under California’s Emergency Services Act. These
block-forward contracts had an estimated unrealized value
of up to $243 million when-seized. The Ustility, the PX,

* and some of the PX market participants have filed compet-

known as “block-forward contracts,”

ing.claims in state court against the State of California to
recover the value of these seized contracts, In November
2005, the PX assigned its interest in this litigation to' certain
market participants that elected to take assignment of the
litigation, subject to the terms and conditions of 2 settle-

" ment agreement approved by the FERC. A motion by the
PX for court approval of the assignment is pending in the

Sacramento Superior Court; the State of California disputes

this assignment. The State of California also disputes the
plaintiffs’ rights to recovery in the litigation and disputes
that the plaintiffs were damaged inany way, arguing that the
contracts had no value beyond the price at which the block-
forward transactions were executed. This state court litigation
is pending. Although the-Utility has recorded a receivable
of approximately $243 million relating to the estimated -
value of the contracts at the time of seizure, the Utility also
has established a reserve of $243 million for these contracts.
If the Utility ultimately prevails, it would record income

in the amount of any recovery. PG&E Corporation and the .

Utility are unable to predict the outcome of this litigation

|

or the amount of any potential recovery.
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California Energy Crisis Proceedings

_Several parties, including the Utility and the State of

California, are seeking refunds on behalf of California _
electricity purchasers from electricity suppliers, including
municipal and governmental entities, for overcharges
incurred in the CAISO and PX wholesale electricity markets -
between May 2000 and June 2001 through various proceed-
ings pending at the FERC and other judicial proceedings.
Many issues raised in these proceedings, including the extent
of the FERC’s refund authority, and the amount of potential
tefunds after taking into account certain casts incurred by
the electricity suppliers, have not been resolved. It is uncer- -
tain when these Vproceedin-gs will be concluded.

The Utility has entered into settlements w'ith_\.r;arious
electricity suppliers resolving certain diéputed claims and ™~
the Utility’s refund claims-against these electricity suppliers,
The Uulity has received consideration of approximately
$1 billion under these settlements through cash proceeds,
reductions.to the Utility’s PX liability. and a partially con-’
structed generating facility (Gatéway). With the approval
of the bankruptey court, the Utility has withdrawn certain
amounts from escrow (classified as restricted cash in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets) in connectio-r_: with certain of
these settlements {see further discussion in Note 15). These
settlement agrcem-cnts provide that the amounts payable -
by the parties are, in some instances, subject to adjustment
based on the outcome of the various issues Being consid-
ered by the FERC. Additional settlement discussions with -
other electricity suppliers are ongoing. Future amounts
received under these settlements, and any future settlements
with electricity suppliers, will be credited to customers after
deductions for contingencies and amounts related to certain

wholesale power purchases.
t

PG&E Corporation and the Utility are unable to predict

‘when the FERC proceedings will ultimately be resolved and -

the amount of any potential refunds the Utility may receive.-

]
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Nuclear Insurance -~ *

The Utility has several types of nuclear insurance for

Diablo Canyon and Humboldt Bay Unit 3. The Utility has
insurance coverage for property damages and. business inter-
ruption losses as a member-of Nuclear Electric Insurance
Limited, or NEIL.. NEIL is-a mutual insurer owned by utili-
-ties with nuclear facilities.. NEIL provides property damage
and business interruption coverage of up to $3.24 billion
per incident for Diablo Canyon. In addition, NEIL provides
$131 million of property.damage insurance for Humboldt ‘
Bay Unit 3. Under this insurance, if any nuclear generating
facility insured by NEIL suffers a catastrophic loss causing

a prolonged outage, the Utility may be required to pay an-

. additional premium of up to $41.4 million per one-year "

policy term.

NEIL also provides coverage for damages caused by acts’

. of terrorism at nuclear power plants. If one or more acts

of domestic terrorism cause property damage covered under
_any of the nuclear insurance policies issued by NEIL to .
. any NEIL member within a.12-month pericd, the maximum
recovery under all those nuclear insurance f)olicies may not .
exceed $3.24 billion plus the additional amounts recovered .
by NEIL for these  losses from reinsurance. There is no
policy coverage limitation for an act caused by, foreign
terrorism because NEIL would be entitled to receive sub:
stantial reimbursement by the federal government under
the Terrorism Risk Insurance Extension Act of 2005, The.
Terrorism Risk [nsurance Extension Act of 2005 expires
on December 31, 2007 .o 3

Under the Prlce-Anderson Act, publlc llablllty clmms
from a nuclear incident are limited-to $10.8 billion. As "
required- by the Price-Andérson Act, the Utility purchased
the maximum available public liability insurance of $300
million for Diablo Canyon The balance of the $10.8 bllhon
of liability protection is covered by a loss-sharing program
among utilities owning nuclear reactors. Under the Price--
Anderson Act, owner participation in this losssharing pro-
gram is required for all owners of muclear réactors that are
licensed to ‘'operate, designed for the production of electrical
energy, and -have 2 rated capacity of 100 MW or higher. If a
nuclear incident results in costs in excess of $300 million,
then the Utility, may be responsible for'up to $100.6 million
per reactor, with payments in each year limited to a maxi-
mum of $15 million per incident until the, Utility has fully

A

paid its share of the liability. Since Diablo Canyon has
two nuclear reactors each with-a rated capacity of over -
100 MW, the Utility may be asses_sed up to $201.2 million

per incident, with payments in each year limited to a maxi-

mum of $30 million per incident. Under.the Energy Policy
Act of 2005, the Price-Anderson Act was extended through
December 31, 2025. Both' the maximuflﬁ assessment per '
reqctof and the maximum yearly assessment will be adjusted
for inflation beginning August 3], 2008. .

In addition, thc Utility has $53.3 million of liability
insurance for Humboldt Bay Unit 3 "and has a $500 million
indemnification from the NRC, for public llablllpy arising
from nuclear incidents covering liabilities in excess of the

. -$53.3 million of liability insurance.

r

California Department of Water:Resources Contracts -
Electricity from the DWR contracts to the Utlity provided.
approximately 24% of the electricity delivered to the Utility’s
customers for 2006. The DWR purchased the electricity
under contracts with various generators. The Utlllty, as an
agent, is responsible for admmlstranon and dnspatch of

the DWR’s electricity procuremem contracts allocated to the

" Utility for purposes of meeting a. portion of the Utility’s

short or long position. A short position results when cus-
tomer demand, plus applicable reserve margins, exceeds the
amount of electricity procured from the Utlity’s own genéra-
tion facilities, purchase contracts or DWR contracts allocated
to the Utility’s customers. In order to sansfy ‘the short posi-
tion, the Utility would be required to,purchase electricity. on.
the spof.and forward markets, possibly at a loss. Conversely,
a long position results when the cbntractéd.supply of energy
exceeds customer demand. When in a long position, the
Utility would be required to sell the excéss capacity in the
forward ‘and spot markets, 4t a gain or possibly at a loss. .
The DWR remains legally and financially responsible for ité
.electricity procurement contracts. The Utility acts as a bill-

ing and collection agent of the DWR’s revenue requirements °

from the Utility’s customers.
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The DWR contracts currently allocated to the Utility )
terminate at various datc_é through 2015, and consist of
~must-take and capacity charge contracts. Under must-take
contracts, the DWR must take and pay for electricity ¢
generated by the applicable generating facilities regardless - -
of whether the electricity is needed. Under capacity charge

contracfs, the DWR. must pay a capacity charge but is

not required to purchase electricity unless the Utility dis-
* patches the resource and delivers the required electricity,
" In the Utility’s CPUC—approved long-term integrated
energy resource plan, the Utility has not assumed that
the DWR contracts will be renewed beyond the:r current
expiration dates.

The DWR has stated publicly in the past that it
intends to transfer full legal title to, and responsibility
for, the DWR power purchase contracts to the California
investor-owned electric utilities as soch-as possible. However,
the DWR power purchase contracts cannot be transferred
to the Utility without the consent of the CPUC. The '
Chapter 11 Settlement Agreement provides that the CPUC
will not require the Utility to accept an assignment of, or
to assume legal or financial responsibility for, the DWR -
power purchase contracts,unless each of the following
conditions has been met: ;

* After assumption, the Utlhty s issuer rating by Moody §
will be no less than A2 and the Utility’s long-term issuer
credit rating by S&P will be no less than A,

* The CPUC first makes a finding that the DWR power pur-

chase contracts to be assumed are just and reasonable; and

i ‘ 3

« The. CPUC has acted to ensure that the Unility will receive
full and t1mely recovery in its retail elecmcnty rates of all
costs associated with the DWR power purchase contracts to

be assumed without further review.
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SEVERANCE IN CONNECTION.

WITH EFFORTS TO ACHIEVE COST

AND OPERATING EFFICIENCIES ‘

In connection with the Utility’s continued effort to stream-

line processes and achieve cost and operating efficiencies

through implementation of various initiatives, jobs from
numerous Utlity locations around California are being
consolidated. As a result, a number of positions have been
eliminated. The Utility expects that more positions will be
eliminated. Impacted employees have the option to elect

severance or rcassignment.

Estimating severance costs requires the Utility to predict

" whether employees will elect severance or reassignment,

and the number of available vacant positions for employees
wishing to be reassigned. Depending on the employees’
elections, costs will further vary based on the employees’
years of service and annual salary. Given the uncertainty
of each of these variables, the estimated range ts relatively
wide. At December 31, 2006, the Utility’s future severance
expenses related to these initiatives are expected to range
from $34 million to approximately $68 million, of which
the Utility has recorded the low end as of December 31,
2006. The following table presents the changes in the
liability from December 31, 2005:

(in ITIIIIID"S)

. Balance at December 31, 2005 . $2
Expenses 36
Less: Payments , : . ‘ 4)
Balance at December 31, 2006 $34

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

The Unility. may be rcquircd to pay for environmental reme-
diation at sites where it has been, or may be, 2 potentially-
responsible party under the Comprehensive Environmental .
Response Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as
amended, and similar state eiwirqﬁmental laws. These sites
include former manufactured gas plant sites, power plant
sites, and sites used by the Unhty for the storage, recycling
or disposal of potentially hazardous materials. Under federal
and California laws, the Utility may be responsible for reme-
diation of hazardous substances even if the Utility did not
deposit those substances on the site,




The cost of environmental' remediation is.difficult to

estimate. The Utility records an. environmental remediition

liability when site assessmients indicate remediation is
probable and it can estimate a range of reasonably likely .
clean-up costs. The Utility reviews its remediation liability

on a quarterly basis for each site where it may be exposed

to remediation responsibilities. The liability is an estimate
of costs for site investigations, remediation, operations

at similar sites, and an assessment of the probable level of
involvemnent and financial condition of other potentially
responsible parties. Unless there is a better.estimate within
this range of possible costs, the Utility records the costs

at the lower end of this range. The Utility estimates the
upper end of this cost range using reasonably possible .

ably possible that a change in these estimates may occur

responsibility, the complexity of environmental laws and
regulations, and the selection of compliance alternatives.

The increase in the undiscounted environmental remedia-
tion reflects an increase of $74 million for remediation at
the Utility’s gas compressor stations located near Hinkley,
’Callforma and Topock, Arizona. The portion of the
increased liability of $39 million for remediation at the

from customers and, as a result, the after-tax impact on
Income was a reduction of approximately $23 million for
2006. Ninety percent of the estimated remédiation-costs
associated with the Utility’s gas compressor station located

and maintenance, monitoring and site closure using current
technology, enacted laws and regulations, experience gained

outcomes that are least favorable to the Utility. It is reason-

in the néar term due to uncertainty concerning the Utility’s

Hinkley facility is attributablé to changes in the California
Regional Water Quality Control Board’s imposed remedid-
tion levels. Costs incurred at this facility are not recoverable

The Utility had an undiscounted environmental remedia—
tion liability of approximately $511 million at December 31,
2006 and approximately $469 million at December 31, 2005.

.

_third parties whenever possible. Any amounts collected in

near Topock, Arizona will be recoverable in rates in
accordance with the hazardous waste ratemaking mechanism
which permits the Utility to recover 90% of hazardous
waste remediation costs from customers without a reason-

ableness review. _
The $511 million accrued at Dec'e,mber 31, 2006 includes:

« approximately $238 million for remediation at the Hinkley
and Topock natural gas compressor sites;

« approximately $98 millio"n related to the pre-closing
remediation liability assocxated with dlvested generation
facilities; and

* approximately 3175 m1lhon related to remediation costs
for the Utility’s generatlon facilities and gas gathering
sites, third-party disposal sites, and ,manuf‘actur_ed gas
plant sites owned by the Utility oi'._third parties (including
those sites that are the subject of rqmedi?tion orders by
‘environmental agencies or claims by the current owners
of the former manufactured gas‘plant sites)."

Of the approximately $511 million environmental remedi-
ation liability, appr0x1mately '$138 million has been included
in prior rate setting proceedings. The:Utility expects that
an additional amount of approximately $272 million will
be allowable for inclusion in future'rates. The Utility also

recovers its costs from insurance carriers and from other :

“excess of the Utility’s ultimate obligations may be subject

to refund to customers.

The Utility’s undiscounted future costs could increase to
as much as $782 million if the other potentially responsible
parties are not financially able to contribute to these costs,
or if‘the extent of contamination or necessary remediation
is greater than anticipated. The amount of approximately -
$782 million does not include any estimate for any potential
costs of remediation at former manufactured gas plant sites
in the Utility’s service territory that were previously owned
by the Utility or a predecessor but that are now owned by
others because the Utility either has not been able to deter-

“mine if a liability exists with respect to these sites or the

Utility has not been able to estimate the amount of any
future potential remediation costs that may be incurred for
these sites.
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In ]uly 2004, the US. Envrronmental; Protection Agency, . «

or EPA, published regulatwns under Section 316(b) of the -

 Clean Wiater Act for «cooling Water intake structures. The -
‘regulations affect existing electricity generation facilities -
using over 50 million gallons per day, typically includ'ing
some form of once-through’ cooling. The Utility’s Diablo
Canyon power plant is among an estimated 539 generanon
facilities nationwide that are affected by this rulemaking,.
The Utlllty permanently closed its Huntcrs Point Power
Plant in May 2006 and the Humboldt Bay Power Plant
will be re-powered withotit the use of once-through cooling.
The EPA regulations establish a set of performance standardsv
that vary wrth the ftype of water body and that are intended
to reduce i lmpacts to aquatrc organisms. Significant capital
investment may be requ1red to achieve the standards. The
regulations allow site-specific compliance determinations

_if a facility’s cost of compliance is significantly greater than
either the benefits achieved or the compliance costs consid-
ered by the EPA and also allow the use of environmental
mitigation Or restoration to-meet compliance‘rleqqirefmenrs

in certain cases. Various parties challenged the EPA’s regula-

tions, and the cases were consolidated in the U.5. Court of
Appeals for the Second Clrcurt or Second Circdit, °

On ]anuary 25, 2007 the Second Crrcurt 1ssued its decr-
-ston on the appeals of the EPA Section 316(b) regulatlons
The Second Circuit remanded significant provisions of the
regulations to EPA for reconsideration and held that a cost
benefit test cannot be used to establish performance stan- . -
dards or to grant variances from the standards. The Second
Circuit also ruled that environmental restoration cannot
be used to achieve compliance. The partles‘rriay seek either
en banc review by the Second Circuit or review by the U.S.
Supreme Court. Regardless of whether the decision.is subject
to further ]uchc:al review, the EPA will likely require srgmﬁ
Cant 1ime (o review arrd revise the regulations. It 15 uncertain
" how the Second Circuit decision will affect development of
the state’s proposed implementation policy. The regulatory
uncertamty is likely to continue and the Utility’s cost of
compllance, while likely to be significant, wrll remain

-

uncertain as well. . \
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LEGAL MATTERS ..

In the normal course of business, PG&E Corporation and . -
the Utility are named as parties in a number of claims and
lawsuits. The most significant of these are discussed below.

In accordance with SFAS No..5, “Accounting for
Contingencies,” PG&E Corporation and the Utility make
a provision for a liability when it is both probable that a -
liability has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be
reasonably estimated. These provisions are reviewed quarterly
and adjusted to reflect the i impacts of negotiations, settle-~
ments and payments; rulings, advice of legal counsel and
other information and events pertaining.to a particular case. -
[n assessing such contingencies, PG&E Corporatron 3 and )
the Utility’s policy is to exclude ant1c1pated legal costs. .

The accrued liability for legal matters is inclu'ded' in’
PG&E Corporanon s and the Utrlrty s other noncurrent‘
liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets and totaled
approximately $?4 mallion at December 31 2006 and’ approx—
imately $388 million at December 31, 2005 o o v

PG&E Corporatlon and ‘the Utility donot-believe_it is
probable that losses associated with legal matters that exceed
amounts"already recognized will be incurred in amounts that
would be material to PG&E Corpe;ratién’s or the Utility's -
financial condition or results of operations. -

Chromium Litigation’ _
In accordance with the terms of a settlement agreerr:'ent -
entered into on February 3,:2006, on April 21, 2006, the
Utility released '52'95 million from escrow for payment to
approximately 1,100-plaintiffs who had filed complaints
against the Utility in the Supefior Court for ‘the County

of Los Angeles, or Superior Court. The Superior Couit has»”
dismissed the 10 complaints covered by the settlement agree-
ment. There are three complaints filed by approximately ¢
125 plaintiffs who did not participate in the ‘settlement =
that are still pending in the Superlor Court The plamt1ﬂ"5
“allege that exposure to chromlum at_or near the Utrlltys
compressor station’ at Hinkley, Cal1forma caused personal
m;urres, wrongful deaths, or other m]unes ‘ -

With respect to'the unresolved claims; the Utility will - -
continue to pursue appropriate defenses, including thé*

‘statute of limitations, the exclusivity of workers’ compen-
-sation laws, lack of exposure to chromium and the inability

of chromium to cause certain of the illnesses alleged.




PG&E Corporation and the Utility do not expect that . i

the outcome with respect to the remaining unresolved claims
will have a material-adverse effect on their financial condi-
" tion or results of operations.

Delayed Billing Im_réstigatidn

In February 2005, ch. CPUC issued a ruling .opcning an
investigation into the Utility’s billing and coliection prac-
tices and credit policies. The investigation was initiated

at the request of The Utility Reform Network, or TURN,
after the CPUC’s January*2005-decision that characterized -
the definition of “billing error” in a revised Ultility tariff

to include delayed bills and Utility-caused estimated bills

as being consistent with “existing CPUC policy, tariffs

and requirements.’ " The Utility contended that prior to the -
CPUC’s January 2005 decnsxon “blllmg error” under the
Utility’s former tariffs did not encompass delayed bills or
Utlhty—caused estimated bills. The Utility petmoned the

. California Court of Appeals to review the CPUCs decision
denying rehearmg of its january 2005 decision. In December
2006, the Court.of Appeals summanly rejected the Utility's
petition; the Utility did not appeal that rejection to the

California Supreme Court.

The GPUC's Consumer Protection and Safety Division,
or CPSD, and TURN have submitted their. reports. to
the CPUC concluding that the Utility violated applicable
tariffs related to delayed and estimated bills and recom-
mended refunds in the current amounts of approximately
$54 million and $36 million, respectively, plus interest at
the three-month commercial paper interest rate. The two
refunds are not additive. The CPSD also recommended that
the Utility pay fines of $6.75 million, while TURN recom-
mends fines in the form of a $1 million contributicn to
REACH (Relief for Energy Assistance through Community
Help). Both the CPSD and TURN recommend that refunds
and fines be funded by shareholders. .

The Utility responded that' its tariff interpretation was
in good faith, and was repeatedly supported by Commission
staff. It argued that the CPUC should exercise its discretiori,
not to order refunds, and that any ordered refunds should
be treated in accordance with.adopted ratemaking, under
which the significant majority, of the costs of any refunds

would be reflected in future rates borne by the Utility’s

general body of customers. It argued that its behavior does
not warrant fines or penalties. On February 15, 2007, the
CPUC extended the date by which it must issue a final
decision in-this investigative matter to August 26, 2007.

On February 20, 2007, the administrative law ]udge
presiding over the proceeding issued a “presiding ofhcer”
decision. Although the decision found that penalties were
not warranted, the decision orders the Utlllty to refund,
at sharcholde\r cxpcnse, approx1mately $23 million to cus-
tomers for “illegal backbill charges” relatmg to estimated and
delayed bills that were charged to customers in excess of the
time limits in the Utlllty s tariff. The decision also orders
the Utll;ty to refund r_econnecnon ‘fees and “pay credits to
certain customers whose service waé,_shutoff_' for nonpayment

of illegal backbills.”

Under CPUC rules, parties in an adjudicatory pro-
ceeding may appeal the presiding officer’s decision within '
30 days. In addition, any Commissioner may request review
of the présiding officer’s decision within 30 days of the
date of issuance. If no appeal or request for review is filed
within 30 days, the presiding officer’s decision will become
the final CPUC decision. The Utility intends to appeal the
presiding officer’s decision. o

PG&E Corporation and the Utility do not expect that the
outcome of this matter will have a material adverse effect on

.their financial condition or results of operations.
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QUARTERLY CONSOLIDATED

r

FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

o L C . - . Quarter ended

o T
({in millions, except per share amounts) . )

December 31 September 30 June 30 - March 31
2006 . . ) . ' . . ) \ : R o -t - Coe .
PG&E Corporation S : ) ' : 2 : . .
Operating revenues . ' $3,206 $3,168 . $3,017 $3,148
Operating income K T I ' 439 . 735 465 . 469
Income from continuing operations ' o ’ 152 393 o232 . 214
Net income : . s : 152 . 393 . 232" 214
Earnings per common share from continuing operations, basic 043 ' 109 0.65 0.61
-Earnings per common share from continuing operations, dituted: 0.43 ' 1.09 0.65 0.60
Net income per common share, basm . 043 . 1.09 0.65 ‘0.61
Net income per common share, d:luted i 043 1.09 0.65 0.60
Common stock price per share: - - t ' ot a -
High ' - 4817 - . 4351 - 4090 40.68
Low i ! ,40.72 3906 .. 33.30 :36.25
Utility o _ _ S . o L
Operating revenues L $3.206 $3,168 . "53,017 ) Sf:i,lélB _
Operating income ' . o o 443 ' 737 . 465 470
Net income : o ‘ L 159 378 23 27
Income available for commeoen stock ' 155 75 227 ‘ 214
2005 Lo ,
PG&E Corpotation - . . . . o : D . . .
Operating revenues ) l $3.732 ~ $2,804 $2,498 52-,669
Operating income . ’ : ' 414 515 540 © 501
Income from continuing operations ' g 180 239 C o267 .- 218 .
Net income i . . N o . 180 252 267 218
Earnings per common share from éonti.nping operations, basic - 0.49 063 . 0.70 0.55
Earnings per common share from continuing.operations, diluted 049 0.62 0.70 0.54
Net income per common share, basic . 0.49 0.66 0.70 . 0.55
Net income per common share, diluted 0.49 0.65 0.70 0.54
Common stock price per share:” . o
High 40.10 3964 37.91 36.18
. Low 34.54 35.60 33.78 31.83
Utility v Coe
Operating revenues - $3,733 $2,804 $2,498 $2,669
Operating income ‘ . ' 418 - 517 540 . 495 .
Net income : ‘ 187 248 276 223
Income available for common stock , ‘ . 183 244 272 . 219

{13 During the third quarter of 2005, PG&E Carporation received additional information from NEGT regarding income to be included in PG&E
Corporation’s 2004 federal income tax return. This informatien was incorporated in the 2004 tax return, which was filed with the IRS in September
2005. As a result, the 2004 federal income tax liability was reduced by approximately $19 million. In addition, NEGT, provided additional information
with respect to amounts previously included in PG&E Corporation’s 2003 federal income tax return, This change resulted in PG&E Corporation’s 2003 °
federal income tax liability increasing by approximately $6 million. These two adjustments, nemng to Sl3 million, were recogmzed in income from

discontinued operations in the third quarter of 2005 B e ‘
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL.REPORTING

Management of PG&E Corporation and Pacific Gas and »
Electric Company, or the Utility, is responsible for establish-
ing and maintaining adequate intérnal control over financial
reporting. PG&E Corporation’s and the Utility’s internal
control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance rcéarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial state-
ments for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, or GAAP. Internal control
over financial reporting includes those poiicies and proce-
dures that (1) perta'in to the maintenance of records that,

in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the trans-

actions and dispositions of the assets of PG&E Corporation

and the Utility, (2) provide reasonable assurance that trans-
actions are recorded as necessary to pefm_it_ preparation of
financial statements in-accordance with GAAP and that
receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directors of PG&E
Corporation and the Utility, and (3) provide reasonable '
"assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its ihhercnt'limitations internal control over .

financial reporting may not prevent or detect mlsstatements
Also, projections of any evaluatlon of effectiveness to ‘future

FLI A AT

periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures

may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting as of December. 31, 2006,
Inte-
grated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

based on the criteria established in Juternal Control -

Ofganizationsiof the Treadway Comrnission. Based on

its assessment and those criteria, management has con-
cluded that PG&E Corporation and the Utility maintained
effective internal control over ﬁnanc1al reportmg as of
December 31, 2006

" Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent registered public
accounting firm, has audited the Consolidated Financial
Statements of PG&E Corporation and the Udlity for the
three years ended December 31, 2006, appearing in this

. annual report and has issued an attestation report on

management’s assessment of internal control over financial
reporting, as stated in their report, which is included in
this annual report on page 175.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Boards of Directors and

Shareholders of PG&E Corporation and .

Pacific Gas ond Electric Company

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets of PG&E Corporation and subsidiaries (the
“Company”} and of Pacific Gas and Electric (;;ompény

and subsidiaries (the *Utility”) as of Decembef 31, 2006 and
2005, and the related consolidated statements of income,
cash flows and shareholders’ equity of the Compény and of
the Utility for each of the three years in the penod ended
December 31, 2006. These ﬁnancml statements are the respon-
sibility of the respective managements of the Company and
of the Uuhty Our respons1bn[1ty Is tO express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our, audits in accordance with the stan-
dards of the Public'Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and |
petform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstate-
ment. An audit 1nc1udes exammmg, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An Zl!ld‘lt‘ alsp includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by manage-
ment, as well as evaluatmg the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe ‘that our audits provide a reasonable

basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective consoli-
dated financial position of the Company and of the Utility-

as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the respective results
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of their consolidated operations and their cash flows for
each of the three years in.the period ended December 3i,
2006, in conformity with accounting principles generally. .

. accepted in ‘the United States of America._

As discussed in Note 2 of the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements, in 2006 the Company and the Utility
adopted new accounting standards for defined benefit
pensions and other postretirement plans and share-based
payments. in December 2005, the Company and the Utnllty
adopted a new mterpretatlon of accounting standards
for asset retirement obllgatlons Durmg March 2004, the
Company changed the method of computing earnings
per share. |

We have also-audited, in accordance with the standards
of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the effectiveness of the .Company’s and the Utility’s |
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2006, based on the criteria established in fnternal Control -

Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report
dated February 21, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion
on management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting and an
unqualified opinion on the effecnveness of the Companys

internal control over financial reporting.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

San Francisco, California
February 21, 2007
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 0 <% =)

To the Boards of Directors and

Shareholders of PG&E Corporation and

Pacific Gas and Electric Company '

We have audited management’s assessment, included in
the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting, that PG&E Corporation and .
subsidiaries (the “Company”) and Pacific Gas and Electric
Company and subsidiaries {the “Utility”) maintained
effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006, based on criteria.established in fnternal
Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee

of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commussion.
.The Company’s and the Utility’s management is responsnble
" for maintaining effective mtemal control over ﬁnanmal
reporting and for their assessment of the effectiveness.of- -
internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility
. 1§ to express an opinion on management’s assessment and
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s and
the Utility's internal control over financial reporting based
on our audits.

We conducted our audits in acéordince with the stan-
«dards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audits t obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control dver ﬁ.nanglai reporting
was maintained in all matérial respects. Our audits included
obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial
reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and
evaluating the desigh and operating effectiveness of internal
control, and performing such other procedures as we con-
sidered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our oplmons

A company’s internal control over ﬁnanc_ial reporting is
a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the com-
pany’s principal executive and principal financial officers,
or persons performing similar functions, and effected by
the company’s board of directors, management and other
personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and'the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the

company; (2} provide reasonable’assurance .that transactions -

are recorded as'necessary to permit preparation of financial,

statements in accordance with generallyzaccepted accounting -

principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in.accordance with authorizations of |
management and directors of the company; and (3} provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevehtion or t‘ime»ly detec-
tion of un'aljthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.”

Because of the inherent hmltatlons of internal control
over financial’ reporting, mcludmg the pOSSlbllltY of collu-
sion or improper management override of controls, matenal
misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented
or detected on a tifnely basis. Also, projections of any '

‘evaluation ofthe effectiveness of the.internal control over-
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk
that the controls may become inadequate because of changes
. in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
p011c1es or proccdures may detenorate

In our opinion, management’s ' dsseésment that the
Company and the Utility maintained effective mternal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006
is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on “the criteria
established -in Internal Control — Im.egraz‘ed Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Qrganizations of the
Treadway Commission. Also in our opinion, the Company
and the Unllty maintained,-in all material respects, effective
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2006, based on-the criteria, established in fnternal Control —
Integrated Framework 1ssued by the, Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission..

We' have also audited, in accordance with t_he' standards
of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States) the consolidated financial statements and

_financial statement schedules as of and for the year ended

December 31, 2006 of the Company and the Unlity and
our report dated February 21, 2007 expressed an unqualified
opinion on those financial statements and financial state-
ment schedules and included an explanatory paragraph
relating to accounting changes.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

San Francisco, California
February 21, 2007
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The following documents are available in the Corporate
Governance section of PG&E Corporation’s website, ‘
wwv;r.pgccorp.com,'or Pacific Gas and Electric Company's
.website, www.pge.com/about_us: ‘

« PG&E Corporation’s and Pacific Gas and Electric l ‘
Company’s codes of conduct and ethics that apply to

each companys directors and employees, mcludmg
* executive officers,

* PG&E Corporation’s and Pacific Gas and Ele_ctric
Company’s Corporate Governance Guidelines, and

* Charters of key Board committees, including charters
for the compantes’ Audit Committees, Executive *
Committees, the PG&E Corporation Finance Clommittee,
‘the PG&E Corporation Nominating, Compensation,
and Governarice Committee, and the PG&E Corporation
Public Policy Committee. '

Shareholders also may obtain print coples of thcse
documents by sending a written request to:

- Linda Y.H. Cheng

Vice President, Corporate Goverpahcc and
Corporate Secretary

One Market, Spear Tower

Suite 2400 |

San Franc1sco CA 94105-1126

On May 16, 2006, Peter A. Darbee, Chairman of the
Board, Chief Executive Officer, and President of PG&E -
Corporation submitted an Annual CEQO Certification to the
New York Stock Exchange and NYSE Arca, Inc., formerly
the Pacific Exchange, certifying that he was not aware of .

- any violation by PG&E Corporation of the respective stock
exchange:s corporate governance listing standards, .
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BOARDS OF DIRECTORS OF PG&E CORPORATION
AND PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY!

DAV, DIRN

JAN DREWS]

Senior Vice President,
Government Affairs,
General Counsel,

and Secretary, Retired,
PepsiCo, Inc.

G
Vice Chairman,
Retired, AirTouch
Communications, Inc.
and President
and Chief Executive
Officer, Retired,
AirTouch Cellular

&
KNGl

Chief Exccutive
Officer, Pacific Gas
and Electric Company
and Senior Vice
President, PG&E
Corporation

BARBARAY(™
RAMBO

Vice Chairman,
Nievech

Corporation

8. BIER
Vice Chairman

and Chief Operating
Qfficer, Rerired,
Wells Fargo &
Company

[PETERYAM

DARBEE

Chairman of the
Board, Chief
Executive Officer,

and President, PG&E
Corporation and
Chairman of the
Board, Pacific Gas and
Electric Company

RICHARDFAM
[MESERVE]

President,
Carnegie Institution
of Washingron

BARR.Y]

PAWS O
M TETAMS]

President,
Williams Pacific

1

&
CEOULMER
Managing Direcror

and Seniof Advisor,

Presidel‘nt, Retired,
5. H. Cowell
Found‘;acion

0

(1) The composition of the Boards of Directors is the same, except that Thomas B. King is a member of the Pacific Gas and Electric Cc;mpany Board of

Directors only.
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PERMANENT COMMITTEES OF THE BOARDS OF DIRECTORS OF
PG&E CORPORATION.AND PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY™

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEES ]
Subject to certain limits, may exercise the powers and perform

the duties of the Boards of Directors.

I
1

Peter A. Darbee, Chajr |
David A. Coulter '
C. Lee Cox '
Thomas B. King‘”

Mary 8. Metz

Barry Lawson Williams

AUDIT COMMITTEES |

Review financial and accounting practices, internal controls,
external and internal auditing progra:ms, business ethics, and
compliance with laws, regulations, and policies that may have a
material impact on the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Satisfy themselves as to the independénce and competence of
the independent registered public accounting firm, select and
appoint the independent registered pl:lblic accounting firm to
audit PG&E Cotporation’s and Pacific Gas and Electric
Company's accounts and internal control over financial reporting,
and pre-approve all audit and non-audi services provided by
the independent registered public acct?unting firm.

Barry Lawson Williams, C/:wr |
David R. Andrews . :
Maryellen C. Herringer

Mary S, Metz '

FINANCE COMMITTEE

Reviews financial and cap1tal investment policies and objectives
and specific actions rcquu-ed to achieve those abjectives,
long-term financial and investment pl:ms and strategies, annual
financial plans, dividend policy, shore-term and long-term
financing plans, propdscd capital projects, proposed divestitures,
strategic plans and initiatives, major com'imcrcial and investment
banking, financial consulting, and other financial relationships,
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and risk management activities. Annually reviews a five-year
financial plan that incorporates PG&E Corporation’s business
strategy goals, as well as an annual budget that reflects elements

of the approved five-year plan.

David A. Coulter, Chair
Leslie S. Biller
C. Lee Cox

" Barbara L. Rambo

Barry Lawson Williams

NOMINATING, COMPENSATION,

AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Recommends candidates for nominarion as directors and
reviews the composition, performance, and compensation of
the Boards of Directors. Reviews COrporare governance matters,
including the Corporate Governance Guidelines of PGKE
Corporation and Pacific Gas and Electric Company. Reviews
employment, compensation, and benefits policies and practices,
and long-range planning for executive development and
succession.

C. Lee Cox, Chair
'lDavid A. Coulter
TBarbara L. Rambo
Barry Lawson Williams

Ii"‘U BLIC POLICY COMMITTEE

flicvicws public policy issues that could significantly affect the
interests of customers, shareholders, or employees, policies and
practices with respect to those issues, including but not limited
to improving the quality of the environment, charitable activities,
equal opportunity, and significant societal, governmental, and
environmental trends and issues thar may affect operations.

Nllary S. Metz, Chair
David R. Andrews
L{:s[ic S. Biller
Mlarycllcn C. Herringer
Richard A. Meserve

) Except for the Executive and Audit Commirtees, all committees listed
above are commitiees of the PG&E Corporation Board of Directors.
The Executive and Audit Commiutees of the PG&E Corporation

and Pacific Gas and Electric Company Boards have the same members,
‘Iexcept that Thomas B. King is a member of the Pacific Gas and
Electric Company Executive Committee only.




PG&E CORPORATION
OFFICERS

PETER A. DARBEE
Chairman of the Board,
Chief Executive Officer, and President

LESLIE H. EVERETT
Senior Vice President,

Communications and Public Affairs

KENT M. HARVEY
Senior Vice President and

Chief Risk and Audit Officer

RUSSELL M. JACKSON

Senior Vice President, Human Resources

CHRISTOPHER P. JOHNS
Senior Vice President,

Chief Financial Officer, and Treasurer

THOMAS B. KING

Senior Vice President

HYUN PARK

Senior Vice President and General Counsel

RAND L. ROSENBERG
Senior Vice President,

Corporate Strategy and Development

LINDA Y.H. CHENG
Vice President, Corporate Governance

and Corporate Secretary

STEVEN L. KLINE
Vice President, Corporate

Environmental and Federal Affairs

G. ROBERT POWELL
Vice President and Controller

RICHARD ). ROLLO
Vice President, Strategic Development

and Business Integration

GABRIEL B. TOGNER!

Vice President, Investor Relations

JAMES A. TRAMUTO
Vice President,

Federal Governmental Relations

PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC
COMPANY OFFICERS

PETER A. DARBEE
Chairman of the Board

THOMAS B. KING
Chief Executive Officer

WILLIAM T. MORROW
Presidenc and Chief Operating Officer

THOMAS E. BOTTORFF
Senior Vice President,

Regularory Relations

HELEN A. BURT
Senior Vice President and

Chief Customer Officer

JEFFREY D. BUTLER
Senior Vice President, Energy Delivery

RUSSELL M. JACKSON
Senior Vice President, Human Resources

CHRISTOPHER P. JOHNS
Senior Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer, and Treasurer

JOHN S. KEENAN
Senior Vice President,
Generation and Chief Nuclear Officer

OPHELIA B. BASGAL
Vice President, Civic Partnership and

Communiry [niciatives

JAMES R. BECKER
Vice President, Diablo Canyon Power

Plant Operations and Station Director

LINDA Y.H. CHENG
Vice President, Corporate Governance
and Corporate Secretary

BRIAN K. CHERRY

Vice President, Regulatory Relations

DEANN HAPNER
Vice President, FERC and ISO Relations

WILLIAM H. HARPER, Il
Vice President, Stratcgic Sourcing and

Operations Support

~

SANFORD L. HARTMAN-
Vice President and

Managing Director, Law

ROBERT T. HOWARD
Vice President,

Gas Transmission and Distriburion

DONNA JACOBS

Vice President, Nuclear Services

ROY M. KUGA
Vice President, Energy Supply

PATRICIA M. LAWICKI
Vice President and
Chief Informartion Officer

i
NANCY E. MCFADDEN

Vice President, Governmental Relations

DINYAR B. MISTRY

Vice President, State Regulation

G. ROBERT POWELL

Vice President and Controller

STEWART M. RAMSAY
Vice President, Asset Management and
Electric Transmission ’

KIMBERLY R. WALSH

Vice President, Communicarions

FONG WAN

Vice President, Energy Procurement
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